| 3
L"‘z% CITY QF

YORK

COUNCIL

Va

Notice of a public meeting of

Executive
To: Councillors Carr (Chair), Aspden (Vice-Chair), Ayre,
Gillies, Rawlings, Runciman, Steward and Waller
Date: Thursday, 14 July 2016
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: West Offices, Station Rise, York YO1 6GA
AGENDA

Notice to Members — Post Decision Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by
4:00 pm on Monday 18 July 2016.

*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a
previous call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are
not subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be
considered by the Corporate and Scrutiny Management Policy and
Scrutiny Committee.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point, Members are asked to declare:

e any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests

e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

www.york.gov.uk



Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the
meeting during consideration of the following items:

Annex 2 (ii) to Agenda Item 8 (The Guildhall — Detailed Designs
and Business Case) and Annex 2 to Agenda Item 9
(Demonstrating Progress on the Older Persons’ Accommodation
Programme) on the grounds that they contain information
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information). This
information is classed as exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
revised by The Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. The deadline for registering is
5.00pm on Wednesday 13 July 2016. Members of the public
can speak on agenda items or matters within the remit of the
committee.

To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officer for the
meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda.

Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings

“Please note this meeting will be filmed and webcast and that
includes any registered public speakers, who have given their
permission. This broadcast can be viewed at
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyone
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting
should contact the Democracy Officer (whose contact details are
at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting.

The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all
those present. It can be viewed at
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/6453/protocol_for_webcast
ing_filming_and_recording_of council_meetingspdf



http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/6453/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetingspdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/6453/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetingspdf

Forward Plan (Pages 1-4)
To receive details of those items that are listed on the Forward
Plan for the next two Executive meetings.

Thinking & Acting Differently — A Response to the Peer
Review 2016 (Pages 5 - 28)

This report offers a specific response to the findings from the
recent Local Government Association Peers report and presents
the People Plan strategic aims for approval. The report also
provides an update on all actions contained in the Peer Review
Action Plan along with suggestions for ongoing monitoring
arrangements by Members.

The City Vision and Council Plan — A Framework for
Delivery (Pages 29 - 66)

This report outlines the refresh undertaken of the Council’s
Performance Framework, in order to provide a clear line of sight
between the high level vision for the city and the work carried out
by every Council employee. This follows the Finance &
Performance Monitor taken by the Executive in June and in order
to reinforce the centrality of the Council Plan in determining
priority activities and their resourcing both for services and
individual members of staff.

York Central (Pages 67 - 98)

This report feeds back on the outcome of the informal
consultation undertaken for the redevelopment of York Central.
The report outlines the proposed approach to the Planning
Framework; sets out the proposed composition of the York
Central Community Forum; provides an update on progress with
the project and seeks agreement to enter into a Local Growth
Fund deal from Leeds City Region Local Enterprise Partnership
in order to proceed with site assembly and preparation.

The Guildhall - Detailed Designs & Business Case

(Pages 99 - 186)

This report presents the latest designs and business case for the
development of the Guildhall complex, highlighting the potential
for a world class venue for business, alongside retained council
use in one of York’s most significant historic buildings. Executive
are recommended to proceed with; detailed design and planning /
listed building consent applications for the scheme, to create a
business club / serviced office venue, with supporting commercial
development on the riverside.



9. Demonstrating Progress on the Older Persons’ Accommodation
Programme (Pages 187 - 218)
This report provides an update on the Older Persons’
Accommodation Programme and demonstrates the changing supply
and demand for older persons’ accommodation with care up to
2020. The report also seeks consent to progress plans for the re-
development of the Lowfield school site, open negotiations to
purchase land adjacent to Haxby Hall and consult on the closure of
a further Older Persons’ Home in the autumn of 2016 and one in the
first half of 2017.

10. Prevention and Early Intervention Services - a proposal for a
new way of working (Pages 219 - 318)
This report follows the Executive decisions on 17 March 2016
which outlined the plans to create new Local Area Teams to work
across the city to bring together a range of existing services to
form a new set of preventative arrangements for families from
pregnancy through to adult hood. Work underway to establish the
new structures, processes and the new ways of working that are
required are reported.

11. Children and Young People in Care: York's New Strategy
2016-2020 (Pages 319 - 344)
This report introduces the new Children in Care Strategy 2016-20
and seeks Council endorsement of the strategy which has been
developed on the basis of consultation and input from children
and young people in care, council colleagues and multi-agency
partners.

12. Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:

Name: Jayne Carr
Contact details:
e Telephone — (01904) 552030
e E-mail — jayne.carr@york.gov.uk



For more information about any of the following please
contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for
servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMEAEMESIRMHERESS (cantonese)
93 BT TN NS S (7F (TTS “NT@ | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze byC dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
e D G < T ()
Q4 (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Forward Plan: Executive Meeting: 14 July 2016

Table 1: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Executive Meeting on 25 August 2016

Title and Description

Author

Portfolio Holder

Q1 Finance & Performance Monitor

Purpose of Report: To provide Members with an update on finance and
performance information.

Members are asked to note the issues

Debbie Mitchell

Executive Member,
Finance &
Performance

Q1 Capital Programme Monitor

Purpose of Report: To provide Members with an update on the capital
programme.

Members are asked to note the issues and recommend to full Council any
changes as appropriate.

Emma Audrain

Executive Member,
Finance &
Performance

Local Area Coordination in York

Purpose of Report: To present an overview of progress to develop a model of
Local Area Coordination in York, following the award of LGA funding.

Members are asked to note the progress made and approve the progression
to the next stage of development, including the recruitment of Local Area
Coordinators.

Will Boardman

Executive Member
for Adult Social Care
and Health

T abed

7 wal epuaby



Alcohol and lllicit Drug Treatment Service Re-commissioning

Purpose of Report: This report outlines the proposed re-commissioning and
procurement of adult alcohol and illicit drug treatment services.

Members are asked to:

a) agree the proposal to re-procure adult alcohol and illicit drug treatment.
b) agree the methodology for the re-procurement.

Leigh Bell

Executive Member
for Adult Social Care
& Health

Table 2: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Executive Meeting on 29 September 2016

Title and Description

Author

Portfolio Holder

There are no items currently scheduled on the Forward Plan for the

Executive Meeting on 29 September 2016

Z abed



Table 3: Items slipped on the Forward Plan

Title & Description Author Portfolio Original | Revised |Reason for
Holder Date Date Slippage

Propt_)sed R_e—investment of_ Cap_ital Jake Executive 14 July Withdrawn Pending receipt_ of

Receipt Entitlement from Historic Transfer | Wood Member for further information

of site of Archbishop of York Junior Education,

School, Bishopthorpe Children and

Purpose of Report: To present a report on the
options for the use of a capital receipt due to
the Council from the sale by the York
Diocesan Board of Finance of part of the
former Archbishop of York Junior School in
Bishopthorpe

Members are asked to consider using this
capital receipt to invest in the building on the
remainder of the former school site which is
currently occupied by Bish St Kids Out of
School Club to ensure it’s future viability for
both the Club and as a community resource.

Young People

e abed



Title & Description Author Portfolio Original |Revised |Reason for
Holder Date Date Slippage

Alcohol and _IIIic_it Drug Treatment Service |Leigh Bell | Executive 30 June |25 Aug 16 To aIIOV\_/ officers

Re-commissioning Member for Adult further time to look

Purpose of Report: This report outlines the
proposed re-commissioning and procurement
of adult alcohol and illicit drug treatment
services.

Members are asked to:

a) agree the proposal to re-procure adult
alcohol and illicit drug treatment.

b) agree the methodology for the re-
procurement.

This report will now be considered at 14 July
Executive meeting in order to allow for further
consideration of the financial implications.

Social Care &
Health

at the financial
implications and to
provide further time
to make a decision
on future provision
of services for
young people.

{7 abed



Page 5 Agenda ltem 5

Executive

Report of the Assistant Director, Customers & Employees

Portfolio of the Executive Leader, Deputy Leader, and Executive Member for

Finance & Performance

Thinking & Acting Differently — A Response to the Peer Review 2016

Summary

1. To offer a specific response to the findings from the recent report from

the Local Government Association (LGA) Peers and present the
People Plan strategic aims for approval which was already under
development to support the council in meeting Council Plan priorities.

An update on all actions contained in the Peer Review Action Plan is
provided along with suggestions for ongoing monitoring arrangements
by Members.

Recommendations

3.

The Executive are asked:

a) to note progress in achieving the Peer Review 2016 Action plan
published on 2 June 2016 as shown in Annex B;

b) to agree the future monitoring arrangements for the Peer
Review Action Plan 2016 through the Council’s quarterly
performance reporting process that is already in place;

c) in light of b) invite Corporate and Scrutiny Management Policy
and Scrutiny Committee (CSMC) to review any matters they feel
appropriate given the committee’s portfolio;

d) to approve the People Plan 2016- 20 by signing up to the
strategic aims as detailed in Annex C.

Reason: To provide assurance regarding clear action planning and
decision taking around the Peer Review 2016 recommendations,
together with progress and monitoring arrangements in place.

14 July 2016



Page 6

Background

4.

The council undertook a Local Government Association Peer
Review in 2013. The peer challenge team's reports and findings fed
into a report to Cabinet in October 2013 which led to the creation of
a new transformation programme. In 2014 there was a further
review relating to member behaviour following a motion at full
Council. In response and during that period an Organisational
Development Plan was produced.

There were reports in February and September 2015 on the
progress of action plans arising from these reviews to Audit &
Governance Committee.

In a monitoring report provided from the records held by the former
Assistant Director Transformation & Change, the following actions
were recorded as complete:

Peer Review 2013:

Service planning overhauled

Performance scorecards produced

Policy & Performance teams consolidated

Organisational Development Plan developed and
Transformation Programme developed and implemented.

Peer Review 2014:

e Group Leaders committed to better ways of working and
established cross party group to review and develop
protocols

e Guidance reissued on members and officers in decision-
making process

e Report to Audit & Governance Committee on revised access
to information rules

e Clarify council’s values & what they mean for members

e Report on member Freedom of Information Requests.



10.

Page 7

Further work has been completed over the past 12 months to
address in particular the 2014 findings:

e Extensive induction programme delivered to new/existing
members

e Member briefing process reviewed

e New scrutiny proposals developed

e Additional resources provided to Democratic Services.

The following areas have been rolled into the high level action plan
for the Peer Review 2016 contained in this report:

e Media protocol (under redevelopment) — September 2016
report to Executive

e Digital Services Project implementation — September 2016
Phase 1 and 2 implementation.

e Workforce Development — see People Plan proposals
contained in this report.

Findings of the 2016 review

The LGA Peer letter was published on 2nd June 2016 and can be
found in the background papers and in Annex A to this report. The
focus of the findings were in line with its objectives around culture
and leadership and future plans, it was not a judgement about
guality and/or performance of council services.

Response to the 2016 Review

Initial work involved bringing together all ongoing/remaining actions
from previous reviews, key strategies already under development
and to respond to specific points in the new review. Discussion then
focussed with senior leadership teams around the top strategic
actions which were published alongside the LGA Peer Challenge
letter on 2nd June 2016.

Those priority actions already under development are, for example,
the Management Restructure, People Plan and Media Protocol
together with other actions reported separately in these agenda
papers relating to the City Vision, Council Plan and Performance
Management Framework. Any new or revision of policies/strategies
will return back to Executive for approval.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 8

Monitoring of the Peer Review 2016 Plan

A report has already been requested by Corporate and Scrutiny
Management Policy and Scrutiny Committee (CSMC) on the 2016
Peer Review within the context of the other reviews at its meeting on
15 July 2016.

Given the corporate and strategic nature of the 2016 review it is
recommended that Executive invite CSMC to monitor the
implementation of the key actions arising from the 2016 review and
any areas they choose to review in more detail.

Notwithstanding this request it is recommended that officers report
back to Executive as part of the regular quarterly performance
reporting process.

People Plan

The People Plan, attached in Annex C, is one of a number of council
strategies that will be used to support the organisation deliver the
Council Plan. It sets out strategically what we, as an organisation
need to do to deliver the right workforce for 2020.

The proposed strategy builds on the work put in place as a result of
the Council’s previous Workforce Strategy (2012-1015) , and takes
forward some the recommendations as detailed in the outturn report
that went to Corporate and Scrutiny Management Policy and
Scrutiny Committee on 7 April 2015.

The plan illustrates the main priorities under each of the five
strategic aims as follows:

Resourcing

To resource the council in the most cost effective way, using a
flexible resourcing model. Recruit and retain a core workforce with
skills and values we need. Challenge and address accessibility
barriers

Pay, Reward and Recognition

To provide pay structures and flexible reward packages that allows
for the changing nature of the council’s structure, ensuring fairness
across all grades



17.

Page 9

Skills and Behaviours

To have a visionary ambitious workforce to enable effective delivery
of outcomes for residents in challenging times. To further develop
our teams so that in enabling the provision of outcomes they can
demonstrate flexibility, innovation, decision making, an ability to
engage with external parties and at all times excellent customer
service.

Performance and Change

To be an organisation that can transform quickly and effectively, that
is outcome focussed, that values and engages with employees and
has a culture that is collaborative, innovative, inclusive and creative.

Wellbeing and Engagement

To be an organisation that supports and manages wellbeing that
promotes effective and active employee engagement with staff
initiative encouraged and welcomed. We will manage risks sensibly
and proportionately to ensure the levels of accidents and incidents
of occupational ill health is as low as possible.

An action plan is in the process of being developed which will
capture the actions /activities to deliver the desired outcomes —
Annex D illustrates some examples of how the action plan will be
developed under each priority.

Consultation

Council Plan/LGA Peer Review

18.

Council Plan priorities were subject to public consultation during
summer 2015, and feedback was incorporated into the final plan.
The LGA Peers met with a range of stakeholders including partners,
residents, officers and members during the Peer Review process.

People Plan

19.

Heads of Service and members of Directorate Management Teams
have been consulted on the Plan to make sure its relevant, will
achieve the desired outcomes for the organisation and that the main
focus and key issues have been captured. It is noted however that
the as the council’s operating model continues to evolve the size,
shape, types of activities and roles, and essential skills and
competencies may change. As a result the focus and direction of the
plan will need to be kept under review to ensure it continues to meet



Page 10

the strategic requirements of the council. Trade Union
representatives have also been consulted on the content.

Options

20. There are no alternative options to recommendation 3a) as it asks
members to note the progress in implementing the action plan, not
make a decision.

21. In relation to 3b) the options are:

e to agree the future monitoring arrangements for the Peer Review
Action Plan 2016 through the council’s quarterly performance
reporting process that is already in place.

e to agree an alternative or additional form of monitoring to the
quarterly performance process.

22. In relation to 3c) the options are:
e to agree to invite CSMC to review related matters
e to disagree with inviting CSMC to review related matter
e to suggest an alternative approach to scrutinising the Peer
Review and Action Plan.

23. In relation to 3d) the options are:
e to approve the People Plan strategic aims as summarised in
paragraph 16 and Annex C
e to amend and approve the principles and aims
e to reject the principles and aims.

Analysis

24. All information is contained in the body of the report.

Council Plan

25. Outcomes achieved by the activities covered in this report help to
deliver priorities in the Council Plan 2015-19. The priorities relating
to the People Plan support ‘A prosperous city for all’, ensuring that

as an employer the council sets a positive example of supporting
employees to achieve their full potential.



Page 11

Implications:
26.
a. Financial: None
b. Human Resources (HR): See People Plan priorities.
c. Equalities: See People Plan priorities
d. Legal: None
e. Crime and Disorder: None
f. Information Technology (ICT): See use of digital
technologies in Peer Review Report
g. Property: None.
h. Other: No known other implications.

Risk Management

27. External Peer challenge is a valuable element of the council’s
performance framework in gaining an external perspective on the
council’s improvement progress. The action plans and proposed
monitoring arrangements are recommended to avoid the risk of the
value of the review being lost and key actions being
unmonitored/unimplemented.

Contact Details Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
lan Floyd

Pauline Stuchfield Director of Customer, Business and Support

AD Customers & Employees Services

Tel No. 01904 551127 Tel No. 01904 552909

Report Approved \ |Date 30th June 2016

Specialist Implications Officer(s) None

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All [




Page 12

Background Papers:

Peer Review Challenge Letter and Peer Review Action Plan 2016,
published on the council’s website at:

https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3254/2016 peer review

Previous reports on Peer Review 2013/14:
Audit & Governance Committee February 2015 - LGA Peer Review

http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=437&MId=8119&V
er=4

Audit & Governance Committee September 2015 — Peer Review Update
Report

http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=437&MId=8605&V
er=4

List of abbreviations used in this report:

LGA Local Government Association

CYC City of York Council

HR Human Resources

ICT Information and Computer Technology

CSMC Corporate and Scrutiny Management Policy and Scrutiny
Committee

Annexes

Annex A Peer Challenge Letter 2016
Annex B Updated Peer Review 2016 Action Plan
Annex C  People Plan

Annex D  Key priority areas and actions in People Plan


https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3254/2016_peer_review
http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=437&MId=8119&Ver=4
http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=437&MId=8119&Ver=4
http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=437&MId=8605&Ver=4
http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=437&MId=8605&Ver=4

Page 13
ANNEX A

Local
Government

Association

Steve Stewart
Chief Executive
City of York Council
West Offices
Station Rise

York YO1 6GA

April 2016

Dear Steve
City of York Council Corporate Peer Challenge follow up 8" & 9" March 2016

On behalf of the peer team, thank you for the invitation to deliver the corporate peer
challenge follow up as part of the LGA offer to support sector led improvement.

Peer challenges are delivered by experienced elected member and officer peers. The
make-up of the peer team reflected your requirements and the focus of the peer challenge.
Peers were selected on the basis of their relevant experience and expertise and agreed
with you. The peers who delivered the peer challenge at York were:

¢ Dawn Baxendale — Chief Executive, Southampton City Council
e Councillor Sean Anstee (Conservative) — Leader of Trafford Council
e Councillor Howard Sykes (Liberal Democrat) — Oldham Council

e Mike Poulter — Head of Transformation and Business Support — City of Sunderland
Council

e Stephen Parkinson — Head of Policy, Communications and Performance — Preston
City Council

e Judith Hurcombe — Programme Manager, LGA (Peer Challenge Manager)

Scope and focus of the peer challenge

You asked us to explore the following areas:

e Progress since the previous LGA peer challenges undertaken in June 2013 and
November 2014

e Behaviours and relationships

e Future plans

The peer challenge process

It is important to stress that this was not an inspection. Peer challenges are improvement-
focussed and tailored to meet individual council’s needs. They are designed to

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

Local Government Improvement and Development is the business name of the Improvement and Development Agency

Registered in England No. 3675577. Registered office: Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ. Limited liability by guarantee.

""’“"& INVESTORS
%, IN PEOPLE


mailto:info@local.gov.uk

Page 14
ANNEX A

complement and add value to a council’s own performance and improvement focus. The
peer team used their experience and knowledge of local government to reflect on the
information presented to them by people they met, things they saw and material that they
read.

The peer team prepared for the peer challenge by reviewing a range of documents and
information in order to ensure they were familiar with the Council and the challenges it is
facing. We spent 2 days onsite at York, during which we:

e Engaged with more than 129 people including a range of council staff together
with councillors and external partners and stakeholders

e Gathered information and views from more than 30 meetings, visited Tang Hall
and Hazel Court, and undertook additional research and reading

This letter provides a summary of the peer team’s findings. It builds on the feedback
presentation provided by the peer team at the end of their on-site visit on Wednesday 9™
March. The feedback provided is deliberately light touch, as this was not a full scale
corporate peer challenge, and our work with you is as fellow local government officers
and members, not professional consultants or inspectors.

Progress since the Corporate Peer Challenge in June 2013

Overall the council continues to make some progress since the previous corporate peer
challenge, but this has been limited by a widespread lack of ownership of many of the issues
and challenges facing the council then and now. We acknowledge there has been a
significant period of change at both a political and managerial level, which will have
contributed to this situation, but here now exists the potential for a period of stability that
should be grasped.

There is still clearly visible pride and commitment to York at all levels. Many people both
internal and external to the council gave us positive views about the city and their role and
attachment to it. However, many were less enthusiastic about the council, with some
describing their continued employment within the organisation being despite the council,
rather than because of it.

There has been political change following the May 2015 elections with the council moving
from Labour control to a joint administration with Conservative and Liberal Democrat
members, and there has been some change in senior management appointments.
Irrespective of the nature and qualities of the individuals holding those appointments, this in
itself does not represent or provide significant cultural or organisational improvement, and
more needs to be done to consider how the council will bring about that change.

Those holding leadership positions are not consistently and widely visible enough across the
organisation and sometimes outside of it too. Some staff told us that they rarely saw or
heard from members or senior managers unless there was either a complaint to be dealt
with, or they were to receive bad news relating to redundancies. Attention needs to be given
to how the visibility of senior members and officers could be raised so that staff can be
supported and to help them to feel more appreciated than they currently do; sometimes this
can be a simple ‘thank you’ for a job well done, or to hear employees’ views about the
council and where it could improve. There is a need to develop a more positive corporate

Page 2 of 7



Page 15
ANNEX A

narrative which sets out the future direction of the council and how staff will be supported
through change.

A criticism previously was that the council’s budget did not follow its stated priorities: the
evidence presented to the peer team suggests this remains the case. We heard repeated
concerns from officers and members that the most recently completed budget round was
largely based on a ‘salami-slicing’ approach of seeking 30% budget reductions across all
departments, rather than a strategic approach which begins to shift expenditure to both deal
with long term financial restraint as well as reshaping the council to deal with that restraint.
The approach to the budget did not engage senior managers enough and was heavily
centralised through the finance directorate. This will have restricted the ability of both
members and officers to thematically assess the co-dependencies that exist between service
directorates and budgets, and become more aware of any unintended risks and
consequences.

Ward budgets, backed by the available delegated budget of £1m, shows a commitment to
meeting local priorities and residents’ needs, but more attention is needed to address how
the distribution of these monies will have impact, and how they will help the council achieve
its priorities.

We heard about a number of initiatives that show the council can work well, lead and engage
with others to deliver services to communities in different ways, including:

ICT cutting edge developments including trading opportunities
The Business Improvement District

Tang Hall community development

Re-energised approaches to devolution

York is unusual in that there are many partners who recognise the role of the council as the
civic institution of the borough to lead the place, and who are very keen to work with the
council to bring about positive change and help to deliver the council’s ambitions: this is a
good resource to be tapped for the future. Currently the approach to partnership working
appears to be stuck in silos and what is achieved and could be achieved is not widely known
or understood. There will be many more opportunities available but do not yet appear to be
on the radar, and raising the profile of the council’s leadership will help to ensure that
maximum benefits can be achieved. A more corporate approach is needed so potential
opportunities are discussed, shared and understood.

Behaviours and relationships

The establishment of a joint administration reflects a level of political maturity and that,
combined with the election arrangements of all-out elections every 4 years provides a
significant opportunity for stability. This should not be under estimated because it provides a
window to get on with difficult decisions early in the election cycle. More however needs to
be done to grow the administration into a cohesive and connected body, with connected and
cohesive views and policies, as often it appears to those outside of the inner cohort of the
new arrangements, rightly or wrongly, that there are two rather than one political
administrations leading the council. The peer team recognises that compromise will be
required to allow the administration to endure. This may lead to a perception of understated
leadership, yet it absolutely must be the case that power is being held for a shared purpose

Page 3 of 7



Page 16
ANNEX A

and aim, and this is not yet clear. Staff, stakeholders and partners are struggling to
understand what this administration is aiming to do, how it will do it, and when its aims will
be achieved by.

The leadership provided by members and officers is both functional and operational, in that
services are delivered well, and staff are committed to doing a good job to high standards.
This commitment is more to the city and serving the public, than wanting to do a good job for
the council and sometimes this appears to be despite the leadership of the council.

One of the issues hampering progress is that the organisational focus of many stakeholders
seems to be set in the past, often relating to previous people in leadership positions and the
previous issues surrounding them. Some of this may relate to the change in administration
and of some senior officers, but this backward looking focus means we heard very little
about what the council and the city should be doing in the medium-long term. Despite the
new Council Plan being agreed, it does not appear to have a high profile and nor is it widely
recognised as the key delivery plan for bringing about strategic change both within the
council and in the city.

Relationships between executive members appear to have improved and are beginning to
mature: this is positive news. More widely there appears to be less of a focus on point-
scoring across the political parties, and this is partly reflected in significantly fewer
complaints being referred to the Standards Committee.

However, there is room for improvement in the joint and shared wider leadership (by
members and officers) of the council. There are some good individual working relationships
between senior officers and their respective portfolio holders. But we repeatedly heard
members and officers speaking of each other using dialogue such as on ‘us and them’ with
very little expression of ‘us’ or ‘we’, which gives a clear indication of separate encampments
who regard each other as a problem. It also gives an impression of a lack of a corporate
and collegiate approach where members and officers are working together as a team to
bring about positive change. This separateness must be addressed if relationships and trust
are to develop and the council is to function well as a corporate entity.

There is a wide and differing range of experience across the senior membership of the
authority, including of leading, planning and delivery, with some of this being inevitable given
the length of time of the new administration. Members need to be mindful of being more
open to receiving significant professional support and trusting the integrity of the advice
being offered, and to be more open about officers challenging them. Officers too need to be
able to challenge members in a constructive way and for that challenge to be reciprocated
without being detrimental to either relationships or confidence.

Greater awareness is needed of the ideal behaviours and values that members and officers
should be showing when leading the council. This includes the greater visibility mentioned
elsewhere in this letter, as well as being consistently professional at all times, and being able
to challenge each other when standards are perceived to not meet those levels. Sometimes
behaviours can be inappropriate even if they manifest themselves courteously.

We heard individual and collective discussions about a genuine desire to bring about change

at the council, and it appears that everyone is up for the challenge to jointly owning a future
vision and plans about how to deliver that vision. But it is not yet clear what that vision is: it

Page 4 of 7



Page 17
ANNEX A

needs to be written, shared, debated and articulated, so that some certainty and stability can
be provided for staff at all levels including senior managers, and for partners.

Future plans

Attention has been paid to the council’s role in the wider devolution arrangements within the
region and more emphasis is being placed on playing a greater role in North Yorkshire’s
arrangements, whilst maintaining an interest in the Leeds City Region. This is a positive
early win that is regarded by partners as a good move, and it allows the new administration a
platform from which to provide greater leadership of place.

There is a good degree of self-awareness and a desire to bring about change, but we saw
little evidence of and heard little discussion about outcomes. What differences will the
council bring about that will be recognised by members of the public or other stakeholders?
Outcomes appear to have a very low profile, partly because much of the dialogue we
observed was internally rather than externally focused.

There is a widespread expectation from some members, staff and partners that the council
will produce a vision, backed by clearly articulated future plans that set out and clearly state
the future ambition for both the organisation itself and the city. The new Council Plan does
not yet appear to fulfill this function: despite its existence we heard widespread concerns
from people not being clear the future purpose of the council, its size, shape and future role.
This creates uncertainty for staff, stakeholders and partners, about York the council and
York the city and their role in it.

We heard of less initiative overload than when we previously reported, but there is also an
absence of clarity about how important individual projects relate to each other and the
synergies between them. This can be attributed to the perceived lack of a declared vision,
Local Plan, medium term financial strategy and agreed and properly resourced delivery
programme. The corporate capacity for establishing a coherent plan that is aligned with
resources and managed by way of a programed approach appears to have been
redistributed or removed as part of the abolition of the Office of the Chief Executive. The
reasons for abolition do not appear to be widely understood either and how future
performance will be monitored and reported on is not clear.

The business of any council is complex with a great deal being delivered and being planned
for, so care needs to be taken to ensure that the risks and consequences of decisions taken
are fully understood and explored before decisions are made, so that the desired outcomes
are achieved without detrimental impacts elsewhere. During the recent budget round
members do not appear to have fully utilised the skills and experience of officers who could
provide that advice, so it is not clear whether interdependencies have been fully explored,
nor whether future risks have either. The next round of the budget needs to include more
opportunities for members and officers to discuss together how and where savings will be
made, so that those risks and interdependencies are explored together and are widely
understood. This is important for both the budget round and decision making more widely, to
ensure that decisions are made on a solid evidence base.

In 2013 in light of anticipated future budgetary pressures and increasing demand for

services, particularly in Adult Social Care, we urged the council to explore its future role and
purpose over and above its intention to become a ‘commissioning council’. Not much

Page 5 of 7



Page 18
ANNEX A

appears to have happened on this until fairly recently, with new ideas and form being given
to how both Adults and Children’s services will fit into a new operating model and reduce
dependency on the council, with both only recently being discussed in more detail in the
context of the council’s future size, shape and role. More explanation and debate is needed
about the model, including costings and workforce development planning.

There are a number of senior posts which are interim in anticipation of a future restructure.
Churn in some directors’ posts in recent years has not brought stability to the organisation.
The senior managers’ review is taking too long to complete and that too is creating anxiety
not only for those directly affected but for the people in the departments who work for them.
Sorting out the review and the posts affected by it needs to be done with pace, to help to
bring stability and end uncertainty.

Staff and member morale needs some attention because wide numbers of people appear to
be jaded. Whilst senior members and officers cannot offer certainty about everything,
particularly in light of future budget pressures, they can help to create more positive
environments which support people better, even if inmediate answers cannot be given.

Service delivery is good to date, but the context and demands on local government continue
to present challenges, so space needs to be created to think about the strategic and long
term future of the council. Such thinking needs to be inclusive and cross-party so that plans
are resilient to cope with any future changes of administration (which are not unusual in
York’s political history). The council and the city deserve those plans to be robust and to be
in the best interests of the organisation and the communities it serves.

Recommendations

There is a range of elements we think you should consider now:

e Making visible and public demonstrations of joint leadership

e Create Strategic Leadership Team meetings between the Executive and SMT on at
least a monthly basis

e Provide better clarity of the roles and responsibilities of members and officers

e Get on with the senior management review: create officer stability, followed by SMT
team building

e Don’t lose the opportunity of being a new administration to make the difficult decisions
now, and be bold in those decisions

e Focus on action, rather than reaction to immediate issues and events

e Develop a positive narrative about the council and what you want to achieve

e Consider capacity for corporate planning and performance management linked to a
medium term financial strategy

e Beyond the social media policy, consider a wider approach to managing vocal
minorities, to ensure they do not dominate and distract the council from its business

e Develop a tactical plan to raise the profile of the council

e This is the third review within 3 years. We expect you to develop - with a sense of
urgency - a clear and visible action plan with deliverables, timescales and individual
member and officer accountabilities, ready for adoption during early summer 2016

Page 6 of 7



Page 19
ANNEX A

Next steps

You will undoubtedly wish to reflect on these findings and suggestions made with your
senior managerial and political leadership before determining how the council wishes to
take things forward. As part of the peer challenge process, there is an offer of continued
activity to support this. In the meantime we are keen to continue the relationship we have
formed with you and colleagues through the peer challenge to date.

| thought it helpful to include contact details of Mark Edgell, LGA Principal Advisor for
Yorkshire and the Humber, mark.edgell@local.gov.uk tel. 07747 636910. He is the main
contact between your council and the Local Government Association. Hopefully this
provides you with a convenient route of access to the Local Government Association, its
resources and any further support.

All of us connected with the peer challenge would like to wish you every success. Once
again, many thanks to you and your colleagues for inviting the team to undertake this
follow up peer challenge and to everyone involved for their participation.

Yours sincerely

Judith Hurcombe — Programme Manager
Local Government Association

Tel. 07789 373624

Email Judith.hurcombe@local.gov.uk

Page 7 of 7


mailto:mark.edgell@local.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council - Peer Review Action Plan

Page 21

Annex B

Activity

What does success look like

Lead

Progress

Clarity amongst residents and staff about why we

Promotion of the council plan as the main
strategic document of the council. Residents have
an understanding of the Council’s vision for York.

Officers

* Report to Executive 14 July 2016
« Initial work on values has commenced

Develop vision for the Council and the City do what we do anc_j tal_<e the decisions we “".‘ke- Develop values and revised behavioural standards Ch|e_f * Engagement Plan to be developed
Develop new organisation values and behaviours . Executive : .
. based on vision and values feedback from staff * New Behavioural standards work will
based on vision
and external partners follow
Produce key delivery plans Council Plan P“O”t'.e.s within Council Plan are delivered and Key measures of success have a positive * Report to Executive 14 July 2016
. . specified targets, outputs and outcomes are . . .
(supporting corporate plans and service : . . : o performance trend through the lifetime of the plan. CMT + Draft service plans to be developed in
) . . achieved. Associated key risks are identified, . . . ) .
plans) including management of key risks . Corporate risks appear alongside KPIs. line with deadlines set
monitored and managed.
Vision and Values
Thinking
Differently * Report to Executive 14 July 2016
Line of sight is visible from individual plans to the . . * Draft service plans to be developed in
g Key measures of success have a positive Assistant : : .
: vision. Plans have clear output measures and . : line with deadlines set
Implement refreshed planning & . . performance trend through the lifetime of the plan. Director, .
outcomes, performance against these is . « Staff appraisals are underway
performance management framework . : Maximise openness and transparency by Customers & . . .
monitored through a structured reporting . o . * Policy & Scrutiny structure in
. L . exceeding Publication Scheme requirements Employees . I .
intended to drive improvement and achievement. development which will drive reporting
structure for them
: . - . . . . Director of . . . .
Review budget planning process and Effective financial planning and resource Key financial performance measures have a * Financial plans iapproved in February
: . LT . ) . e Customer &
known structural/financial challenges to | prioritisation is in place to deliver strategic plans. | positive performance trend through the lifetime of . 2016 to 2020
. " . . : . . Business . ,
deliver the 2030 vision of continued Innovation and excellence underpins resourcing the plan and appear alongside performance, Subport * Detailed budget planning for 2017/18
financial best practice solutions and decisions. employees and customer satisfaction data. SerL\)/Fi)ces has commenced
Officers and Members to be seen within * Engagement Strategy and Toolkit to
The council and delivery partners engage with, | communities working for communities and having be reviewed later in year
Developing a listening council approach | listen to and feed back to stakeholders as part of the power to act where appropriate. Have a CMT » Media Protocols to be agreed
their organisational values and process design. Feedback ethic — ‘you said we did’ to all * Relaunch of the Talkabout panel to
stakeholders. collect resident views on bi-annual basis
Agree key major demspn points n the . . . e N « 'All About Projects' methodology has
delivery of significant projects and in light All major projects are identified, prioritised, : , : . ) .
- . : : . : . Major Projects appear alongside business as been launched with updates to Audit &
of vision and major policy scanning resourced and delivered effectively. The city and L . . . .
, ) X . : . . usual activity in Service Plans. Major project KPIs Governance Committee
particularly for: Local Plan; Community council has a reputation for managing change : . CMT . . o
o } ) . : o are monitored through corporate and directorate * Major project reporting is to be
Stadium; York Central; Southern effectively to deliver economic and efficiency
) . . . ; performance framework embedded as part of the performance
Gateway; Future Size and Shape priorities for the city and the council. .
N . reporting framework
Priorities; Devolution
Delivering For &
W'th the City There is a strong and positive narrative in Assistant |« Communications restructure complete
Acting Differently Proactive communications and relation to the council’s activities and its Restructure and re-design of communications Director, * New Head of Service to be recruited
relationships with media performance against its priorities. Issue function once in CBSS directorate Customers & |Media Protocol revised (see Executive
management is planned wherever possible. Employees |report 14 July 2016)
* Area based approach is under
Assistant  |development in Childrens Services
Work closer with communities directly but | Communities and residents have formed a new Directors, W'a rd Commltt'eefs established .
) " : N : ) : . . . Customers & | 'My Account' will be launched this
also harnessing the positive elements of | relationship with the council which allows their | Current locality based projects are designed and . .
- ) ) R ) o ) . . : " Employees/ [autumn giving greater and more flexible
digital/social media to maximise impact of | views to be sought and understood in different |launched in conjunction with relevant communities - . ) )
o Communities, |access to local services and information
engagement/communication approaches ways :
Culture and |- use as an engagement tool is yet to be
Public Realm |developed. Can be used in engaging
through social media.
Vision for 2030 is agreed. Lines of accountability ) Sge Executive Report 14 July 2016
- - ) . . . + Joint performance management
Peer development activity/team building . established through service planning. Major : T
: Strong coherent leadership focussed on . — . . . Chief reporting in development.
support for CMT, Executive Members, , ) L projects are prioritised alongside Frontline Service . :
. continuous development in delivering excellence. . Executive |+ Leadership development plans to be
Scrutiny Leads Delivery : : .
discussed on arrival of the new Chief
Executive.
Skills and capacity are in place to focus on
Early progress on Senior Management priorities and dr!vmg forward prorr.us.e.d delivery . . , Chief » Commenced June 2016 for completion
. and change. Delivery of council priorities, values Completion of Senior Management Review .
Review : . Executive  |by October 2016.
and behaviours through the whole workforce is
provided through effective leadership.
Other
Underpinning :
: , , » See Executive report 14 July 2016 for
Actions . Successful development of the skills, capacity . . N
People Plan completion & approval as . . . , Chief approval of Strategic objectives
) : and confidence of the workforce during a period People Plan is completed and approved . )
part of delivery planning framework . o Executive |+ Delivery plans are under development
of significant change and challenge.
* Measurement standards to be agreed
* Engagement Strategy/toolkit to be
Assistant reviewed this Autumn.
Review engagement framework including . : . . Directors, [+ Digital revenues & benefits to be
o . Technologies allow a greater interaction with . : : :
maximising the use of E-Democracy in . — The improved CRM is launched during 2016/17 | Customers & (launched in July .
. . .. residents and other users on priorities that matter . . . ) . , Vo .
order to integrate with digital and S . . which provides opportunity for information capture | Employees/ |+ 'My Account' will be launched this
o to them. The council is easier to do business . . : o . .
customer strategic principles across all with on residents views and queries. Communities, |autumn giving greater and more flexible
channels of engagement. ' Culture and |access to local services and information
Public Realm (- use as an engagement tool is yet to be

developed.




This page is intentionally left blank



Resources aligned with
operating model

Flexible resourcing model
informed by operating
model;

Focus on future workforce
(aging workforce
demographics)

Increased flexibility
utilising identified talent
along with need to remove
internal blockers “cut
internal red tape”

People who are:
Accountable

Able to take decisions
Flexible and work at pace

Able to make full use of IT,
embracing technology to
support their work.

Customer orientated
Commercially aware

Innovative and
entrepreneurial

Able to work in partnership
with stakeholders.

Leaders and managers
that are enablers who:

Empower
Coach
Mentor

Encourage Innovation

ALL ABOUT US

People Plan - Working together as a team for the benefit of York

Pay, Reward and Recognition

To provide pay structures and flexible reward packages that allows for the changing
nature of the council’s structure, ensuring fairness across all grades.

Resourcing

To resource the council in the most cost effective way, using a flexible
resourcing model. Recruit and retain a core workforce with skills and values

we need. Challenge and address accessibility barriers. - .
« Pay structure is reviewed and redesigned;

- Key organisation design principles are in place; - Remains confident in fairness of reward and pay practices;

» Focus has moved away from retaining staff with resourcing more flexible; - A total reward package is in place;

- Recruitment processes are streamlined through the use of IT; « Outstanding work continues to be recognised and rewarded.

Performance
and Change

- Selection is based on values, behaviours and competencies;

- Offer to young people becomes more sustainable in a
shrinking workforce;

* Talent continues to be utilised. To be an organisation that can transform

quickly and effectively that is outcome focussed,
that values and engages with employees and
has a culture that is collaborative, innovative, inclusive and creative.

» Good people management is viewed as key;
« All are clear of the Council’s vision and live its values;

- Performance is consistently managed with everyone clear on their objectives and how their
role links to the delivery of service and council plans;

Wellbeing and Engagement

To be an organisation that supports and manages
wellbeing, that promotes effective and active
employee engagement with staff initiative
encouraged and welcomed. We will manage risks
sensibly and proportionately to ensure the levels of
accidents and incidents of occupational ill health are
as low as possible.

Skills and Behaviours

To have a visionary ambitious workforce to
enable effective delivery of outcomes for
residents in challenging times. To further
develop our teams so that in enabling the
provision of outcomes they can demonstrate
flexibility, innovation, decision making, an ability to
engage with external parties and at all times excellent
customer service.

- Talent continues to be identified and developed;

« People policies are simple and accessible and resolution focussed;

- Staff feel in control supported and equipped as change impacts them;

- Networks are in place to share learning/knowledge and skills.

« Wellbeing programmes and pro active support continue to be
delivered focussing on key health issues for the organisation informed by

Focus is on: HR Metrics and aligned with Public Health Strategy;

« There is continuous dialogue with staff via pulse surveys and other mechanisms with

- Development (rather than traditional training) with a culture of coaching el _ , ,
their views actively sought to help shape how services are delivered;

in place;
« Greater collaboration with trade union colleagues with most issues resolved outside of formal

- Development more readily accessible with e-learning tool supporting offer; _
processes with a focus on outcomes;

- Annual L&D programme continues to be in place delivering key skill areas . . .
(e.q. digital awareness; customer services etc); » More staff are involved in community engagement;

- Managers are key enablers with the leadership team visible and on message; » Clear understanding across the organisation of roles and responsibilities re: H&S;

-« A skills audit tool is frequently used to identify appropriate resources along with identified talent * Risks are actively managed as a matter of routine and considered in any change to how services are delivered;

instrumental in bringing about change. - Incident reporting and investigation is improved through the use of IT.

Support processes and systems running throughout

ALL ABOUT YOU

Annex C

Pay structures that
address immediate pay
and grading issues

National Living Wage
Reflect council’s structure

Market compatibility to help
facilitate alternative service
delivery models

Recognition and Total
Rewards Statements
are key in employment
proposition

ez abed

We demonstrate:

Transparency and evidence
based decision making

Mutual respect

We are:
Engaging and enabling
Accountable

A stakeholder in community

ALL ABOUT YORK




This page is intentionally left blank



Key priority areas and actions in People Plan Annex D
Key Area Strategic Ambition Priority area Key Actions Outcomes
Resourcing | To resource the Offer to young Review and communicate revised Make most of funding available’
council in the most | people becomes | apprenticeship strategy in light of Offer to young people more
cost effective way, | more apprenticeship levy for 2017; sustainable ;
using a flexible sustainable Identify and source apprenticeship Workforce profile more reflective of
resourcing model. placements based on future skills the community it serves in terms of
Recruit and retain need, in addition to current vacancy age.
a core workforce management approach.
with skills and Approach to make best use of funds
values we need. available- 2016 and 17
Challenge and Review retention of young people
address following completion of
accessibility apprenticeship schemes for 2016;
barriers Evaluate overall performance of
scheme
Pay Reward | To provide pay Pay structure is | Analyse national proposal for review | Pay structure that address
and structures and reviewed and of LGS pay spine and examine immediate pay and grading issues
Recognition | flexible reward redesigned implications for CYC pay structure; including:
packages that Identify options for short and long National living wage;
allows for the term pay structures Reduction in senior managers;
changing nature of Seek agreement on option to pursue; | Market compatibility to help
the council’s Develop and model the preferred facilitate alternative service delivery
structure, ensuring option; models;
fairness across all Negotiate change and implement Increase employee productivity
grades
Performance | To be and All are clear of Vision development for the Council All staff are clear of Council vision
and Change | organisation that the Council’s and City and demonstrate it's values and
can transform vision and live Review and amend values and behaviours in all day to day
quickly and its values behaviours based on vision for activities

effectively , that is
outcome focussed,
that values and

Council and City into our behavioural
standards framework
Promote and embed revised values

Gz abed



Key priority areas and actions in People Plan

Annex D

engages with
employees and
has a culture that
is collaborative,

and behaviours

Ensure values are incorporated into
other areas of people plan actions eg
value based recruitment

innovative,

inclusive and

creative.
Wellbeing To be an There is Staff focus groups refreshed; Staff s views are actively sought
and organisation that continuous Programme of Pulse Surveys and with feedback loop in place
Engagement | supports and dialogue with focus groups put in place to engage

manages wellbeing
that promotes
effective and active
employee
engagement with
staff initiative
encouraged and
welcomed. We will
manage risks
sensibly and
proportionately to
ensure the levels
of accidents and
incidents of
occupational ill
health is as low as
possible.

staff via pulse
surveys and
other
mechanisms
with their views
actively sought
to help shape
how services are
delivered

with employees and inform on
activities arising from people plan;
Introduce a staff “thank you” scheme
linked to Council values and to
support monthly and annual
recognition events.

Staff are recognised and feel
valued.

Demonstration of Council’s values
acknowledged.

9z abed



Key priority areas and actions in People Plan

Annex D

Skills and
Behaviour

To have a
visionary ambitious
workforce to
enable effective
delivery of services
in challenging
times. To further
develop our teams
so that in enabling
the provision of
services they can
demonstrate
flexibility,
innovation,
decision making,
an ability to
engage with
external parties
and at all times
excellent customer
service.

Development
(rather than
traditional
training ) with a
culture of
coaching in
place

Middle
managers are
key enablers

Embed a coaching culture within the
organisation:

Consolidate and expand coaching
across the organisation ,

e Promote coaching faculty
offering confidential one to one
coaching

¢ Develop managers as coach —
providing tolls and techniques
to introduce coaching into their
everyday management style

e Provide a basic level of
coaching techniques —
coaching conversations

Coaching techniques are frequently
used and start to become the
natural style of colleagues;

Coaching faculty is fully utilised
with employees requesting one to
one coaching to assist with their
development

Teams become empowered and
supportive

Support new ways of working with
customers, residents and each
other

/.2 abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29 Agenda Item 6

14 July 2016

Executive

Report of the Assistant Director, Customers & Employees

Portfolio of the Executive Leader, Deputy Leader, and Executive Member for
Finance & Performance

The City Vision and Council Plan — A Framework for Delivery
Summary

1. The Finance & Performance Monitor taken by the Executive at its June
meeting reported performance against Council Plan priorities in 2015/16.
In order to reinforce the centrality of the Council Plan in determining
priority activities and their resourcing both for services and individual
members of staff, it is proposed to refresh the Council’s Performance
Framework, so that there is a clear line of sight between the high level
vision for the city and the work carried out by every Council employee
(see Annex A for a pictorial representation).

Recommendations
2. Executive to approve:

1) the City Vision 2030 and
i) City of York Council Performance Framework 2016-19.

Reason: To clearly communicate direction of travel of the council alongside
the council plan.

Reason: To provide a performance framework for assuring action planning
and decision making.



Page 30

Background

Council Plan

3.

In the process of developing the Council Plan, to reflect the joint
administration’s 12 Point Plan, and the Council’s other statutory and
partnership priorities, there was an implicit vision of the kind of city the
Council was working to support, articulated in the three core priorities — a
prosperous city for all, a focus on front-line services, and a council that
listens to residents.

A Vision for the City

4.

Experience over the last year, including in the development of the new
Economic Strategy for the city agreed by the Executive in May, has
suggested that it would be helpful to make that vision more explicit so
that members, staff, residents, partners and stakeholders are clear about
where we want to be and can see how the Council Plan contributes to
the achievement of the vision. This perception was reinforced by the
findings of the Peer Review. A draft vision developed by Executive
Members and officers is attached at Annex B.

The key elements of the Vision describes how the city will be in terms of
the place, its people and the council, with sustainable growth providing
the means to ensure all residents can fulfil their potential. This is
summarised as:

“The Council will secure the future of York as a prosperous, progressive,
and sustainable city, giving the highest priority to the wellbeing of its
residents, whilst protecting the fabric and culture of this world-famous
historic city’.

Performance Framework (including Service Planning)

6.

The council last updated its Performance and Service Planning
framework in 2014 due to the centralisation of data practices. The launch
of the ‘Key Performance Data (KPI) Machine’ in the spring of 2015 to be
the central repository of performance data, has created increased scope,
availability and timeliness of performance information, and this has given
the organisation further opportunities for the performance framework to
be updated and refined. A draft update of the council’s proposed
Performance Framework to cover the period 2016-19 is therefore
attached at Annex C for consideration.



Page 31

7. The key elements of the Performance Framework are:

e Aline of sight from the council’s Vision through to directorate service
planning and frontline service delivery.

e Looks to ensure the council and its partner’s network of plans are
coordinated through an integrated performance framework.

e Outlines regular monitoring activity with responsibility held at an
appropriate level.

e Places the Council Plan and Executive Member portfolios at the
centre of planning and monitoring activity.

8. The Performance Framework includes guidance related to council and
service planning, which is being refreshed in light of the proposed new
council framework. Service planning within the City of York council is at
Assistant Director level and that given the timing of this report, and the
planned senior management restructure, work will commence with
Assistant Directors to start drafting service plans for planned new
portfolios ready for approval in May 2017; in the mean time all other
elements of the performance framework will operate as described with
quarterly reporting to management teams and Executive.

Embedding The Approach

9. In order to embed the new vision, when agreed, we will put in place a
number of actions, including:

¢ We will develop new values and behavioural standards which will
be the basis of our Performance Development Review (PDR)
process, and how in future we recruit our staff.

¢ We will engage with partners through formal and informal
channels so that they are clear on the direction of travel and gain
their support and commitment to playing their part in the
achievement of the vision.

e We will ensure Internal and external communications will have the
vision at its heart and we develop a communications plan to
highlight aspects of the vision to our staff, particularly those
affected by implementation of the new operating model, and
stakeholders on a regular, ongoing basis.

e We will report on our progress towards Council Plan objectives
(as the “delivery plan” for the vision) and the associated



Page 32

performance measures through quarterly monitoring internally,
and through the York Open Data platform.

Implications:
10. The implications are as follows:
a. Financial: There are no direct financial implications to this report,
but a strong performance framework will increase the robustness of

decision-making.

b. Human Resources (HR): There are no HR implications to this
report.

c. Equalities: There are no equalities implications to this report.
d. Legal: There are no legal implications to this report.

e. Crime and Disorder: There are no crime and disorder implications
to this report.

f. Information Technology (ICT): There are no information
technology implications to this report.

g. Property: There are no property implications to this report.
h. Other: No known implications.

Risk Management

11. The risk of not refreshing our performance framework within a long term
vision will mean an unfocussed approach to delivering the Council Plan

without a line of sight and without clear direction, prioritisation and
methodology for improvement.

Contact Details Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Author:

lan Floyd
Pauline Stuchfield Director of Customer, Business and Support

AD Customers & Employees Services
Tel No. 01904 551127 Tel No. 01904 552909



Page 33

Report Approved \ | Date 30th June 2016

Specialist Implications Officer(s) None

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All [

Background Papers:

Council Plan — Executive July 2015
Peer Review 2016 — Executive July 2016.

Annexes
Annex A Line of Sight
Annex B York 2030 - still making history

Annex C  Performance Management Framework 2016 - 2019



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategic Vision

Council Plan

Key Strategic Drivers

Directorate Service

Performance Level

Frontline Service’

Line of Sight

A Prosperous City for All
A Focus on Frontline Services

A Council That Listens to Residents

All Statutory and Key Strategies

All Plans:

« All Assistant Director Plans
 Local Plan

Personal and Team Development Reviews

ANNEX A

Council Leadership
Partners
Chief Executive

Executive
Scrutiny
CMT
CLG
Partners

Exec Members
CMT

CLG

Partners

Gg abed

Individual Exec Members
CMT

Assistant Directors
Partners

Service Managers

\_Partners



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37

York 2030 - still making history

It is 2030. York is widely recognised as
one of the best places to live in the
world: a distinct, exciting and beautiful
northern City, rich in history but
forward-looking and progressive. The
city, acknowledged as an intellectual
and environmental hub, enjoys a
vibrant economy in which local people
can access jobs, housing and
opportunities. Residents enjoy a high
guality of life, and there is a real pride
in York. People are generous with their
time in helping one another,
particularly more vulnerable people in
our local community. Residents live in
safe neighbourhoods and benefit from
first-class education, excellent frontline
public services and community
facilities.

Our People

People love being in York; they smile.
The City appeals to all ages and
backgrounds with all York’s
communities contributing to the
vibrancy.

The council has forged a partnership
with local communities, parish councils
and voluntary organisations. Residents
take ownership of local issues and feel
empowered through thriving area-
based Ward Committees.

York’s people take collective
responsibility for keeping children safe
and protected from harm. Partners
work together to identify risks and
intervene early to prevent problems

Annex B

getting worse. York is a place where
children and childhood is highly valued.
Our aim is for every child to achieve
great things, be kept safe and to build
resilience to enable them to make a
successful transition to adulthood.

York’s young people have access to
the best education in the North,
coordinated across our schools,
colleges and universities. Partnership
working means skills are linked to
opportunities and everyone is
supported to achieve their full potential
whatever their background.

A well established citywide graduate
and apprenticeship programme helps
York keep students in the city, and has
allowed small local businesses to gain
valuable skills.

A continued effort to tackle poverty and
social exclusion has achieved real
results and helped ensure everyone
feels part of York’s ongoing success.

The Council provides information and
coordination to allow people to live
independently, supporting themselves
and each other. An integrated Health
and Social Care system means that for
those who encounter challenges which
stop them from living well without some
assistance, additional support is
available quickly and easily to prevent,
reduce and delay need, whilst longer
term support is available.

Mental health and wellbeing is given
true parity of esteem to physical health



Page 38

in all services and organisations across
York.

Our Place

York has creatively used its heritage
and unique assets to cement its
reputation as a distinct, exciting and
beautiful northern City.

The city has reclaimed its railway past
with York Central delivering a new
sustainable business and cultural
community. Significant new quality
office space has allowed businesses
small and large to flourish and enabled
a shift to higher paid jobs.

Through the council’s effective
partnership with the Business
Improvement District and private
sector, York has been protected and
enhanced. High quality developments
including York Central have been
delivered and are occupied by high
value employers. These projects have
been developed with long term
sustainability in mind, improving the
attractiveness of the City while
maintaining its unique identity and
culture. Millions of visitors from around
the world continue to flock to York.

Through the delivery of these key
projects, we have grown our business
rates base and this has allowed us to
invest in key priorities including
supporting economic growth, such as
improvements to the Outer Ring Road
and to deliver York’s new Southern
Gateway. With a station regeneration -
the ‘Kings Cross of the North’ - and

Annex B

recently completed High Speed links,
businesses and residents can access
other major cities in the country in less
than 90 minutes.

Sustainability is at the heart of the city,
and continuing investment in local
transport means York now has the
highest proportion of people using
sustainable transport in the north with
a resulting improvement in air quality
and congestion.

The challenges of climate change and
flooding are recognised. Local
businesses and organisations have
joined the council in signing up to the
‘One Planet York’ framework,
promoting zero waste and zero carbon
outcomes. Recycling has rocketed and
with emissions falling, York is rightly
recognised as the Greenest City in the
North.

We have world-class cultural, retail and
leisure opportunities, including the
sports facilities at York’s Community
Stadium. District centres from Haxby to
Bishopthorpe Road to Acomb Front
Street thrive.

An evidence-based Local Plan has
seen new housing built across the city,
but the historic character of York and
its Green Belt setting has been
protected and enhanced with newly
created strays and open spaces.
Strong partnerships between
developers and local communities
have ensured that new housing is
environmentally sustainable and
blends successfully with existing



Page 39

settlements, with the necessary
supporting infrastructure. There is also
a range of additional affordable options
for those on lower incomes as part of
consistent efforts to keep housing
within reach for all.

Whilst there has been growth in the
number and quality of jobs in the
tourism and hospitality sector, the
largest growth has been in high value
jobs in the rail, insurance, agri-tech
and bioeconomy research sectors,
both through incoming businesses and
growing local businesses. By making
the right choices around creating the
right conditions for high value jobs,
York has turned around the trends of
falling wages and encouraged young
people to stay in the city.

Our Council

A great place deserves excellent public
services, and in challenging
circumstances, the Council has taken a
strong lead to ensure these are secure
for the long term.

The council continues to protect and
enable frontline services To achieve
this, the council works in partnership,
making appropriate use of the
expertise and capacity of all sectors,
including its resilient communities.

Residents have confidence that the
council is listening to them. The council
IS seen as accessible and accountable
while meaningful engagement means
residents’ priorities are the council’s
priorities. The council acts on these

Annex B

priorities, be they fixing potholes or
investing in new parks, balancing
resources to provide quick solutions
with longer term approaches to ensure
the sustainability of the city. The
council is recognised as an excellent
employer which pays a Living Wage
and leads by example in tackling
climate change.

Open, transparent, and cross-party
decision making has helped drive
forward all reforms. Technology is
used to improve engagement with
residents and open up local
democracy.

The council like the city is seen as an
example for others to follow. In 2030
York continues to make history.....



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategic Vision

Council Plan

Key Strategic Drivers &

Performance Level

Directorate Service ,/
Planning

v

A Prosperous City for All

A Focus on Frontline Services

A Council That Listens to Residents

All Statutory and Key Strategies

All Plans:

« All Assistant Director Plans

* Local Plan

Personal and Team Development Reviews

\
N
\
\

ANNEX C

Council Leadership
Partners
Chief Executive

Executive
Scrutiny
CMT
CLG
Partners

Exec Members
CMT

CLG

Partners

Individual Exec Members
CMT

Assistant Directors
Partners

Service Managers
Partners

A

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx

Tt abed



ANNEX C

Foreword

Performance Management Framework

Performance Management is taking action in response to actual performance to make outcomes better than they would
otherwise be.

Integrated performance management arrangements provide the platform on which “one council” working can be built. It
helps us identify the ‘added value’ of working to deliver the Council’s key priorities and engage with residents. It enables us
to make effective, well-informed and timely decisions which focus on the outcomes expressed in the Council Plan. This

guidance aims to:

= provide clarity about how the performance management system works

» raise the awareness and understanding of performance management

= explain how the various components of performance all fit together

= outline who is responsible for what

» help us to improve our corporate working to ensure we achieve our vision and deliver high quality outcomes for the city
with the people of York.

2 abed

Steve Stewart
Chief Executive

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 1



ANNEX C

Introduction

Performance Management Framework

Purpose of the Framework

Performance Management is essential to the success of City of York council and is a vital element of forward planning, risk
management and continuous improvement. This framework aims to assist Executive and Policy & Scrutiny Members
(councillors), members of the Corporate Management Team, , Partners (including Partnership Board chairs/members) and
supporting officers to understand performance management and the various components that contribute to effective
performance.

Why is Performance Management Important?

Improving the outcomes for York’s citizens and businesses is at the top of the Council’s agenda and the demand for
improvement and the pace of improvement have increased dramatically in the last few years. York is faced with a range of
challenges and opportunities, including significantly reduced level of resources from Government to deliver key services
married with increasingly higher expectations from customers, and yet this very scenario also provides an opportunity to
fundamentally re-think our role, the services we must deliver against those we would like to deliver and importantly how and
where they are delivered. The Council will need effective performance management and measurement to ensure success in
meeting these challenges, to provide evidence of achievements and to identify ‘what works’.

¢ obed

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 2



ANNEX C

Introduction

Performance Management Framework

What Do We Mean By Performance Management?

Performance Management is one element of the Council’s overall management arrangements, which are all focused on
ensuring that the Council achieves its ambitions. Other management features includes member development, consultation
and communication, research and needs assessment and resource management. Performance management through a
planning framework ensures that individuals, teams and the overall organisation know what they should be doing, how they
should be doing it and take responsibility for what they achieve.

If the Council is going to deliver the outcomes that people of York want, it has to be sure there is a performance
management framework that:

17 abed

» |s based on key priorities and objectives and helps to measure the right things at the right time

» |s used to continually improve how we work together and the way services delivered are performance managed

» |s based on quality and accuracy of current and forecasted information which produces meaningful measures of how
partners and services are performing

= Enables learning from others, learning from our own experiences and mistakes and listens to partners needs

= Meets the needs of all the people involved in delivering outcomes in the city, inside and outside the Council.

Effective Performance Management will help to:

= Prioritise what gets done and ensure there are sufficient resources to do it

» Ensure the Council provides value for money

» |dentify and rectify poor performance at an early stage and learn from past performance
» Increase user and public satisfaction.

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 3



The objective of the Performance Management and
Improvement Framework is to build from the ground
up, a proactive and collaborative performance
management culture at all levels of the council. This
will support improvement, delivery and effective
decision making.

The focus is on a performance approach that is
inherent in everything we do.

The Framework is predicated on the Plan, Do, Study,
Act cycle.

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx

Imple

Evaluate
effectiveness of
interventions.

ANNEX C

The Framework

Performance Management Framework

Problem
Definition

mentation Agenda
Setting

Policy
Development

Vo

Options appraised. Consideration against
other existing policies.

Success criteria and measures

decided. Barriers and risks identified

What are the key issues ,

what evidence have we qot,
what external factors influence,
futures scanning, forecasting
and modeling.

Open up the process
to allow residents,
partners and experts
to|input into the
agenda.

Decide what we want
to achieve

Get residents, partners and others
to contribute with ideas and
options. Think about costs,
benefits and risk of different
options

Look at experiences elsewhere -
lessons learnt, Challenge ideas

Gy abed



ANNEX C

The Framework

Performance Management Framework

A Network of Plans and Line of Sight

The Council’s performance management framework is informed by a network of plans that work together to create a ‘line of
sight’ to deliver key outcomes for York. Evidence linked to existing and forecasted data will inform the Council’s policy
framework which in turn will inform our planning process.

Against the backdrop of a long-term Vision for the City, there are a number of key drivers and influences that help to shape
the medium term strategic delivery plan for the Council — the City of York Council Plan. These include those priorities and
ambitions that guide all local authorities nationally, as whilst there is no national performance management framework there
remains a significant duty placed on local councils to provide central government with ‘data’ via the single data list and also
through a range of continuing inspectoral frameworks. On average the Council will work to ensure over 700 pieces of data
are monitored and returned to central government on a regular basis.

The City of York Council’'s Corporate Plan for 2015 — 2019 contains three key themes which are:

= A Prosperous City for All
= A Focus on Frontline Services
= A Council that Listens to Residents

Each of the themes outlined span across the portfolios held by each of the elected Executive Members and routine
performance monitoring of portfolios will help drive the delivery of activity, in order to realise ambitions in each thematic
area.

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 5

ot abed



ANNEX C

The Framework

Performance Management Framework

Service Improvement Plans

Service Improvement Plans are a vital part of the Council’s performance management framework linking thematic priorities.
Having a clear framework enables each service area to identify how their actions contribute to the Council’s development
and improved outcomes for the City. Forecasting and benchmarking are core parts of well produced Service Improvement
Plans, which are an essential tool through which we ensure that rational, evidence-based decisions can be taken concerning
levels and types of activity.

Service Improvement Plans should contain only:

= Actions that contribute to achievement of the Council’s Priorities

= Actions that are driven by the need to improve efficiency and effectiveness

= Actions that relate to frontline service or delivery of statutory requirements, whether or not directly related to the
Council’s priorities.

)t abed

All our performance measurement processes should be linked to the Council’s ‘line of sight’ and show whether, and how, its
priorities are being met. Actions detailed in all plans should feed into this and every individual in the organisation should
have a clear line of sight between their individual objectives, and the Council Plan.

The Annual Performance Management cycle is designed to provide a process for deciding what to aim for and how to do it

in the future, rather than just being a good measurement system for what we are doing now. There is no point in having a
system that demonstrates excellent performance if ultimately the Council does not address its strategic priorities.

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 6



ANNEX C

The Framework

Performance Management Framework
Corporate performance reporting takes place across all service

. _ Monthl
areas, to councillors, senior management and the public. The Quarterly

performance reporting cycle monitors performance and progress  Sapvice Area Seruti
against the delivery of the Corporate Plan and Service Business  DMT / SMTs crutiny Outurn report

Yearly

Plans. Reporting provides challenge, reviews exceptions Portfolio against
quarterly, addresses under-performance and identifies corrective  Team Holders _the Council
actions. Meetings Plan to

CMT Executive 0
Monthly DMTs (chaired by Directors and attended by Heads of Employee g
Service) review performance and contribute to quarterly 1:1s Exacutive Employee @
monitoring to CMT which will include exception reports where Appraisals &

performance is a concern. Performance Clinics can be called
where performance is a concern and remedial plans submitted to
both executive members and CMT.

In line with the council’'s People Plan, personal objectives are reviewed in 1:1 meetings and an end of year written
Performance Development Review or appraisal.

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 7



ANNEX C

The Framework

Performance Management Framework

Performance Reporting

There are different demands in relation to performance reporting as there are multiple stakeholders accountable for
managing local authority activity and the frequency of reporting will be subject to a number of issues including availability of
data and when groups meet. The key accountability structure governing performance for York City Council is detailed in the
following pages. As well as regular performance reporting across a number of areas of activity, the Council has in place an
exception reporting process to strengthen performance management arrangements in the Council.

The Executive will receive a quarterly progress report that outlines:

= Strategic actions completed and progress

» Progress against end of year outcome indicators
= Resource implications and current position

» Risks and how they are being managed

61 abed

This incorporates an assessment of progress against the Council Plan, key achievements or issues and includes any
remedial plans completed and performance clinics held.

The end of year performance report covers the same areas as the progress report but include an assessment as to whether

it is reasonable to assume that the strategic actions have had an impact on the appropriate outcome and performance
indicators (sometimes called plausibility).

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 8



ANNEX C

The Framework

Performance Management Framework

Performance Clinics and Remedial Plans

It is important to regularly review and evaluate performance against targets and, including benchmarking and forecasting to
ensure performance both current and future is analysed to secure a continuous improvement trajectory. Where it is identified
that performance is of concern there is an opportunity to explore the performance issues in detail and identify appropriate
remedial actions if required (in some cases it may be that the performance indicator is misleading). The aim of the
Performance Clinic is to:

= Enhance the role that partners can play in driving improvement and the management of key performance indicators —
this is applicable where business processes cut across public services in York

» Reinforce the responsibilities of partners in achieving continuous improvement

» Assess and remedy poor performance resulting in Action Plan revisions, requests for more frequent updates, shifts in
resources or additional approaches adopted.

» Provide a vehicle for driving improvement to meet strategic priorities

» Provides the Corporate Management Team and the Executive with the opportunity to recognise good performance
and creates ownership and accountability for performance management and service improvement.

0G abed

Performance Clinics are primarily arranged by the lead business stakeholder and Strategic Intelligence Hub Manager, but
can also be requested by managers, Heads of Service, Assistant Directors or CMT. Clinics are usually requested following
the submission and analysis of the quarterly performance reports, but can be arranged at any time, should there be concern
that performance is ‘off track’.

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 9



ANNEX C

The Framework

Performance Management Framework

It is essential that performance clinics are representative of people who have ownership and overall responsibility for
specific performance measures. Therefore Clinics should be attended by the following persons:

= The Chair or their nominated representative

» Head of Service and relevant operational staff

» Relevant Lead from the Strategic Intelligence Hub

» Members of the Board who have a perspective or responsibility for achieving the Performance or Outcome Indicator
= External experts/advisors as required.

At each Clinic, the relevant Head of Service, with support from the Strategic Intelligence Hub lead is expected to present g'?
details of their progress towards key objectives and key performance indicators to the Chair of the Board and partners. This
should include historical, current and forecasted data. They will also be expected to present details of the actions they al
propose to make to address areas for improvement. The Clinic is a two way communication process which enables =
managers to report progress against targets and present details of the actions they propose to take to address any areas for
improvements as well as providing an opportunity for managers to discuss issues or problems relating to performance.
Questions that the Clinic may ask include:

= Have targets been met, will this continue and the reasons behind this?
= |f performance is poor, what can be done to turn this work around, is it a capacity or capability issue?
» |s there an opportunity to prioritise recovery or shift resources?

Where performance is on a downward trajectory, the Clinic will then enforce further action and agree a recovery/remedial
plan which should clearly outline what action will be taken to address the problem, how it will be monitored and the likely
outcomes, including required changes to the annual delivery plan.

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 10



City of York Council’s Annual Performance Cycle

Performance Management Framework 2(

Performance
Panels held
and remdial
plans further
developed

Quarter 3
Performance
Report and
Service Plans
commissioned

Remedial
plans
developed

Start & Finish

Consultation,
evaluation and
review of
Service Plans

ANNEX C

The Framework

Performance Management Framework

Annual
performance
report
published

Servce Plans

Service Plans
published

Quarter 1
Performance
Report
Published

Quarter 2
Performance
Report Published

11

2S abed



ANNEX C

Making Performance Management Work

Performance Management Framework

Roles and Responsibilities

Effective performance management requires clearly defined and structured accountability. For York these are:

Executive Members have overall responsibility for the approval of and accountability for the Council Plan and
associated policy framework.

Corporate Management Team are in effect ‘the custodians’ of the Council Plan with responsibility for delivery of the
council plan and associated policies. They are also responsible for having an overview of performance ensuring that
the right priorities are being attached to the actions contained within the relevant service business and improvement

plans.

Partnership Boards are responsible for both advising board members on priorities and ‘commissioning’ partnership

action. They have a responsibility to monitor performance, and generating action to ensure that delivery is on course.
They can also call performance clinics as and when required. Ultimately they need to report problems of performance
to the Chief Executive Officer Group for consideration and action.

€G obed

The Strategic Intelligence Hub is responsible for ensuring that timely and accurate performance information is
available, that problems of performance are flagged and that appropriate delivery plans and performance clinics are
generated and tracked. The Hub is responsible for developing the council’s performance information system, the ‘KPI
Machine’, to enable on demand access to key data at all times.

The Role of Internal Audit provides guidance and information on risk management, in addition to dealing with the
provision of audit services. If data quality issues are identified through the course of an audit, whether linked to a
performance indicator data or not, this will be raised in the audit report. Internal audit also provide an independent
review of the corporate approach to performance management and data quality.

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 12



ANNEX C

Making Performance Management Work

Performance Management Framework

Reporting Performance

The Corporate Management Team, partnership board Chairs and business managers all play a crucial role in reviewing
objectives and monitoring performance results. The following structures all have a key role to play:

Structure Performance Reported Frequency

Executive Executive Member Portfolios/Indicators | Quarterly, with on demand access to
performance information available via CYC
KPI Machine. Annual Council Plan progress

o
report. Q
Corporate Management Team As above, plus any statutory indicators | Quarterly, with on demand access to 2
affecting the Council’s standing and performance information available via CYC |
reputation KPI Machine. Annual Council Plan progress &

report

Partnership Boards and scrutiny As above for each Board and any Quarterly, with adhoc exception reporting

committees remedial plans plus annual Delivery :
as required
Plans
Monthly, with on demand access to
DMTs Service Plan Actions performance information available via CYC
KPI Machine
Performance Clinics As required As required

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 13



ANNEX C

Making Performance Management Work

Performance Management Framework

Data Quality Standards

As a minimum, services both within and external to the council will need to demonstrate the following principles with respect
to data quality:

Performance Reported

Accuracy Data should be sufficiently accurate for its intended purposes, representing clearly and in sufficient detail the
interaction provided at the point of activity. Data should be captured once only, although it may have multiple
uses. Accuracy is most likely to be secured if data is captured as close to the point of activity as possible. The
need for accuracy must be balanced with the importance of the uses for the data, and the costs and effort of
collection, although data limitations should always be clear to its users.

Validity Data should be recorded and used in compliance with relevant requirements, including the correct application of
any rules or definitions. This will ensure consistency between periods and with similar organisations. Where proxy
data is used to compensate for an absence of actual data, organisations must consider how well this data is able
to satisfy the intended purpose.

Reliability Data should reflect stable and consistent data collection processes across collection points and over time,
whether using manual or computer-based systems, or a combination. Managers and stakeholders should be
confident that progress toward performance targets reflects real changes rather than variations in data collection
approaches or methods.

Timeliness Data should be captured as quickly as possible after the event or activity and must be available for the intended
use within a reasonable time period. Data must be available quickly and frequently enough to support information
needs and to influence the appropriate level of service or management decisions.

Relevance Data captured should be relevant to the purposes for which it is used. This entails periodic review of requirements
to reflect changing needs.

Completeness | Data requirements should be clearly specified based on the information needs of the Council and data collection
processes matched to these requirements. Monitoring missing, incomplete, or invalid records can provide an
indication of data quality and can also point to problems in the recording of certain data items.

GG abed

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 14



ANNEX C

Service Improvement Plan Guidance

2016 - 2019

Line of Sight
+ Council Leadership
; - 3 b Partners
Strategic Vision Chief Executive
Executive
3¢ A Prosperous City for All % Scrutiny
Council Plan J A Focus on Frontline Services N cMT
CLG
A Council That Listens to Residents Partners

9G abed

Exec Members
¢ cMT

Performance Level

Key Strategic Drivers & All Statutory and Key Strategies cLG
Partners
’ \\
. . i All Plans: . Individual Exec Members
Directorate Service J/ \ CMT
Planning § Pl Assisti'(‘:a?gg:m Rl . Assistant Directors
« People Plan Partners

Service Managers
* Partners

.

Personal and Team Development Reviews

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 15



ANNEX C

Service Improvement Plan Guidance

2016 - 2019

Overview

High level Service Improvement Plans are built around the Assistant Director portfolios and are the only plans required by Corporate Management Team.
Plans should be influenced by the key strategic drivers, the Council Plan and the Strategic Vision that precede them and they should directly relate to the
delivery of frontline services as well as feed in to team and personal development plans.

Plans should focus on delivering medium to long term priorities and cover a minimum one year period.

Financial challenges for the foreseeable future mean plans need to focus on activity that ensures the delivery of frontline services and statutory obligations,
plus council plan priorities and supporting Major Projects.

Managers will ‘buddy’ through Service to City to scrutinise plans

Operational detail that supports the Business Plan should be held in operational plans and managed at Directorate Management Team level. Operational
plans will be scrutinised on an exception basis or at Performance Clinics

/G abed

Timeline

February March — April May — July December

Directors review | Directors review
ADs complete draft plans | AD plans at plans with Exec
DMTs Member

Templates agreed by
CMT

Plans signed off | Annual Service Planning review cycle
and launched begins

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 16



ANNEX C

Service Improvement Plan Guidance

2016 - 2019

Template Guidance

The Service Improvement Plan template has 3 sections: 1. About the Service, 2. Service Improvement Priorities and 3. Actions, Risks and Performance.

Section 1 — About the Service

Use this section to describe the vision and a summary of the overall service and it's objectives, identifying the key

Section 1a — Description customers and other stakeholders of the service

Section 1b — Operating Context
and Baseline Resources

Describe the environment in which your services operate, the key strategies and challenges. Use this section to outline
the service resources such as workforce, budget and associated risks

Section 2 — Service Improvement Priorities
Use this section to provide a headline overview and analysis of the key challenges and priorities for the service:

= How the service will look to the customer in the future

= What are the savings that you are required to make in the next year and longer and in which areas these fall. Detail to allow monitoring should be
included in Section 3, Table 3.1

= Describe the high level activity required to meet the Priorities. Detail to allow monitoring should be included in Section 3, Table 3.1

= Describe any risks you foresee in the delivery. Detail to allow monitoring should be included in Section 3, Table 3.2

g6 abed

Section 3 — Actions, Risks and Performance

= Detail all high level actions for delivery by your service. State in the relevant column if the activity is a frontline
service / business as usual (BAU) activity and if so, if it is statutory,

Table 3.1 — Actions = |f the activity isn’t BAU state if it is a major project. Major projects are those managed through the organisation’s
Project Management toolkit

= All actions must have a measureable outcome with performance indicators to be regularly monitored

Table 3.2 — Risks Key risks and associated actions plans should be detailed, with regular monitoring in place

Performance indicators to be included on your directorate Scorecard, monitored regularly through the KPI Machine and
Table 3.3 - Performance DMTs, should be included in this section. Please ensure indicators cover the four main categories: general service
performance, customer experience, workforce and finance.

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 17




Service Improvement Plan Template

Service:

Directorate:

Service Plan Holder:

Director:

Cabinet Member:

I Date Last Updated:

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 18

65 abed



ANNEX C

Service Improvement Plan Template

Section 1 — About the Service

1.a — Description
The description of the service should include the vision and a summary of the overall service objectives. Please also identify the key customers and other

stakeholders of the service

- How many customers?

- What client groups?

- How are the teams grouped?
- Who are your main partners?

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx

19

09 abed



ANNEX C

Service Improvement Plan Template

Section 1 — About the Service

1.b — Operating Context and Baseline Resources
Please describe the environment in which your services operate, the key strategies and challenges. Use this section to outline the service resources such as
workforce, budget and associated risks.

- Demographics — what is happening with regards client groups?

- What are the overarching aims or strategies of the council and your main partners that impact on your service?

- What are the big ticket items that are driving the need to change? e.g. Care Act, BCF, Budget, Workforce etc.

- What areas of performance have been challenging? (e.g. Sickness, PDR, Complaints, Budget spend)

- What areas of risk and issues have been identified? Refer to applicable Risk Assessment Tools or top 10 risks
(please note risks should be recorded in table 3.2 below)

- How many Staff?

- What is your budget?

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 20

T9 abed



ANNEX C

Service Improvement Plan Template

Section 2 — Service Improvement Priorities

2 — Service Improvement Priorities
Provide a headline overview and analysis of key challenges and summarise the key priorities for the service

- Describe how the service will look to the customer in the future.

- What are the savings that you are required to make in the next year / and longer and which areas do these fall in
(detail to allow monitoring should be put in table 3.1)

- Describe the high level activity required to meet the Priorities (detail will be recorded in table 3.1)

- Describe any risks you foresee in the delivery (identified risks should be recorded in table 3.2 below)

29 abed

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 21



ANNEX C

Service Improvement Plan Template

Section 3 — Actions, Risks and Performance

Table 3.1 — Actions

These should be monitored regularly with ADs and Quarterly via DMT

Business As Usual Measurable
Reference Priority Accountable Completed by Outcome

Action (state if statutory) officer date Indicators &
or Major Project Frequency

ID Theme

g abed

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 22



ANNEX C

Service Improvement Plan Template

Section 3 — Actions, Risks and Performance

Table 3.2 — Risk Management
These should be monitored regularly with ADs and Quarterly via DMT

Date
Target Responsible Officer
Rating

Reference Rating Actions to Mitigate and Target

Escalation

ID (RAG) Correct Rating

79 abed

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 23



ANNEX C

Service Improvement Plan Template

Section 3 — Actions, Risks and Performance

Table 3.3 — Performance Indicators

These should form the basis for the indicators that appear on your directorate scorecard available on the KPI Machine and should be monitored regularly with
ADs and Quarterly via DMT

Reference : . 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 : Latest — posponsible
Indicator Description Polarity Direction : Include
ID Result Result Result Officer
of Travel
Performance
CFDO01 Number of external calls received - OCE 13,805 1(3%)8 Neutral Neutral Y
% of external calls answered within 20 o 98.20% .

CFDO03a seconds - OCE 95.79% (Q3) Upis Good | Neutral Y -

Customer Q
«Q

TBC TBC - - - - - @
o

Workforce ol

STF90 PDR Completion (%) - OCE 71% 82% Up is Good Good Y

STFO1 Staff Headcount - OCE - (Snapshot) 41 54 57 Neutral Neutral

STE1S @/_?E)a)ge sickness days lost per FTE - OCE - 4.2 6.4 6.5 Up is Bad Bad v

STF32 Voluntary Turnover (%) - OCE 2.00% 14.70% Up is Bad Bad

Finance

OCE Forecast Budget Outturn (E000s -4 8 110 :
BPITO7 | Gverspent / -Underspent) (2013/14) | (2014/15) (Q3) UpisBad | Bad Y

Performance Management Framework 2016-2019.docx 24



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67 Agenda Item 7

COUNCIL

v,

Executive 14 July 2016

Report of the Director of City and Environmental Services

Portfolio of the Executive Member for Finance and Performance and
Executive Member for Economic Development & Community Engagement

York Central

Summary

1. York Central is a 72 hectare (ha) area of land adjacent to the railway
station and is one of the largest brownfield sites in northern England. It
provides a huge opportunity for regeneration providing new homes and
up to 100,000 sq m of Grade A commercial office space, offering the
best chance to address the key problem in York’s economy — relatively
low wage levels, given the high level of skills in the city. The site is also a
major housing site, delivering 1,500 dwellings as part of the Local Plan —
Preferred Sites Consultation agreed by the Executive on June 30™.

2. Public consultation to inform the development of a formal Planning
Framework Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) to guide
regeneration of the York Central site took place earlier this year. A York
Central Community Forum is being established to engage with and
represent the views of the local community as the site progresses. Work
to inform the emerging York Central planning policy and ensure a
development scheme can be delivered, including land assembly, funding
arrangements and putting partnership arrangements in place, is ongoing.

3. This report feeds back on the outcome of the informal consultation which
showed clear overall support for the redevelopment of York Central. The
report outlines the proposed approach to the Planning Framework; sets
out the proposed composition of the York Central Community Forum;
provides an update on progress with the project and seeks agreement to
enter into a Local Growth Fund deal from Leeds City Region Local
Enterprise Partnership in order to proceed with site assembly and
preparation.



Page 68

Recommendations

4. Executive is asked to agree:

i. To note the responses to the informal consultation on ‘Seeking your
views to guide development.

Reason:- To ensure issues raised from the consultation are taken
account of in developing the Planning Framework SPD.

ii. To note the approach to establish a York Central Community Forum
as an integral part of the consultation process for the site.

Reason:- To ensure the views of the local community are
represented as the site progresses.

iii. To note progress over the past six months to inform the emerging
York Central planning policy and deliver the York Central site.

Reason:- To ensure that a development scheme for the York Central
site can be delivered.

iv. To agree in principal to the agreement of a loan of £2.55m from
Leeds City Region (LCR)Local Growth Fund as an element of the
funding proposals for York Central

v. To delegate to the Director of Customer and Business Support
Services in liaison with the Leader to agree the terms for a Funding
Agreement with Leeds City Region (LCR) Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP).

vi. To agree a further draw down from the £10m allocation of £0.55m in
order to fund the immediate site preparation works outlined in the
report.

Reason:- To enable timely progress on the York Central project.
Background

5. A draft York Central Planning Policy was agreed by Members of
Executive in December 2015. This outlined the proposed quantum of
housing and employment to be delivered during the Local Plan period,
the proposed mix of uses, and principles of development at York Central.
The emerging policy has been used to inform the allocation of York
Central in developing the Local Plan.

6. A draft Planning Framework Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
is being prepared to guide the future comprehensive development of the



10.

11.

12.

Page 69

York Central site. A first stage of informal consultation on high level
principles was undertaken over a four week period in January and
February this year. The purpose of the consultation was to identify the
potential for redevelopment of the York Central site and to enable the
public to express their views and ideas to inform the preparation of the
formal SPD. Consultation was undertaken in accordance with the
consultation plan agreed by Members of the Executive on 15 December
2015. A number of additional bespoke consultation events were also
held, including a further Holgate ward committee meeting on 11
February 2016. The consultation was designed to comply with York’s
adopted Statement of Community Involvement.

. The consultation also proposed that a Community Forum could form an

integral part of the consultation process for the site. Respondents were
invited to express an interest in being kept informed about the project
and being involved with the Community Forum.

The Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) are closely involved with
the York Central development. The designation of York Central as a
Housing Zone has enabled the HCA to provide an enabling role for the
project in terms of potential equity investment funding and project
revenue support. The HCA Advisory Team for Large Applications
(ATLAS) is providing advisory and support services to the York Central
partners to progress delivery of York Central.

. The award of Enterprise Zone (EZ) status for York Central in November

2015 provides a crucial mechanism through future retained business
rates to fund the upfront infrastructure and enabling works needed to
unlock and accelerate delivery of development.

City of York Council are leading the land assembly strategy for York
Central to acquire third party land holdings needed to develop the site
through agreement or use of the council’s statutory powers of
compulsory purchase (‘Compulsory Purchase Order’ or ‘CPQO’).

York Central partners will need ultimately to enter into a detailed, legally
binding agreement to jointly deliver the project. A funding strategy to
deliver upfront infrastructure to facilitate development of the York Central
site and setting out a repayment mechanism for any investment will be
integral to any agreement. The York Central Partners are appointing
specialist professional financial and commercial advisors to look at the
most appropriate delivery vehicle options for a formal partnership and
help to craft the detailed partnership arrangements.

The York Central Partners are appointing professional design and
technical advisors to progress the plans for the site. This work will



Page 70

include developing the Planning Framework for York Central and
carrying out work need to inform preparation of the document and
emerging Local Plan policy.

Consultation

13.

14.

15.

16.

Consultation structure and response

A total of thirty one questions were asked relating to the consultation
document ‘Seeking your views to guide development’. Fourteen direct
guestions were asked specific to the proposed redevelopment of the
site, vision, objectives, and key principles relating to heritage, landscape
and public realm, including the creation of new public squares,
development parameters, sustainable travel (including pedestrian and
cycle routes), proposed re-routing of Leeman Road and proposed
temporary uses. A further three direct questions presented options for
re-organising Queen Street, managing the highway on the west side
(the rear) of the Railway Station, and different split of uses (jobs and
housing) for the site. Respondents were encouraged to comment on the
direct questions and give general views and comments about the
proposed development at York Central.

A total of 1224 consultation responses were received including 1,054
online and paper questionnaires and 170 written responses including
emails and letters. A consultation report has been prepared by
consultants, ARUP. The report outlines the consultation undertaken and
representations received, summarises the consultation comments,
including responses to the survey questions, and highlights overarching
themes raised during the consultation process. The analysis of
consultation responses has taken account of the policy requirements for
consultation set at a national and local level. A copy of the detailed
consultation report can be viewed online
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11126/york central seeking you
r_views to gquide new_development consultation_report

Overview of consultation findings

A high level summary of consultation responses is outlined below. More
detailed analysis is provided at Annex 1.

Support for Redevelopment, Vision and Objectives

There is clear overall support for the redevelopment, vision and
objectives for York Central (Questions 1, 2, 3 and 4): 79% of
respondents supported redevelopment of the site (13% did not support)
and 59% of respondents supported the vision for the site (24% did not
support). The objective ‘Heritage as an Asset’ had the strongest



https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11126/york_central_seeking_your_views_to_guide_new_development_consultation_report
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11126/york_central_seeking_your_views_to_guide_new_development_consultation_report

Page 71

agreement (91% agree; 3% disagree), followed by ‘Green Infrastructure’
(84% agree; 6% disagree) and ‘Sustainable Development’ (81% agree;
7% disagree).

17. Respondents noted the importance of realising the scheme quickly and
targeting brownfield land for development, however, some respondents
were concerned about the deliverability of the site. Comments were
made regarding the need to strengthen the vision particularly in relation
to sustainability. Respondents also commented on the need to
strengthen the objectives and make them measurable, particularly in
relation to the green infrastructure objective and sustainability. Some
respondents suggested that a new ‘design’ objective should be created
to include ’quality public space/green space/streetscape design.

Overarching themes
18. A number of overarching themes were raised during the consultation
process. These included:

i. Call for the retention of the York Railway Institute (Questions 5, 6,
7, 23 and 31). A large number of respondents stressed the
importance of the role played by York Railway Institute in the
community, the importance of retaining the facility for sport and
leisure activities and the opportunities these provide for residents,
visitors and people working in the York Central area. This was a
common theme throughout the consultation feedback. Respondents
commented that if the site is to be redeveloped, equivalent facilities
will need to be provided in a central location which is easily accessible
without a car.

ii. Support for green infrastructure (Questions 8 and 9). There is wide
support for providing green infrastructure across the site.
Respondents specifically supported the proposal to create a linear
park and made suggestions about increasing the amount of green
infrastructure and the type of green infrastructure that should be
provided.

lii. Support for creation of a new public square on the west side (the
rear) of the station (Question 10). There was wide support to create
a new public square on the west side of the station.

iv. Call for reorganisation of the station frontage to reduce conflicts
(Questions 11, 12 and 13). The creation of a new public square on the
east side (the front) of the station by reorganising buses and taxis was
widely supported. The issue of conflict between different modes of
transport was raised and comments made that pedestrian legibility,



Vi.

Vil.

viii.

Page 72

safety and accessibility needs to be improved as the current
arrangement makes it difficult to navigate. A small majority of
respondents supported the removal of Queen Street Bridge. Some
respondents noted that the removal of the bridge could be an
important step in reordering the highway network to allow for the
reorganisation of the station frontage.

Support for the expansion of the National Railway Museum
(NRM), but careful treatment of Leeman Road required (Questions
14, 15, 16, 20 and 21). There is strong support for the expansion of
the NRM, including the creation of a new public square and events
space outside the NRM. There was general acceptance that this can
best be facilitated by closure of a section of Leeman Road (59%
supported re-routing Leeman Road). However, of the four highway
management options presented for Leeman Road, Option 1, which
proposed keeping Leeman Road open to all traffic (but would
constrain delivery of the NRM expansion) was marginally the most
popular option (38% agreed). There was no clear support for any of
the options. The contradictions in response to Questions on Leeman
Road suggest that greater clarity is needed as to how future options
would work.

Call for high quality pedestrian and cycle infrastructure
Questions 13, 17, 18 and 19). Responses suggested that the
provision of high quality pedestrian and cycling infrastructure as part
of the proposals was essential and that consideration should be given
to provision separate from highway infrastructure.

Concern regarding access and traffic congestion (Questions 4,
13, 21, 27 and 31). A common theme running throughout the
responses to all questions was the increase in traffic congestion,
including associated air quality issues. Strong concerns were raised in
particular by residents in Wilton Rise/Cleveland Street/St Paul’s
Square about the negative impact of the proposals on the Holgate
area, and from residents in Garfield Terrace/ Livingston Terrace and
Salisbury Road, and residents within the York Central site about the
negative impact of proposals on the Leeman Road and Salisbury
Road area. Concerns were also raised about the impact of any
closure of Leeman Road on bus routes and existing businesses on
Leeman Road.

Concern regarding building heights (Questions 25 and 27).
Although the general approach to building heights was supported, a
number of respondents were concerned about the potential impact of



Xi.

Xii.

Page 73

tall buildings and high density development on the historic character
of the city and key views.

Proposed uses accepted but views on split of uses divided
(Questions 22, 23, 24, and 26). There was overall support for the
proposed uses, however, there was no conclusive view about the
guantum of jobs or housing that should be provided on the site. A key
issue to be considered is the integration and mix of uses needed to
create vibrancy and quality of place. A number of respondents
suggested that leisure uses should be supported on the site.

Support for residential uses and call for provision of affordable
and family housing (Questions 22, 23, 24 and 26). Across all
guestions, there was strong support for residential uses on the site.
Respondents also commented on the need to provide housing to
meet a range of needs, including affordable housing units and
housing for older people.

Concern regarding the viability of offices at York Central
(Questions 24 and 26). A general theme raised across a number of
consultation responses was concern over the demand for B1(a) office
space and the viability of the proposed quantum of office space on the
site.

Support for Temporary Uses (Question 28, 29 and 30). The
proposed temporary uses on the site were supported. Some
respondents suggested that leisure uses such as theatres or a
temporary ice rink should be considered. Other respondents,
however, suggested that they would not support late night noise
generating uses such as music venues or festivals, or drinking
establishments.

Proposed approach to Planning Framework

General support

19. There was general support for the following key principles. It is proposed
that these will be taken forward in the Planning Framework. Further work
will be carried out to inform the Planning Framework as required.

i
ii.
iii.
V.

Redevelopment of York Central (Question 1)
Vision (Question 2)

Objectives (Question 3)

Create a linear park at York Central (Question 8)



Page 74

v. Create a new public square on the west side (the rear) of the station
(Question 10)
vi. Create a new public square on the east side (the front) of the station
by re-organising buses and taxis (Question 11)
vii. Create a new public square and events space outside the National
Railway Museum (Question 14)
viii. Approach to sustainable travel (Questionl17)
IX. Proposed land uses (Question 22)
X. Proposed temporary uses (Question 28)

Divided views

20. There was no clear majority support or clear conclusions to be drawn for
the following key principles and options and/or the views of respondents
were divided. Further work will be carried out to provide clarity and
inform preparation of the Planning Framework.

I. Proposed classification of buildings

ii. Options to retain or remove Queen Street Bridge (Question 12)

lii. Re-route Leeman Road to allow the expansion of the NRM
(Question 15)

Iv. Highway management options on the west side (the rear) of the
station (Question 20)

v. Proposed approach to maximum building heights (Question 25)

vi. Development options (Question 26)

Other key issues

21. Other key issues were raised through the consultation process,
including those listed below. Further work will be carried out to provide
evidence base and inform preparation of the Planning Framework.

I. Deliverability of the site.
li. Retention of the York Railway Institute.
lii. Site access and traffic congestion.
Iv. Demand for, and viability of, offices at York Central.

Planning Framework — next steps
Local Plan

22. York Central is identified as a Potential Strategic Housing Allocation
(ST5) in the Local Plan — Preferred Sites 2016 which was approved for
consultation by Members of the Executive on 30 June 2016. The
proposed allocation is for residential development of up to 1,500
dwellings. When set against the need to allocate sufficient land in York



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Page 75

for around 8,277 dwellings for the plan period, the proposed allocation of
1,250 dwellings at York Central up to 2032 clearly has significant
potential to help address housing needs in York.

The proposed increase in residential dwellings from 410 allocated in the
Publication Draft Local Plan (2014) to the current potential allocation of
1,500 dwellings reflects the significant progress made by York Central
partners since then to progress and de-risk the project to a stage where
there is confidence that a greater proportion of the site is now capable of
being brought forward for development within the plan period. Work to
establish the most appropriate mix of housing type and density for the
site is ongoing.

York Central has also been identified as a potential employment site with
capacity for 80,000 sgm floor space of high quality grade A office
accommodation (Use Class Bla). This will help to remedy current
shortfalls in modern, fit for purpose commercial development in the City
Centre. The Employment Land Review 2016 study, which is available as
part of the Local Plan Preferred Sites 2016 consultation, brings together
evidence on the demand for, and supply of employment land.

York Central SPD

The consultation findings have been reviewed by officers and the York
Central partners. Further work is being carried out to explore the issues
raised in consultation, provide an evidence base and inform the
preparation of the Planning Framework SPD, with specialist consultants
appointed as appropriate. This includes, for example, an ecological
survey of the site, a city setting impact assessment and district heating
study. Transport assessment and deliverability/financial appraisal work
Is ongoing. A sustainability appraisal of the draft SPD will also be carried
out.

A document will be produced accompanying the Planning Framework
SPD that will identify how issues raised during this consultation have
been addressed in the Planning Framework.

Timescale to prepare SPD

Below is the anticipated timetable to prepare the York Central Planning
Framework (SPD). This is subject to the appointment of the Design and
Technical advisors.



Page 76

Local Plan York Central Planning Anticipated
Framework (SPD) Timeframe

Members agree to set up | May 2016
YC Community Forum

Executive agree 30 June 2016
Further Sites Selection

Establish YC Community | Summer 2016
Forum and appoint
Independent Chair

Stage 1 consultation July 2016
feedback to Executive
Consultation on July-August 2016
Further Sites Selection
Prepare Draft YC August-October 2016
Planning Framework
(SPD)

Inaugural meeting of YC | September 2016
Community Forum

YC Community Forum Autumn 2016
meetings to inform Draft
YC Planning Framework
(SPD)

Executive agree November 2016
Consultation Draft YC
Planning Framework

(SPD)
Executive agree November 2016
Publication Draft Local
Plan
Consultation on January - February
Publication Draft Local 2017
Plan
Stage 2 consultation on January - February
Draft YC Planning 2017
Framework (SPD)
Submit Publication Spring 2017
Draft Local Plan
Executive agree York Spring 2017

Central Planning
Framework (SPD)

Community Forum

28. A York Central Community Forum is being established to engage with
and provide an opportunity for the local community to express views and



29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 77

opinions which will form one of many different aspects which will
cumulatively help to shape the development. During the consultation
396 people signed up to the ‘keep informed’ email list, and 117 people
expressed an interest in being involved in the proposed community
forum. In addition, people were given another opportunity to express an
interest in joining the forum at the Holgate Ward Committee meeting on
23 May 2016 and Micklegate Ward Committee meeting will have the
same opportunity on 13 July 2016.

Role of Community Forum

Community Forums have been established for key sites across York to
represent the views of the local community as a site progresses. Itis
intended that the forum’s role will be to act in an advisory capacity,
provide a sounding board for the development at key stages of the
development process, and te provide feed back to local communities.
This approach aids the community’s understanding of the site as it
evolves, and builds relationships between residents, community groups,
ward members, officers and partners. The forum will not be a voting
committee and will not have any decision making powers, but will be a
minuted group to provide non-binding advice to the decision makers.

Composition of Community Forum

The York Central site spans Holgate and Micklegate wards, as well as
having an impact upon neighbouring wards and the wider city. Whilst
ward committees are the council’s preferred method of consultation with
residents, in this instance, therefore, it is considered that a single site
specific Community Forum is considered the most appropriate way to
deliver community engagement.

Previous Community Forums have had a maximum of 20 people
including representatives and the development team to make the
meeting manageable. However, York Central is more complex both
geographically and in terms of delivery, and consequently the number of
partners, neighbouring communities, stakeholders and interest groups
are higher. It is proposed that membership of the York Central
Community Forum comprises up to 32 representatives plus a City of
York Council/York Central partners team of between 8-10 people, giving
a maximum of 40 people attending which would allow meetings to be
interactive/ workshop based. The forum will be facilitated by
CYCl/partners, with an independent chair.

The following table sets out the proposed composition of the forum
which is weighted in favour of Holgate ward as the majority of the site is



33.

Page 78

in this ward. It is intended that there will be 2 ward members per ward
with substitute arrangements for the remaining ward member. Ward
member nominations will be reported to Staffing Matters and Urgency
committee for ratification.

Draft membership - York Central Community Forum

Independent Chair (1) To be agreed by CES Director in liaison
with partners and group leaders.

Holgate (up to 11) 2 Ward Members plus residents
representatives to be agreed with Holgate
Ward Councillors in liaison with CES
Director.

Micklegate (up to 6) 2 Ward Members plus residents
representatives to be agreed with
Micklegate Ward Councillors in liaison with
CES Director.

Wider city (10-15) To be agreed by CES Director in liaison
with partners and group leaders.
TOTAL =up to 32 community representatives

CYC/ Partners (8-10) CYC Commercial Projects
(Facilitators) CYC Development Management
Homes and Communities Agency
National Railway Museum
Network Rail

Specialist advisors

The Forum will be supplemented by a range of community consultation
mechanisms at key project stages to reach the wider community e.g.
exhibitions, open days, mailings, ward meetings, website, newsletter,
media. There will be additional consultation with residents of Wilton
Rise/ Cleveland Street who may be specifically impacted by the access
road. Following on from consultation on the emerging SPD, it is intended
that the forum will continue to meet through the outline planning
application and reserved matters stages of the development process.

Update on Progress

34.

Site Assembly and Preparation

Negotiations with third parties to acquire land holdings as part of the
strategic site assembly approach for York Central are continuing. The
purchase of land off Leeman Road, which is owned by a private
individual, is nearing completion. Negotiations with Unipart are currently
focused on their possible relocation from land to the rear of the railway
station to alternative sites within York.



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Page 79

There are immediate site costs and site preparation and assessment
costs that are considered important to immediately undertake in order to
inform the Planning Framework and these have been estimated at
£550k.

It is requested that Executive agree a further draw down from the
capital budget of £0.55m in order to fund the immediate site
preparation.

Funding arrangements

A £2.55m capital bid has been made to the 2016/17 programme of the
Leeds City Region LEP Local Growth Fund to support the overall
delivery of the project. The bid comprises £2m to complement wider
funding streams in land assembly, £0.35m to deal with early site costs,
and £0.2m to undertake targeted site survey/assessment and design
work. An Outline Business Case was approved by the LCR Investment
Committee on 7" June and the Full Business Case will be considered by
the committee on 6™ July. The Full Business Case is expected to be
approved by the Combined Authority Board in late July although a date
has not yet been set for this meeting. Draft terms for a Funding
Agreement are currently being prepared.

Executive are asked to accept in principal the £2.55m loan as an
element of the developing York Central funding strategy and as part of
the £10m already committed to the project. This is subject to agreement
over appropriate repayment terms. Delegation is sought to the Director
of Customer and Business Support Services, in liaison with the Leader,
to agree the final terms of this deal with LCR LEP.

£10m has already been allocated as a contribution to the project and is
already included in the council budget. The acceptance of this loan will
mean that the LEP is sharing the financial investment and risk in the
scheme in order to support the LCR Strategic Economic Plan. A further
report will be brought to Executive and Full Council setting out a
comprehensive investment strategy once the partnership deal has been
crafted.

York Central Enterprise Zone is a key priority in both of the Local
Enterprise Partnerships that cover York. As part of this, York, North
Yorkshire and East Riding LEP are currently considering whether to
include a bid for funding as part of the Government’s growth deal round
3. York Central is a in a strong position for funds but we do not expect



41.

42.

43.

44.

Page 80

the confirmation of this funding until the Chancellor's Autumn Statement
later this year.

Enterprise Zone

The Memorandum of Understanding for the York Central Enterprise
Zone was officially signed on the 8" July 2016. This will be augmented
in the autumn by the development of a delivery plan prior to the start of
the Enterprise Zone in April 2017.

Professional Advisors

Following a formal procurement process, consultants KPMG (with
Savills as the property advisors) have been appointed as the
commercial and financial advisors to the partners. The commission is
cliented by CYC. Over the coming months they will work with all
partners to craft the basis for a York Central partnership arrangements
leading to a formal partnership structure. CYC are providing the ‘lead’
client on behalf of, and in liaison with the York Central Partners and the
advice that they give will be relied upon by all the partners. The contract
will be novated to any future partnership structure.

A formal procurement process for Design and Technical advisers is
currently being undertaken. This appointment will provide greater detail
around a holistic design and the provision of essential site infrastructure
and the design of public spaces. Advisors will provide both design and
technical input to the SPD for York Central and ensure that the
developing plans for the site integrate effectively into the city and
establish the appropriate quality criteria which accords with the
overarching vision for York Central. Importantly, the multi-disciplinary
team will provide further evidence to support the Local Plan allocation of
the site and inform the next draft of the Planning Framework, taking into
consideration the consultation responses. This team will work closely
with the York Central partners and KPMG/Sawvills as part of an iterative
process.

Evidence Base

An ecological survey of the site is currently being undertaken in advance
of the procurement of the Design and Technical advisor for seasonal
reasons. The survey will provide further evidence base on site ecology.
A review of historic geotechnical and contamination surveys was also
recently undertaken, alongside scoping of next stages of assessment
work to be undertaken as part of the design and technical advisors
commission.



45.

46.

47.

48.

Page 81

In response to the consultation, an access study has been
commissioned to review access options to the site and inform and
update the location of highway infrastructure and mitigation measures
required to unlock the development capacity of the site. Further
transport assessment will be carried out following procurement of the
Design and Technical advisors.

A study exploring the feasibility and viability of District Heating Scheme
to serve the site has been commissioned. This is partially funded and
commissioned through Leeds City Region. The findings of the study will
feed into wider design and technical workstreams.

The NRM has commissioned a Heritage Audit for their land and property
assets within the York Central site. The intention is to supplement this
work with a further report across the wider York Central site as part of
the Design and Technical adviser appointment.

Station Regeneration Programme

In April 2016, Department of Communities and Local Government
announced a national Station Regeneration Programme through an
agreement between Network Rail and Homes and Communities Agency
to work closely with Local Authorities. The intention is to accelerate
housing delivery and boost economic growth to regenerate town and city
centres. York is one of three areas that have spearheaded this initiative
with proposals for York Central.

Consultation

49

. The future of York Central will be of interest and importance to a large

proportion of York’s residents and businesses and will also be a
significant project regionally and nationally. Consultation will play an
essential part in the future development of the site, starting with the
informal consultation proposed in paras 41-42.

Council Plan

50.

Under the Council Plan objectives the project will assist in the creation
of a Prosperous City for All, and be a Council that listens to residents
particularly by ensuring that :

I. Everyone who lives in the city can enjoy its unique heritage and
range of activities.

ii. Residents can access affordable homes while the greenbelt and
unique character of the city is protected.



Page 82

ii. Visitors, businesses and residents are impressed with the quality of

our city.

Iv. Local businesses can thrive.
v. Efficient and affordable transport links enable residents and

businesses to access key services and opportunities.
vi. Environmental Sustainability underpins everything we do.

vii. We are entrepreneurial, by making the most of commercial

activities.

viii. Engage with our communities, listening to their views and taking

them into account.

Implications

Financial —

51. In December 2013 Members agreed to earmark £10m towards the
delivery of York Central. Of this sum, £500k was released at that time
to support technical work. In December 2015 Executive agreed to
release a further £250k to fund the costs of professional advisors to the
project. Executive also agreed to allocate part of the capital sum to
fund the acquisition of third party land off Leeman Rd — this acquisition

is nearing completion (and therefore the sum is still confidential).

52. The following table shows the current agreed funding available

including grants from other sources.

Funding Source

CYC OPE HCA NRM Total
Original Funding £°000 £°000 £7000| £000 £000
Capital 9,000 9,000
Revenue 1,000 250 365 20 1,635
Total 10,000 250 365 20 10,635
2015/16 - Expenditure
Capital
Revenue (64) (48) (112)
Total (64) (48) (112)
Funding Remaining
Capital 9,000 9,000
Revenue 936 202 365 20 1,523
Total 9,936 202 365 20 10,523

53. The committed costs for 2016/17 include the costs of the internal project
team c £250k per annum, the cost of professional advisors (up to £250Kk)




Page 83

site preparation costs (E550k) detailed in paragraph [35] as well as the
land purchase costs (commercially confidential).

54. The table below shows the agreed allocations from the Council’s initial

£10m funding.

Capital | Revenue Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
Original Funding (Dec 13) 9,000 1,000 10,000
Initial allocation (Dec 13) -500 -500
Project Team Costs (Dec 15) -250 -250
Land Purchase (Dec 15) * *
Site Preparation Costs -550 -550
Current unallocated Balance 8,450 250 8,700

*The current balance excludes the commercial in confidence land purchase
value (delegated to the Leader to agree the final purchase price). This will
be included in future reports to Executive / Full Council.

55.
56.

57.
58.
59.

60.

Human Resources (HR) — none

Equalities — A Community Impact Assessment was undertaken as part
of the consultation and was published in December 2015 with the
Executive report.

Legal — There are no significant legal implications at this stage.
Information Technology (IT) - There are no IT implications.

Crime and Disorder - The detail design of any future scheme will
require detail consideration of crime and disorder implications and there
will be structured input form the Police Architectural Liaison. officer

Property — All property implications are covered in the report.

Risk Management

61.

62.

The primary risk is the potential breakdown of the delivery partnership
between the partners with a consequent failure to unlock the site. This
has in part being mitigated by the establishment of a senior level Board
and formalised via a Memorandum of Understanding with development
of the site delivered under the terms of a proposed partnership
agreement.

Failure to obtain the necessary regulatory approvals to dispose of land
on the site for development or to clear operational railway uses from the
site is another significant risk — this would prevent the development of




63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

Page 84

the site in whole or part. Mitigation plans to date include the acquisition
and extinguishment of long-term rail industry leases on the site by
Network Rail and development of a strategy that identifies relocation
sites for the rail uses. In addition, a rail land use strategy for York is
being taken forward and it is believed this meets operator needs and
Network Rail’s planned capacity improvement schemes. This issue is
being mitigated by Network Rail prior to any infrastructure investment
with a clear commitment under the proposed partnership agreement to
remove rail uses from the site within a phasing plan to suit site
development.

An obvious risk is of failure to secure planning permission — this is being
mitigated by early involvement with CYC as local planning authority in
the ongoing development plans and engagement of stakeholders and
local communities at both concept stage and as detailed plans emerge.

There is a risk that the scheme may not attract development market
interest or new occupiers. This risk has been mitigated by the proposed
approach to infrastructure delivery, evidence from Make it York re new
business interest in York suppressed by lack of sites and
comprehensive soft market testing. In addition, the development of a
delivery and marketing strategy and the award of EZ status will
incentivise early business occupation.

There is a risk that CYC may not secure equity investment towards
some of the costs of the enabling infrastructure. However, this will be
mitigated by the EZ status and access to borrowing this brings. It will
also be mitigated by early sign off of funding from HCA and
comprehensive gateway process for release of West Yorkshire
Transport Funds (WYTF). The risk of WYTF withdrawing offer of funding
as the devolution agenda develops remains and alternative plans for
funding core transport infrastructure would need to be worked up with
York North Yorkshire East Riding LEP should this eventuality occur.

There is a risk that partners will not secure third party land holdings on
the site. This will be mitigated by negotiation with land owners and
potential initiation of CPO process to assemble the whole site prior to
commencement of the regeneration.

A full risk register will be developed by the project and will be regularly
reviewed by the project board as the project progresses.



Page 85

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Tracey Carter - Assistant Director

for Finance, Property and Neil Ferris — Director of City and

Procurement Tel No. 553419 Environmental Services

Catherine Birks Report J 4 July 2016

York Central Project Manager Approved

Tel 552168

Sue Houghton
Programme Manager
Tel No. 551375

Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all

Financial — Patrick Looker Legal — Andy Docherty

Finance Manager Deputy Head of Legal

Tel No. 551633 Tel No. 551004

Wards Affected: Holgate, Guildhall All

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

York Central: Report to Executive (15 December 2015)

City of York Local Plan — Preferred Sites Consultation: Report to Executive

(30 June 2016)

York Central Consultation Document — “Seeking your views to guide

development” (January 2016)

https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8798/york central -
seeking_your_views to _guide development

York Central Questionnaire

https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8801/york central - guestionnaire

Annexes

Annex 1 - Summary Analysis of Consultation Responses

Annex 2 - Seeking Your Views to Guide Development: Consultation Report
(Arup June 2016) available to download from attached link
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11126/york central _seeking_your_v
lews to_quide new_development consultation_report



https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8798/york_central_-_seeking_your_views_to_guide_development
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8798/york_central_-_seeking_your_views_to_guide_development
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8801/york_central_-_questionnaire
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11126/york_central_seeking_your_views_to_guide_new_development_consultation_report
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11126/york_central_seeking_your_views_to_guide_new_development_consultation_report

Page 86

List of Abbreviations

ATLAS - Advisory Team for Large Applications
CPO — Compulsory Purchase Order

CYC - City of York Council

EZ — Enterprise Zone

HCA - Homes and Communities Agency
LCR - Leeds City Region

LEP - Local Economic Partnership

NRM - National Railway Museum

SPD - Supplementary Planning Document
WYTF — West Yorkshire Transport Fund
YNY - York and North Yorkshire

YC - York Central



Page 87

ANNEX 1

York Central - Seeking Your Views to Guide Development
Summary Analysis of Consultation Responses

The following table summarises the consultation feedback for each of the 31
guestions asked as part of the consultation process. Qualitative comments
from online surveys, written responses and comments made at dedicated
meetings are also summarised. The council’s response to the consultation is
set out in the third column. Further detailed analysis can be found in the
ARUP Consultation Report which can be viewed online
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11126/york central_seeking_your_vie

ws to guide new development consultation report

Question Key Findings CYC response
Redevelopment 74% of the total number of The council note and welcome
Question 1. respondents answered this question. | support for the principle of

Do you support
redevelopment of
the York Central
site?

There was significant support for the

proposed redevelopment of the York

Central site (79% supported; 13% did
not support).

i) Whilst supportive of the principle of
regeneration, a number of
respondents were concerned about
the deliverability of the site. Particular
issues were around the uncertainty of
delivery timescales and process,
phasing and release of land for
development, site capacity/density of
development, and financial viability
and funding.

i) A number of respondents also
noted the importance of developing
brownfield land and need for quick
delivery of the scheme

redevelopment at York Central.

i) Work to support the delivery of
the site is ongoing and
significant progress has been
made to address the concerns
raised. The YC Planning
Framework will establish key
delivery parameters. Further
more detailed appraisal to
substantiate the deliverability of
the site will be publicly available
as evidence base to support the
Local Plan process.

i) The council note the
comments made.

Vision

Question 2.

Do you support the
proposed vision for
York Central?

73% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
There was overall support for the
Vision (59% supported; 24% did not
support).

Key points raised included:

i) A number of qualitative comments
related to the need to strengthen the
Vision in terms of the identity, role
and relationship of York Central with
the existing historic city, and

The Vision will be taken forward
into the YC Planning
Framework.

i) The council note the
comments made. Further work
will be undertaken on the city
setting which will inform
preparation of the Planning
Framework.



https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11126/york_central_seeking_your_views_to_guide_new_development_consultation_report
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11126/york_central_seeking_your_views_to_guide_new_development_consultation_report

Page 88

opportunity for exemplar (particularly

sustainable) development on the site.
i) The need to set out how the quality
of development will be delivered was

also raised.

i) The Planning Framework will
articulate quality expectations
and these will be used to assess
planning applications.

Objectives
Question 3.

Do you agree with
the following
proposed objectives
for York Central?

69% of the total number of
respondents answered this question
There was significant agreement with
the objectives. The objective
‘Heritage as an Asset’ has the
strongest agreement followed by
‘Green Infrastructure’, ‘Sustainable
Development’ and ‘the National
Railway Museum as a Cultural
Epicentre’.

a) Heritage as an
Asset

(91% agreed; 3% disagreed)

b) Green (84% agreed; 6% disagreed)
Infrastructure

c) Catalyst for (69% agreed; 11% disagreed)
Economic

Development

d) A Vibrant New
Community

(66% agreed; 13% disagreed)

e) Movement and
Access

(74% agreed; 13% disagreed)

f) A Gateway

(62% agreed; 15% disagreed)

g) Creating and
Connecting
Communities

(67% agreed; 11% disagreed)

h) National Railway
Museum as
Cultural
Epicentre

(78% agreed; 11% disagreed)

i) Sustainable
Development

(81% agreed; 7% disagreed)

The council note and welcome
support for the objectives. The
objectives will be taken forward
into the Planning Framework.

Question 4.

Are there any
objectives missing
or do you have any
other comments?

A large number of qualitative
comments were received. Key points
raised included:

1) Many respondents requested
further clarity and specific detail to be
reflected within individual objectives.

i) A number of respondents raised
significant concerns about the
potential impact of tall buildings and
high density development on the
historic character of the city and key

i) The objectives within the
Planning Framework will be
further expanded.

i) Further work will be
undertaken to model the impact
of height and density to
understand the implications and
inform preparation of the




Page 89

views.

See also Question 25.

iil) Respondents noted the need to
undertake appropriate heritage
assessment work and archaeological
investigation. Other comments noted
the need for robust and up-to-date
information on ecology.

Iv) A number of respondents
highlighted the importance of a
comprehensive approach to green
infrastructure/open space,
biodiversity and sustainable networks
(eg. SUD’s/district heating/transport).
The importance of interaction with
areas outside the York Central
boundary was also noted. See also
Questions 8 and 9.

V) A large number of respondents
emphasised the importance of
community cohesion and connection
with existing local communities inside
and outside the boundary of York
Central. In particular, comments were
made about the provision of leisure
and cultural facilities (such as the
existing York Railway Institute) as a
driver for community establishment
and sustainability. See also Question
6i)

vi) Comments supported the NRM as
a local and national asset and major
attraction for the city. Opportunities to
enhance the rail
investment/engineering /education
offer and to improve the route to the
NRM from the city and other social
attractions were noted. See also
guestions 14, 15 and 16.

vii) Respondents suggested that a
new objective relating to quality of
place should be included.

Planning Framework.

iii) The council note the
comments made. Further work
will be undertaken to inform the
preparation of the Planning
Framework.

iv) The council note the
comments made. Further work
will be undertaken to inform
preparation of the Planning
Framework.

v) The council note the
comments made. Further work
will be undertaken to inform
preparation of the Planning
Framework. A York Central
Community Forum will be
established to engage with and
represent the views of the local
community as the site
progresses.

vi) The council note the
comments made.

vii) The council note the
comments made. Further work
to inform preparation of the
Planning Framework will be
undertaken.

Heritage

Question 5. Do you
agree with the
proposed
classification of

63% of the total number of
respondents answered this question
There was overall support for the
proposed classification of buildings
(47% agreed; 18% disagreed).

Further heritage assessment
work to inform preparation of the
Planning Framework and clarify
the approach to the proposed
classification of buildings will be




Page 90

buildings?

However, just over a quarter of
respondents (26%) did not know. This
was reflected in qualitative comments
where several respondents also
noted that they were unclear about
what they were being asked.

undertaken.

Question 6. Are
there any buildings
which should be
retained?

Question 7. Are
there any buildings
which should be
removed?

A large number of qualitative
comments were received including:
i) AlImost a third (403) of the total
number of respondents to Question 6
called for the retention of York
Railway Institute and associated
buildings. Respondents highlighted
the value of York RI as a social hub
for community sport, leisure and
cultural activities (some of which are
unique in York) in the heart of York.

i) A number of other buildings were
also identified which respondents felt
should be either be retained or could
be removed.

The council note the comments
made. Further work will be
undertaken to inform
preparation of the Planning
Framework.

Consultation and engagement
with York RI will continue to
inform both the Planning
Framework and development
plans for the site.

Landscape &
Public Realm
Question 8. Do you
support the
proposal to create a
linear park through
York Central?

64% of the total number of
respondents answered this question
There is a high level of support to
create a linear park at York Central
(67% supported; 11% did not
support).

The principle to create a linear
park at York Central will be
taken forward in the Planning
Framework.

Question 9. Do you
have any comments
on the landscape
principles?

A large number of qualitative
comments were received including:

i) A number of comments were made
that the landscape principles should
be expanded to include, for example,
spaces for biodiversity (including
design to support wildlife) and
biodiversity enhancement features;
advance, temporary and permanent
landscaping; maximising tree
planting; communal gardens; food
production; and play.

i) Some respondents also
commented that Holgate Beck should
be de-culverted.

See also Question 4v)

Further work will be undertaken
to inform preparation of the
Planning Framework.

i) The council note the
comments made. The
landscape principles within the
Planning Framework will be
expanded.

i) The council note the
comments made. Further work
to understand the implications of
de-culverting Holgate Beck will
be undertaken.

York Railway

63% of the total number of

The principle to create a new




Page 91

Station

Question 10. Do
you support the
creation of a new
public square on
the west side (the
rear) of the station?

respondents answered this question.
There is a high level of support to
create a new public square on the
west side (the rear) of the station
(68% supported; 14% did not
support)

Qualitative comments included the
potential for the square to be a major
public space for the city and
pedestrian/cycle gateway.

public square on the west side
(the rear) of the station will be
taken forward in the Planning

Framework.

The council note the comments
made.

Question 11. Do
you support the
creation of a new
public square on
the east side (the
front) of the station
by re-organising
buses and taxis?

63% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
There is a high level of support to
create a new public square on the
east side (the front) of the station (67
% supported; 16% did not support).

The extent to which the station
environment can be improved and a
public space created is potentially
influenced by whether Queen street
Bridge is retained or removed. Whilst
the principle of creating a new public
square on the east side of the station
was strongly supported, there was no
clear majority agreement whether
Queen Street Bridge should be
retained or removed. See also
Question 12 and Question 13.

The principle to create a new
public square on the east side
(the front) of the station will be
taken forward in the Planning
Framework.

Further work to inform the
preparation of the Planning
Framework will be undertaken.

Question 12. Do
you agree with
either of the
following options to
reorganise Queen
Street?

Optionl. Keep
Queen Street
Bridge

Option 2. Remove
Queen Street
Bridge

63% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
Option 2, to remove Queen Street
Bridge, was marginally the most
popular option. However, for each
option a similar number of
respondents either disagreed or did
not know.

(39% agreed; 23% disagreed; 22%
did not know).

(44% agreed; 22% disagreed; 19%
did not know).

Further work to inform the
preparation of the Planning
Framework and clarify the
approach to improve the station
environment will be undertaken.

Question 13. Do
you have any
comments on the
proposals for the
station or thoughts
on how the front of
the station could be

A high number of qualitative
comments were received including:

i) A significant number of respondents
supported reorganising the station
frontage, and improving the station
environment by altering current
arrangements for vehicle and taxi

The council note the comments
made. Further work to inform
the Planning Framework and
clarify the approach to improve
the station environment will be
undertaken.




Page 92

improved?

movement. The issue of conflict
between various modes of transport
was also raised at various
stakeholder events and workshops.

ii) It was noted that the current
arrangement makes it difficult for
pedestrians to navigate and legibility,
safety and accessibility should be
improved.

i) Some respondents noted that the
removal of Queen Street Bridge could
be an important step in re-ordering
the highway network in order to allow
for the reorganisation of the station
frontage.

Iv) A number of respondents
suggested that public realm
improvements should be pursued,
particularly where additional space
could be created for pedestrians.

National Railway
Museum

Question 14. Do
you support the
creation of a new
public square and
events space
outside the National
Railway Museum?

63% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
There is a high level of support to
create a new public square and
events space outside the National
Railway Museum (74% supported;
12% did not support).

See also Question 16

The principle to create a new
public square and events space
outside the National Railway
Museum will be taken forward in
the Planning Framework.

Question 15. Do
you support the re-
routing of Leeman
Road to allow the
expansion of the
National Railway

63% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
There was overall support to re-route
Leeman Road to allow the expansion
of the National Railway Museum
(59% supported; 21% did not

Further work to inform the
preparation of the Planning
Framework and clarify the
approach to highway
management of Leeman Road
will be undertaken.

Museum? support). However, this is contrary to

the findings of Question 20, Option 1.

See also Questions 16, 20 and 21
Question 16. A high number of qualitative The council note the comments
Do you have any comments were received including: made. Further work to inform
comments the preparation of the Planning

regarding how the
National Railway
Museum is
incorporated into
York Central?

1) A large number of respondents
suggested that the NRM should be
the focal point of York Central and
that quality public spaces with good
pedestrian and cycle access were
needed to incorporate the NRM into
York Central.

Framework and clarify the
approach to the proposed
highway management of
Leeman Road will be
undertaken.




Page 93

i) A number of respondents had
conflicting views about whether
Leeman Road should be retained or
re-routed to incorporate the NRM into
York Central.

See also Questions 4 and 21

Access and
Movement
Question 17. Do
you support the
proposed approach
to sustainable
travel?

61% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
There is a high level of support for the
proposed approach to sustainable
travel (68% supported; 10% did not
support).

The principle of the proposed
approach to sustainable travel
will be taken forward into the
Planning Framework

Question 18. Have
the right pedestrian
and cycle routes
been identified?

61% of the total number of

respondents answered this question.
35% agreed that the right pedestrian
and cycle routes had been identified.
(10% disagreed; 43% did not know).

Question 19. Do
you have any
comments on the
pedestrian and
cycle routes
identified?

A high number of qualitative
comments were received including:
i) A large number of respondents
suggested that dedicated pedestrian
and cycle routes should be included
separate to highway infrastructure.
Provision of high quality pedestrian
and cycling infrastructure was noted
as essential.

ii) Other comments included the need
to consider flood
defences/accessibility of routes and
the needs of disabled users.

The council note the comments
made. The approach to
pedestrian and cycle routes in
the Planning Framework will be
further expanded.

Question 20. Do
you agree with any
of the highway
management
options on the west
(the rear) side of
the station?

61% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
Option 1 was marginally the most
popular option. However, this option
would constrain the delivery of NRM
expansion and contradicts the
findings of Question 15.

There was no clear support for any of
the Options.

Option 1

Leeman Road open
for all traffic; No bus
gate

(38% agreed; 31% disagreed; 20%
did not know).

Option 2

Bus gate in place
on Leeman Road
Underpass;
Leeman Road
through the NRM

(35% agreed; 34% disagreed; 20%
did not know).

Further work to inform the
preparation of the Planning
Framework and clarify the
approach to the proposed
highway management of
Leeman Road will be
undertaken.




Page 94

site open for
pedestrians only

Option 3

Bus gate in place
on Leeman Road
Underpass;
Leeman

Road though the
NRM site fully
closed

(29% agreed; 35% disagreed; 23%
did not know).

Option 4
Leeman Road
diverted around
NRM, NRM

expanded, diverted

Leeman Road and

Underpass remains

open for all traffic
(no bus gates)

(17% agreed; 44% disagreed; 25%
did not know).

Question 21

Do you have any
comments on the
highway options
presented?

There were a high number of
gualitative comments received
including:

I) Concerns were raised regarding
the impact on the Holgate area and in
particular Wilton Rise/Cleveland
Street/St Paul’'s Square resulting from
the proposed new access bridge into
the site from Holgate Road and from
the closure of Leeman Road.

ii) Many concerns were raised by
residents living in the area around
Leeman Road, Garfield
Terrace/Livingstone Terrace and
Salisbury Road about the negative
impact on residents’ ability to access
the city centre caused by the volume
of traffic passing through the area.

iil) Concerns were raised about the
impact closure may have on bus
routes and in particular the impact on
the Park and Ride service.

iv) A large number of respondents
raised concerns about the proposals
leading to increased levels of traffic
congestion throughout the city as well
as locally to the site. Some
respondents were also concerned
about the impact this may have on air

The council note the comments
made. Further work to inform

the preparation of the Planning
Framework will be undertaken.

i) Detailed consultation will be
undertaken with residents close
to the proposed access road.




Page 95

quality.

v) Concerns were raised about the
adverse effect of road closure/re-
routing Leeman Road on businesses
along Leeman Road.

Development
parameters
Question 22.

Do you agree with
the proposed uses
for York Central?

59% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
There was overall support for the
proposed land uses at York Central
(56% agreed; 22% disagreed).

See also Question 26

The proposed land uses at York
Central will be taken forward in
the Planning Framework.

Question 23.

Are there any other
uses that should be
considered for York
Central?

Question 24.

Are there any uses
which you feel
should not be
considered for York
Central?

A high number of qualitative
comments were received including:

i) There were split views on
comments providing residential uses,
commercial/
office/employment/industrial uses,
hotels and restaurants/cafes, car
parks.

i) Specific uses that could be
considered for York Central included
providing low cost/social housing,
educational, community and health
facilities, local shops, a concert
venue, bus interchange and transport
associated facilities.

iil) A number of respondents
suggested that consideration should
be given to leisure uses, including
sports facilities. Several comments
suggested the importance of leisure
uses to stimulate activity outside
traditional working hours.

iv) Specific uses that should not be
considered for York Central included
large supermarkets, budget hotels,
night clubs/evening entertainment
venues, casinos, student
accommodation, luxury
homes/apartments, and a petrol
station.

v) A number of respondents
commented about the demand and
viability of proposed office space.

The council note the comments
made. Further work will be
undertaken to inform
preparation of the Planning
Framework.

Question 25.
Do you support the

59% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.

Further work will be undertaken
to inform preparation of the




Page 96

proposed approach
to maximum
building heights?

There was overall support for the
proposed approach to maximum
building heights (56% agreed; 22%
disagreed).

However, views were divided about
what is an acceptable building height.
Respondents also noted the need to
clarify the proportion of different
building heights.

See also Question 4iii) and Question
27

Planning Framework and clarify
the approach to building
heights.

Question 26.

Do you agree with
any of the following
development

58% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
Respondents did not support any of
the four development options put

options? forward. The differences between the
options were small.

Option 1 (15% agreed; 31% disagreed; 21%

120,000m? did not know)

commercial

development +

1,000 homes

Option 2 (16% agreed; 35% disagreed; 23%

100,000m? did not know)

commercial

development +

1,500 homes

Option 3 (16% agreed; 38% disagreed; 22%

80,000m? did not know)

commercial

development +

2,000 homes

Option 4 (16% agreed; 37% disagreed; 21%

60,000m? did not know)

commercial

development +

2,500 homes

Further work will be undertaken
to understand the implications of
different options and inform
preparation of the Planning
Framework.

Question 27. Are
there any other
issues that you feel
should be
considered when
setting development
parameters for York
Central?

A large number of qualitative
comments were received. These
predominantly related to topics
covered by the other qualitative
qguestions.

See also Questions 4, 21, 24 and 31

Phasing and
Temporary Uses
Question 28.

Do you agree with
the proposed
temporary uses for

58% of the total number of
respondents answered this question.
There was overall agreement with the
proposed temporary uses for York
Central (44% agreed; 9% disagreed)

The proposed temporary uses
will be taken forward in the
Planning Framework.




Page 97

York Central?

Question 29.

Are there any other
temporary uses that
should be
considered for York
Central?

Question 30.

Are there any
temporary uses that
should not be
considered for York
Central?

I) Other suggested temporary uses
included: leisure uses (eg. theatres/
skating rink); community uses;
temporary housing/homeless shelter;
heritage open days;
education/research development; and
car parking.

i) Suggested temporary uses that
should not be considered included:
late night noise generating
uses/drinking establishments; music
venues/music festivals; car parking;
and outdoor
festivals/markets/catering.

The council note the comments
made.

Other comments
Question 31.

Are there any other
comments you
would like to make
regarding the
proposed
development at
York Central?

There were a high number of
gualitative comments made, the
majority of which are reflected in
gualitative comments relating to
previous questions. Other specific
points raised included:

I) The need to monitor the impacts on
nearby communities through the
construction period (eg. air
guality/noise levels).

ii) The need for open and sustainable
communications throughout
consultation and development of the
scheme.

i) & ii) The council note the
comments made and will make
due provision as required.

The council has committed to
undertaking additional
consultation with residents living
in the vicinity of the proposed
new access bridge off Holgate
Road.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99 Agenda Item 8

YORK

ZX city oF
& COUNCIL

Executive 14 July 2016

Report of the Assistant Director Finance Property & Procurement

Portfolio of the Executive Member for Finance and Performance

The Guildhall — Detailed Designs & Business Case

Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to present the latest designs and business
case for the development of the Guildhall complex, highlighting the
potential for a world class venue for business, alongside retained council
use in one of York’s most significant historic buildings. Executive are
recommended to proceed with; detailed design and planning / listed
building consent applications for the scheme, to create a business club /
serviced office venue, with supporting commercial development on the
riverside.

Recommendations
2. Executive is asked to:

e Note the business case and cost estimates for the scheme indicating a
capital budget requirement of £10.19m to be prudentially borrowed, and
a potential increase to the net revenue budget of £180k.

e Agree that the detailed business case be presented to Executive in
February, setting out the actual budget requirement for delivery.
Executive and Full Council will be asked to take a final decision and
make the relevant budgetary provision, following further work to confirm
the budget requirement.

e Agree to marketing the restaurant unit and securing a pre-let agreement
for a 25 year commercial lease.

e Commence the procurement of a service contract for the operation of
the business club, office venue and cafe.



Page 100

e Agree the submission of Planning and Listed Building Consent
applications

e Proceed with RIBA stage 4 detail design (construction information /
specification) including for value engineering to potentially reduce
project costs

e Continue to explore the opportunities for securing Local Growth Fund
monies with both the regional LEP teams

e Commence the procurement of a construction contractor through an EU
compliant process.

e Draw down a further £350k from the capital budget already allocated to
the project to fund the planning application and the RIBA stage 4 design
work.

Reason:-To ensure the future viability and effective re-use of the Guildhall
as one of the City’s most significant historic buildings, through the creation a
vibrant business and civic venue, with supporting commercial development
on the riverside.

Background

3. As part of the Admin Accommodation programme in January 2012 Cabinet
decided to move out of the Guildhall and move into West Offices in order to
make approx £1m a year savings. In response to this an evaluation of
potential future uses was undertaken, culminating in the decision in October
2015, to commission design and business case development work to bring
back a viable scheme that would stimulate the economy and provide a viable
future for the historic building.

4. Approval was granted for detailed project development work as follows :

e To secure the future of the Guildhall as a serviced office venue with virtual
office and business club facilities by maximising the benefits of the different
spaces within the complex; its heritage appeal, and also ensuring ongoing
council use and public access in a mixed use development.

e Confirm the appointment of a multi disciplinary design team lead by
Architects Burrell Foley Fischer

e Confirm the selection of a commercial operating partner through the most
appropriate and advantageous lease or service contract arrangements

e Confirm a programme of engagement with the business sector / target
market to understand their requirements, facilitated through joint working
with project partners; the Universities and Make it York.



Page 101

5. In response to this approval the following actions have been taken:

The design team led by architects Burrell Foley Fischer were appointed in
November 2015 and commenced work immediately.

Over the period Nov — Dec 2015 they undertook a thorough review of the
previous work and prepared; a feasibility review report and a strategic brief
of requirements to inform project development.

The design team also undertook a complete fabric and structural condition
survey of the entire complex, which highlighted a number of areas of
concern and identified the need for additional ground and structural
investigations.

To ensure that the heritage significance of the site was fully recognised we
committed to early engagement with Historic England through their
enhanced advisory service, and also to them undertaking an enhanced
listing for the complex.

Commercial agents Cushman Wakefield (formerly DTZ) were appointed
(following a formal procurement) to advise on the river side leisure units.
Their initial advice was invaluable in informing the stage 2 design. They
have subsequently undertaken significant soft market engagement / testing
and provided a robust valuation of the restaurant unit to support the project
funding proposals attached at annex 2ii.

Over the period January — March 16 the design team undertook RIBA
stage 2, concept design work, arriving at a preferred option (see stage 2
plans in background papers). Following gateway review, in accordance
with the project programme this led directly into the RIBA stage 3, detall
design work.

The Revised Scheme Design

6. At the meeting of the Executive the project team will present a 3D fly through
of the stage 3 design. The executive summary of the RIBA stage 3 report and
scheme presentation information and drawings are attached at Annex 1.

7. The report presents a design solution which :

e Secures the future of the complex through a comprehensive scheme of
repair / refurbishment and restoration to the most important and
sensitive areas of the site

e Enhances the Guildhall itself including; a new roof, under floor heating
and new services



Page 102

e Refurbishes and reconfigures the south range to provide : a cafe, toilets
and storage to serve the Guildhall, with a glazed link courtyard space
serving as a an entrance / foyer to the Guildhall and business club

e Creates a new public / member entrance and refurbishes the council
chamber including repairs to the river facade and windows

e Creates a serviced office and business club venue with 1330m2 of
premium office space

¢ Installs new services throughout; a complete replacement of all heating /
electrical / fire and security alarms and access control systems. The
proposed heating system will use a river water sourced heat pump
taking advantage of the location to secure a sustainable solution with
low running costs

e Constructs a new build element to the north annex to provide: an
attractive restaurant space, a new riverside terrace / courtyard and
additional office accommodation, with the new vertical circulation and
highly serviced areas (kitchens / toilets) away from the more sensitive
historic elements.

e Provides a lift for accessing the public gallery of the council chamber

e Creates new public / visitor routes thorugh the complex giving access to
new riverside spaces

8. The project team have undertaken significant precedent analysis, looking at a

range of serviced office and business club facilities in both London and Leeds,
undertaking site visits with the design team. Other locations have been
compared through web searches / data comparison. The key findings were
tabulated by the Design Team and fed into the design process to support the
proposed approach for the Guildhall,

The stage 3 design proposals have made the refurbished Guildhall integral to
the business club entrance and provides a cafe unit capable of serving;
business users, the Guildhall space and taking advantage of Mansion House
visitors, being located directly off the Guildhall yard in the south range
buildings.

Commercial Space

10.

The early designs identified two commercial elements to the scheme that
would help to fund the proposal, a cafe in the north annex extension and a
restaurant in the south range. Both design team thinking and advice form our
commercial agent informed the design development at RIBA stage 2. The
design team proposed that moving the restaurant unit from the south range to
the north west side of the complex allowed for a larger unit with far fewer
constructional constraints and better access to external areas on the riverside.
Advice from our commercial agent also advised a market requirement for a



Page 103

slightly larger (5000 — 6000ft2) unit, access to external seating areas, and
requirements for storage and plant space also considered.

11. The cafe unit is a better fit with the smaller scale of the south range and its
location there allows it to serve the multiple areas and audiences highlighted
at para 9 above.

Public Access

12. Feed back from the Residents Festival, over the weekend 30/31 Jan 2016,
indicated the extent to which members of the public feel ‘ownership’ of the
Guildhall complex and the extent to which many felt they could not gain
access to some of the areas of key interest. There was specific support for
proposals to make the riverside more accessible. Accordingly the design
proposes terraced riverside space following the City Screen precedent model,
private space with public access.

Condition of the Guildhall Complex

13. The existing condition of the Guildhall complex is much worse than previously
understood, the detailed surveys have revealed structural problems which if
left unchecked could lead to permanent and irrevocable damage to the Grade
| and Grade II* elements of the complex.

14. Historic England have advised that the complex could soon be considered at
risk were no future use to be identified. The 2013 condition survey identified
£2m of necessary works(exclusive of fees) to bring the complex up to a
satisfactory standard — of which £1m were priority urgent works. With fees
and inflation , and taking into account additional underpinning to the tower,
this equates to approx £2.67m of works necessary to sustain the complex
without any significant or specific alterations or improvements to facilitate new
uses.

Quality requirements

15. The Design team have worked hard and with imagination to deliver a design
that meets a complex range of requirements and satisfies all stakeholders.
Whilst opportunities for value engineering do exist, a complex of this nature,
with such highly graded heritage assets, requires a treatment commensurate
with its significance. The specification for the works includes for a material
quality appropriate to the location and setting which is one of the most visible
in York.



Page 104

Freehold retention

16.

17.

18.

19.

Both Executive and Scrutiny have previously outlined the importance of the
long term custodianship of the Guildhall by the Council. This requires retention
of the freehold, and brings with it the external repairing liabilities of the
complex; however, these could be met from a repairs fund built up from the
income from leasing the commercial space.

It is proposed that the Commercial restaurant space will be let on a 25 year
lease, and that the operation of the business club and serviced office space
would potentially be a shorter 10-15 year lease. The leases will transfer
elements of the maintenance and repairs liability to the leaseholders. The
proposed lease terms will seek to achieve the best compromise between
maximising income generation thorough de-risking the offer, and facilitating
the transfer of running and maintaining responsibilities for the complex to the
private sector, whilst securing the required council use.

The Business Case
The business case is formed from the following elements:

e The cost of the works to the Guildhall — this will be funded from
borrowing and repaid from :

e Income generated by the scheme, which comprises :

I. Income from the operation of the serviced office / business club
venue and cafe
ii. Income from the commercial restaurant lease
lii. The current operating budget for the Guildhall
iv. Capital Funds already set aside for the project

Scheme Costs

In previous presentations to Executive the project costs ranged from £12.5m
(an option for more new build) to £9.85m (this option involved less new build
and more refurbishment). Most recently in October 2015 Executive approved
further development based on the latter option which proposed retaining more
of the north annex and involving more refurbishment works. However, as the
RIBA stage 2 and 3 detail designs have been developed, and as further
structural surveys and ground investigations have been undertaken, the
structural issues identified across the complex mean that the option for
refurbishment is not technically viable.



20.

21.

22.

Page 105

To resolve the structural issues affecting the north annex and the tower, the
most pragmatic and permanent solution is to demolish part of the north annex
and create a new build element which will both stabilise the tower and provide
the most efficient design solution to vertical circulation (lift) and the highly
serviced (kitchen / toilet) areas of the new complex. The need for sensitive
treatment of the south range has led to a design which requires a combined
approach of refurbishment and new build with elements of rebuilding and
underpinning. Both of these requirements add to the cost of the scheme.

The RIBA stage 3 build cost estimate for the scheme outlined in this report
totals £11.938m. The key factors which have impacted on the cost during the
design stage are :

e More new build, less refurbishment - It has proved pragmatic to replace
much of the north annex in order to provide both an effective structural
solution and the new highly serviced core for toilets / kitchens and lift
serving all levels of the development. The stage 3 proposals have
significantly more new build compared with the previous refurbishment
proposals.

e Structural condition / ground conditions - The structural survey identified
evidence of significant movement at several locations across the complex.
Additional ground investigations and proposed structural monitoring will
provide further detailed information to inform the necessary remedial
works, the riverside tower is a particular concern.

e Additional Floor area - In order to accommodate a larger restaurant unit,
with attractive and accessible riverside external spaces and to maximise
the lettable office space the gross building area has increased by
approximately 80mz2

e Build Cost Inflation - When the initial cost estimates were provided annual
build cost inflation had been running at 2 - 2.5%. However in 2015 the
improving economic outlook saw upward revisions and significant market
movement. Annual build cost inflation is now reported / predicted at 4 -
4.5% which will have a significant impact on the eventual costs and will
continue to be a risk factor for the project. Any delays to the construction
phases will exacerbate this inflationary trend.

Managed Office Business Club Operation

The project team have considered the most appropriate options for the
operation of the business club and serviced office venue, with respect to
managing risk and maximising income, balanced against the requirement for
ongoing council use and public access. The council’s use of the complex for



23.

24.

25.

26.

Page 106

full council meetings / civic events / functions and, including office
accommodation for Mansion House / Civic and Democratic Staff, with public
access to the complex for Residents Festival and Heritage Open Days
weekends in January / September respectively, clearly has a cost. The cost
will of this provision is estimated at £35k per annum.

Whilst a traditional property lease does offer the potential to transfer risk to the
private sector, there would necessarily be limited control over the use and
operation of the complex, and securing the council use would be seen as a
restriction impacting on the lease value. Council operation was also
considered as an option, but this would require additional staffing resource at
this time.

Procuring a service contract for the operation of the venue is therefore seen
as the most appropriate mechanism for securing a vibrant mixed use business
focused venue. An operating company would manage the venue and
business tenancies in return for a share of the rental income. The project
team will work to secure this alongside the planning and detail design stages.

In the current designs, the cafe is now integral to the Guildhall and the office
space. It therefore makes sense to wrap the cafe unit in with the office
management arrangements, rather than marketing an independent lease
opportunity, but this will be kept under review thorugh the next stage.

The market value of these elements has been assessed by Cushman
Wakefield and their commercial valuation report is attached at annex 2i. The
project team have also modelled the income potential for a business club
venue based on the precedent studies and market intelligence analysis.

Commercial Leisure Unit

27.

28.

Commercial advisors (Cushman Wakefield — formerly DTZ) were
commissioned to assess the commercial potential of the riverside restaurant
unit and cafe space within the scheme. Their advice has been used both
inform the developing design and to construct the business model. They
concluded that both spaces would be highly attractive to the market, and early
market engagement indicates that there is currently significant interest in the
restaurant unit, due to its unique location. The cafe space has been integrated
with the office lease, as identified above. The proposed restaurant lease
would be a 25 year lease with a separate demise to the rest of the complex.

The full report is attached at annex 2ii. The current estimate of income from
this lease is £200k pa. In order to firm this up Members are asked to agree to
marketing the lease, to secure a pre-let agreement and to enable a restaurant



Page 107

operator to be engaged with the next stages of design and ultimately

construction of this element.

Existing Budgets

29. Members have already committed £1.75m to fund the project. When the
complex is operational CYC will benefit from an additional £25k pa in retained
business rates, in addition to the lease income. The requirement for retained
use of the Guildhall for full council meetings (use of the chamber and adjacent
meeting rooms) use of the Guildhall main hall for up to 12 civic events per

30.

31. The table below outlines the costs and income from the proposed scheme :

32. In addition to the direct income from the scheme the York economy would
benefit from an estimated uplift in GVA of £66m by 2030 from the creation of

annum, and all inclusive office space for the Mansion House / Civic and
Democratic Staff also has a cost / value.

The current cost of running the Guildhall is £125k per annum. This covers

business rates, utilities and services, but excludes staffing costs. It is
proposed that all of these sums are used to fund the project costs.

Costs Capital £,000 revenue per
annum
£,000

Project Costs (stage 3 cost est.) | 11,938

Financed from :

CYC agreed finance 1,750

Add. Borrowing required 10,188 780

Annual cost of new borrowing 780

Net income from scheme revenue per
annum
£,000

Managed Office/Cafe lease 250

Restaurant lease 200

Retained NNDR 25

Total annual Income 475

Net revenue impact 305

Less Existing Budget 125

Net Increase in Revenue Costs 180

120 high value new jobs.




Page 108

** gsource North Yorks Regional Econometric Model - based on job in the
computing / information and communication services sectors.

The Do Nothing Option

33. There are financial implications of continuing to operate the Guildhall without
redevelopment. In addition to the annual operating costs there is a residual
repairs and maintenance backlog which will need to be addressed. The
condition survey undertaken in 2013 identified £2m of repairs (excluding fees)
which included £1m of priority works. The more detailed structural surveys
undertaken during the design phase have identified the requirement for further
structural works to underpin elements of the complex (specifically the tower)
which will need to be undertaken to prevent irrevocable damage to the fabric
of the historic building. This urgent repair work is now estimated at £2.67m.

34. The costs of the Do Nothing Option are set out in the table below :

Costs Capital £,000 revenue per

annum
£,000

Project costs to date 760

Repairs and maintenance est. 2,670

Total option costs 3,430

Financed from :

CYC agreed finance 1,750

Add. borrowing required 1,680 129

Ongoing operational costs 125

Total cost per annum 254

Existing budget 125

Net Increase in revenue Costs 129

35. The ongoing net costs of redevelopement are £180k pa compared with with
the £129k pa costs of the Do Nothing Option. However the redevelopment
would also secure the fabric of the building for the long term, reconfigure the
complex for new uses, increase the capital value of the asset and contribute
to local economic growth. It is therefore recommended that Members agree to
proceed with the project and agree the following detailed activity :

e Note the business case and cost estimates for the scheme indicating a
capital budget requirement of £10.19m to be prudentially borrowed, and
a potential increase to the net revenue budget of £180k.

e Agree that the detailed business case be presented to Executive in
February, setting out the actual budget requirement for delivery.



Page 109

Executive and Full Council will be asked to take a final decision and
make the relevant budgetary provision, following further work to confirm
a budget requirement.

e Agree to marketing the restaurant unit and securing a pre-let agreement
for a 25 year commercial lease.

e Commence the procurement of a service contract for the operation of
the business club and office venue.

e Agree the submission of Planning and Listed Building Consent
applications.

e Proceed with RIBA stage 4 detail design (construction information /
specification) including value engineering to potentially reduce project
costs

e Continue to explore the opportunities for securing Local Growth Fund
monies with both the regional LEP teams

e Commence the procurement of a construction contractor through an EU
compliant process.

e Draw down a further £350k from the capital budget already allocated to
the project to fund the planning application and the RIBA stage 4 design
work.

Timetable

36.

The forward project programme is as follows :

Planning and Listed Building Consent applications Aug 2016
RIBA design stage 4 inception workshops Sept 2016
Marketing of Restauarant unit Aug — Oct 2016
Planning and Listed Building Consent approvals Nov 2016
Agreement to lease restaurant Dec 2016

RIBA stage 4 designers reports and cost plan Jan 2017
Executive report Feb 2017

Full Council budget report Feb 2017
Construction contract procurement PQQ Oct 16-Jan 2017
Construction contract procurement ITT Feb — Apr 2017
Possible enabling works Mar — Apr 2017
Potential start of construction works July - 2017

Construction period 15 months to Oct 2018



Page 110

Consultation

37. Corporate Scrutiny Management Committee have considered the project in
January 2015, in September 2015 and more recently in June 2016 where the
latest proposals were well received. Their response was generally supportive
of the proposed scheme.

38. As part of the 2016 Residents Festival over the weekend of 30 &31 January
an exhibition was held in the Guildhall and tours of the complex were offered
for residents, working in conjunction with community group York Past and
Present. This proved to be extremely popular with approx 200 people taking
tours and over 400 people visiting and viewing the exhibition. The feedback
was overwhelmingly positive.

39. We have also worked with Historic England, taking advantage of their
Enhanced Advisory Services to undertake pre-application engagement and to
secure an Enhanced Listing for the complex. Most recent advice from Historic
England indicates: Historic England is broadly comfortable with the scheme
and we welcome the direction in which it is going.

40. ‘Enhanced List Entries’ are part of a new service responding to the regulatory
Reform Act of 2015, designed to streamline the Heritage consent process.
Historic England undertook a re-listing exercise for the Guildhall complex
which gives much greater clarity as a basis for assessing proposed changes.
In summary this has confirmed that the complex is highly significant with its
links to City governance over several centuries. The Guildhall and riverside
rooms are listed at Grade 1. The Council office and riverside block of the
annex are now listed at Grade II* (previously grade II).

41. The significant changes are :

e The Mansion House Garages are no longer part of the Mansion House
listing

e The Victorian council offices are now listed at Grade II* - including the
riverside block of the north annex

e The remainder of the North Annex is no longer listed

e The south range is now separately listed at grade Il

42. There is helpful detail in the new list descriptions confirming that the interiors
of the former committee rooms 2 and 3 are not of special interest, nor the
interiors of the north annex riverside block and south range. This provides



43.

44.

45.

Page 111

clarity and allows greater scope for appropriate alteration in these areas. The
report accompanying / recommending the enhanced list descriptions is
attached at annex 3.

This process has also involved the council’s planning and conservation teams.
Early engagement has been invaluable, ensuring that the plans have been
developed in response to their early comments, although there are
necessarily some areas of detail still to resolve.

In addition, contact has been made with a number of adjoining owners to
make them aware of our emerging proposals including; the Post Office / York
Conservation Trust in relation to the access to the north west side of the site.
We have also communicated the proposals to City Screen, Jamie Olivers and
Lendal Cellars and engaged with the Civic Trust and Conservation Areas
Advisory Panel.

The next stage of consultation will be formal pre-application exhibition of the
proposals at the Guildhall.

Council Plan

46.

The Guildhall project will deliver outcomes which contribute directly to the
following objectives in the Council Plan 2015:

e Local businesses can thrive

e Residents have the opportunity to get good quality and well paid jobs

e Everyone who lives in the city can enjoy its unique heritage and
range of activities.

¢ Visitors, businesses and residents are impressed with the quality of
our city

Implications

Financial - The business case set out at para 33 above includes the capital
costs and projected revenue costs / income for the do nothing and
recommended option.

The total capital cost of the preferred option is £11.938m with £1.75m of
approved project funding in place. The project is therefore likely to require
prudential borrowing of around £10.19m with repayment of this borrowing over
a 30 year term (including interest).



Page 112

The next stage of project development requires a further drawdown of £350k
from the previosly approved budget allocation totalling £1.75m (£900K is
already committed leaving a balance of £850Kk)

At detailed business case stage the potential to fund the proposed
development, through council borrowing against the projected rental income,
will be established and reported to Executive and Full Council for approval in
February 2017.

Human Resources (HR) - The Guildhall is currently managed by the Civic
and Mansion House team. The roles of these staff in relation to the Guildhall
are being revised as part of the ongoing delivery phase of the Mansion House
project, there are no specific HR implications of the decisions in this report.

Equalities - There are no equalities implications in relation to the
recommendations above. However, there are known problems with the
accessibility of the complex and proposals to increase public access will need
to address these. The refurbishment of the Guildhall complex has
accessibility for all as a key requirement. Access to the complex and the
council chamber including the public gallery will be significantly improved to
meet the requirements of the Equalities Act. A detailed Community Impact
Assessment will be produced for the development phase of the project to be
monitored by the project board.

Legal - The procurement process to select the Design Team followed EU
procurement regulations. The appointment is on a staged basis with break
clauses at each stage. The procurement of the construction contract would
also follow EU procurement regulations.

Legal and procurement advice recommended a lease as the most appropriate
and advantageous arrangements for securing a private sector operator for the
serviced office and business club venue.

Crime and Disorder - The design of the complex will involve the Police
Architectural Liaison officer to minimise the risk of crime and disorder within
the proposals.

Community Planning & Partnerships - The project development phase has
already involved consultation and engagement with both the public and key
city stakeholders. The next stage will be a pre-aplicaiton exhibition of the
design proposals and the Guildhall Planning panel will also be consulted

Information Technology — It is intended that IT services for the serviced
offices and business club are provided by the private sector operator.



Page 113

Property - the proposal for a long lease (25 years) for the restaurant unit is
confirmed, and a shorter (15 year) lease is proposed to enable a private
sector operator to run the Guildhall business club and serviced office veue /
cafe providing comprehensive FM services.

Risk Management

47. The key project risks are:

48. Capital cost — this will be kept under constant review by the project team
working with the design team through RIBA stage 4 — which will involve
value engineering and construction risk workshops.

49. Lease income — the project financing requires income to fund the
repayment of borrowing costs. Securing agreements to lease for the
restaurant unit and office elements will be necessary before seeking
approval to proceed.

50. Further deterioration of the complex - much of the space is currently
vacant or under-used. Interim repair works in 2015 addressed the
immediate problems of water ingress, but a significant outstanding repair
and maintenance backlog remains and there are also areas of structural
movement — as highlighted in the report.

51. A project risk register is maintained for the project and will be updated to
reflect the approved option following Executive decision, and monitored by
the project board.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

David Warburton lan Floyd

Guildhall Project Manager Director Customer and Business

No 551312 Support

Tracey Carter - Assistant Director \ 4 July 2016

for Finance, Property and
Procurement Tel No. 553419

Wards Affected: Guildhall All

For further information please contact the author of the report



Page 114

Background Papers:

RIBA Stage 2 report
Full RIBA stage 3 reports

Annexes
Annex 1

a) - RIBA Stage 3 Design report - Executive Summary
b) — Scheme description- Burrell Foley Fischer — online only
c) — Proposed layout plans- Burrell Foley Fischer

Annex 2

1) Market Valuation Guildhall / Offices and Cafe — Cushman Wakefield
i) Restaurant valuation report - Cushman Wakefield (Confidential Annex)
lii) Business Club indicative operating model

Annex 3 — Enhanced list descriptions report — online only

Glossary

EU — European Union

FM — Facilities Management

GVA - Gross Value Added

LEP — Local Enterprise Partnership
NNDR — Non Domestic Rates

PQQ — Pre Qualification Questionnaire
RIBA - Royal Institute of British Architects



[/

CUTIVE SUMMARY

04.07.16

GTT abed



ANNEX 1a

Page 116



0.0 CONTENTS

0.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Contents

BURRELL FOLEY FISCHER LLP Executive Summary
BURRELL FOLEY FISCHER Sketches

SGA Executive Summary

ARUP Executive Summary

TURNER & TOWNSEND Executive Summary

ANNEX 1a

04

05

®




ANNEX 1a

Page 118



1.0 Executive Summary

The design proposals presented in this report represent the continuing
development of the proposals and the briefing process since the completion
of RIBA Stage 2 on 5th April 2016 to an integrated RIBA Stage 3 scheme,
presented for client sign off in July 2016.

To review progress it is essential to first restate the goals set at the end of
Stage 2, which can be summarized as follows:

2.1 Strategic objectives

* To establish a scheme which incorporates new spaces and transform
existing ones to deliver a world class business club and serviced office
venue, supporting and nurturing the expansion of the business community
of the City of York, combining events and exhibition space with state of the
art collaboration/co-working facilities and serviced offices at the heart of
a historic and creative city.

» Completion of the project will secure a sustainable future for one of
the City’s most valued and iconic buildings. Proposals will restore and
retain the important heritage assets on the site, notably the Grade | listed
Guildhall & the Grade II* listed Municipal Offices.

* Retaining the use of the council chamber and enhancing public access to
the site and buildings, will enhance the importance of the existing physical
relationships within the city and strengthen the relationships between
the city’s governance, commerce, and culture. The completed project
will ensure that these are not just acknowledged, but remain intrinsically
bound together, for the future benefit of the York, on the site where this
relationship has been focused for over six hundred years.

2.2 The Evolving design

* Develop the scheme in terms of its complex cross sectional nature,
developing these as before and after drawings to clearly explain the nature
of the proposed interventions on site.

* Incorporate all of the latest survey information into proposals, reviewing
area schedules and calculations against the targets established in the brief.

* Develop a detailed 3d model of the site to review overall massing of the
new build elements of the scheme in relation to the existing site context.
As part of this exercise the new North Annex will be analysed to ensuring
it does not have a detrimental impact on the backs of no’s 10-14 Lendal as
seen from the bridge and across the river

* Review again, in further detail the toilet and ancillary spaces for both the
Guildhall and the Office complex;

* Resolve the changes in levels between the existing Council Office block

and new North Annex block, as the floor levels interface around the
service cores.

* Review the potential of utilising the Atkinson Block basement for toilet
provision.

* Develop a design life-span table, together with other members of the
design team, for all key elements of construction, fit out, structure and
services for CYC review and sign off during Stage 3.

The Stage 3 scheme as set out in this document addresses the above
points, developing the design to a level of detail suitable to support detailed
planning and listed buildings applications

The design of the new build elements on the Hutments and North Annex
site has developed, resolving issues of massing, elevational composition
and materiality.

The proposed works to the South Range have also progressed, resolving
the issues of structural stability and establishing a design solution to the
transition from the South Range entrance, via the Slype space. This area
has been glazed in and connects through a new opening into the Guildhall
itself and to the former Municipal Offices beyond it.The introduction of an
enclosed passage (with ramp and steps) behind a relocated dais, resolves
the level difference between the north and south sides of the complex,
while ensuring acoustic and physical separation from the Guildhall to
allow maximum flexibility in use.

A public realm scheme for Common Hall Yard has been developed, as has
a proposal for the interface with the Jamie’s Italian / Lendal Vaults Yard,
subject to agreement with neighbouring land owners.

A more detailed description of the design of the complex is provided in
section 3.0.

2.3 Financial Constraints

At the end of Stage 2 there was a misalignment of the Strategic Budget
and the cost plan reflecting the agreed option 5c scheme. This has been
reviewed with CYC and the Stage 3 scheme reflects this process

The budget deficit was mainly due to the increase is in the construction
value, with an increased building area and the additional extent of new
build works.

The original Feasibility study provided 3,927m2 GIFA of which 701m2
(18%) was new build and 3,226m2 (82%) was refurbishment.

The Option 5c scheme which was presented at the end of Stage 2 provided

1.0 BFF EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ANNEX 1a

4,01 Im2 GIFA of which 1,463m2 (36%) is new build and 2,548m?2 (64%)
is refurbishment.

This was primarily due to the recognition of the need to demolish the
majority of the South Range (which in option 5c was reconstructed in its
entirety on new foundations with the creation of the new internal glazed
space formed between the South Range and the Guildhall. During Stage
3 the extent of the demolitions to this area have been reevaluated, thus
reducing possible cost deficit.

Despite this exercise Stage 3 Costs and budget are remain misaligned and
the design team have proposed a series of strategic actions to address
this and narrow the funding gap.

61T abed

BURRELL |FOLEY |FISCHER



Common Hall Yard
The lan ing to Com

i
Guildhall itself

een developed during Stage 3. This
nvolves improving the hard landscaping and ramped access and steps to the

ANNEX 1a

CTIONS & ELEVATIONS

02T abed



ANNEX 1a

®

) \

The Guildhall: screened passage and ramped access
The new ramp to the southern end of the Guildhall resolves the problems with the circulation and levels to Committee Room |, the South Range and

the Municipal Offices.The ramp sits within an acoustic enclosure separated from the main Guildhall by a curving screen of oak, which acts as a new back
drop to the relocated dais.




Municipal Offices / Council Chamber Access
Proposed new glazed entrance to the Municipal Offices. A separate entrance has been maintained and provided through the existing single storey Porter’s office.
This involves removing a section of wall to the front which faces the existing route alongside the Guildhall and removing the roof. It will be replaced with a set

back glazed link held off the junction with the Guildhall.

ANNEX 1a

2¢T abed



ANNEX 1a

/ Hutments Site
with the souther

The New North Annexe
The new block connects directl



Page 124

ANNEX 1a




ANNEX 1a

O

Oﬁj

Cross section through the Guildhall and new Cafe

=

KEY
The Guildhall

New screen
Link between Guildhall and South Range
Common Hall Lane

Entrance to Council Chamber and new route across complex
Cafe

o Uk WD —




YORK GUILDHALL
Stage 3 DRAFT Report

Revision A 01/06/2016

ANNEX 1a

SGA Consulting

sgaconsulting.co.uk

3.0 SGA EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

o¢T abed



1.0 Executive Summary

This report details the Stage 3 proposals for environmental and services strategies for the York
Guildhall building.

SGA Consulting have taken a holistic approach to the development of these proposals and have
worked closely with the Architects and the structural engineers to ensure that the building form
maximises the sustainability concepts in terms of daylight, solar control, natural ventilation and
energy efficiency.

The main energy saving proposals to meet this ambitious target are as follows:

Natural ventilation and thermal mass to reduce the mechanical cooling requirements on the
building.

Effective use of daylight to reduce the need for artificial lighting.

New efficient condensing gas boilers shall replace the old, to help reduce reliance on fossil fuels
and to reduce utility bills

New LED lighting throughout the development with local controls such as daylight dimming and
absence detection will be installed. This will reduce electrical loads required

Good control of mechanical, lighting and blind systems to minimise energy usage
Good user control of the office environment including restricted opening windows
Use of the River Ouse to provide heating and cooling via a heat pump
Pipe-in-slab heating through the core of the refurbished building

New secondary glazing installed to help reduce unwanted infiltration and reduce heating and
cooling loads on all windows installed in the Hall and throughout the office spaces

Installing mechanical dampers in existing openings in the walls to allow for greater user control
and a night cooling strategy. The night cooling strategy will recharge the thermal mass with
“coolth” that will be used during the office hours the next day to reduce the peak indoor air
temperature.

A BMS to allow tight control of the plant operation with optimal start to ensure plant is operating
only when required.

Another ambition for the project is to achieve a BREEAM “Very Good” rating and a preliminary
assessment of the current design indicates that this rating will be possible.

The following summarises the work undertaken by SGA Consulting during Stage 3:

YORK GUILDHALL

Liaison with York Guildhall facilities managers with regard to incoming services and site wide
requirements.

Development of the building plan and elevations with the Architect and Structural Engineer,
including building fabric performance, external shading, natural ventilation openings, and glass
performance.

Acoustic performance of the natural ventilation openings on the external facades.
Energy usage estimation.

Establishing the services strategies for each space and the selection of equipment options.

J)1223 - York Guildhall#Reports#SGA Stage 3 Report.doc

vi. Coordination and allocation of plant space, service risers and distribution routes to serve the
building.

vii. Development of the artificial lighting solutions for the offices
viii. Development of the HVAC strategies for the new WCs.
ix. Design of the surface and foul water drainage for the building.

X. Input into the preliminary BREEAM assessment

Talks are currently on going with the Environment Agency regarding the licenses for abstraction
and discharge for the use of the River Ouse. A provisional cost has been received for these and
forwarded to CYC. The indicative cost would be £1,500 pa.

An acoustic survey has been completed by an acoustic specialist and limits have been set for the
design of external plant to ensure all guidelines are met with regards to neighbouring properties. It
is unknown at this stage the exact external plant being proposed, this information will need to be
provided by the preferred operating partner of the restaurant and café .

SGA Consulting Ltd.
73 Mornington Street, London, NW1 7QE

m
X
®
s)
c
=,
<
®
w
c
3
3
o
q
<

Page 3 of 74




This report takes into account the particular
instructions and requirements of our client.

It is not intended for and should not be relied
upon by any third party and no responsibility
is undertaken to any third party.

Job number 246583-00

Ove Arup & Partners Ltd
Admiral House Rose Wharf
78 East Street

Leeds LS9 SEE

United Kingdom
WWW.arup.com

4.0 ARUP EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

City of York Council
York Guildhall
Draft Stage 3 Report

YGH-ARP-ZZ-Z7-RP-7X-0003

Issue 3 | 30 June 2016

ANNEX 1a

ARUP

8¢T obed



City of York Council

Executive Summary

This report details Arup’s Stage 3 proposals for the geotechnical, civil and structural works
associated with the refurbishment of the York Guildhall complex and the new build North
Annexe Structure.

Geotechnical - An intrusive ground investigation was carried out by Soil Engineering Ltd,
supervised by Arup, in May 2016. The purpose of this ground investigation was to:

e Identify the existing building foundations (composition and condition);

e Determine the variability in stratigraphy and geotechnical parameters across the site;
and,

e Identify any potential for ground contamination across the site.

At the time of writing, the site works have been completed and the laboratory testing is being
undertaken and once completed factual data will be issued and incorporated into the proposed
design.

Civils - Since the Stage 2 report further work has been undertaken to develop the drainage
strategy for the York Guildhall site. Additional knowledge on the existing drainage networks,
and their condition has been obtained through the commission of a drainage and CCTV
survey. This has helped to build a picture of the existing drainage regime and enable the
proposed drainage layout to be developed in more detail. In reviewing the existing survey
information there are a number of poor condition drainage runs have been identified. It is
proposed to replace these existing pipes where possible given the window of opportunity
during the refurbishment works.

In terms of new drainage infrastructure a surface water network is proposed on the Hutments
site to drain the proposed Restaurant into the wider network. Surface water collection features
in the form of slot drains are proposed to drain the external areas to the south of the
Restaurant building. A number of new foul connections are proposed to the existing combined
drainage networks to accommodate internal changes to the existing buildings. New foul
drainage is proposed externally in the South Range/ Hutments to provide connections onto the
existing network for the proposed toilet block and Restaurant unit respectively.

Structural - Throughout Stage 3 the structural design and refurbishment proposals have been
developed in conjunction with the wider design team though design team meetings and design
workshops.

Throughout the design stages undertaken to date it has become apparent that the remedial
works required to address the existing structural defects are greater than those originally
identified in 2013 survey works undertaken by a separate design team. The stage 3 structural
proposals for remedial works have been incorporated into the cost estimate prepared by T&T.

Arup have worked in collaboration with the client and wider design team to progress the
previous Stage 2 concept design through the developed design Stage 3. The following have
been developed and understood in great detail to allow more accurate understanding of the
project costs and risks during Stage 3:

YGH-ARP-ZZ-ZZ-RP-ZX-0003 | Issue 3 | 30 June 2016

\GLOBAL.ARUP.COM\EUROPE\LEEDS\JOBS\2400001246583-00\0 ARUP\0-10 STRUCTURAL\0-10-08 REPORTS\STAGE 3 REPORT\2016-06-30 YORK GUILDHALL STAGE 3 REPORT.DOCX

York Guildhall
Draft Stage 3 Report

e Refurbishment and structural alterations of the South Range.

e Refurbishment proposals for the Tower portion of the North Annexe.

e Refurbishment proposals of the Guildhall and Municipal Offices.

e New build and fagade retention proposals for the North Annexe Building.

e Indicative piling and underpinning solutions for the proposed and existing buildings.

e Structural monitoring has been installed in the locations of known structural
movement to inform remedial solutions moving forward.

Key Structural items that are to be addressed in the next design stage are:

e Buildability concerns with the North Annexe site. A meeting with specialist
Contractors is being arranged to discuss buildability concerns and allow informed
progression into the Stage 4 technical design stage.

e The detailed interaction between the existing and new structures.
e Review of movement monitoring results.

e Issues with building adjacent to neighbouring party walls.

¢ Underpinning solutions.

e Confirmation of existing structural elements through intrusive investigations.

Page 1

ANNEX 1a




RIBA Stage Three Cost Estimate

Guildhall
City of York Council

making the difference

Alex Hargreaves
Area Manager

Turner & Townsend Cost Management Limited
Low Hall

Calverley Lane

Horsforth

Leeds

LS18 4G

t: +44 (0) 113 258 4400
e: alex.hargreaves@turntown.co.uk
www.turnerandtownsend.com

5.0 T&T EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Turner & Townsend

¥ CiTY oOF

YORK

COUNCIL

ANNEX 1a

0¢T abed



ANNEX 1a

City of York Council
Guildhall

Section 1 - Executive Summary

Current Stage 3

Cost Summary Original Budget Movement Comments

Draft Estimate
Increased floor area of 80m2 and a 75% increase in the amount of new build area resulting in an

Construction £6,708,705 £5,240,043 £1,468,662 . )

increase of 528m2 new build
S o . :

Main Contractor Preliminaries £1,267,132 £743,558 £523,574 Preliminaries included at 13% of the construction costs (as per the budget) with E.O. allowances
for pontoon access

Main Contractor Overheads & Profit £319,033 £158,402 £160,631 Overhead & Profit allowance included at 4% of the construction & preliminaries an increase from
2.5% allowed at budget stage

Project / Design Team Fees £1,489,450 £1,489,450 £0 Values as detailed in the City of York Council budget summary / capital financing document

Other Development / Project Costs £0 £300,000 (£300,000) Zgrzztmc;fnttr;e facility shall be undertaken by the operator / service providor in line with their lease

o : T . : . .

Risk / Contingency Allowance £1,467,648 £984,450 £483,198 15 Yo contnjgency sum applied - increase is representative of the percentage being applied to a

higher project value
. Inflation has been included in the current estimate at 7.3% to forecast costs at current date

Inflation £685,604 £934,318 (£248,714) (2Q16) to the assumed mid point of construction (1Q18)

VAT Assessment Excluded Excluded Excluded VAT is excluded

TOTAL £11,937,571 £9,850,221 £2,087,350

The table above highlights the current estimated costs of the draft RIBA Stage 3 design proposals and provides a comparison between the current estimated
project cost against the initial Construction & Capital Financing Budget.

Construction: Significant increase in costs as a result of an increase development (some 80m2 larger) and the increase in new build elements of the project which, with the
exception of the South Range refurbishment are more costly to build. In addition, significant underpinning and renewal of existing floor slabs have been
identified in order to stabilise the existing structures (in particular the Tower and South Range). Costs include for River Water Source Heat Pumps as a
sustainable energy source to all areas, the original budget estimate excluded the Café and Restaurant provision.

Preliminaries: An allowance of 13% has been applied to the construction costs (as per the original budget estimates). In addition, extra over allowances have been included
for mobile and jack-up pontoons to facilitate site access for large materials deliveries and plant such as cranes and piling rigs.

Overhead & Profit: The markets recovery has increased significantly since the end of 2014 and with it has seen contractors OH&P margins increase from the low and unsustainable
levels of sub 3% experienced into the recession to levels of 4% and above. An allowance of 4% has been included within the current estimates (an increase of 1.5%
from budget) and is reflective of the level of OH&P we would expect to see for the size of contractors bidding for this project.

Risk & Contingency: Given the current unknowns surrounding the structures, their condition and deteriorating state, site access challenges and potential need for specialist equipment
/ machinery this will bring, coupled with a rising and opportunistic market place the risk and contingency allowance is retained at 15% as per the budget. The increase
is in relation to this percentage being applied to a larger project value.

Inflation: Whilst construction cost inflation suggests a overall reduction, the reader is reminded that the current estimate is priced at 2Q16 whereas the budget estimate was priced at
4Q14 and as such, the rates and prices included within the construction elements account for an increase of 7.3% before forecasting to the assumed mid point of
construction. By way of comparison, if the current estimate was to be back dated to 4Q2014 as a direct comparison with the budget estimate, the current construction cost
would fall by approximately 6.81% or £668,000 and therefore represent an increase of £440,000 of inflationary costs to the original budget.

Other: Design team fees have been retained in line with the original budget costs as these values are outside the control of the design team. Other development costs (Fit Out)
has been excluded as the current business plan assumes fit out of the spaces shall be undertaken by the operator / service provider in line with their lease agreements.

Turner & Townsend 3




BURRELL |FOLEY |FISCHER

ARCHITECTS AND URBAN DESIGNERS

i Turer s Townsend
ARUP

sgacensulting.co.u

I SGA Consulting

ANNEX 1a

2sT abed



| ANNEX 1c
N
/" /r
[ ]
" }
§
N
/" »’
|
[
il
[ }
Ml
LL\:\[‘ T
T T
T F— -
r “ Lm0
| 5 |
“ .
| | |
: \
| |
| | |
s |
| ;
| \
| .
| ‘ |
- |
— | ‘
r— i~ |
| |
f { \
|
| : |
|
| : |
|
L \‘
T ; |
_ | |
\ v . .
‘ — \
|
| | |
| |
. | |
\‘ ; !
; | \
, | ‘ |
/’/ ‘ ; |
o ; \ ‘
/7/ | .
/‘/ \ ' [
,// ; ‘ “
— | | |
- | |
— | |
s | | |
A\ | | \
‘\ | \‘
| | 1 |
\ i\ | \
\ | | |
\ | — \
\ | | k
‘\ \ “ \
A\ \‘
! {
\ k
\ |
\\ “
\ L
. \
‘\ |
‘\ |
|
\ - |
\ |
\‘ .
o |
\ |H
7 \ AYa /
o
A‘\‘ B
\ /7/7/7/
S
3\‘
0 5 10m
KEY
RESTAURANT / CAFE SKYPE BOOTH BASEMENT BREA
BURRELL FOLEY FISCHER YORK GUILDHALL COMPLEX s e ot
OFFICE PLANT / STORAGE CYCLES / REFUSE
RIBA STAGE 3 DESIGN: BASEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE ROOM CIRCULATION COUNCIL DRWG NO:  SK 70.PI

GUILDHALL ANCILLARY PUBLIC REALM SCALE: 1:125 @ Al

Copyright ©

ceT abed



POST
OFFICE

JAMIES

THE
GARDUATE
YARD

JAMIES
YARD

COMMON
HALL YARD

RESTAURANT \ \
‘\ \  SECONDARY
t\ ‘\ ENTRANCE

0

HALL

CO-WORKING J 4
OFFICE /

i O N -\\T'ﬂ'g

1

LOBBY

© GUILDHALL

/ ANNEX 1c

C
|

GLAZING

RECEPTION

ABOVE

EVENTS

REV'S
YARD
FURNITURE
STORE
— | |
|
|
COPIER AREA |
\‘ ]
-

COMMITEE
ROOM |

BUSINESS
LOUNGE

BOAT YARD
BUILDINGS

RIVERSIDE
GARDEN

BURRELL FOLEY FISCHER YORK GUILDHALL COMPLEX

RIBA STAGE 3 DESIGN: GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Copyright

KEY

RESTAURANT / CAFE
OFFICE

COMMITTEE ROOM
GUILDHALL

SKYPE BOOTH
PLANT / STORAGE
CIRCULATION
ANCILLARY

0 5 10m

BASEMENT BREAKOUT

CYCLES / REFUSE
COUNCIL DRWG NO: SK 71.PI

DATE: 09.06.16

PUBLIC REALM SCALE: 1:125 @ Al

y£T abed




ANNEX 1c

CO-WORKING
OFFICE

RESTAURANT

GET abed

;
E o

o W I

O — \ f
o 00—

\@ o

) = & 1

'y /
= \
2

BUSINESS

MEETING
LOUNGE

ROOM
ROOF

RAISED
TERRACE

PLANTER

- \
= — j »
— ’ |
— L Yo (O Yo '—>I< D = ¢ |
g = )

——

%/ o O

y &
0 S 10m
KEY
RESTAURANT / CAFE SKYPE BOOTH BASEMENT BREAKOUT
BURRELL FOLEY FISCHER YORK GUILDHALL COMPLEX i e e v e DATE: 09.06.16
RIBA STAGE 3 DESIGN: FIRST FLOOR PLAN COMMITTEEROOM  CIRCULATION counciL DRWGNO: K 72P!

GUILDHALL ANCILLARY PUBLIC REALM SCALE: 1:125 @ Al

Copyright



ANNEX 1c \

—-——————\______
i ‘

CO-WORKING
OFFICE

o CO-WORKING
\ OFFICE — ]
= —
= =
N S—— |
|
I
|

OFFICE

C

@)

1® WO N "¢ CO-WORKING |

OFFICE
CO-WORKING
OFFICE /|

.
S “
—

o —
— B
_— L —
- o —

I

LOBBY | \
C O
.
y
OFFICE /
‘\‘
\
‘ =]
\
0 5 10m
KEY
RESTAURANT / CAFE SKYPE BOOTH BASEMENT BREAKOUT
DATE: 09.06.16

B U R R E LL Fo L EY FI SCH E R YORK GUILDHALL COMPLEX OFFICE PLANT / STORAGE CYCLES / REFUSE
COMMITTEE ROOM CIRCULATION COUNCIL DRWG NO:  SK73.PI

RIBA STAGE 3 DESIGN: SECOND FLOOR PLAN
GUILDHALL ANCILLARY PUBLIC REALM SCALE: 1:125 @ Al

Copyright ©



ANNEX 1c

I
5 = B == : — | i
/\ ! ] M I
/ —>
e >l
: ) - S e; Z N 4 =N 1 I — = — — b
G | ‘f; l D.;E[ nl;”]:[ ":;_ :u ?5- i X = f s SR
i |
11 DD U_‘D
) H ______ 105 = - |
1T ) ) i - ﬁvr "
| il —) |
| T — —
I e N
\\- [
—{__-——-—_ | E —
KEY
Scale Bar
1 'Petersen' brick wall 7 Cantilevered glass balustrade along edge of restaurant terrace
with bronze top rail and low-iron glass o 051 152 25m

2 Bronze coloured copper roofing and guttering 8) Ralsed plsritsrfor fiowers and ehrubs

5 Gold coloured copper splayed reveal to feature window » c : :
9 2 additional courses of magnesium limestone to river wall
4 Double height feature window with concealed framing to corner — o _ _ )
'‘pop-up' with bronze coloured transome & mullion & incorporating pass 'O Existing window top section to be removed and stored - location of
door to small terrace with low iron framess glass balustrade with RWSHP opening sealed around pipework with bronze blanking plate

bronze top rail "
P ' New yorkstone steps down from existing escape door out of

New full height bronze framed window with bronze fins and glazed boat yard building

opening lights with frameless glass balustrade interally 13 New biovss Fandrail abots iwai

¢ Bronze framed sliding glass screen to restaurant

BURRELL ‘ FOLEY ‘ FISCH ER YORK GUILDHALL COMPLEX DATE: 09.06.16

ARCHITECTS AND URBAN DESIGNERS RIBA STAGE 3 DESIGN: RIVER ELEVATION DRWG NO: 5K 80

SCALE: 1:100 @ Al

/€T abed



KEY

1 'Petersen' brick wall
2 Bronze coloured copper roofing and guttering
% Raised planter for flowers and shrubs

4 New bronze framed oriel window to tower - openable solid bronze
panels with internal frameless glass balustrade

5 Full height bronze framed window set back in deep splayed brick reveal

¢ Full height bronze framed window

BURRELL FOLEY FISCHER

ARCHITECTS AND URBAN DESIGNERS

|

]

10

Cantilevered glass balustrade along edge of restaurant terrace with
bronze top rail and low-iron glass

New bronze handrail above wall

Existing window opening cut down and widened to provide accessable
route to riverfront garden - new skin of Petersen brick surround to

opening

Brick 'chimney' with bronze coloured louvres

New yorkstone steps

]

YORK GUILDHALL COMPLEX
RIBA STAGE 3 DESIGN: RIVER SECTION

AR
" i P .:.:v;' ‘-‘:'_ .
*'_".‘:/"‘&"“'r- o ﬂ:h -
16 o T
y, o~ qj‘v,&
- i
e S b
LIy AT
£
.
i~
.“,:g.
| ;

ANNEX 1c

Scale Bar

0 05 1 5 2 25m

09.06.16

DRWG NO: SK 90

1:100 @ Al

g¢T abed



Page 139 ANNEX 2i

I”I CUSHMAN &
(/M WAKEFIELD

Report and Valuation
as at 28 June 2016

For

City of York Council

The Guildhall Complex, Lendal, York !




Page 140

ANNEX 2i

City of York Council
The Guildhall Complex, Lendal, York

Contents

1. Introduction 3
2. Inspection 4
3. Compliance with RICS Valuation - Professional Standards 2014 4
4. Status of valuer and conflicts of interest 4
5. Purpose of the valuation 4
6. Basis of valuation 4
6.1. Market Rent 4
7. VAT 5
8. Assumptions and sources of information 5
8.1. Title 5
8.2 Condition of structure and services, deleterious materials, plant and machinery and goodwill 5
8.3. Environmental matters 6
8.4. Areas 7
8.5, Statutory requirements and planning 7
8.6. Information 8
9. Valuation 8
10. Confidentiality and disclosure 8

Appendices

Appendix A: Property Summary Report
Appendix B: Proposed Floor Layout Plans

28 June 2016

Valuation Report Page 2



Page 141 ANNEX 2i

City of York Council
The Guildhall Complex, Lendal, York

PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL
FAQ David Warburton

City of York Council

West Offices

Station Rise

York

YO16GA

Dear Sirs

The Guildhall Complex, Lendal, York (“the Property™)

1. Introduction

In accordance with your instructions, which were confirmed in our letter dated 10 June 2016, we have
inspected the above property owned by the City of York Council (the "Council®) in order to advise you of
our opinion of the Market Rent of the premises with the special assumption that the propesed renovation
and refurbishment works are successfully complete.

The Property comprises a series of historic, adjoining and inter-linking buildings - the oldest part of which
is understood to have been constructed in 1445 (The Guildhall itself). Certain elements of the premises
are Grade | listed — whilst others are Grade II* and Grade |l listed. The listings relate to the age and
historical importance of the buildings in the context of York as a city.

The modern history of the premises has been the occupation of the City of York Council for offices — with
this use ceasing in 2013. The buildings are now predominantly vacant — although the Chamber element
is still utilised on six occasions per year for full Council meetings. The main Guildhall building is hired for
events during the calendar year, i.e. arts exhibitions etc. The remainder of the accommodation typically
now comprises redundant office accommodation in need of refurbishment prior to being usable once
again,

Valuation Report Page 3



6.1.

Page 142 .
ANNEX 2i

City of York Council
The Guildhall Complex, Lendal. York

Inspection

The property was inspected by James Milner MRICS on 14 June 2016. We were able to inspect the
majority of the property with no issues.

Compliance with RICS Valuation - Professional Standards
2014

We confirm that the valuation has been prepared in accordance with the appropriate sections of the RICS
Professional Standards ("PS"), RICS Global Valuation Practice Statements ("VPS"), RICS Global
Valuation Practice Guidance ~ Applications ("VPGAs") and United Kingdom Valuation Standards
("UKVS") contained within the RICS Valuation - Professional Standards 2014, (the "Red Book"). It
follows that the valuation is compliant with International Valuation Standards.

Status of valuer and conflicts of interest

We confirm that we have sufficient current knowledge of the relevant markets, and the skills and
understanding to undertake the valuation competently. We also confirm that where more than one valuer
has contributed to the valuation the requirements of PS 2.3.7 of the Red Book have been satisfied. We
confirm that James Milner has overall responsibility for the valuation. Finally, we confirm that we have
undertaken the valuation acting as External Valuers, qualified for the purpose of the valuation.

We confirm that we have no current, anticipated or previous recent involvement with the subject property.

Purpose of the valuation

We understand that the valuation is required for internal purposes only.

Basis of valuation

Our opinion of the Market Rent of the property has been primarily derived using comparable recent
market transactions on arm's length terms.

Market Rent

Market Rent as defined in VPS 4.1.3 of the Red Book. Under VPS 4.1.3.1 the term "Market Rent" means
"The estimated amount for which an interest in real property should be leased on the valuation date
between a willing lessor and a willing lessee on appropriate lease terms in an am's length transaction,
after proper marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without
compulsion”.

Valuation Report Page 4



8.1.

8.2.

Page 143 ANNEX 2i

City of York Council
The Guildhall Complex, Lendal, York

VAT

We have been advised that the Council would exercise its option to tax following completion of the
proposed renovation and refurbishment works. Rentals achieved would therefore be subject to VAT.

The rental assessment within this Valuation Report is net of value added tax at the prevailing rate.

Assumptions and sources of information

An Assumption is stated in the Glossary to the Red Book to be a "supposition taken to be true"
("Assumption”). In this context, Assumptions are facts, conditions or situations affecting the subject of, or
approach to, a valuation that, by agreement, need not be verified by a valuer as part of the valuation
process. In undertaking our valuation, we have made a number of Assumptions and have relied on
certain sources of information. Where appropriate, the Council has confirmed that our Assumptions are
correct so far as they are aware. In the event that any of these Assumptions prove to be incorrect then
our valuations should be reviewed,

The Assumptions we have made for the purposes of our valuation are referred to below:-

Title

We have not had access to the title deeds of the property. We have made an Assumption that the
Council is possessed of good and marketable freehold title and that the property is free from rights of way
or easements, restrictive covenants, disputes or onerous or unusual outgoings. We have also assumed
that the property is free from mortgages, charges or other encumbrances.

Condition of structure and services, deleterious materials, plant and machinery
and goodwill

Due regard has been paid to the apparent state of repair and condition of the property, but a condition
survey has not been undertaken, nor have woodwork or other parts of the structure which are covered,
unexposed or inaccessible, been inspected. Therefare, we are unable to report that the property is
structurally sound or is free from any defects. We have made an Assumption that the property is free from
any rot, infestation, adverse toxic chemical treatments, and structural or design defects other than such
as may have been mentioned in the body of our Valuation Report/and the appendices.

We have not arranged for investigations to be made to determine whether high alumina cement concrete,
calcium chloride additive or any other deleterious materials have been used in the construction or any
alterations, and therefore we cannot confirm that the property is free from risk in this regard. For the
purposes of this valuation, we have made an Assumption that any such investigation would not reveal the
presence of such materials in any adverse condition.

We have not carried out an asbestos inspection and have not acted as an asbestos inspector in
completing the valuation inspection of properties that may fall within the Control of the Asbestos at Work
Regulations 2002. We have not made an enquiry of the duty holder (as defined in the Control of
Asbestos of Work Regulations 2002), of the existence of an Asbestos Register or of any plan for the
management of asbestos to be made. Where relevant, we have made an Assumption that there is a duty
holder, as defined in the Control of Asbestos of Work Regulations 2002 and that a Register of Asbestos
and Effective Management Plan is in place, which does not require any immediate expenditure, or pose a
significant risk to health, or breach the HSE regulations. We advise that such enquiries be undertaken by
a lawyer during normal pre-contract enquiries.

Valuation Report Page 5



8.3.

Page 144 .
ANNEX 2i

City of York Council
The Guildhall Complex, Lendal, York

No mining, geological or other investigations have been undertaken to certify that the site is free from any
defect as to foundations. We have made an Assumption that the load bearing qualities of the site of the
property are sufficient to support the buildings constructed thereon. We have also made an Assumption
that there are no services on, or crossing the site in a position which would inhibit development or make it
unduly expensive and that there are no abnormal ground conditions, nor archaeological remains present,
which might adversely affect the present or future occupation, development or value of the property.

No tests have been carried out as to electrical, electronic, heating, plant and machinery, equipment or
any other services nor have the drains been tested. However, we have made an Assumption that all
services, including gas, water, electricity and sewerage, are provided and are functioning satisfactorily.

No allowance has been made in this valuation for any items of plant or machinery not forming part of the
service installations of the building. We have specifically excluded all items of plant, machinery and
equipment installed wholly or primarily in connection with the occupants' businesses. We have also
excluded furniture and fumishings, fixtures, fittings, vehicles, stock and loose tools.

Further, no account has been taken in our valuation of any business goodwill that may arise from the
present occupation of the property.

Itis a condition of DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited or any related company, or any qualified employee,
providing advice and opinions as to value, that the client and/or third parties (whether notified to us or not)
accept that the Valuation Report in no way relates to, or gives warranties as fo, the condition of the
structure, foundations, soil and services.

Environmental matters

We have made enquiries in order, so far as reasonably possible, to establish the risk of flooding at the
property and the potential existence of contamination arising out of previous or present uses of the site
and any adjoining sites.

Our enquiries and inspection have provided no evidence that there is a significant risk of contamination in
respect of the property. Accordingly, you have instructed us to make an Assumption that no
contamination or other adverse environmental matters exist in relation to the property sufficient to affect
value. Other than as referred to above, we have not made any investigations into past or present uses,
either of the property or any neighbouring land to establish whether there is any contamination or
potential for contamination to the subject property.

Commensurate with our Assumptions set out above we have made no allowance in this valuation for any
effect in respect of actual or potential contamination of land or buildings. A purchaser in the market would,
in practice, undertake further investigations than those undertaken by us. If itis subsequently established
that contamination exists at the property or on any neighbouring land or that the premises have been, or
are being. put to any contaminative use then this might reduce the value now reported.

Flooding

We have made enquiries of the Environment Agency website and are advised that the subject property
falls within Flood Zone 3 due to the close proximity of the River Ouse. This is categorised as being an
annual chance of flooding equivalent to 1 in 100 or greater,

Valuation Report Page 6



8.4.

8.5.

Page 145 ANNEX 2i

City of York Council
The Guildhall Complex, Lendal, York

Itis well known that the basement level of the Guildhall floods fairly frequently — most recently during the
2015 Boxing Day flooding. The ground floor level of the premises has, to the best of our knowledge, not
suffered from flooding in recent times.

We have made the Assumption that building insurance is in place regarding flooding and available to be
renewed to the current or any subsequent owner of the property, without payment of an excessive
premium or excess.

Areas

Unless specified otherwise, floor areas and analysis in this report are based on the following bases of
measurement, as defined in RICS Property Measurement:

Office Net Internal Area
The areas have been obtained via the architect floor layout plans you have provided.

Effective 1 January 2016, RICS Property Measurement requires office buildings to be measured in
accordance with IPMS: Office Buildings. However, as IPMS is yet to be adopted as market practice, we
have reported office floor areas and rental analysis on a Net Internal Basis only as agreed as part of our
instruction.,

Statutory requirements and planning

Enquiries have been made of the relevant planning authority in whose area the property lies as to the
possibility of highway proposals, comprehensive development schemes and other ancillary planning
matters that could affect property values. We have not however undertaken a formal search of local
authority records which would attract a cost. The results of our enquiries have been included within our
Valuation Report where relevant.

We have made an Assumption that the building benefits from valid town planning and building regulations
approvals, that where necessary it has the benefit of a current Fire Risk Assessment compliant with the
requirements of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. Similarly, we have also made an
Assumption that the property is not subject to any outstanding statutory notices as to its construction, use
or occupation. Unless our enquiries have revealed the contrary, we have made a further Assumption that
the existing use of the property is duly authorised or established and that no adverse planning condition
or restriction applies.

No allowance has been made for rights, obligations or liabilities arising under the Defective Premises Act
1972, and we have made an Assumption that the property complies with all relevant statutory
requirements.

In England and Wales, the Government has implemented the Energy Performance of Buildings Directive
requiring Energy Performance Certificates ("EPC") to be made available for all properties, when bought or
sold, subject to certain exemptions. If the subject property is not exempt from the requirements of this
Directive, we have made an Assumption that an EPC is made available, free of charge, to a purchaser of
the interest which is the subject of our valuation.

In addition, the Energy Act 2011 includes a provision whereby from April 2018 it will be unlawful to rent

out a premises with an EPC rating which, according to Government proposals issued in February 2015,
falls below an E rating. Unless our enquiries have revealed to the contrary if the property is not exempt

Valuation Report Page 7



8.6.

10.

Page 146 .
ANNEX 2i

City of York Council
The Guildhall Complex, Lendal. York

from these requirements, we have made an Assumption that the property meets the minimum
requirements to enable it to be let after April 2018.

We would draw your attention to the fact that employees of town planning departments now always give
information on the basis that it should not be relied upon and that formal searches should be made if
more certain information is required. We assume that, if you should need to rely upon the information
given about town planning matters, your solicitors would be instructed to institute such formal searches.

Information

We have made an Assumption that the information the Council and its professional adviser(s) have
supplied to us in respect of the property is both full and correct.

it follows that we have made an Assumption that details of all matters likely to affect value within
your/their collective knowledge such as prospective lettings, rent reviews, outstanding requirements
under legislation and planning decisions have been made available to us and that the information is up to
date.

Valuation

We are of the opinion that the Market Rent of the property when assuming the proposed renovation /
refurbishment works are successfully complete subject to the Assumptions, Special Assumptions and
comments in this Valuation Report and in the appendices is as follows:-

£215,000 per annum (Two Hundred and Fifteen Thousand pounds)

Following the Referendum held on 23 June 2016 concemning the UK's membership of the EU, a decision
was taken to exit. We are now in a period of uncertainty in relation to many factors that impact the
property investment and letting markets,

Since the Referendum date it has not been possible to gauge the effect of this decision by reference to
transactions in the market place.

The probability of our opinion of rental value exactly coinciding with the rental achieved, were there to be
a series of lettings, has reduced. We would, therefore, recommend that the rental assessment is kept
under reqular review and that specific market advice is obtained should you wish to seek a series of
lettings at the premises.

Confidentiality and disclosure

The contents of this Valuation Report and appendices are confidential to the City of York Council for the
specific purpose to which they refer and are for their use only. Consequently. and in accordance with
current practice, no responsibility is accepted to any other party in respect of the whole or any part of their
contents. Before this Valuation Report, or any part thereof, is reproduced or referred to, in any document,
circular or statement, and before its contents, or any part thereof, are disclosed orally or otherwise to a
third party, the valuer's written approval as to the form and context of such publication or disclosure must
first be obtained.

Such publication or disclosure will not be permitted unless, where relevant, it incorporates adequate
reference to the Special Assumptions and/or Departures from the RICS Valuation ~ Professional

Valuation Report Page 8



Page 147 ANNEX 2i

City of York Council
The Guildhall Complex, Lendal, York

Standards 2014 referred to herein. For the avoidance of doubt, such approval is required whether or not
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited is referred to by name and whether or not the contents of our
Valuation Report are combined with others.

Yours faithfully

James Milner MRICS

Director

RICS Registered Valuer

L et

Mobile: \
R R B o

As of 1 September 2015, DTZ and C&W have combined under a new common brand. Notwithstanding
our new branding, our underlying legal entities have not changed, including their names.

Valuation Report Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Ref

Basement
1.V.05
Ground Floor
G.A.02
G.A.03
G.vV.04
GHO04 - Com Rm1l
G.V.06
G.vV.07
G.V.08
G.V.09
G.V.10
G.V.12
First Floor
1.LA.02
1.vV.03
[.LA.04
1.V.06
1.vV.07
1.V.08
I.N.08

Guildhall Business Club and Serviced Office / Desk rental model

operational model at year 3 of operation

Area m2 rental ft2 Desk nos. Serviced Office Desk rental
£34/ft2 £249/mnth

Co-working benches 42 452.34 8

Business Lounge 55 592.35 10

Office 35 376.95 5 £12,816.30

Co-working benches 22 236.94 4

Mtg 45 484.65 0

Office 35 376.95 5 £12,816.30

Office 35 376.95 5 £12,816.30

Office 34 366.18 5 £12,450.12

Office 50 538.5 7 £18,309.00

Office 31 333.87 4 £11,351.58

Business Lounge 58 624.66 10

Meeting Room 11 118.47 0

Meeting Room 36 387.72 0

Meeting Room 33 355.41 5

Meeting Room 20 215.4 0

Co-Working desks 129 1389.33 22

€8T oabed



Second Floor

2.V.03 Office 83 893.91 12 £30,392.94
2.V.06 Office 104 1120.08 15 £38,082.72
2.N.08 Co-Working desks 160 1723.2 27
2.N.09 Deskrental 121 130317 17  £50,79600
TOTALS 1337 14399 190 £149,035.26 £137,448.00
Assumptions 88% occupancy £131,151.03 £120,954.24
100 members @ £99/month club membership basic £118,800.00
100 members @ £199/month club membership plus £238,800.00
serviced office rental @ £34/ft2 Office rental 88% occ £131,151.03
desk rental @ £249/month ~ Deskrental 88% occ £120,954.24
additional office services office services £25,000.00
GH hire 50% @£600/ day GH hire £102,000
Mtg Rm hire 1hr / room / day mtg room hire £26,000
CC hire @ 6x£250 / mnth council chamber £18,000
TOTAL £780,705.27
less COSTS £555,800.00
Margin £224,905.27
Cafe lease as valuation cafe @ £15/ft2 £25,000.00

Income potential £249,905.27

8T abed



Page 185

Guildhall complex business club operating costs

|C0re Costs |

Staffing £150,000.00
Business Rates £86,400.00
utilities - Gas / Elec / Water £90,000.00
Telecoms / fibre rental £24,000.00
Buildings Insurance £12,000.00
Security £15,000.00
Refuse & Feminine Waste collection £4,500.00
Consumables (inc Light Bulbs) £3,000.00
Maintenance Costs

Door Entry / Intercom / CCTV Maintenance £3,000.00
Fire Alarm & Emergency Lighting £3,000.00
Fire Extinguisher Service £1,500.00
Lift Maintenance / Annual Inspection £1,800.00
Window Cleaning £6,000.00
Communal Cleaning £75,000.00
Grounds Maintenance £2,400.00
General Maintenance £7,200.00
Internal Decoration £3,000.00
Contingency £9,000.00
Administration Costs

Management Fees £2,400.00
Audit & Accountancy Fees £2,400.00
Banking £1,200.00
Health & Safety and Risk Assessment £1,500.00
Reserves

General/Repairs Sinking Fund £50,000.00
Lift Sinking Fund £1,500.00

Total £555,800.00



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 187 Agenda Item 9

v,

Executive 14 July 2016

Report of the Director of Adult Social Care from the portfolio of the
Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Demonstrating Progress on the Older Persons’ Accommodation
Programme

This report provides an update on the Older Persons’ Accommodation
Programme (the Programme), demonstrates the changing supply and
demand for older persons’ accommodation with care up to 2020 and seeks
consent to:

e Move forward with plans for the re-development of the Lowfield school
site, beginning with public engagement regarding use and design.

e Open negotiations to purchase land adjacent to Haxby Hall in order to
facilitate the examination of options for its future.

e Consult on the closure of a further Older Persons’ Home in the autumn of
2016 and another one in the first half of 2017, in accordance with the
Moving Homes Safely Protocol.

Recommendations
1. Members will be asked to:

a. Note the progress made towards delivering the Older Persons’
Accommodation Programme agreed by Executive in July 2015 and
the changing supply and demand for older persons’ accommodation
with care up to 2020.

Lowfield

b. Agree to move forward with the redevelopment of the Lowfield School
site in order to deliver:

I. approximately 3 acres for the potential development of health
and wellbeing facilities, including a care home;

ii. approximately 9 acres for housing, including “starter homes”
and homes for the over 60s;



h.

Page 188

lii. approximately 1 acre as play and open space; and

Iv. a capital receipt of at least £3.8 million from sale of land on the
site.

To authorise the examination of the opportunity to create football
facilities on land off Tadcaster Road.

. Receive a further report in the autumn providing feedback on the

public engagement and proposals for the future of the Lowfield site.

Reason: So that the consideration of the redevelopment of Lowfield
can progress.

Haxby Hall

Authorise the Director of Customer and Business Support Services to
commence negotiations for and agree the purchase of land adjacent
to Haxby Hall, in order to facilitate the examination of options for the
future of Haxby Hall Older Persons’ Home as part of the Older
Persons’ Accommodation Programme.

Recommend to Council that provision of up to £600,000 is made
within the Capital Programme to meet the acquisition and legal costs
as well as to fund demolition, enabling and related works, drawing
upon capital held for the use of the Older Persons’ Accommodation
Programme.

Reason: To allow the development of options for the future of Haxby
Hall as part of the Older Persons’ Accommodation Programme.

. Receive a further report in the autumn on the examination of options

for the long term future of Haxby Hall, including seeking a partner to
operate and redevelop as an alternative to consultation on closure.

Reason: So that the Executive can decide the best future for Haxby
Hall.

Consultation on closure

Agree that, this autumn, a six week period of consultation is
undertaken with the residents, family, carers and staff of one of the
Council’'s Older Persons’ Homes to explore the option to close the
home with current residents moving to alternative accommodation
and that a further report on the outcome of this consultation be
received at the Executive before a final decision to close is made and



Page 189

that this process is repeated in the first half of 2017 in respect of a
further Council run Older Persons’ Home.

Reason: So that the Executive may decide which homes may close
having been fully informed of the views of and options available to
existing residents.

Further reports

I. Receive regular written updates of the progress of the Older Persons’
Accommodation Programme.

Reason: So that the Executive can be assured that the Programme is
progressing according to plan and will be delivered.

Background

Executive in July 2015 agreed a programme of activity which will
transform the provision of older persons’ accommodation with care.
Progress in delivering the Programme has been the subject of regular
reports to Executive, Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee and
Audit & Governance Committee. Good progress has been made,
including:

a. provision of 24/7 care at Auden House and Glen Lodge Extra Care
Schemes;

b. planning consent and Homes & Communities Agency funding secured
for the 27 home extension to the Glen Lodge Extra Care facility with
construction beginning imminently;

c. planning consent secured for a new 90 bed care home at the Terry’s
chocolate works with construction work now underway;

d. the safe closure of Grove House and Oakhaven Older Persons’
Homes: and

e. Executive approval for the redevelopment of the Burnholme school
site to deliver a Health & Wellbeing campus on that site.

As the Programme has progressed, and as we continue to drive to
support people to living independently in their own home as an
alternative to nursing and residential care, we have seen a slow but
steady reduction in the number of older people who are supported by the
Council to live in permanent residential and nursing care, as the graph
below shows.



Page 190

Graph 1: Numbers of people in permanent residential and nursing care

funded by the Council, both CYC provision and independent sector

Numbers of people in permanent residential and nursing care funded by the

council, both CYC provision and independent sector.

700

680 \\/—'\/\
660

\‘\./\

620 <
600
580
Apr- |May- | Jun- | Jul- | Aug- Sep- | Oct- Nov-| Dec- lJan-  Feb- | Mar- Apr- May-
15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 16 16 16 16 16
—e— Numbers of people in permanent
residential and nursing care funded by
. .. 684 | 669 677 | 679 | 675 | 679 | 658 647 | 642 | 650 633 | 632 | 626 | 618
the council, both CYC provision and
independent sector.

The changes in the number of residential care beds over the same
period and including the closure of Grove House and Oakhaven, does
not appear to have had a detrimental effect upon the number of people
awaiting discharge from hospital, as the graph below shows:

Graph 2: Numbers in acute hospital beds occupied by someone

“awaiting discharge”

Numbers in acute hospital beds occupied by someone “awaiting

discharge”. (as per snapshot count)

30
25 A
20 /_/A\ /A'\/ \
s . \ / V/\.\$
) v
5
0
Apr-|May |Jun- | Jul- |Aug-|Sep- Oct- |Nov- Dec-|Jan-|Feb- Mar-| Apr- May
15 |-15}15 |15 15|15 15|15 15 16 |16 16 | 16 -16
== Numbers in acute hospital beds
occupied by someone “awaiting 15 |16 | 17 |17 |21 | 6 |20 18 |25 |12 18 |16 15
discharge”. (as per snapshot count)




Page 191

Finally, we see from the trend in use of domiciliary care over the same
time period that more activity is recorded, suggesting that those with
higher care needs are being helped to continue to live independently at
home, as graph 3 shows:

Graph 3: Net change in domiciliary care hours

Net change in domiciliary care hours

8000
6000 -

5000

4000

3000

2000

1000

0

Apr- [May-| Jun- | Jul- Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov- Dec-| Jan- Feb- Mar-|Apr- |May-
15 15 | 15 | 15 15 15 | 15 15 15 16 16 16 | 16 16

‘—Q—Net change in domiciliary care hours |5663 5285|5423|5878|6486 6704 6522 65126716 6608 6759|6884 6674|7114

However, as the size of the older persons’ population continues to grow
and with an increasingly wealthy older population (particularly property
wealth) who are willing and able to make their own choices, the need for
more provision of both residential and Extra Care accommodation is
evident.

There is a shortage in York of suitable accommodation with care for
older people, as the table below illustrates. This is caused by historic
under-investment and expected growth in the size of the over-75
population of the city (the 75+ population is expected to increase by 50%
over the next fifteen years, from 17,200 to 25,800). 81% of York’'s 75+
population own their own home.

Table 1: Projection of Demand and Supply of Accommodation with Care

Demand & Supply projections 2014-18 | 2020 2030
Estimated Residential Care | 1,936 2,156 2,828
Demand based on [ 440 care 440 490 645
national

benchmarks

Current provision | Residential Care | 1,385
Extra Care 270




8.

10.

Page 192

Demand & Supply projections 2014-18 | 2020 2030
Shortfall in Residential Care | -30 -124 -595
provision (at 70% run-rate)

Extra Care -170 -220 -375
Replace Council-run permanent -171
care beds (plus 28 temporary beds)
Total Shortfall -371

The Programme, as currently set, seeks to deliver the following

outcomes in the period 2016 to 2018:

Table 2: New provision under the Programme

New Provision When | Total
Extra Care

Glen Lodge Extra Care Extension Q3-17 | 27
New Extra Care Scheme in Acomb Q3-18 |40
Red Lodge Extra Care — net new Q1-18 |75
Total new Extra Care units of accommodation 142
Residential Care

Chocolate Works Care Home Q1-17 |90
Red Lodge Care Home — net new Q3-17 | 16
Burnholme Care Home Q4-18 |80
Total new residential care beds 186
Making best use of existing Sheltfered_Housing with Extra 50
Care accommodation for those with high care needs

Total new provision 378

These efforts will facilitate the closure of the five remaining Council run
Older Persons’ Homes, subject to consultation, reducing residential care
provision in the city by 143 permanent and 28 temporary beds. Itis
recognised that the buildings that these homes operate in are no longer

fit for purpose.

In total 378 new units of accommodation are expected to be achieved in
the next three years, closing the gap identified in Table 1 and replacing

existing Council-run care beds.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 193

However, more is needed to meet the demand generated by population
growth through to 2020 and beyond, as the table below shows:

Table 3: Demand & Supply through to 2020

Demand & Supply through to 2020 2014-18
Shortfall in provision as shown in Table 1 -371
+378

New provision

And, subject to that new provision, shortfall

We therefore estimate that we need to see the provision of more
residential care and more extra care accommodation to meet projected
need and supply through to 2020 and beyond.

Key strands for the Programme are now moving forward and it is
therefore timely that we begin to plan for new provision which will come
into use in 2019 and 2020 and which will close that 2020 gap. The other
imperative is to achieve a supply of residential care beds and “assess to
discharge” beds which will help the Adult Social Care team both to keep
pace with demand and manage budget pressures.

With this in mind it is proposed that we explore the following
opportunities:

Table 4: Proposed New Provision

Proposed new provision Units Agreeto | Ready
achieved | proceed? | when?

Residential care home at Lowfield 80 Q4 2016 |Q1

(replicating provision at Burnholme) 2019

with a number of the care beds
purchased at our target bed price.
Re-development of a new residential 60 Q4 2016 | Q2
care home on the Haxby Hall site by 2019
an independent sector partner, with a
number of the care beds purchased at
our target bed price.

We continue to examine opportunities for additional Extra Care
Accommodation in the city.

There are resources available in the Programme management budget to
fund the initial works required to bring forward the Lowfield care home
and Haxby Hall proposals, including the development of design



17.

18.

19.

20.

Page 194

proposals, public engagement and relevant site investigations as well as
legal and procurement advice. However, the funding required to deliver
either or both options would need to be identified and approved as part
of the business case for each option.

Lowfield

The site of Lowfield School (closed as a result of amalgamation on 31°
August 2007) is due for redevelopment.

The total site is 13.7 acres and, assuming that some of this land will be
set aside for roads and public open space the total developable area is
estimated to be 12 acres. See attached Plan at Annex 1.

To place the proposal in context, the Council previously engaged in a
procurement exercise for a “Care Village” on the footprint of the old
school buildings (6.9 acres). This procurement was ultimately
abandoned in 2015 (along with initial plans for a care home to be built on
the Burnholme School site) for reasons of unaffordability. The key
reasons why the original proposals at Lowfield were unaffordable are:
residential care and extra care accommodation had large amounts of
communal space which could not be supported by the values achieved in
either rental or sale income for units of accommodation in this area;
access to the site was restricted to the Dijon Avenue access point; the
size of the site brought to development and therefore number of
properties on the site did not create economies in development nor
cross-subsidy.

In preparing revised plans for the Lowfield site, the Council have sought
the advice of land-use and value experts and they tell us that:

a. The site is best suited to residential development for a mix of
homes, including “starter homes”, family homes and apartments,
with the latter potentially targeted at older people who wish to
“‘downsize”.

b. The local demographics preclude the building of larger homes, i.e.
four bedrooms or more.

c. Perceptions of the Acomb property market place this site in the third
quartile of York’s property price bands, meaning that high value
homes are unlikely to be viable.

d. The Barratt development on Tedder Road (West of Lowfield) is
described as a good example of the mix, density and style of
development that could be successful on the Lowfield site.



Page 195

21. Continuous market engagement with the care home sector has seen
new interest emerge for the development of a care home on this site.
Prompted by the interest shown in the Burnholme care home
opportunity, and mindful of the Council’s “light touch” approach to the
specification and procurement of the care home, positive interest has
been expressed by several parties.

22.

Future Plans for Lowfield

The “working vision” is to see developed on the site a vibrant community

which:

a. Promotes and services health and wellbeing by providing:

a residential care home for older people, addressing an
identified need for new nursing and residential care in the west
of the city;

. accommodation for community based domiciliary care staff

who will provide care and support to residents living in age-
related housing on site and in the nearby community;

GP and community based health facilities, including the
potential for an Urgent Care Centre, replicating in the west
some of the health and wellbeing provision planned for
Burnholme in the east of the city; and

public open space which is pro-actively managed to promote
use.

b. Delivers housing for all ages including both “starter homes” through
to “homes for the over 60s”; we will seek to develop some “land
saving” bungalows modelled on those built at Regent Street. The
opportunity could be taken to allocate some land to allow “self-build”
or community build homes in line with our Housing Strategy and
Planning ambitions.

c. Integrates care services, the police service, other service delivery
and community uses into the same buildings and spaces so that
services can “join-up” and best use can be made of space, in line
with the principles of One Public Estate.

d. Provides jobs, particularly roles in the health and care sector.

23. This “vision” also gives life to the wider reform of public provision in the
core areas of Acomb, including:



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Page 196

a. Facilitating the potential move of the police services teams currently
based on the Oakhaven site, allowing them to integrate with other
services and facilitating the development of a larger Extra Care
facility on that site.

b. Increasing the provision of good quality residential care for people
in Acomb, including care for those with dementia.

c. The potential to re-develop the site on Cornlands Road which
currently hosts community health facilities.

The draft local plan has identified the importance of developing the whole
of the Lowfield site so that the city can achieve its overall housing targets
and currently estimates that approximately 137 homes can be
accommodated.

In light of the previous procurement and the advice sought and received
since then, it is proposed that:

a. approximately 3 acres are reserved for the potential development of
health and wellbeing facilities including a care home;

b. approximately 9 acres are allocated to housing including both
“starter homes” and homes for the over 60s;

c. at least 1 acre is allocated to play and open space; and

d. the Council target a capital receipt of at least £3.8m from sale of
land on the site.

These land uses have been acknowledged and included in the current
draft of the Local Plan.

The potential for us to further demonstrate joint working with health
colleagues on the Lowfield site is an ideal opportunity for York to show
how joint-working on capital project can achieve positive outcomes for
both health and social care services, giving life to the Sustainability and
Transformation Plan for the Vale of York Clinical Commissioning Group.
It can also set a model for joint-working on revenue funded activity.
However, should one or more of the health or other public service uses
not materialise then the land will be disposed of for development of
additional residential accommodation.

Moving Forward

To move this forward we have discussed the “vision” with Ward
Members and others. Ward Members, engaging with the Portfolio



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Page 197

Holder for Health and Adult Social Care, recognise the need to consult
on the development of the Lowfield site, including the provision of age
related housing (including bungalows) starter homes, a care home,
facilities for health and other partners plus play and open space.

To deliver this plan we will work with care, health, housing and other
partners to develop an integrated development plan for the site. This
plan will then be used as the “blue-print” for planning and building, as we
have done at Burnholme. Housing and other facilities may be developed
by a potential Council Development Company.

The approach to redevelopment of the Lowfield site will be incremental,
bringing forward parcels of land when the need and demand is highest
and in this way maximise the financial benefits. Some enabling works
will facilitate this approach, which may include the construction of new
access road to service parts of the site. The exact detail will be finalised
in due course. This approach will also allow us to prioritise the building
of care and health facilities.

A new access route to the south of the site could be achieved on Council
owned land on Tudor Road. A sewer passes under this land. Yorkshire

Water’s consent may be required before the Council can therefore carry

out construction works on this land.

Traffic consultants have assessed the capacity of local roads to cope
with the impact of redevelopment of the Lowfield site and they advise
that the existing road network can accommodate the additional traffic
generated, even at peak times. They comment that some highways
work will be required to road junctions in the area but these are not of
major significance. They also comment that achieving vehicle access to
the north of the site (via the existing Dijon Avenue entrance) and from
the south of the site would help to distribute traffic more evenly through
the area. Pedestrian/cycle access could be achieved via a third access
point to the south-east of the site.

Sports & Active Leisure colleagues are currently examining options for
the best location for community football provision in the west area. Land
at Tadcaster Road is included in this review as it could be suitable for the
exclusive provision of community football facilities, thereby preventing a
conflict of use with others such as those exercising dogs. We will seek
the views of the local football clubs as we further examine options.

Learning from Burnholme

The proposals for Lowfield share similar themes and issues as for the re-
development of Burnholme. We therefore plan to time the work at



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Page 198

Lowfield so that it “dove-tails” with that at Burnholme and, most
importantly, that we have time to learn lessons from Burnholme and
apply them at Lowfield. This approach will also help with resource and
workload planning for key legal, procurement and finance staff.

With this in mind, and subject to the outcome of public engagement, the
procurement of a care home at Lowfield will follow on from the similar
procurement at Burnholme, as follows:

Table 5: lllustrative Care Home Procurement Timetable

What Burnholme Lowfield

Executive approval May 2016 Q3/4 2016
Procure care home partner | Q3 2016 Q1/2 2017
Planning application Q1/2 2017 Q3/4 2017
Construction begins Q3 2017 Q1/2 2018
Care Home in use Q4 2018 Q1/2 2019

Resource Implications

It is proposed that we develop a financial model to drive the assessment
of opportunities and outcomes from the development.

Included in the financial assessment of the site will be the need to
generate a capital receipt of at least £2m as this is the sum that was
expected from the sale of the school site as its contribution to the cost of
moving to the York High site. Recent advice obtained from GVA Bilfinger
suggests that the land for housing could generate a receipt of at least
£2.9 million and from the health facilities and care home at least
£900,000.

The early costs associated with progressing the redevelopment,
including the cost of spatial planning and public engagement, are
budgeted for in the Programme management budget. Preparing for
public engagement will take place over summer 2016 with events held in
the early autumn of 2016.

The Programme management budget also has provision for the funding
of legal and procurement advice to assist with the sale of land at Lowfield
and the subsequent development to achieve the desired outcomes.

It is possible that early investment in detailed design, a planning
application and the two access roads will be necessary and this is



41.

42.

43.

44.

Page 199

estimated to cost approximately £800,000, with this cost funded up-front
and received from the sale of serviced land.

The care home would provide a number of “block-purchase” beds, at the
Council’s Target Cost of Care price for up to 15 years, assisting the
Council to contain the cost of nursing and residential care.

Timetable
An outline timetable would be:

Table 6: Propose Timetable

When What
July to Sept 2016 | Develop proposals
Autumn 2016 Public consultation
Q3/4 2016 Executive approval for the Plan for Lowfield
Q1/2 2017 Procure partners
Q3/4 2017 Planning application/s
Q1/2 2018 Construction begins
Q1/2 2019 First homes/services in use
Haxby Hall

A report to Executive in July 2015 received Member sanction to:
a. Proceed with the Programme as set out in the report, including:

b. encouraging the development of additional residential care capacity in
York including block-purchase of beds to meet the Council’s needs.

c. Approve the Financial Plan for the Programme including:

I. ring-fence the reinvestment of up to £4 million of capital receipts
from the sale of the surplus to requirements existing older persons
assets listed in the report for use on this Programme, subject to
further approval regarding capital expenditure.

As part of the Programme to increase the supply of older persons’
accommodation in the city and in order to manage any risk associated
with the procurement of a care home at Burnholme, it was agreed by
Executive in July 2015 that we examine investment in an
upgraded/renewed care home at Haxby Hall. The examination of this



45.

46.

47.

48.

49.
50.

51.

Page 200

option has begun and we have appointed designers to advise on what
can be achieved on this site.

Early indications show that the Haxby Hall site can most easily be re-
developed if the Council acquires adjacent land as this would afford
improved access to an area of land to the south of the site which
currently has poor access and would maximise options for the
incremental redevelopment of this site.

Options for Haxby Hall

Haxby Hall Older Persons’ Home currently provides residential care
accommodation for 41 permanent and 8 short-stay residents. However,
the accommodation provided is no longer fit for purpose as few
bedrooms have en-suite toilet and bathroom facilities and the social and
communal facilities are inadequate. Further, the Council is prevented
from providing nursing care at Haxby Hall and this means that some
residents have to move to alternative care accommodation when nursing
care is needed. If Haxby Hall was instead to be owned and managed by
the independent sector then dual registration would be possible and both
nursing and residential care could be provided on the site.

As with other Older Persons’ Homes owned and run by the Council, we
currently plan to consult on the closure of Haxby Hall in either 2017 or
2018 and, should a decision to close be made, residents would have to
move to new accommodation.

The Haxby Hall building and its site afford the Council the best
opportunity to examine alternatives to closure. These alternatives
include transfer of ownership and management to a partner organisation
and, using their expertise and resources, the incremental redevelopment
of the site to create new nursing and residential care accommodation. A
decant, close, re-build and re-open option will also be examined.

There is market interest in taking on this opportunity.

The net effect of this approach will be to further increase the supply of
good quality nursing and residential care accommodation in the city,
helping to address unmet need and giving the Council, as the purchaser
of a large number of care beds, the price and quality benefits which
result from a larger market.

The results of the examination of alternatives to closure will be presented
to the Executive in the autumn. However, should the proposals set out
here not be approved, then the investment in this land purchase can be
recovered from any future sale of the site.



52.

53.

4.

55.

56.

S57.

58.

Page 201

Property Implications

The proposals regarding the negotiations to buy land adjacent to Haxby
Hall are contained in the Confidential Annex.

Financial Matters

The Programme has access to capital funds of approximately £5.1
million of which £2.6 million is expected to be received shortly.

Of these funds £924,000 is currently committed to fund Programme
Management costs between 2015 and 2019 and a further £981,000 is
temporarily allocated to fund enabling works at Burnholme. Therefore,
there are funds available to finance this purchase.

The majority of the balance of the capital funds available to the
Programme are held in order to facilitate the Haxby Hall option (as
reviewed by Executive in July 2015, paragraphs 107 to 110).

The Programme assumes a £1 million capital receipt from the sale of the
Haxby Hall site to contribute to the £4 million receipts described above.
With the sale of Oliver House (which is expected to generate a receipt for
this programme of £1.5m) and the imminent sale of Grove House which
could generate a receipt of between £1.5 million and £2 million, the
Council are well on the way to achieving these receipts. However, not all
of these funds would be required should alternative ways of investing in
Haxby Hall be found via the proposal described in this report. Further,
the procurement of a partner to redevelop and operate Haxby Hall could,
in itself, generate a capital receipt, although this is unlikely to be at the
£1 million level given the TUPE and other risks and obligations which the
developer/operator would become liable for.

Risks

The key risk associated with this proposal is that the redevelopment
options for Haxby Hall as a care home are not viable or not sanctioned.
If this is the case the land will be sold for residential development,
subject to planning. The independent valuation received demonstrates
confidence that this land can be used for residential development.

Legal

The examination of the option to seek a partner to take over the
management and ownership of Haxby Hall will be undertaken in due
course and will include a review of the legal risks and of the most
appropriate procurement approach.



59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

Page 202

Human Resources

There are no Human Resource implications associated with the
purchase of this site. However, any options that are examined and
associated with the re-development of Haxby Hall will need to consider
the Human Resource implications as there are potential TUPE issues
relating to the staff that manage and provide care from Haxby Hall.

Consulting On The Closure Of Care Homes

Executive on 30th July 2015 agree the Programme business case,
programme management resources and project plan. As part of this
plan it is the intention to consult on closure of each of the Council’s out-
dated Older People’s Homes and, subject to the outcomes of that
consultation, close them.

It is agreed that the Council will follow the same approach to consultation
and, subject to the outcome of that consultation and to Member decision,
closure, as has previously been followed: using the Moving Home Safely
protocol which proved to be appropriate and safe. Following the use of
the protocol to guide the process for Grove House and Oakhaven it has
been reviewed and updated under the oversight of the Health & Adult
Social Care Scrutiny Committee.

All five Council-run Older Persons’ Homes will be considered for closure
over the next two to three years as part of the Programme. The
Programme seeks to better align the needs and expectations of older
residents for accommodation with care, with provision in the city,
addressing the shortage of Extra Care accommodation, growing the
provision of high quality residential care and addressing the fact that the
existing Council-run Older Person’s Homes are no longer fit for purpose.

Executive in October 2015 adopted the criteria for deciding which homes
we consult first regarding closure. The criteria are:

a. the presence of serious repair or maintenance problems which, if they
cannot be addressed in a cost-effective manner, would impact on the
quality of care provided to residents;

b. the potential alternative uses for the OPH site in order to deliver the
wider Programme;

c. whether a home accommodates a resident who has already been
moved from another Council OPH which was the subject of closure,
e.g. Oliver House and Fordlands; and



64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

Page 203

d. the size of the home, with the smaller homes struggling to provide a
cost-efficient service to residents.

During the summer the remaining five homes will be assessed against
these criteria and a decision made by the Older Persons’
Accommodation Board (including the Director of Adult Social Care and
the Director of Customer and Business Support Services) on which
home will be the subject for consultation on closure in the autumn.

New Provision

In order to assist with offering options to residents of the home that will
be subject to consultation on closure, new accommodation options will
become available in the new year:

Table 7: New Provision of Accommodation with Care

What When

Extra Care at Auden House From Q1 2015
Extra Care at Glen Lodge From Q1 2016
Extra Care at Marjorie Waite Court Q1 2017
Nursing and Residential Care accommodation at the | Q1 2017
Chocolate Works

Timescales

Subject to six weeks of consultation starting in September 2016 and a
further decision of Members in Q4 2016 regarding the outcome of the
consultation and any decision to close, residents would start to move in
November 2016 and the home would have closed by the end of March
2017.

It is likely that consultation on the closure of a further two homes will take
place in 2017.

Consultation

Whatever, and whenever, the announcement regarding the closure of
individual Council run OPHs is, it will be important to follow the approach
that has served us well throughout the programme: delivering sensitive
messages in a careful, well managed sequence:

I. Briefing key external stakeholders who have been actively involved to
date (e.g. Age UK York and York Older People’s Assembly).




69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

Page 204

ii. Briefing OPH Managers/staff & Care Management colleagues.
lii. Updating OPH residents/relatives.

iv. Updating all other stakeholders, including NHS commissioner and
provider organisations.

v. Media briefing.
Community Engagement

The Council is sensitive to and aware of the concerns of older
people/relatives/stakeholders about the closure of their existing OPH and
will work with them to ensure that the moves/closures are handled
sensitively.

As the Programme audience is diverse, it will be difficult to communicate
to all of them with one method of communication. The target audience
will therefore be broken down into smaller groups that can be targeted
separately with tailored, accessible and consistent messages.

A Communications Strategy has been drafted which provides a
framework for that communication over the period May 2015 — May
2016. The strategy is a working document and will therefore be regularly
updated and reviewed throughout the lifespan of the project (2015-2018)
to reflect the progress of the project, proactive communication
opportunities and any required reactive communications.

The OPH Reference Group, comprising representatives from York Older
Peoples Assembly, York Council for Voluntary Service, AgeUK York and
others, will be revived and will work with the Council to guide this
Programme as it moves forward.

Council Plan 2015-2019

The Programme is set in the context of the Council Plan for 2015-19 and
will contribute to achieving its ambitions. Based on our statutory
responsibilities and the aims of the new administration, the plan focuses
on three key priorities:

e a prosperous city for all - where local businesses can thrive and
residents have good quality jobs, housing and opportunities

e a focus on frontline services - to ensure all residents, particularly the
least advantaged, can access reliable services and community
facilities



74.

75.

76.

17.

Page 205

¢ a council that listens to residents - to ensure it delivers the services
they want and works in partnership with local communities

To support these corporate priorities and under the guidance of the
Health & Wellbeing Board, York has developed proposals to achieve a
new focus for adult health and social care which delivers:

a. self care and self management;

b. better information and signposting;

c. home is best;

d. early intervention and prevention;

e. reablement and intermediate care (targeted resources);
f. managing long term conditions; and

g. delivering services at a community level where this is desired and
possible.

Implications
Financial

The financial implications relating to Lowfield and Haxby Hall have been
covered in the relevant section of the report. Further examination of the
financial implications will be undertaken as proposals are developed
further.

The potential to develop community football provision on land at
Tadcaster Road will require funding. Partners in the proposals are
willing and able to seek grants and other support. The use of section
106 monies and other funds will also be considered including the
realisation of capital from the Lowfield development. A detailed financial
appraisal will be produced as part of the business case for the Lowfield
development.

With regard to Haxby Hall, Executive have already examined the option
of self-investment and, in July 2015, identified that this option was viable.
At the time Executive asked that officers explore the option that the
Council to invest up to £5.2m in new and/or revamped care provision at
Haxby Hall with any decision-making to be set in the context of plans for
Burnholme.



78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

Page 206

Equalities

In considering this matter the Council must have regard to the public
sector equality duty. In summary, those subject to the equality duty must,
in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

e Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Equalities Act 2010.

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.

e Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

The Equalities Act 2010 explains that having due regard for advancing
equality involves:

e Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to
their protected characteristics.

e Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups
where these are different from the needs of other people.

e Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life
or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low

An Equality Impact Assessment for the Programme was produced for the
15 May 2012 Executive Report and has been reviewed and updated and
reported to Executive in October 2015. It particularly highlighted the
potential implications of the programme for the health, security and
wellbeing of frail residents and also female members of staff who are
older and also carers themselves.

In response, the Council developed and followed a ‘Moving Homes
Safely’ protocol which it followed when (in the first phase of the
Programme) it closed Fordlands and Oliver House in March 2012, to
ensure that residents’ moves to their new homes were as well planned
and carefully managed as possible. Likewise, careful management of
staff change helped to mitigate the impact of these closures. The
Moving Homes Safely protocol was updated in April 2016 following its
use at Grove House and Oakhaven and continues to guide actions
relating to closure.

An OPH Wider Reference Group has been established to act as a
sounding board for the development of plans as the implementation of
the Programme progresses. The project team also continues to use



83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

Page 207

established channels to communicate with, and gather the views of, OPH
managers and staff, care management staff and Health colleagues.

Property

The property implications relating to Lowfield and Haxby Hall have been
covered in the relevant section of the report and in the confidential
annex.

The 19 acres of land off Tadcaster Road which are being examined as
suitable for community football use is currently let on an agricultural
tenancy. Planning and other considerations will be examined before a
further recommendation is made as to change of use. Land for
community football use would be let on a long lease of at least 25 years.

With regard to the use of any Council-run Older Persons’ Home should it
close, it is already agreed that up to £4 million of capital receipts
received from the sale of homes will be used to support the Programme.
Detailed consideration of how best to realise these receipts from each
home will be undertaken once the decision to close is made.

Legal

Legal services have been involved in the development of these
proposals and their comments have been incorporated within this report.
Further examination of the legal implications of the various property and
procurement elements of this Project will be undertaken as proposals are
developed further and brought forward for due consideration, as we
progress with the various elements of the Project.

Because Lowfield School closed in 2007, the Council does not need
Schedule 1 to the Academies Act 2010 consent for the re-use of the
school building site as that only applies to disposals or change in use of
land which has been used as school buildings within the preceding 8
years. The Council already has Department for Education (DfE) consent
for disposal of a 1.42 acre strip of the land that runs through the centre of
the site. In total, this ensures that 6.9 acres of the site can be developed
immediately and without the requirement for formal DfE consent. As the
rest of the site is likely to be developed incrementally over the next few
years, the Council is unlikely to need DfE consent under Section 77 of
the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (SSFA 1998) to change
the use of the rest of this site as that only applies to disposals or change
in use of land which has been used as school playing fields within the
preceding 10 years.



88.

89.

90.

91.

92.

93.

94.

95.

Page 208

The consideration of the closure of existing Council run OPHs should
follow a clear and consultative path. There are a number of potential
challenges to local authorities during the process of closing OPHs which
have been considered. Previous advice is held and has been recently
updated by specialist legal colleagues. This advice includes an
examination of the application of the Human Rights Act and the Equality
Act. Legal advice has been sought and has guided the approach to
consultation and the wording of letters.

Human Resources

The HR implications of the Housing for Older Persons’ Programme have
been considered in previous Executive Reports. The key implication is
upon the existing staff that deliver the service.

The recommended Programme includes a variety of methods of delivery
of modernised care for Older Persons within the city, which is
appropriate to their needs and enables more independent living. In
delivering this programme of change, the Council will need to consult
closely with the existing staff to ensure that, where there are
opportunities, they are available to appropriately qualified staff who wish
to stay in employment.

With regard to the examination of the potential options regarding Haxby
Hall we will examine the Transfer of Undertakings Protection of
Employment (TUPE) Regulations, as amended in 2014, as they apply to
these staff.

When we know the name of the next home to be the subject of
consultation on closure, we will engage in full and formal consultation
with affected staff groups.

We will also explore requests for early voluntary redundancy and
movement between homes in order to minimise any impact on staff
during the programme of change.

In addition we will identify workforce gaps elsewhere in the social care
sector and enable appropriate recruitment initiatives to secure the future
workforce.

Other Implications

There are no specific Crime and Disorder, Information Technology or
other implications arising from this report.



96.

Page 209

Risk Management

The Programme holds many risks, as would be expected with change of
this complexity. These have been identified and will be kept under
review and will be carefully managed. Key risks include:

all elements of the project.

ref | Risk Mitigating Action

a) Options for accommodation A wide range of options are
for older people do not match made available and current
the expectations and residents are supported to
aspirations of current assess these against their needs
residents. and wishes.

b) Those with high care needs A dedicated care manager will
and their cares/advisers/ work with residents to explore
assessors do not recognise with them and their relatives how
Extra Care accommodation Extra Care operates, how it can
as suitable because there are be a flexible model for those with
limited examples in York of high care needs and how it
this type of accommodation operates in other towns as a
and the care pathways are viable alternative to residential
unclear. care.

C) The Lowfield site does not Work closely with partners and
realise the anticipated level of | the Council property team to
capital receipt included in the maximise the capital receipt
financial model. including open marketing and a

competitive bidding process.

d) The Health or other public The land allocated for these
sector uses of land at uses will instead be used for
Lowfield do not happen. residential housing with the

approach to development being
flexible in order to facilitate this.

e) The redevelopment options The land will be sold for
for Haxby Hall as a care residential development, subject
home are not viable or not to planning.
sanctioned

f) Insufficient funding to deliver The early receipt of capital from

the sale of other assets has
placed us in a strong position to
secure the receipts needed.




Page 210

leading to negative impact on
service provided to existing
OPH residents

ref | Risk Mitigating Action

s)] Capital funding for health Strong joint working between
input at Lowfield will be health and social care services
decided nationally and not and active involvement in the
locally and may not be Government sponsored One
granted. Public Estate initiative will

strengthen any case for health
investment at Lowfield. In
addition, an incremental re-
development means that certain
elements can progress and not
be dependant upon others; for
example, the care home can
progress independently of the
health hub.

h) Title / related property issues, Applying due diligence to ensure
incorrect procurement of Council's normal approach to
capital works and/or land disposal, procurement of
development. capital works and/or a

development partner is applied.

)] Increase in interest rates An interest rate sensitivity test
would impact negatively on has been run against the
borrowing. proposed Programme and it

remains affordable.

1) Risk of the new Undertaking negotiations with
developments/deals driving Independent providers.
up the price the Council pays | Do not “flood” the market with
to external residential care purchase requirements but
providers instead take a slow and

considered approach to
purchase of care bed places.

k) Loss of OPH staff morale Maintain staff morale and focus

through regular, open and
honest briefings/updates;
engagement through OPH
Managers and staff groups;
investment in staff training,
support and development.




End

Page 211

ref | Risk Mitigating Action
) The cost of any associated The financial model has been
redundancy is greater than “stress tested” to assess the
estimated. impact of a 50% increase in the
cost of staff change and is still
viable.
Staff change will be managed
carefully in order to minimise
cost and legal risks.
m) Challenge and negative Development of well planned

publicity from existing OPH
residents and relatives, OPH
staff/TUs, other stakeholders,
opposition parties, wider
public

Communications approach
through briefings to Residents
and relative, Executive, group
leaders, TUs, OPH Management
& Staff, OPH Review Wider Ref
Group, Media.




Page 212

Contact Details

Author:

Chief Officer responsible for the report:

Roy Wallington

Programme Director, Older
Persons’ Accommodation
Tel: 01904 552822
roy.wallington@york.gov.uk

Tracey Carter

Assistant Director of Finance,
Asset Management and
Procurement

Tel: 01904 553419
Tracey.Carter@york.gov.uk

Martin Farran
Director of Adult Social Care

lan Floyd
Director of Customer and Business
Support Services

Report Approved | v | Date

1 July 2016

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Legal — Ruth Barton (Ext 1724); Gerard Allen (Ext 2004)
Finance — Debbie Mitchell (Ext 4161) and Steve Tait (Ext 4065)
Property — Philip Callow (Ext 3360) and lan Asher (Ext 3379)

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all

| All

| v

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes:

Annex 1 — Plan of the Lowfield Site

Annex 2 — Confidential Annex — Property Purchase Negotiations

Abbreviations:
DfE — Department for Education

OPH — Older Persons’ Home, previously referred to as — Elderly Persons’

Homes

TUPE - Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations

2006, as amended by the 2014 amendment regulations



mailto:roy.wallington@york.gov.uk
mailto:Tracey.Carter@york.gov.uk

Page 213

Annex 1 — Plan of the Lowfield Site

55495 sq. m
5.55 Ha
13.71 Acres

LOWY FIELD

YORK Former Lowfields School Site

EEEEEEE

SCALE {1:2.500 DRAMWNEY: GR

oaTE:  10/06/2013

Criginaing Group 3

CBSS Asset & Property Management

‘WIQENE]OS%_B

Asset & Property
Reproduced from the Ordnanee Survey with the permission of the Controliar of Her Majesty's Stationery Ofiea & Crown eopynght
ht proceadings.

Management Unalthorised reproguction Infringes Crown cogyright 310 may lead 0 prosscution of sl
ity of York Councl 100020818




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 215

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 219 Agenda Item 10

"
== 5% CITY OF

YORK

& COUNCIL

Executive 14 July 2016
Report of the Director of Children’s Services, Education and Skills

Portfolio of the Executive Member for Education, Children & Young
People

Prevention and Early Intervention Services — a proposal for
a new way of working

Summary

1.  This paper follows the Executive Meeting decisions made on
17 March 2016. At that meeting Members:

a. endorsed the implementation of new place-based prevention
and early intervention services within Local Area Teams

b. agreed to a public consultation and further paper on the
delivery of children’s centre services as part of the new
operating model

c. agreed to receive a further paper presenting proposals on
revising the city wide and city centre youth offer as part of the
new operating model

2.  The paper presented at the Executive meeting in March outlined
the plans to create new Local Area Teams which would work right
across York. These new Local Area Teams would bring together a
range of existing services to form a new set of preventative
arrangements for families from pregnancy through to adult hood.
By working in a more coordinated way with partners and
communities, the new arrangements will deliver more effective and
efficient ways of whole family and community based working.

3.  The review of our early help arrangements aligns with the council’s
move towards a wider vision of a new place-based operating
model. The Executive will receive further papers on developments
across the council towards the new models in due course.



Page 220

Following the Executive’s endorsement of the Local Area Team
approach to prevention and early intervention, work has been
underway to establish the new structures, processes and most
importantly the new ways of working that are required. An updated
outline of the new Local Area Teams is presented in Annex A. ltis
envisaged that the model will go into implementation phase from
January 2017 onwards.

This report focuses on proposals relating to:

a. The outcome of the children’s centre service consultation and
proposals for the future delivery of the universal early years
offer.

b. The creation of a new city wide youth offer with proposals for
developing a new city centre offer to young people.

The proposals for both of these areas will be clearly set out within
the context of the creation of new Local Area Teams. It is intended
that the new Local Area Teams will be the model through which
the early years offer, the youth offer and all of our preventative and
early intervention work will be delivered in future.

Recommendations

Members are asked to agree the following regarding children’s
centre services:

a. All nine sites are re-named and re-launched as a range of
children and family centres that enable more flexible and
responsive provision which aligns with local community activity
and use.

b. Maintain three children and family centre resources as
designated ‘children’s centres’ with the statutory responsibility
for ensuring the delivery of integrated early childhood services
across the city. These centres will be the main bases for the
Local Area Teams.

This will:

e Continue to ensure the right offer of universal access to early
years services in conjunction with a range of partners including
early years settings, schools, the Healthy Child Service and
community led groups.



Page 221

Allow for the development of a wider range of family and
community activity in each locality area.

Allow the council to realise the full potential of staff as part of a
larger outreach model of whole family working to strengthen
prevention/early help intervention through the Local Area
Teams.

Maintain statutory responsibilities for delivering early childhood
services with a more flexible asset approach.

Allow the opportunity to review each building as part of a full
review of locality resources and assets in line with where
families say they want to access them from.

Reinvest any capital or revenue gain from building assets as
part of a wider council asset strategy and in line with services
for children and families.

Members are asked to agree the following regarding the approach
to the city Youth Offer:

a.

A revised offer including information and advice services being
drawn from the Local Area Teams to deliver city centre
services alongside Adult Services and Community and
Voluntary Sector partners as outlined in paragraphs 54 and 61.

To relocate the city centre offer from 29 Castlegate to
Sycamore House to achieve this.

To release 29 Castlegate for disposal as a surplus asset and
to bring back a further report setting out the required funding
for any works to Sycamore House and any other re-designated
sites; this will in principle be funded from the capital receipt
from Castlegate.

Begin a process of engagement and commissioning of
community partners to deliver the youth counselling offer.

This will:

Move towards a greater, holistic approach to older young
people.

Provide a new offer for young people alongside services for
adults in a way which does not compromise dedicated support
for young people. For example, through different opening times



Page 222

or provision on alternate days. The design of the new offer will
be developed with service users.

e Build community capacity to continue the delivery of health and
wellbeing services to young people.

¢ Allow the council to focus staff capacity onto an outreach model
of work with older young people as part of the Local Area Team
approach.

e Reinvest any capital or revenue gain from building assets as
part of a wider council asset strategy and in line with services
for young people.

Reason: This will finalise the plans for the Local Area Teams, allow
the council to take forward agreed work to remodel early help
arrangements and achieve the associated savings targets.

Background
A new operating model for early help

9.  We know that for most families York is a great place to grow up
and that the vast majority of children are safe, resilient and
achieving. However we also know that some children and young
people will have a very different experience. The new Local Area
Teams will be a key part of tackling this inequality in order to
improve the long term prospects of families most in need.

10. We know that by tackling issues as they emerge there is a
significant chance of preventing long term poor outcomes and the
need for more specialised and high cost services at a later stage®;
not only across children’s services but across a range of public
services right across the city.

11. The paper presented to Executive on the 17 March 2016 set out
the vision for the development of new Local Area Teams. Annex A
provides an update on progress in the development of Local Area
Teams following endorsement by the Executive. Work is

L Allen,G. 2011 ‘Early Intervention: The Next Steps’. An Independent report to HM Government

Ross,A. Duckworth, K et al. 2010 ‘Prevention and Reduction: a review of strategies to prevent or reduce youth
crime and anti-social behaviour intervening early’ Centre for Analysis of Youth Transitions

McGovern, W (2012) Guide to the toxic trio: managing multiple parental problems, substance use, mental health
and domestic abuse. Guides. Community Care Inform [online]
https://www.ccinform.co.uk/guides/guide-to-the-toxic-trio-managing-multiple-parental-problems-substance-use-
mental-health-and-domestic-abuse/



https://www.ccinform.co.uk/guides/guide-to-the-toxic-trio-managing-multiple-parental-problems-substance-use-mental-health-and-domestic-abuse/
https://www.ccinform.co.uk/guides/guide-to-the-toxic-trio-managing-multiple-parental-problems-substance-use-mental-health-and-domestic-abuse/

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 223

progressing to establish the new operating model. Formal
consultation is currently underway with staff and partners in order
to establish the new Local Area Team structures.

This paper does not intend to revisit much of the information which
Is held in the March 2016 Executive paper but it is important to
note that the recommendations presented in this paper are central
to the development of Local Area Teams. The recommendations
should not be seen in isolation from the overall development of our
new approach to early intervention or indeed the wider direction of
travel for the council towards a new operating model.

The Council is committing to a vision of local area based working
which can more easily recognise and respond to the differing
needs of different communities and families. We are placing
children and young people at the heart of our city and everything
that we do. Only by committing to this vision can we ensure that
all children and young people can be safe, resilient and achieving.

York Children’s Centres

The paper to Executive in March 2016 set out that children’s
centre services would be one of the service areas which would
form the new Local Area Teams. Bringing children’s centre
services together with a wide range of other services allows us to
build a more holistic offer for families to support the journey of the
child from pregnancy through to adulthood.

The entire purpose of establishing Local Area Teams is to create a
new, more effective and sustainable way to ensure and deliver
services to families. This means we will look at new ways to make
best use of our resources, our workforce and our buildings.

At the March 2016 Executive meeting it was agreed to carry out a
public consultation to establish the best way to deliver the
children’s centre service offer. The consultation put forward
proposals for the new offer which are summarised below. A
detailed background paper including the full proposals and results
from the consultation are included within Annex B.

a. Ensuring support for all families —The Local Area Teams will
ensure that all families are able to access a wide range of
universal support and services.



17.

18.

19.

20.

Page 224

b. Do more when families need more — When families have a
greater need of support, we can respond alongside our partners
to do more.

c. Make the best use of our buildings and staff - We wanted to
review the use of our existing buildings and make better use of
staff time across the city.

The consultation set out that to deliver this new offer we must
review how we run our existing buildings. Every year the
children’s centre service spends over 20% of its budget in addition
to staff time, on running our children’s centre buildings. We want
to reduce this so that we can maximise the number of staff we
have to work with families. The offer made to families by Local
Area Teams goes beyond the government definition of the
services a children’s centre would traditionally provide, and this
needs to be reflected in everything we do.

Children’s centre services in York are currently delivered through
nine registered or “designated” children’s centres. Services are
also delivered in some community spaces or family homes. By
designating these nine buildings as “children’s centres” we are
limiting their potential use. Another consequence of designation is
that the burden of facilities management, maintenance and other
costs are solely born by the children’s centre service. This means
that as we look to find increasingly effective ways to meet the
needs of families we must maximise the potential of our estate. By
doing so we can maximise the use of our budget on providing the
workforce and delivery of services that families value most.

The public consultation ran from the 18 April to the 25 May 2016.
In this time 981 people responded to the consultation. The
feedback from the consultation is being used to remodel the early
years offer and the work of Local Area Teams so that it is as
effective as possible and responds to the needs of residents.

The chart below shows how strongly respondents agreed or
disagreed with the three key proposals. A detailed analysis of the
feedback received is provided in Annex B.



Page 225

Agreement with proposals

Making the best use of
our buildings and staff

Do more when families
need more

Ensure support for all

i

families
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
Making the best
Do more when
Ensure support s use of our
. families need o
for all families buildings and
more
staff
W Strongly agree 65% 66% 47%
Agree 28% 29% 32%
[ | Neith(?r agree nor 4% 3% 10%
disagree
M Disagree 2% 1% 8%
m Strongly disagree 1% 0% 3%

Ensuring support for all families

21.

There was strong endorsement from families that the redeveloped

early years offer made by Local Area Teams should ensure
support for all families (93% either ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’).

22.

The importance of ensuring support for all families was underlined

in comments received by children’s centre staff and to the
children’s services feedback email address.
a. Families fed back that they would like to see the existing

community and parent led offer continue. Feedback from a
drop in session at a children’s centre highlighted that many



23.

24.

25.

Page 226

parents, especially new parents, come to the volunteer run
groups to get out the house, make new friends (both for the
parents and the children) and some parents were worried there
will be nothing left for them if these groups go. They felt it was
important to keep them.

b. Parents also expressed concern about the potential costs to
access different groups. Feedback suggested that the
developing offer made by community and parent led groups
worked best when costs to families to attend groups was kept
as low as possible.

c. One suggestion included encouraging accessible groups for
working parents at times outside of working hours: “I support the
review and changes. For me one of the most useful changes
would be to increase the times of the day or days of the week
that | can access the services. Parenting isn’t 9-5 and | am a
full time working mum with a long commute daily so my
weekdays are very long.”

Do more when families need more

The proposal to ‘do more when families need more’ received
strong endorsement with 95% of respondents saying they ‘Strongly
agreed’ or ‘Agreed’ with the proposal. Itis clear that the early
years offer made by Local Area Teams must be able to identify
and support families at times where more support is required.

Comments made through the consultation supported this proposal.

a. “The children’s centre were my link to the outside world and
helped me to see the light at the end of the tunnel”

b. “Been really helpful for us. Never used to like to ask for help
but have started to and nice to have someone suggest things
alongside us rather than do to us.”

The chart below shows the profile of families taking part in the
consultation. It is clear that many families have children at
different ages and stages. Feedback would suggest that purely
providing support in relation to one child or age can be less
effective than delivering a child centred response which reflects on
the needs of the entire family.



Page 227

450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100

50

Number of children by age

0-2 years 2-4 years In primary Insecondary 16-19 years
school school

26.

27.

28.

Making the best use of our building and staff

The feedback made clear that families value the quality of the staff
delivering services:

a. ‘“l really appreciate the care and support to me and my
children”

b. “Been really helpful for us”

There was strong endorsement for ‘making the best use of
buildings and staff’ with 79% of respondents stating they either
‘Strongly agreed’ or ‘Agreed’ with the proposal. The level of
endorsement is not as emphatic as for the other proposals but is
still very strong with only 11% stating they ‘disagree’ or ‘strongly
disagree’.

From reviewing comments made alongside the consultation there
are some important themes to reflect upon.

a. That value is placed on having staff in place and able to
respond to need as opposed to unmanned or underused
buildings.

b. That people endorse the exploration of alternative
arrangements for buildings as long as it doesn’t undermine the




29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 228

first two proposals (ensuring support for all families and doing
more when families need more).

That we should explore other opportunities for where families
can access support in communities right across York and not
limit delivery to existing children’s centre buildings.

That some concern was put forward about using the same
space for direct work with young children and older young
people. Itis not proposed to have a single building which is
the only point of delivery. The proposal is to make use of a
range of locations across York which would be suitable for the

delivery of services that are age appropriate.

Reflecting upon all of the feedback received it is proposed that we

now revise our children’s centre offer so that it focuses on
improving outcomes for all families and provides families with the
highest levels of need with more focused support. We will build
that offer into the wider work of new Local Area Teams. A

summary of the proposed offer is shown below and more detailed

description is provided within Annex B. It is proposed:

That Local Area Teams ensure that all families are able to

access groups and support in their community, wherever that

Is. The offer to all families will be made up of health visitor
services, voluntary and community led groups offering support,
learning and social activities, good or better quality childcare and

early year’s education and good quality information to help families

understand what is available.

That wherever families have a higher level of need that we can

provide more support. This cuts to the heart of our new Local
Area Teams purpose. Local Area Teams will work with families,

communities and a range of partner agencies to address emerging
needs at an early stage, wherever that may be. Local Area Teams
will make a much broader offer to families by providing a continuity

of support from pregnancy right through to adult hood. All
agencies will work together in a local area to share information to

secure the best possible outcomes for families. Local services will
work together to be there when families reach out for support and

will also pro-actively identify and engage families in need.

That families can access the right support, in the right place,

at the right time. The consultation has clearly shown that



33.

34.

Page 229

residents want provision to be in place for all families and that
when more support is needed that this is available. Following this
endorsement we are proposing:

a. To create new Local Area Teams which go beyond the
government definition of the services children’s centres would
traditionally provide.

b. That families will be able to access a greater range of services
in their community not just for young children but through into
adult hood.

c. That we ensure and deliver services to families right across the
city (the map below shows the proposed reach areas of the
three new Local Area Teams).

d. That our staff can spend less time and resources on managing
buildings and more time with the families they need to focus
on.

e. To make use of the full potential for the council’s estate to
respond to the needs of local communities. This means taking
a one public estate approach of all of our assets rather than
each service area working in isolation to maintain potential
resources that may not be required in the long-term future.

The offer from the buildings will provide opportunities to extend
opportunities to children and young people across the 0-19 age
range, rather than being restricted to 0-5. How we all use these
buildings and others in the future will then be shaped by the needs
of the communities they serve. By changing how we use our
buildings we can make best use of these spaces in communities,
by communities. We can also improve our efficiency and
effectiveness by reducing the amount of time and money our staff
need to spend on looking after buildings. In doing so we can
maximise our staff time and resources on what families need and
will make the greatest difference.

The early years offer and the wider offer made by Local Area
Teams will respond to need. We will base ourselves in the areas
of York with the highest identified need but must work throughout
York wherever we are needed. This means we need to look not
just at what we deliver through our children’s centre buildings but
what we deliver from any council building, any partner building and
also what we deliver in families homes.



35.

@ North (6)
[] East (7)
B west (8)

36.

37.

0 2

Scale: 1:104,500

Page 230

The delivery of this new offer should not be limited to existing
children’s centre buildings. We will build on our work to reach out
to communities in response to need throughout York. We must
have an unrelenting focus on delivering the best possible services
with families throughout our city. The map below shows how it is
proposed to deliver the new early years offer right across York
through the development of three new Local Area Teams.

™

kilometres

We are therefore proposing that we take forward the development
of our new early years and 0-19 offer through Local Area Teams.
In doing so we propose we re-designate our children’s centres
buildings to allow us to make better use of those spaces and to
also broaden our delivery right across the city.

We set out in the consultation that in expanding the offer we make
to families that we needed to explore if all of our buildings should
continue to be independently registered with the government as
"Children's Centres". The current nationally prescribed definition
of a children’s centre can be summarised as ensuring integrated
early childhood services®. Our proposal goes beyond this by

2 see Annex B for full details.



38.

39.

40.

41.

Page 231

aspiring to ensure integrated services for families from pregnancy
to adult-hood. By reviewing our registration and releasing the
buildings it gives us more scope to provide a wider range of our
services throughout York. Expanding the offer to families and
looking at who runs the buildings also gives us the opportunity to
strengthen links with local schools and improve the transition from
pre-school to primary school.

We will re-name and re-launch our offer to families through all
existing sites and develop that offer in response to the needs of
local communities. We will maintain three of our children and
family centre resources as designated ‘children’s centres’ with the
statutory responsibility for ensuring the delivery of integrated early
childhood services across the city. These centres will be the main
bases for the Local Area Teams. These will ensure delivery right
across the city through the three Local Area Teams shown in the
earlier map. The children and family centre resources to be
designated as ‘children’s centres’ are:

a. Hob Moor
b. Clifton
c. Tang Hall

By changing the designation of our children’s centres it means we
can more readily consider their potential uses as part of a council
wide asset strategy. As already outlined above the current burden
of cost, maintenance and management of the children’s centre
buildings falls solely to the children’s centre service. This is not an
efficient or effective use of the time and the skills held by this
group of staff. It makes far more sense to consider the children’s
centre assets as part of a single public estate strategy. By taking a
“one public estate” approach we can better ensure the maximum
potential of our assets are realised and not distract our staff from
the work that families value most.

Financial and regulatory aspects of these proposals are explored
in Annex B and in the implications section starting from paragraph
70. Executive will wish to consider any potential implications on
delivery resulting from the proposals. It is worth addressing two
key implications at this stage.

The first is the change in registration of ‘children’s centres’. This
impacts on the need for the council to respond to Ofsted inspection



42.

43.

44.

Page 232

frameworks on early year’s services for each individual building.
The Local Area Teams will have a clear remit regarding the
outcomes of young children in terms of the best start in life and will
continue to monitor and measure levels of school readiness, health
and other indicators of progress across the family circumstance to
ensure appropriate delivery of services. Similarly, the Teams will
have responsibility for ensuring effective and quality community
provision for early years as well as a wider age remit. The reach
areas of the Local Area Teams as outlined in the map, and of the
proposed remaining Children’s Centres is in line with Department
for Education population figures. Rationalising the administrative
requirements in this area will maintain the focus further on frontline
delivery yet maintain an adequate level of oversight to drive quality
of early childhood service delivery.

The second implication relates to when children’s centres were
first established across the UK; capital funding was made available
to Local Authorities. An important condition to be aware of is the
potential for capital costs claw-back. York is not alone in wanting
to make changes to its early years offer to families. It is not
thought that the proposals made in this paper would place us at
significant risk of capital claw-back. This assessment is made by
reviewing the approach taken by other local authorities and the
guidance issued by the Department for Education. In addition, our
proposals are based on the continued delivery of services meeting
the aims of the original capital grant. This would mean continued
delivery of early childhood services of some form in response to
the need of communities. Re-designation of all nine centres from
this responsibility however would increase the risk of potentially
raising issues as to whether the City is fulfilling its statutory
obligation to ensure early childhood services and inevitably, a
potential scrutiny for claw-back purposes.

It is important to also note that the proposals are in line with many
other local authority reviews of children’s centre services and a
willingness to look at different delivery models to expand the offer
to wider families and communities. A national review of the status
of children’s centre services remains anticipated to consider further
evaluation of services and resource into the medium to long term
future.

A more detailed analysis of potential capital claw-back is explored
in Annex B.



45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

Page 233

Due to the announcement of a further £781k of transitional funding
from the DCLG for 2016/17 and 2017/18, the year on year savings
targets linked with Local Area Teams was re-profiled. This
provides some time in which to carry out site by site assessments
and conduct any negotiations over transfer of assets. As such any
transfer of building ownership would need to take place by the 31
March 2018. Buildings could be transferred earlier than this date
but only once the process outlined above is considered.

City wide and city centre offer to young people

It is important to note that the development of our new city wide
and city centre offer to young people is informed by the voice and
experience of young people themselves. York is able to
demonstrate a strong and ongoing commitment to listening to
children and young people and working alongside them in the
development of new services. Further detail on the voice of
children and young people, particularly reviewing the city centre
youth offer is provided in Annex C.

The creation of Local Area Teams presents an opportunity to
revisit our city wide and city centre offer to young people. The
same proposal headlines for children’s centres can also ring true in
our aspirations for developing our Youth Offer further:

a. Ensure support and activities for all young people — having
places to go, and things to do.

b. Do more when young people need more — from their
communities as well as trusted people in times of need

c. Make the best use of our buildings and staff — rationalise
where young people go, and get an effective service from the
right people, at the right time.

We want our city wide offer to enable young people to be
supported and to be able to access a range of groups, activities
and experiences which provide them with support, enjoyment and
readiness for independence and adult life.

In recent years the Local Authority has grown into a new role as an
enabler and instigator of provision for young people rather than
providing direct delivery. A growing and vibrant community youth
sector has been emerging across the city since the previous



50.

51.

52.

Page 234

transformation of council run youth services with particular
successes in developing and sustaining groups for communities of
interest (ie multi-national, music and events engagement and
alternative learning provisions) and listening to young people’s
voices to bring together cross ward developments of the youth
offer (ie Canon Lee in Clifton, Clifton Without and Rawcliffe
approach at Annex D). Our community capacity building model
can demonstrate an increase in the amount of provision from
previously direct delivery involvement by the council.

The Local Area Teams will have a key responsibility to continue
this approach to ensure a Youth Offer is provided to all; the vision
IS to continue these successes into building community provision
which reduces social isolation in our communities of most need.

It does remain that our city centre offer is delivered in isolation
from this development and the current move is towards
understanding how we can connect our capacity back to the
community. There will however, be elements of the youth
population, particularly older young people who need a slightly
different offer; a trusted point of contact to initially understand their
needs, gain support and to ensure they make the best use of
social and community networks. The consideration for this paper
is how we do this whilst ensuring young people can access the
right services they need, where they most need them.

We propose to continue the development of the Youth Offer by:

a. Further strengthening and championing work to listen to the
voice of young people and involve them in service and
community developments through Local Area Teams, the city
centre offer and with our partners across York.

b. Improving our online delivery of information to young people
alongside a redeveloped, multi-modal city centre information
offer. This will make it easier to see the range of support and
provision which is available to young people across the city as
well as in their local community.

c. Creating a new more holistic and partnership based city centre
location, particularly focussed on older young people
transitioning to adulthood and a developing link to adult and
community sector services.



53.

54.

55.

56.

S57.

Page 235

d. Rather than an entirely city centre, council run resource, draw
dedicated capacity from each Local Area Team that will work
with voluntary and community sector partners to ensure city
centre provision is available and can link young people back to
the strength of resources in their community.

e. Ensure our offer to community and voluntary groups around
resource and funding capacity is consolidated; making our
funding streams and resource offers easier for community
groups and providers to access to help them become
established.

The existing city centre offer of information, advice and support is
delivered through Castlegate for Young People. This was
established as a council run resource in 2007 and delivers careers
Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) to young people aged 16
to 19 (up to 25 years old for disabled young people), advice and
support with housing, employment, benefits, debt, health, as well
as a counselling and well-being offer for young people aged 16 to
25 years old.

Through previous transformation streams for Youth Support
Services, the Executive has had discussions regarding the future
of city centre youth offer provision and has confirmed the desire to
continue with such an offer. The proposals outlined in this paper
will build on the concept of the Local Area Teams as the main
capacity builders ensuring the youth offer in the city continues.

There have been several attempts from a range of council services
who deliver support for the issues identified above, as well as
community and partner agencies, to review the ability to maintain a
holistic and supportive offer for young people in difficult fiscal
times. Positive discussions around more collaborative and joined
up working to develop the city centre offer have occurred during
this time and have awaited an opportunity to reshape and
strengthen community involvement; this is now considered an
appropriate time to move proposals forward.

An opportunity has arisen to once again revisit the ability to
achieve a holistic offer for our older young people from a city
centre venue.

Three potential options for maintaining a city centre base have
been considered which include: continuing service delivery from



58.

Page 236

Castlegate; splitting the ‘drop in’ and appointment venue based
offers according to need; and relocating as well as reshaping the
community well-being offer from Sycamore House, Clarence
Street, York.

A brief overview of the consideration of maintaining services
across those particular options is highlighted in the table below:



Pros

Castlegate

. Well known venue for young

people, partners and
stakeholders

. Previously designed by young

people

. Young people’s consultation

showed they want somewhere
to tell their story - Castlegate
provides this

. Well regarded by health

clinicians as a venue that
supports the emotional needs
of young people.

. Serves as one stop shop for

young people age 16-25 with
effective signposting to other
services.

Table 1: City Centre Offer Venue Options
Sycamore House

6. Presents innovative first step

towards a combined city
centre offer through
Children’s, Adult Services
and Community and
Voluntary sector partners for
older young people.

Reinforces multi-agency
response from one location

Community and Voluntary
partners have expressed an
appetite to join a collective
approach.

Increased stakeholder
involvement provides ability
to maintain drop-in and
holistic services. Previous
consultation with young
people showed they valued
this.

Split Site offer

1. Highlighting an offer from

multiple locations which can
respond in a specialist way for
the issue at hand.

. Further expands stakeholders

involved in the whole City
centre offer

. Gives public facing perception

of all age Services

. Begins to support older young

people to access more adult
oriented services

/¢ abed



Castlegate Sycamore House Split Site offer

10. Larger venue in good
condition that allows for future
expansion and flexible
development of the offer.

11. Young people’s consultation
showed they want
somewhere to tell their story
Sycamore House could
provide this.

12. This can serve as a one stop
shop for young people age
16-adulthood with effective
signposting to other services.

13. Potential release of capital
from sale of Castlegate.

14. Closer links to adult provision
for transitioning young adults.

@eps 1. Venue not big enough to 1. Initially dedicated CYC 1. Splitting CYC service
develop services and expand facilities management for the resource increases building
offer with partners. building would be required. and delivery overheads which

impact on the ability to deliver

gge obed




Castlegate Sycamore House Split Site offer

2. Does not align fully with LAT 2. Some crossover contact with savings.
model and link to building vulnerable adult customers is o
community capacity. likely whilst changes to 2. Splitting CYC staff resource
opening times and to sustain split offer impacts
3. Current model entirely council approaches bed in. on ability to deliver savings
focused — an anomaly for and offer more flexible
similar services approaches within LAT

o - _ model.
4. Building condition requires

medium and long term
renovation

5. Building maintenance costs
risks delivery of savings
targets.

6c¢ abed




Page 240

59. From the options, the preference would be to relocate to Sycamore
House; this would potentially offer the following:

a. Provide space for complimentary, voluntary and community
sector partners to be permanently based at Sycamore House.
This would create additional space to establish the city centre
offer on a much stronger partnership basis and opens up
exciting opportunities to deliver a more diverse range of
support to older, transitioning young people.

b. Provide a multi agency and holistic framework of information
and advice sessions across a range of themes to meet
identified need for both adults and young people at differing
times, but creating the same supportive response. These
sessions would be supported as required by drawing workers
in from Local Area Teams, other CYC services and partners
from the community and voluntary sector. This would look to
include a range of advice agencies that form the membership
of the Advice York partnership. By developing this aspect of
the offer, the city centre venue will be able to provide a much
richer range of support than is currently the case.

c. The landscape of mental health provision for children and
young people is undergoing significant change with the
introduction of Future in Mind. The Local Area Teams will play
a full and appropriate role in tackling the important issue of
mental health. There is an identified need to continue to
ensure that young people are able to access mental health
support in particular at the transition from being a young
person into adulthood. It is proposed that in identifying
community and voluntary sector partners to operate from the
city centre venue that opportunities will be developed where
these partners can increase capacity to meet this need.

d. Itis considered appropriate to review the current council
supported counselling provision in line with community mental
health group capacity and strategies to develop a wider range
of services to young people from teenage years onwards. The
current CYC counselling offer has benefited the transitioning
young adult age range but remains a small and stretched offer
that could be better realised in line with providers who maintain
greater support and infrastructure to develop the offer. We
would look to embed the provision with a suitable partner and
return such a resource to the community and voluntary sector



Page 241

rather than continuing a council run service which, in terms of
wider youth offers in this area of need is an anomalous way to
achieve this. This is a timely opportunity to explore long-term
sustainable delivery of the offer, as the Community and
Voluntary sector have expressed their desire to develop and
build their services towards the younger age range. This
proposal is made with a clear understanding that initial
resources would need to be committed in order to build this
capacity with any partner organisation.

e. Following approval from the Executive, a formal process would
be conducted to identify a transparent method of securing a
suitable partner(s) to be based at the city centre venue. As
part of stakeholder engagement on the new Local Area Teams
and previous work on the city centre offer, initial discussions
identify appetite from community and voluntary partners for this
proposal. This proposal would also include transferring the
delivery of the counselling offer for 16 — 25 years olds to the
community and voluntary sector.

f. York has a strong history of engaging young people in the
development of projects. We would want any new city centre
location to provide the opportunity to provide good quality
space for use by the community or young people to develop
their own projects.

g. Provide specialist information, advice and guidance to young
people who are Not in Employment, Education or Training
(NEET). The city centre venue would be a planned delivery
point for this and would provide information, advice and
guidance through appointments, group work and workshops
staffed by specialist workers drawn in from Local Area Teams.
The city centre location would also offer a venue for group
work and workshops supported by partners such as York
Learning, the Apprenticeship hub team and other partners (eg
Training providers, employers, Jobcentre Plus).

The city centre offer outlined above provides a diverse, effective
and sustainable solution for older young adults. The proposal
aligns well with the commitment to provide a good quality city
centre offer and also continues to build on the successful delivery
of the youth offer right across York.



61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

Page 242

Sycamore House currently hosts a range of services, mainly for
adults recovering from mental health issues. It includes a reading
cafe, a number of direct work rooms, office space and a small
garden. The proposals to deliver a city wide community offer to
young people alongside city centre provision are mirrored in the
aspirations of outreach community support for the council’s adult
services. As such it is proposed to take forward the development
of a new city centre venue based at Sycamore House which can
allow the needs of both areas to be met.

Further details from colleagues on the revised offer to adults from
Sycamore House will be presented for consideration to the
Executive in due course.

In developing the new city centre venue and making any required
alterations to the building and use of space it is proposed to also
involve service users in that process. A group or mechanism
would be established to ensure their full involvement in developing
and realising the new offer.

Consultation

A public consultation on Children’s Centre Services was conducted
from 18 April — 25 May 2016. In this time 981 people responded to
the consultation. A report is attached at Annex B which highlights
the findings from the consultation. People were able to take part in
the consultation through a range of means:

a. Completing an online or hard copy survey at a range of
locations.

b. Children’s centre staff carried out consultation with families
attending groups at the local centre and in the community.

c. A number of written comments were also submitted.

The preceding paper presented to Executive on the 17 March
2016 included a consultation with young people regarding their
views on what a city centre youth offer required. This is further
attached within Annex C for reference. In brief, it summarises the
need to have an initial point of contact that can understand a
young person’s needs in a holistic way, but with good access to
local services and support that then allows young people to gain
what support they need in various aspects of their life.



66.

67.

68.

69.

Page 243

Key community groups have also been approached to promote the
direction of travel towards local area, place based working and
how this needs to look between the City of York Council and
community and voluntary providers. Groups have ranged from
those delivering universal offers to young children, parents and
older young people; including (but not exhaustive) parenting
information and support groups, libraries, mental health providers,
and community sector representatives. Feedback from the groups
Is one of a real appetite to be included in the vision of a local offer
approach and to be recognised for their strength in delivering what
families and communities need, particularly at universal and early
intervention levels.

The council and partner workforce have been engaged in a variety
of exercises, workshops and forums over late 2015 to date, to help
shape the direction of the Local Area Teams. This has also
regularly included the input of staff affected within this report’s
proposals. There is strong endorsement of the direction of travel,
to work more flexibly in response to the needs of children, young
people and families; as is the desire to make full use of the wider
skills held by staff and their knowledge, and to use service
resources in local areas to build community resilience for families.

Council Plan

The proposal directly relates to the Council Plan 2015-19 priorities:

a. ‘A focus on frontline services’ - to ensure all residents,
particularly the least advantaged, can access reliable services
and community facilities.

The proposal is a major part of delivering the shared, partnership
vision and priorities of the new Children and Young People’s Plan
2016-20:

Vision: Children and Young People are at the heart of our city and
of everything we do.

Delivering ‘Safe, resilient and Achieving’ services with four
fundamental priorities:

a. Early Help

b. Emotional and Mental Health

c. Narrowing Gaps in Outcomes



70.

71.

72.

73.

Page 244

d. Priority Groups of Children and Young People

Implications
Financial

The detail below relates to the wider model development and
targets for efficiency. The children’s centre services and city
centre youth offer both impact on the staffing and facilities
resources that are managed, and on the amount of saving that can
be achieved. The intended integration of both offers into the Local
Area Team approach will bring the model significantly close to
achieving the targets identified in the March 2016 paper. For ease
of reference the savings profile is further identified below.

The original savings profile attached to this project for the service
areas within scope was initially £1,001k in 2016/17, £519K in
2017/18 and £87k in 2018/19; a total reduction over the three
financial years of £1,607k. As part of the council-wide scrutiny of
savings proposals, and the initial high level of savings targeted
from these areas, a decision was made to reduce the saving in
2016/17 by £135k, on a recurring basis, thus reducing the overall
saving to £1,472k.

Following the announcement of a further £781k of transitional
funding from the DCLG for 2016/17 and 2017/18, this savings
target was re-profiled to £566k in 2016/17, by allocating £300k of
this funding back into the revenue budgets of the services within
scope of this project for a further two years, with the £300k saving
not now being delivered until 2018/19. This allowed the
opportunity to plan the implementation of the new model over a
slightly longer timescale.

The savings profile associated with the services that are in the
scope of this project is set out in the following table:



Page 245

General Fund Base Budget in 2016/17 of services in £3.322k
scope

2016/17 savings target £566k
2017/18 savings target £519k
2018/19 savings target £387k
Total savings to be achieved (44.3% of 2016/17 £1 479k
General Fund base budget ’

The General Fund budget available has been adjusted from the
March 2016 report, to remove a one-off budget in 2015/16, and a
small number of activities within the services that have been
deemed necessary to continue outside the scope of the Local Area
Teams.

After the reduction due to the full programme of savings being
delivered there will be a net General Fund budget of £1,900k.

In addition, the Children’s Centre budget has historically been
supported by a contribution of £355k from the Dedicated Schools
Grant (DSG). Adding this to the net General Fund budget gives an
available resource of £2,255k.

This DSG contribution is potentially at risk due to the ongoing
national school funding reforms. At present the Education Funding
Agency has requested information on the use of all DSG funding
which is not being passed on to schools in 2016/17. It is possible
that some or all of this funding may be directed to be passed
directly to schools under these reforms. However, the impact of
any changes to the existing arrangements would exist regardless
of the progression to the new LAT model, so would need to be
dealt with as a separate issue at the time it might materialise.

Under the assumptions above the proposals contained in this
report allow the full saving set out above to be delivered by the
beginning of 2018/19.

If the proposals are not approved the savings tied up with this
project that were included as part of the Council’s overall budget
strategy for 2016/17 to 2019/20 and approved at full council in



74.

75.

76.

17.

78.

Page 246

February 2016 would be unlikely to be achieved. This would mean
that to still achieve a balanced budget going forward, alternative
savings options would need to be identified and delivered.

In addition, as part of the Capital Strategy for 2016/17 to 2019/20,
approved by full Council on 25 February 2016, an additional £100k
was allocated into the Children’s Services Capital Programme to
allow further investment in buildings as required to assist in the
delivery of this programme.

The decision on which the Executive are being asked to consider
today has a direct impact on the ability to make the outlined
savings proposals. The preferred options presented allow for the
savings target to be reached. Should a differing option be
considered, the implications have been outlined and place an
additional pressure on the savings target and the level of staffing
resource that can be maintained as part of the model. In order to
readjust the model and realise the savings, a further reduction in
staffing would be anticipated.

Human Resources (HR)

The Local Area Team new operating model is currently being
consulted on as a new integrated service structure and way of
working. The functions of children’s centre service staff and city
centre youth offer focused staff are included in this structure role
design.

Should the proposals be agreed, any changes will be made in
accordance with the council’s change management HR processes
in full consultation with staff and trade unions.

Equalities

A community impact assessment is attached. Current consultation
with staff, partners and communities is ensuring ongoing dialogue
regarding the impact of moving to a new structure and will inform
the design as an integral part of the process. Service user groups
will be identified to engage and develop the model further.

The proposed model seeks to target resource towards the most
vulnerable at an early point to prevent escalation of need and
provide improved outcomes. In this sense, the model as a whole
is designed to have a positive equalities impact. The detailed



79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

Page 247

design of the services will take into consideration the needs of our
communities of identity and seek to minimise any potential adverse
impact during its implementation.

Legal

The model will impact on services where the council has statutory
obligations to deliver certain levels of service at a universal and
targeted level. Statutory requirements will remain a part of the
working practices of the structure, except where agreed
deregulation revises this obligation.

Implications have been considered around the potential change of
use for children’s centre venues and the impact of this relating to
the Department of Education conditions of grant for original set up
and design of the children’s centre venues to support the delivery
of early year’s offers in local communities. There is a financial risk
to be considered around the change of use of children’s centres
through the grant claw-back conditions. Each children centre
venue has its own level of claw-back potential therefore Members
may wish to consider whether there is an appetite to balance the
level of risk with the future operating model savings going forward.
Details on the claw-back arrangements are highlighted in Annex B.

Multiple agency working practices will raise consideration about
the appropriate use of data and consent based practices when
working with families. Working practices will remain in line with
current multi-agency ways of working under the Data Protection
Act 1998 and principles of the Working Together guidance 2015.

Crime and Disorder

There are no identified implications.
Information Technology (IT)

There are no identified implications at this stage.
Property

The model relies on appropriate placement of services within key
community venues in the city. Discussions have started with Asset
and Property Management with a view to delivering this
requirement as part of the ongoing review of all land and building



Page 248

assets owned and occupied by the council. Similarly, as part of
the One Public Estate programme, working with central
government, health and other government agencies other partner
and community bases are being reviewed to look at the best way
to deliver services to children, young people and families within
their communities.

Other
85. There are no identified, other implications

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Niall McVicar Jon Stonehouse

Children’s Trust Unit Service Director of Children’s Services,

Manager Education and Skills

01904 554440

Angela Crossland
Youth Offending Team Manager
01904 554042

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Finance — Mike Barugh, Principal Accountant, 01904 554573

HR — Claire Waind, Senior Business Partner HR, 01904 554519

Legal — Glen McCusker, Deputy Head of Legal Services, 01904 551048
Equalities — Will Boardman, Strategy and Policy Group Manager
(People and Neighbourhoods), 01904 553412

Property — Philip Callow, Head of Asset and Property Management,
01904 553360

All v
Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers

Annexes

Annex A — An update on the development of Local Area Teams



Page 249

Annex B — Children’s centre consultation results
Annex C — The city wide and city centre offer to young people

Annex D — Canon Lee in Clifton Youth Offer

Glossary of abbreviations used in the report:

CYC - City of York Councll

DCLG — Department for Communities and Local Government
DSG — Dedicated Schools Grant

IAG — Information, Advice and Guidance

LAT — Local Area Teams

NEET — Not in Employment, Education or Training



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 251

ANNEX A

Local Area Teams

PREVENTION AND EARLY INTERVENTION

New operating model blueprint




Page 252

“Providing Early Help is more effective in promoting the welfare of children than reacting
later. Early Help means providing support as soon as a problem emerges, at any point in a
child’s life, from the foundation years through to the teenage years. Early Help can also
prevent further problems arising, for example, if it is provided as part of a support plan
where a child has returned home to their family from care.”

Working Together to Safeguard Children 2014

“Support services seem to be very good once you can get into 'the system'. There is little
support for those just on the outside and it seems that in some cases support is only
available once someone is at breaking point. It would be better to focus more on early
intervention and prevention rather than cures”

A York Mum.

“When | was 9 and we ran away from me Dad. That’s when you should have got me.”

A young offender, asked about when early help could have helped him.



Page 253

VISION: Children and young people are the heart of our city and of everything we
do.

Achieving

Intelligence led

Place based Multi-agency

Efficient and
The new is a multi- effective
agency approach to
tackling early help Ear.Iy il must
alongside police, dgllver ST
health and schools savings and red.uce
the voluntary and demztan;j i;o;hlgh
community sector cost statutory
and other partners. LSS

Data will be used
alongside strong
local knowledge on
the ground to plan
the use of
resources, service
delivery and
identify families
most in need.

Services will be
located in the areas
with the highest
levels of need but
also reach out
across the city to
build an authority
wide response.

3 Local Area Teams, a city wide and city centre Youth Offer

Building Blocks Workforce
The work of the Key features of
LATSs. our workforce.

Coordinate /

Multi-skilled

Problem Solve City
Centre
Youth

Offer

v

Central functions addressing

Skills match need

Build Capacity
Multi-agency

Family Work

Shared outcomes

Strategic Quality City-wide City-wide

Seemless links
coordination of assurance of outcomes commissioning

with

the city wide the city wide tracking and and capacity

safeguarding
early help offer early help offer data building

arrangements




Page 254

CONTENTS

CONEENTS e 4
2o ¢={ Lo TUT g o [P PP PPRRTURRN 6
RV 21T o o TR PP PP PPPPTPPPT 7
BUSINESS CASE ittt e e e e e e e e s e st e e e e e e e s e r e e e e e e e e s e nrrene e 7
20T F= - SRS 8
Services in scope of the new operating Model..........cooocciieeiiciiii e 9
DLl A a1 o= d o T LY 1= o TSR 10
Children and Young People’s Plan 2016-2020..........c.ceeeeeiiieeeeiiiieeeeeiieeeeeenreeeeecveee e e easaeeeeeans 10
What we Want t0 @Chi@Ve .......o.eoiiiiie e 11
Defining our outcomes frameEWOIK. ... e e 11
The right environment for safe, resilient and achieving children and young people ......... 12
What We need tO tacCKIe .......cooiiiiiiiiee e 14
[ T oY oY T 0= o] - [ [o] o USSR 15
Operating principles and what the local area teams will do.......cooeeviiiiiiiiiiiiicee e, 16
Proposed model for Early Help Arrangements........ccccuvieeeeiieeeieiiieee et 18
(o Tor I =T I =T 4 o PV OR PR 18
Process Mapping and the developing responSe MaP ......eeeeeeeeieeiiirieeeeeeeeeenicrreeeeeeeeeeenrneeeees 20
INtrodUuCtion aNd SUMMAIY ....coocciiiiieeee ettt e e e e e e e ttrrreeeeeeeeeseanrseseeeeeeeennnes 20
Process MaP FINAINGS ..ooooiiiieeee e e et e e e e a e e e e e eab e e e e e ennaeeeenns 20
the developing early intervention reSPONSE MAP .....eeeeeeeeieicciiiiirieee e e et e e e e e eeeaeeeeas 22
The city wide arly help Offer ....oov e 24
The delivery of the troubled families Programme ........ccccocviiiiiniiiieeii e 25
WOrKfOrce DEVEIOPIMENT ..vvveiiiiiiiieitieeeee ettt e eeetree e e e e e s esabbaaeeeeeeeeesenssraeneeeeeeesennnes 26
WoOrkforce Within the LATS .....c.eo ittt 26
Children and young people’s WOTKFOICE ........occuviiiiii et 26
Early Help — “Everybody’s BUSINESS” .....cooiiiiieiiiiiiiee ittt svee e s sane e e e 27



Page 255

Commissioning / BUildiNg CAPACITY ...cueecueeieeeiiieeie ettt ettt e beesaaeeveesaneenneas 27
CoMMISSIONING OULCOMES ..iiiiiiiiiiiii e 27
VOIUNTEEE OFff@F ...t n e saeeenees 28
Building capacity within the voluntary and community sector..........ccccccveeeeiiiieeeicciieeeens 28

Interface to Statutory INTEIVENTIONS .....cciiiiiee e e e s 28

RV e Tol = PP PP PPPTTPPPP 29



Page 256

BACKGROUND

Ensuring effective prevention and early intervention arrangements for children, young
people and families is an essential responsibility of the council and its partners. A review of
our early help arrangements is required in order to prevent families most in need from
suffering poor outcomes and placing demand on high cost specialist services at a later stage.

The proposal is to establish a number of multi-agency Local Area Teams (LATs) that will
cover the entire city and deliver early intervention services to families with children aged 0-
19 years (up to 25 years for those with learning or physical disability).

The Local Area Teams will be based in areas identified as having the highest need but will
provide a service delivery reach across the whole local authority. Local intelligence and data
will be used to identify areas and families in need, coordinate the right range of services for
families, and look to build capacity within the community and voluntary sector to support
the universal offer for all local residents to access.

The move towards working in local areas will remodel a range of existing services into a
more effective and efficient set of early help arrangements. This remodelling will require us
to work in new ways to meet the needs of families.

The review of our early help arrangements aligns with the council’s move towards a new
operating model more generally. The development of Local Area Teams will forge the way
ahead of further developments across the council towards new operating models. The
development of Local Area Teams particularly aligns with:

e Plans to develop prevention and early intervention arrangements for Adult Health
and Social Care, and across neighbourhood and Housing services.

e A review and rationalization of council and partner assets which will look to make
the best use of buildings and resources in local communities

The review is also an opportunity to align resources with wider partnership developments
that intend to deliver more efficient support at an earlier stage. Particularly, the proposal
compliments current developments including:

e The Healthy Child Programme for Public Health, establishing a more informed and
streamlined approach to health promotion for 0-19 year olds.

e The ‘Future in Mind’ Transformation Plan that increases capacity to respond to
earlier onset of mental health issues and promote independence and self reliance.



Page 257

VISION

Our vision for early help is one where we have strong and resilient
communities, where families with emerging needs can get the right support
at the right time and that the council works with all partners, including
communities, in addressing this critical agenda.

Our new early help arrangements will be:

e Place based — Services will be located in the areas with the highest levels of need but
also reach out across the city to build an authority wide response.

e Intelligence led — Data will be used alongside strong local knowledge on the ground
to plan the use of resources, service delivery and identify families most in need.

e Multi-agency — The new model is not just a council response but part of a multi-
agency approach to tackling early intervention alongside police, health and schools
the voluntary and community sector and other partners.

e Efficient and effective — The early help approach must deliver the required savings
and demonstrate effectiveness in preventing demand for high cost statutory
interventions.

BUSINESS CASE

The City of York Council is wishing to redesign the way in which services respond at the first
sign of problems for children, families, communities and neighbourhoods. Evidence based
research into early intervention shows that if issues are tackled at an earlier time in a
family’s difficulties, there is a significant chance of preventing the need for more specialised
and therefore high cost services at a later stage. The issues that children and their families
can often present with are not the concern of just one service area, they range across
services and communities and require a more coordinated and understanding local
approach to supporting change.

In its simplest terms the business case for this project is to establish a new place based
operating model for early help services that takes an intelligence based, multi-agency
problem solving approach which is responsible for improving the outcomes for vulnerable
children, young people and their families, in their respective communities. The new model
must prevent escalation of problems and the need for high cost and specialist interventions.

The development of this new model is taking place against a back drop of financial pressure
on public spending and where the operating environment is changing rapidly for all
agencies. The model needs to be flexible and sustainable against the changing resource
base of the council and partners.



Page 258

BUDGET

In order to provide a balanced budget for 2016/17, and to contribute to a balanced outline
budget strategy for the years 2017/18 to 2019/20, all Directorates were required to identify
savings that could be made to contribute to the predicted reduction in resources. The
original savings profile attached to this project was for recurring reductions in the combined
budgets for the service areas within scope of this project of £1001k in 2016/17, £519k in
2017/18 and £87k in 2018/19, a total reduction over the three financial years of £1,607k. As
part of the council-wide scrutiny of savings proposals, and the initial high level of savings
targeted from these areas, a decision was made to reduce the saving in 2016/17 by £135k,
on a recurring basis, thus reducing the overall saving to £1,472k.

Following the announcement of a further £781k of transitional funding from the DCLG for
2016/17 and 2017/18, this savings target has been re-profiled to £566k in 2016/17, by
allocating £300k of this funding back into the revenue budgets of the services within scope
of this project for a further two years, with the £300k saving not now being delivered until
2018/19. This allows the opportunity to plan the implementation of the new model over a
longer timescale.

The driving force behind the establishment of Local Area Teams is to establish a new and
effective operating model. This model must be able to operate within the resources that are
allocated to it. The savings profile associated with the services that are in the scope of this
project is set out in the following table:

General Fund Budget in 2015/16 of services in scope £3,646k
2016/17 savings target £566k
2017/18 savings target £519k
2018/19 savings target £387k
Total savings to be achieved (40.4% of 2015/16 budget £1,472k

In addition, as part of the Capital Strategy for 2016/17 to 2019/20, approved by full Council
on 25 February 2016, an additional £100k was allocated into the Children’s Services Capital
Programme to allow further investment in buildings as required to assist in the delivery of
this programme.

The capacity to develop and deliver this new operating model will be drawn from existing
resources.



Page 259

SERVICES IN SCOPE OF THE NEW OPERATING MODEL

The proposed model for early help seeks to provide a step change from our existing
arrangements and find new and effective ways of working from pregnancy to adult hood.
Making these changes are essential given the importance of getting early help right in
preventing more costly interventions at a later stage and to deliver the required efficiencies
for this project.

It is proposed that the following distinct services within scope would be drawn together to
form Local Area Teams within communities of need and with an unrelenting focus on early
help.

e Castlegate

e Children’s Advice Team

e Children’s Centres

e Children’s Trust Unit

e Connexions

e Counselling Service

e Duke of Edinburgh

e Early Intervention Fund

e Family Focus

e Family Information Service

e Health Visitors

e Parenting Support

e Personal Support and Inclusion Service (Community)
e Personal Support and Inclusion Service (Castlegate)
e School Nursing

e Volunteer service

¢ Youth & Community Development Team

Services working with children, young people and families at a “statutory intervention” level
are not within the scope of this model. However the operating model needs to effectively
address any interface between the early help and statutory interventions.

It should be noted that School Nurses and Health Visitors formally transferred over to the
local authority from the 1% April 2016. These roles are key within the development of the
new model and will be part of the change as a result. However they should not be
considered “in scope” at this point of time in the same way that other services are.

Delivering early help is not the sole responsibility of the services listed above. Key partners
and other council departments play a critical role in the delivery of existing early help
arrangements. These partners include schools, childcare provision, voluntary community
groups etc. The implementation of a new model for early help arrangements will have a
significant impact on how these valued key partners operate. The engagement of these key
partners is explored later within this document.



Page 260

DEFINING EARLY HELP

The YorOK Early Help strategy (2014-2016) defines early help as:

Support during the early years of a child’s life. It also means intervening as soon as
possible when a child of any age needs additional support: investing early to prevent
more intrusive, and costly, later interventions.

Underlying our definition of early help is a common
understanding of levels of need which recognises that only a Statutory
small number of children and young people in York will need intervention
the most intensive sort of statutory intervention set out in
legislation. The vast majority will lead happy lives, with access
only to universal services available to the whole community. In
between these two groups, experience suggests there is a fluid VUInerabI_e /
group of vulnerable children and young people who may, for a preventative
range of reasons, experience temporary difficulties in their

lives. The fundamental purpose of the new operating model for
early help is to create an environment in which vulnerable
individuals are identified and engaged at the earliest point, so
that they and their families do not escalate to requiring a
statutory and costly intervention.

These three different levels are shown in the diagram on the right. For more information
about levels of need and thresholds please visit www.yor-ok.org.uk/thresholds.

The new operating model will seek to address identified early help needs in the
vulnerable and universal levels through a proportionate set of direct and indirect
interventions.

Although the new operating model will not reshape services at a statutory intervention level
there needs to be effective “step up and step down” procedures for families moving across
this threshold.

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN 2016-2020

The new Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP), 2016-2020, sets out our four priority
areas for action over the next four years. In drawing these up we have consulted widely,
reviewed the impact of local strategies and arrangements, evaluated progress and the
impact of our previous Plan, taken stock of current and emerging strategic priorities,
benchmarked our progress, and paid attention to ‘what works’ nationally, regionally and
locally.

10


http://www.yor-ok.org.uk/thresholds

Page 261

The four priority areas are:

e Early help

e Emotional and mental health
e Narrowing gaps in outcomes
e Priority groups

Early help has been a priority for the YorOK Board since its inception in 2003, and at the
core of all our children and young people’s plans. The principle of intervening early to
prevent problems emerging at a later date is widely accepted; during the consultation to
inform the new CYPP, it was strongly endorsed by families and by practitioners. Children,
young people, parents and carers said that they valued strong and supportive communities
and access to activities and services.

We remain committed to the provision of effective early help on a multi-agency basis, and
are investing in new models of delivery that are described in this document. We
acknowledge the challenges arising from a combination of expenditure reductions and
growing demands; nevertheless, we still believe strongly that investment in early help
actually represents long-term value for money for the tax-payer.

Overall responsibility for the delivery of effective early help is led by the YorOK Children’s
Trust Board which put in place a Early Help Strategy for 2014-2016, while the City of York
Safeguarding Children Board must be satisfied that York’s early help arrangements are
effective in safeguarding children and young people.

WHAT WE WANT TO ACHIEVE

We want to ensure that:

e More children and young people will have their needs identified, assessed and met at
the earliest stage that an intervention is needed;

e By a workforce that feels confident and equipped to respond to vulnerability and risk;

e Within schools, settings, and all services that support children, young people or their
families.

DEFINING OUR OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK

The proposed operating model for early help provides a much greater flexibility in how
services can respond to need. For example:

e Resources can be reallocated from one Local Area Team to another.

e Skills within teams can be more readily adapted in response to need.

e Funding can be used with partners to address needs identified either within a locality
or on a city wide basis.

This greater degree of flexibility is crucial in tackling the most important aspect of the new
model — improving outcomes.
11



Page 262

We will know we are achieving effective early help arrangements by “narrowing the gap” for
children and young people across a range of outcomes. The outcomes framework can
broadly be grouped under the following headings.

e Safety

e Achievement
e Health

e Economic

Work will be undertaken with the business intelligence hub to create a set of measurable
indicators under these headings. This outcomes framework will provide baseline
information to be combined with partners to inform service design/planning and delivery
for Local Area Teams and across the city.

The new Troubled Families outcomes framework will be drawn from the new outcomes
framework above. This will more strongly embed the Troubled Families agenda at the heart
of our early help arrangements.

THE RIGHT ENVIRONMENT FOR SAFE, RESILIENT AND ACHIEVING
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

The proposed new outcomes framework takes its foundations from two key theoretical
viewpoints to improving the lives of children; Maslow’s hierarchy of need, and the Young
Foundation model'. The hypothesis is that a whole family’s approach should have the child
at its heart. The child will then live a full and rounded life across their physical, social and
emotional environments.

The elements outlined below show how the new operating model must concentrate on
these aspects of a child’s environment, regardless of their age or maturity. For our children
and young people to have a chance to achieve, be safe and be resilient to have the following
needs met:

! Adapted from: McNeil, Reeder & Rich (2012) - “A Framework of Outcomes for Young People”,
Young Foundation] http://youngfoundation.org/publications/framework-of-outcomes-for-young-people/

12


http://youngfoundation.org/publications/framework-of-outcomes-for-young-people/

Page 263

Basic physical
care

Responsibility
and
independence

Parenting /
emotional

Positive social
networks &
communities

Education and
Employment

e Basic physical care — e.g. somewhere suitable to live, clothing, food etc.

e Health —e.g. living a healthy lifestyle, access to dental care, good mental health etc.

e Parenting / emotional — e.g. loving and nurturing parenting that develops resilience,
self-management, aspiration etc.

e Education and employment — e.g. a good quality education that equips a young
person for life, good employment opportunities and career prospects.

e Positive social networks and communities — The wider environment should be
supportive and encourage and develop aspiration.

e Safety — A child’s basic need to be safe and protected from harm should be in place.

e Responsibility and independence — Children and young people should be given the
opportunity to become responsible and independent in their decision making as they
grow.

These are the environmental factors required to ensure a child can have the best chance to
be safe, resilient and achieve their potential. If these factors are not in place we can begin to
see the definition of neglect and the beginning of long-term poor outcomes. Neglect is a

13



Page 264

strong and emotive word and is defined as when parents can not or will not meet a child’s
needs.

A strong link can also be made between these environmental factors and the development
of a child’s character and ability to be resilient. The Educational Excellence Everywhere2
white paper states:

“A 21st century education should prepare children for adult life by instilling the
character traits and fundamental.... values that will help them succeed: being
resilient and knowing how to persevere, how to bounce back if faced with failure, and
how to collaborate with others at work and in their private lives.

These traits not only open doors to employment and social opportunities but
underpin academic success, happiness and wellbeing.” - Educational Excellence
Everywhere

The points raised should resonate across a wide spectrum of services and groups who come
into contact with children and families for a whole variety of reasons. It should mean an
acknowledgement that the Local Area Teams are not the solution to all issues that present
and reinforce the concept of families as ‘everybody’s business’.

WHAT WE NEED TO TACKLE

What issues will undermine the environmental factors described above being in place for
children and young people? The answer to this is complex and will look different for
different families and in different areas of the city.

Significant factors which can undermine a good environment for a child and young person
are listed below. The list of factors is not exhaustive and nor are they the sole responsibility
of the Local Area Team, rather the Local Area Team can be considered to be part of the
wider multi-agency response to these challenges.

e Domestic abuse

e Substance misuse (parental and child/young person)

e Mental health (parental and child/young person)

e A poor start to life

e Poor physical health

e Risk of child sexual abuse and exploitation

e Debt / worklessness / Not in Education, Employment or Training

e Poor family engagement (e.g. isolation, poor school attendance, poor engagement
with support)

e Housing

e Parenting

2 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/educational-excellence-everywhere

14


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/educational-excellence-everywhere

Page 265

e Offending (adult or young person)

e Lack of family or community resilience
e Poor service delivery and silo working
e Poor transitions across the age stages

PLANNING FOR ACTION

Each Local Area Team would be expected to complete a Local Action Plan identifying
analysis of the need across families, communities and the themed areas identified. This
would require each LAT to work with partners to create that analysis and map existing
activity in their area for the different issues listed above. The LAT would work with partners
to build the Local Action Plan setting out the response in each area. These actions would
reflect the building blocks of the new operating model (problem solve, build capacity, direct
work).

An example line from a Local Action Plan is shown below:

Problem solve Build capacity Direct work Troubled families
indicator?
Domestic e Action taken e Actiontaken e Action taken Is this a troubled
violence — What to address to address to address families indicator
data tells us this by this by this by on our
about need in problem building direct work. framework?
this area. solving. capacity.

Each Local Action Plan will reflect the needs of the communities it works with. It is not
expected that a Local Action Plan will try and address every single issue listed previously.
More that it the Local Area Team should “know their patch” and work with communities to
better understand need and how to respond.

Given our knowledge of the importance of some key factors it is likely that some issues will
be mandatory on a Local Area Plan. These are:

e Ensuring the best start to life.
e Domestic abuse, substance misuse, mental health.
e Indicators included within our Troubled Families framework.

Fundamentally the clearest outcomes from this work will be seen in the numbers of families
requiring support from our statutory and high cost interventions (e.g. the number of
children in care and on child protection plans).

This approach to defining our outcomes, understanding need and planning for action has
been tested out in a number of multi-agency sessions with front line staff. This has allowed
us to both test the concept of what is proposed, prepare our staff for a new way of working
and to seek feedback on how the model could be improved. Feedback from staff has been
very positive and shown an endorsement for the approach proposed.

15



Page 266

OPERATING PRINCIPLES AND WHAT THE LOCAL AREA TEAMS WILL DO

It is helpful to consider what the Local Area Teams will do in respect of the existing features

of services ‘within scope’. When looking for commonality across the services that are within

scope their work can be considered to fall under one or more of the following key building

blocks:

Coordination/problem solving

Building capacity

Working with children, young people and families.

It is envisaged that the LATs will balance their approach to these building blocks in response

to need. However it is a clear aspiration that the model builds capacity and resilience within

communities and partners in order to reduce dependency on council services.

Proposed work of the Local Area Teams against these building blocks is explored below.

The early help operating principles set out for Local Area Teams:

How
we
work...
(our
culture)

Our culture — How we work
Our offer — What we do

Problem solve
We work to identify need
early. This means early in
age and early in emerging
vulnerability.
We understand what the
presenting need is for a
family or community, and
we consider how to build
resilience and draw upon
strengths and networks
around them.
We work together across
our partners as a single
team.
We establish and
encourage shared
outcomes across services.
We reduce silos in our
work by agreeing to flex
and be creative with our
resources to meet the

Build capacity
We recognise and use the
voluntary and community
sector to strengthen local
community networks for
families in need;
We responsibly share and
always seek new and
innovative ways to make
best use of local
resources.
We own our issues and
always seek to improve
ourselves and find
innovative solutions to
problems.
We take responsibility
with our partners for
making sure our
workforce have the right
skills.
build the understanding

Direct work
We no longer use a hero
mentality of “rescuing”
families. Families must
not be “done unto”.
When we work with
families we must be the
right people to do so.
When we work with
families our response
should be proportionate
to need.
We are enablers, to
reduce barriers and gain
equal access to
opportunities.

16




Problem solve
needs of the whole
family.

Page 267

Build capacity
that early help is
‘everybody’s business’
and realise the power of
our entire partnership
workforce in improving
outcomes for children

Direct work

Cross Voice — Listening to children young people and families is what we do. We improve how
cutting we work and design services through involvement of families.
culture Quality — We strive for the best quality possible from ourselves and partners. This should
be based on understanding what works to achieve good outcomes.
Safeguarding — We understand our boundaries and work together to ensure families are
safe. We ensure that the safety and protection of children and young people is
everybody’s business;
Outcomes — We make sure we can demonstrate the impact we have on the lives of
children through our work with families and local communities;
Problem solve Build capacity Direct work
What work with partners to work with local continue to work with
we identify need, broker and communities to build their partners to ensure families
do... coordinate solutions capacity to develop have access to universal
(our provide advice to resilience and reduce and targeted services in
offer) practitioners and families dependency and isolation their local area

on services and strategies
to prevent the escalation
of vulnerabilities

provide support and
challenge across localities
and to play a leading role
in driving the quality and
effectiveness of early help
work

to improve appropriate
information sharing
between partners to better
understand and respond to
the needs of families

make use of data and local
intelligence to practically
deploy resources with
partners in response to
presenting need

work with partners to
address gaps in available
early help interventions.
For example this could be
from finding new ways of
working in partnership or
through using funding to
build capacity in response
to need

work alongside the
voluntary and community
sector to ensure a truly
multi-agency response to
addressing the needs of
families and building
resilience

develop our volunteering
offer. We will look to make
better use of the potential
offered through volunteers
at a local level. This is seen
to be a critical feature of
sustaining the impact of
early help, securing

directly and indirectly
support families to access
proportionate levels of
information, advice and
guidance through a range
of medium, including web
based, telephone access,
community provision
promotion and face to face
support

Have a varied response to
direct work with children
and families — be it group
work, individual or whole
family in approach.
Negotiating and agreeing
the lead role and where
this is necessary, or where
contribution to wider plans
is the most helpful
approach.

17




Page 268

Problem solve Build capacity Direct work
community networks and
preventing families from
becoming stuck at an early
help level without
improvement

e provide support and
training to local partners in
order to ensure they have
the skills and knowledge
required to effectively
support families they work
with

PROPOSED MODEL FOR EARLY HELP ARRANGEMENTS

The proposed early help arrangements are represented by the illustration below:

Local Area Teams
Multi skilled
Skills reflect need
Multi agency

Strategic
Data

Quality assurance
City wide offer & coherence
Safeguarding

City Centre
Local Area Teams Young people Local Area Teams
Multi skilled offer Multi skilled
Skills reflect need Skills reflect need
Multi agency Multi agency

LOCAL AREA TEAMS

18



Page 269

The Local Area Teams will draw together existing services and roles into multi-skilled and
multi-agency services. It is not proposed that each Local Area Team looks exactly the same
and resource levels across the areas may change in response to need as this develops in the
years ahead.

MULTI-SKILLED TEAMS

It is clear from engagement with staff that they work creatively across structures to support
effective early help. It is proposed that we rationalise these structures and the number of
distinct roles within the new model. These roles should not be seen as ‘generic’ and should
be seen more as a reflection of the range of skills required for a whole family approach.

It is not proposed to have a single “Family worker” role however it is proposed that there
are a smaller number of distinct roles. It is to be decided how existing work could be
reshaped across these new roles. The three key delivery features explored in the ‘What the
Local Area Teams will do’ section provide a platform for considering what roles are required.

SKILLS REFLECTING NEED

By moving towards a smaller range of multi-skilled roles this gives the LATs the flexibility to
develop their teams to respond to local needs. This means that staff are able to access a
wider range of workforce development opportunities in order to respond to the needs of
local areas.

MULTI-AGENCY

As well as drawing together council services that are within scope of the LATs the intention
will be to provide a base for a wider range of multi-agency partners to come together within
localities. This would practically mean for example Police Community Support Officers or
Housing Support staff can ‘touch down’ within the LATs accessing data and improving real-
time information sharing and more coordinated work with other practitioners engaging with
families in that area.

SHARED OUTCOMES

A large consensus from staff in a range of services was to have smarter ways of bringing
together the outcomes for services, ensuring that all objectives in improving family
outcomes were understood, prioritised and sequenced appropriately. For example, working
together to maintain a family tenancy, reduce anti-social behaviour and address parental
mental health all need to be sequenced to achieve the best outcome for the family.

19



Page 270

PROCESS MAPPING AND THE DEVELOPING RESPONSE MAP

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

A series of process mapping exercises were undertaken with several services from across
the city; this ranged from early years, schools and community and adult services, from
voluntary to statutory focused services. The objective was to establish some learning around
the common systems and practices of a variety of services looking to improve outcomes for
children and families at an early intervention level. The report provides some highlighted
findings from the work undertaken and provides recommendations for developing multi-
agency approaches to the new operating model for prevention and early interventions
services in the City.

The findings have highlighted two main schools of thought which are reflected throughout
the detail below.

The first is related to actual systems and process from which a new operating model for
prevention and early intervention services can learn to build a tangible new process system
across city partners.

The second shows how the work has highlighted other key issues which will impact on the
success of developing a new route map for this area of work. Particular messages are
related to culture and practice behaviour, workforce and organisational development, as
well as some considerations for strategic approaches to deploying and commissioning
resources to improve outcomes for families in need.

PROCESS MAP FINDINGS

The visual representation on the following page gives a high level view of the findings from
the exercises and a broad identification of where partners need to focus to ensure a more
streamlined approach to a new early intervention model.

20



Process Map

: What we found from the E
| mapping. The ways we behave. !
: What we focus on. !
1

Self referred

Single Assessment

Because they have
to...
Data tracking

The long
term
strategy
for
complex

1
1
Own Agency Tool |
FEHA |
i Domestic Abuse
Parental SMU
Mental health and
health

Engagement and
Compliance
Consent
difficulties?

Review of common

Patterns and themes
identified as gaps in our
approaches

No clear evidence
of tangible,
measurable
outcomes

______________

reduce, be flexible.
Challenge criteria,
extended hours?

Sequence
interventions and
understand each
agency outcome

Need creative
flexible solutions
including use of
carrot and stick

E

i

> i

Better data set :

access and i assessments
- ! .

proactive use and i required reduce
targeting '. amount and size

v

Timescales —

Needs coordinated
workforce
development,
commissioning and
resource

Thresholds — how
can we be more
flexible? Need to
better manage
drift and anxiety

Show short and
long term changes.
What's really
different? Plan exit
from the start

PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL v2.0

]

21

T/ abed



Page 272

THE DEVELOPING EARLY INTERVENTION RESPONSE MAP

Responses to the process mapping exercises confirmed a revised way of looking at our
prevention route map and how we propose a process moving forward. The key fundamental
thoughts are:

e Create active understanding of need — not just wait for families to appear in crisis

e Acknowledge that some families will require long-term, generational responses
rather than a ‘start’ and ‘finish’ to their relationship with multiple services.

e That flexible and active responses are cyclical in approach

e Ensuring that the right questions are asked, and the right support and challenge
offered allows families and services to understand the true extent of what is needed,
and at what time

An initial view of how the early intervention route map may begin to take shape is offered
on the following page:

22



LOCAL AREA TEAMS RESPONSE MAP

Need identified through:
e Practitioner
e Data
e Child / young person
e Family
e Community

Preventative and universal
capacity building through:
e Practitioner
e Data
¢ Voice
e Community/Voluntary

________________

“Front Door”

arrangements
4 N
Statutory
Interventions
\§ | J
Referral &
Assessment
Teams
o %
N
Yes
J
[
~N
Is it
safeguarding?
J
( I N\
No
J
N
Local Area
Team
/

O )

Managing
risk

Step up /
down
process

1

Operating principles and culture

“Children and Young People are at the heart of our city and of everything we do”

- Problem-Solve and Coordinate

No progress - Stuck / drifting
Safeguarding

KNhole Family response - Considerations\

e What is the need?

lasting?

M NN Y RS2

Y

History/other service involvement?

Available interventions — creative,
individualised use of all resources?
e What is proportionate and timely?

K Stuck / drifting?

e What are the outcomes — short & long

/

mocality need response - Considerations \

e Joint and agreed approach?
¢ Needs analysis commissioning
response?

e Community engagement in problem
solving local need?

- Build Capacity

Outcomes met

Plan — Do —

- Review

Live interventions

1

Proportionate
Flexible
Creative
response

- Direct Work

Maintain
universal

response

Practice builds capacity and resilience?j

\ 4

23

¢/ abed



Page 274

THE CITY WIDE EARLY HELP OFFER

The proposed Local Area Teams will be established within, and focussed primarily upon 3
areas of identified need. These will be the areas of

e Westfield
e (Clifton
e Heworth/Hull Road

However the operation of the LATs will not be limited to these areas and it is expected that
the “reach” of the LATs will ensure that there is an effective early help offer across the
whole local authority area.

Families across York should expect that the early help arrangements which are put in place
have a consistent level of quality across the city; this does not mean every family requires
the same level of support but that support is effective, good quality and proportionate to
need regardless of where families live.

The map below shows the proposed reach of each locality area.

@ North (6)
] East (7)
M West (8)

0 2
™
kilometres

Scale: 1:104,500

The next table shows how these areas have ranked according to need across a range of
indicators underneath each theme area. It shows that by splitting the city in this way we
achieve a reasonable balance across levels of need and population size.

24



Page 275

Area % Total Rank by % Need

Population | Adults Children Communities | Crime / ASB | Economics | Health
North 34.47% 3(28.58%) | 2 (28.66%) | 2 (31.01%) 2(36.09%) | 2(30.31%) | 1(42.04%)
East 28.25% 2 (33.16%) | 3 (27.56%) | 3 (26.56%) 3(24.21%) | 3(27.60%) | 3 (25.97%)
West 37.29% 1(38.26%) | 1(43.78%) | 1(42.43%) |1(39.71%) | 1(42.09%) | 2 (31.99%)

To ensure a cohesive city wide early help offer it is proposed that there is a degree of

coordination provided centrally. The purpose of this central function would be to ensure:

e Strategic coordination of the city wide early help offer, linking to partners through
the Health and Well-being Board, the YorOK Board and the City of York Safeguarding
Children’s Board arrangements.

e Quality assurance of the early help offer across the city. Families across York should

expect that the early help arrangements which are put in place should have a

consistent level of quality.

o Effective use of data. There are significant data requirements which underpin the

work of the LATs by way of identifying families in need of support, evidencing

outcomes and claiming Performance By Results (PBR) funding linked to the

governments Troubled Families programme. Rather than create new data roles

within the Local Area Teams there would need to be clear links back to the central

business intelligence teams at the council as well as understanding how best to use

partner data, systems and knowledge to effectively share information.

e City wide commissioning and capacity building. Although it is expected the majority

of work to build capacity within communities will happen within localities

themselves there is likely to be a need to address gaps in capacity at a city-wide level

as well. This may happen through city wide commissioning of support to tackle key

issues such as domestic violence, support to carers etc. It is proposed to consolidate

opportunities such as the Early Intervention Fund, Better Play Grants and YorPart

funding together in order to simplify arrangements for community groups and

services to access support.

e Strong links to safeguarding arrangements. The early help model must have

appropriate links with statutory safeguarding arrangements in the city. The central

function would play a key role in addressing any identified challenges around step up

and step down interfaces with safeguarding arrangements. The central function

would also play a role in ensuring that risk is being managed appropriately by the

Local Area Teams.

THE DELIVERY OF THE TROUBLED FAMILIES PROGRAMME

The Troubled Families programme is a flagship government policy which is known locally as

Family Focus. The Family Focus Programme aims to support families who have multiple and

often complex needs through a whole family approach.

25| Page




Page 276

Phase two of the expanded programme will support families with a wider range of needs,
including:

e Parents and children involved in crime or anti-social behaviour.

e Children who have not been attending school regularly.

e Children who need help: children of all ages, who need help, are identified as in need
or are subject to a Child Protection Plan.

e Adults out of work or at risk of financial exclusion or young people at risk of
worklessness.

e Families affected by domestic violence and abuse.

e Parents and children with a range of health problems.

This area of work can also provide income for the local authority though a national Payment
By Results (PBR) framework for Troubled Families.

This area of work will be a central element of the new early help arrangements:

e Supporting the families within scope of this programme to address their needs is
central to achieving our ambitions for early help.

e The significant funding linked to achieving these outcomes for families is required to
sustain early help services.

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

Staff engagement has shown strongly the need to get workforce development right within
the new operating model. Some headline features of a future workforce development plan
are outlined below.

WORKFORCE WITHIN THE LATS

A skills audit will be carried out with staff transitioning into new roles within the LATs. This
would be to ensure that appropriate training and development opportunities are put in
place. The skills audit should reflect upon the skills required to meet identified need.

As staff move into more multi-skilled rolls a “common core” of skills and knowledge will be
established for this workforce. A workforce development plan will address how all staff
working within LAT arrangements will achieve this common core.

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S WORKFORCE

An existing training offer relating to early help has been developed and is generally well
regarded. The biggest challenge is the capacity to train the wider workforce required and
their engagement with the training offer.

26 |Page



Page 277

A training strategy for the wider workforce relating to early help must be developed. This
should consider how best to deliver training in ways that do not necessarily rely on
traditional models of training.

EARLY HELP — “EVERYBODY’S BUSINESS”

Beyond the children and young people’s workforce the workforce development plan will
address how the entirety of the local workforce/population would be engaged with the
agenda of early help. This would focus on:

e What they can do to support early help and build resilience
e Understand what support is available and how to access it
e Know what to do if they have a concern

COMMISSIONING / BUILDING CAPACITY

It is proposed that the response to commissioning and building capacity takes place on a city
wide basis and also within each Local Area Team as appropriate. Capacity would be
identified to progress this work at a central level but also within each LAT.

COMMISSIONING OUTCOMES

Existing commissioning funds operated by the council and relating to early help should be
consolidated as far as possible. A new approach and definition of “commissioning” in
response to need will be developed. This will:

e Move away from passive re-commissioning from one year to the next.

e Find appropriate balance in the length of time services are commissioned for. This
could range from two to three years down to short term pieces of work.

e Astronger focus on commissioning outcomes rather than prescribing delivery.

e Seek toincrease capacity and range of interventions. In particular a greater number
of proportionate interventions available at different levels of need. Thresholds for
interventions are still too often meaning families can not access the required support
in a timely manner.

e Seek to combine resources with other sources. In particular seeking to use
commissioning funding alongside ward funding or school funding. A common
framework for how to work with partners and schools on commissioning will make
clear how funding could be used. This is important to avoid establishing
unsustainable or inefficient use of funds. For example any combined commissioning
pot should not be viewed as a means by which others can reduce their spending on
early help.

27 |Page



Page 278

VOLUNTEER OFFER

Currently the local authority has a range of volunteering opportunities relating to service
areas in scope. It is also recognised that more could be done to make use of a strong
volunteering offer to build better resilience within families and communities.

Local Area Teams will play a pivotal role working alongside others to build capacity in the
voluntary and community sector in response to need. LATs will also directly operate specific
volunteer programmes. The volunteer programmes delivered by the Local Area Teams will
provide a number of volunteer roles with the aim of improving resilience. For example
parent mentors providing one-to-one support for families or running groups.

BUILDING CAPACITY WITHIN THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY
SECTOR

The intention is not to duplicate the role of organisations such as CVS (Council for Voluntary
Service) who will continue to provide overarching support for the voluntary and community
sector. Rather the LATs will:

e Work with local voluntary and community partners to respond to the needs of
families

e Build partnerships between voluntary and community partners and others working
in the arena of early help.

e Use the new approach to “commissioning” described above to support the
development of the voluntary and community sector to address need.

INTERFACE TO STATUTORY INTERVENTIONS

It is vitally important to ensure the safety of children and to deliver strong outcomes that
the new Local Area Teams link seamlessly with statutory and social care interventions. It is
also important support for families matches the need that is present. This means that
safeguarding issues should continue to receive an appropriate safeguarding response. It also
means that an early intervention level issue should be responded to with a proportionate
early intervention.

Detailed process mapping described earlier in this report has worked to understand our
processes and scope for improvement. It is not sensible to lay out the detailed process maps
for how this interacts with statutory level interventions. Rather here are some principals on
which the process maps will be based:

e Anyone with safeguarding concerns should have the opportunity to discuss them
with a social worker where appropriate.

28| Page



Page 279

e We will improve the confidence and capacity of our partners to respond first through
our early help arrangements before turning to a formal referral where this may not
be the best or ultimately required, response.

e In our drive to ensure we respond to concerns at the right level we must put in place
measures to ensure inappropriate risk is not being carried at an early help level. This
must be about getting the right response not early help acting as a gatekeeper.

VOICE

The YorOK Children’s Trust and City of York Safeguarding Children’s Board places the
Involvement and Participation of children, young people and families at the core of its work,
and has adopted the following vision statement:

Children and young people are at the heart of our strategic arrangements. We are
committed to ensuring that children and young people have a voice in decision-
making, planning, commissioning, design and delivery of services.

The new arrangements for early help have been informed by our existing work to hear and
respond to the needs of children, young people and families. In establishing the new
Children and Young People’s Plan families identified access to early help as a priority area.

“Support services seem to be very good once you can get into 'the system'. There is
little support for those just on the outside and it seems that in some cases support is
only available once someone is at breaking point. It would be better to focus more on
early intervention and prevention rather than cures”

A York Mum.
“When | was 9 and we ran away from me Dad. That’s when you should have got me.”

A young offender, asked about when early help could have helped him.

In the implementation and delivery of early help some further consideration should be given
as to:

e Voice at an individual level — The 2015 Review of Voice showed that the quality of
“voice” within early help assessments was too variable and, despite some
improvements, in need of development. As such the new operating model must
ensure it addresses the issue of ensuring good quality and effective voice
arrangements for children, young people and families receiving early help services.

e Voice at a group and community level — The services that will be redeveloped to
form the new operating model already offer a range of voice opportunities. Through
parent involvement in governance arrangements to participative opportunities such

29| Page



Page 280

as the Youth Council and Young Inspectors. The new model will build into its
operation meaningful group and community level voice opportunities.

Voice at a strategic level — Children and young people’s voice is a priority for the
entirety of the YorOK workforce not just those working within the Local Area Team:s.
The strategic oversight for voice for both the YorOK Board and CYSCB is within the
scope of this review. The design of the new operating model and Local Area Teams
can be demonstrated to have been strongly influenced by feedback from children,
young people and families. This can be particularly seen in the development of our
city wide and city centre offer to young people and through the children’s centre
consultation.

30| Page



Page 281

ANNEX B

YORK CHILDREN’S CENTRE SERVICES
CONSULTATION

BACKGROUND

As part of the development of new Local Area Teams City of York Council Executive agreed
to undertake a public consultation on the future of children’s centre services. This report
provides a summary of how this public consultation was carried out and the feedback
received.

SUMMARY

The public consultation has shown a strong endorsement for our proposals.

e 95% of respondents either ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with the proposal to do
more when families need more.

e 93% of respondents either ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with the proposal to ensure
support for all families.

e 79% of respondents either ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with the proposal to make
the best use of our buildings and staff.

Reflecting upon all of the feedback received it is proposed that we now revise our children’s
centre offer so that it focuses on improving outcomes for all families and provides families
with the highest levels of need with more focused support. We will build that offer into the
wider work of new Local Area Teams. A summary of the proposed offer is shown below and
more detailed description is provided within this paper.

It is proposed:

That Local Area Teams ensure that all families are able to access groups and support in
their community, wherever that is. The offer to all families will be made up of health visitor
services, voluntary and community led groups offering support, learning and social
activities, good or better quality childcare and early year’s education and good quality
information to help families understand what is available.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 1



Page 282

That wherever families have a higher level of need that we can provide more support. This
cuts to the heart of our new Local Area Teams purpose. Local Area Teams will work with
families, communities and a range of partner agencies to address emerging needs at an
early stage, wherever that may be. Local Area Teams will make a much broader offer to
families by providing a continuity of support from pregnancy right through to adult hood. All
agencies will work together in a local area to share information to secure the best possible
outcomes for families. Local services will work together to be there when families reach out
for support and will also pro-actively identify and engage families in need.

That families can access the right support, in the right place, at the right time. The
consultation has clearly shown that residents want provision to be in place for all families
and that when more support is needed that this is available. The delivery of this offer should
not be limited to existing children’s centre buildings. We will build on our work to reach out
to communities in response to need throughout York. We must have an unrelenting focus
on delivering the best possible services with families throughout our city. It is therefore
proposed to change the designation of six of our children’s centre buildings to allow them to
be used more flexibly (to cover the age range 0-19) in response to the needs of families and
communities.

To be clear this means that those buildings can continue to deliver the types of groups and
services that they do today. If we change designation it means that buildings could then also
be made available for a range of other provision including: developing new childcare in
areas where this is needed, by schools to deliver high quality learning environments, by
community groups and organisations. The offer from the buildings will provide
opportunities to extend opportunities to children and young people across the 0-19 age
range, rather than being restricted to 0-5. How we all use these buildings and others in the
future will be shaped by the needs of the communities they serve. By changing how we use
our buildings we can make best use of these spaces in communities. We can also improve
our efficiency and effectiveness by reducing the amount of time and money our staff need
to spend on looking after buildings. In doing so we can maximise our staff time and
resources on what families need and will make the greatest difference.

The early years offer and the wider offer made by Local Area Teams will respond to need.
We will base ourselves in the areas of York with the highest identified need but must work
throughout York wherever we are needed. This means we need to look not just at what we
deliver through our children’s centre buildings but what we deliver from any council
building, any partner building and also what we deliver in families homes.

We are therefore proposing that we take forward the development of our new early years
and 0-19 offer through Local Area Teams. In doing so we propose:

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 2



Page 283

e That all nine sites are re-named and re-launched as a range of children and
family centres that enable more flexible and responsive provision which
aligns with local community activity and use.

e Maintain 3 children and family centre resources as designated ‘children’s
centres’ with the statutory responsibility for ensuring the delivery of
integrated early childhood services across the city. These centres will be the
main bases for the Local Area Teams.

CONTEXT

STATUTORY EXPECTATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN’S CENTRE SERVICES

The 2006 Childcare Act’ instigated the development of children’s centres across the country.
Statutory guidance from 2013 provides the current definition of a children’s centre?.

A Sure Start children’s centre is defined in the Childcare Act (2006) as a place or a
group of places:

e which is managed by or on behalf of, or under arrangements with, the local
authority with a view to securing that early childhood services in the local
authority’s area are made available in an integrated way;

e through which early childhood services are made available (either by
providing the services on site, or by providing advice and assistance on
gaining access to services elsewhere); and

e at which activities for young children are provided.

It follows from the statutory definition of a children’s centre that children’s centres
are as much about making appropriate and integrated services available, as it is
about providing premises in particular geographical areas.

Local Authorities are also expected to ensure “sufficient” children’s centres, as defined
above. The 2013 statutory guidance states:

Local authorities must ensure there are sufficient children’s centres, so far as
reasonably practicable, to meet local need. Local need is the need of parents,
prospective parents and young children in the authority’s area.

As a statutory minimum children’s centre services must provide the following to children
and families from birth to 1st September after the child’s 5th birthday: focus on early

! http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/21/contents
2

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/273768/childrens_centre_st
at_guidance_april_2013.pdf

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 3



Page 284

learning; information and activities for families; adult learning and employment support;
integrated child and family health services and targeted parenting and Inclusion services
(including family support).

It should be noted that central government has ‘paused’ a consultation expected last year
on the future of children’s centres. The consultation will include a discussion of what
accountability framework is needed to best demonstrate the effect of children’s centres. In
light of this, the Department for Education have agreed with Ofsted to pause the children’s
centre inspection cycle, pending the outcome of the consultation. The government is now
expected to launch this consultation in summer 2016.

Any changes to the children’s centre offer will be informed by a public consultation ahead of
a decision taken by elected members on the council Executive. Current children’s centre
statutory guidance from 2013 states:

“Local authorities must ensure there is consultation before:
e opening a new children’s centre;

e making a significant change to the range and nature of services provided
through a children’s centre and / or how they are delivered, including
significant changes to services provided through linked sites; and

e closing a children’s centre; or reducing the services provided to such an extent
that it no longer meets the statutory definition of a Sure Start children’s
centre.”

CAPITAL COSTS

York is not alone in looking at how to make the best use of its children’s centre buildings. It
has been seen in a small number of cases that the DfE has clawed back capital costs
associated with the original development of children’s centres following their change of use.
Guidance from the DfE states:

“Claw-back of funding is triggered where an asset funded wholly or partly by DfE is
disposed of, or the asset is no longer used to meet the aims and objectives consistent
with the Sure Start Early Years and Childcare Grant (SSEYCG) or Aiming High for
Disabled Children Grant (AHDC).

Local authorities must notify the Department for Education of any plans to dispose of
grant funded assets. Local authorities should operate on the presumption that claw-
back will be enforced. However, subject to prior approval from the DfE, claw-back
may be waived or deferred where an asset is sold and the proceeds are reinvested in
another asset for a similar purpose consistent with the aims of the grant.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 4



Page 285

Disposal means a sale, transfer, or change of use of a capital asset. It includes the
transfer of ownership of a lease, or freehold assets.

Further information on the disposal of assets and invocation of claw-back can be
found in paragraphs 33 to 45 of the Capital Guidance.”

The total potential claw back figure for York is £4.3m. As stated in the Executive paper given

our proposed plans satisfy the guidance above we can be confident that we should not

expect to see us being subject to any capital claw back. The Legal Implications section of the

Executive paper provides further detail on our position. A breakdown of the capital claw

back exposure for each site is listed below.

Centre / Scheme Total (£) |

ICC Ph 2 - Haxby Road Primary 78,693.88
ICC Ph 2 - New Earswick 337,277.69
ICC Ph 3 - Knavesmire 573,501.53
ICC Ph 3 - Hurst Hall (New Earswick Satellite) 4,206.98

ICC Ph 3 - Westfield (centre extension) 329,327.10
ICC Ph 3 - Derwent Schools (Avenues Satellite) 167,811.53
ICC Ph 2 - Tang Hall (Avenues) 1,467,123.61
ICC Ph 3 - New Earswick 62,522.65
ICC Ph 2/3 - St Lawrence's 631,876.70
ICC Ph 2 - Carr 448,355.47
Clifton Green Neighbourhood Nursery 265,000.00
Total 4,365,697.14

CHILDREN’S CENTRE CONSULTATION

The children’s centre consultation was carried out between the 20™ of April and the 25" of

May. The consultation was promoted through a number of different channels to encourage

as many families as possible to take part. These included:

All families registered with children’s centres and Family Information Service being
encouraged to take part

Families attending groups or accessing children’s centre services encouraged to take
part.

Children’s centre staff carrying out the consultation with families.

Promotion through children’s centres, Family Information Service and the council’s
social media channels.

Promotion through information screens in council buildings.

Advertising the consultation on the council, YorOK and children’s centre websites.
Through the YorOK newsletter sent to over 2,000 practitioners who work with
children, young people and families in York.

CHILDREN’S CENTRES AND LOCAL AREA TEAMS

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 5



Page 286

The consultation carried out this year sought feedback on proposals to remodel the delivery
of children’s centre services within the context of Local Area Teams.

The new Local Area Teams will bring together a wide range of community based multi-
agency services in response to need. These services will work alongside other agencies with
families from pregnancy though to when young people reaching adult hood (18 years old or
25 years old for disabled children and young people).

Local Area Teams will work with communities and all other agencies working in different
parts of York to:

e Work with families — Provide support to families that is responsive and
proportionate to need. This will not be restricted to pre-school children but will also
relocate other services into communities to provide support through to when young
people reach 18 years old (25 years old for disabled children and young people).
Work with families will not be restricted to existing sites and will make use of a range
of appropriate venues across York including where necessary family’s homes.

e Problem solve / coordinate — The range of different services that operate across
York for families is huge and often complex to navigate. This complexity can lead to
delays in accessing support, duplication and inefficiencies resulting in poorer
outcomes for families. Local Area Teams will play a leading role in systematically
problem solving these challenges so that families can access the right support at the
right time. This will also result in improved joined up working between different
agencies which is critical given the need to continue to improve efficiency.

e Build capacity and resilience — Building resilience in families and communities is the
long term aim of the Local Area Teams. The Local Area Teams can act as a catalyst
and instigator to help build capacity in communities to achieve this. This could take
the form of supporting new community led groups to establish, working with other
agencies or commissioning services in response to need.

The consultation was completed online or in hard copy 981 times. In addition to this further
written submissions and comments were received. It should be noted that any quantitative
analysis made in this document draws upon responses received online or in hard copy.
Further context provided by written responses received is highlighted where relevant.

RESULTS OF THE CONSULTATION

PROFILE OF RESPONDENTS

The majority of respondents were parents and carers, followed by practitioners and then by
residents (not including parents and carers). The breakdown of respondents is shown below.
Please note that as this, as is the case with other profiling questions, was not answered by
every respondent.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 6



Page 287

Are you... (Please tick) Total Percentage
A parent / carer 683 85%

A practitioner/service provider 115 14%

A resident (not including 9 1%
parents/carers)

Total 807

The table below shows us that the percentage of parents and carers taking part with a
disability is lower then the York average. Conversely we can see a higher than expected

number of parents and carers of disabled children and young people taking part.

Are you disabled or do you have additional needs? Total Response Census
Percentage  Profile®

No 730 95.93% 89.82%

Prefer not to say 20 2.63% -

Yes 11 1.45% 10.18%

Total 761

Are any of your children disabled or have additional Total Response ' Census

needs? Percentage  Profile®

No 650 86.21% 97.09%

Prefer not to say 32 4.24% -

Yes 72 9.55% 2.91%
754

We can also see from the table below that the ethnic profile of those taking part broadly
reflects the profile we would expect for York.

What is your ethnic background? Response  Census

Percentage Profile’
White British 658 86.69% 90.20%
White Other 51 6.72% 3.50%
Other (please specify) 22 2.90% 1.90%
White and Asian 6 0.79% 0.40%
White Irish 6 0.79% 0.60%
Chinese 4 0.53% 1.20%
White and Black African 3 0.40% 0.20%
White and Black Caribbean 3 0.40% 0.30%
Asian Indian 2 0.26% 0.80%
Asian Pakistani 2 0.26% 0.20%
Asian Bangladeshi 1 0.13% 0.20%
Black African 1 0.13% 0.50%
Total 759

%2011 Census - Long term health problem or disability by sex by age
#2011 Census - Ethnic group

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 7



Page 288

Respondents were asked to provide their home postcode so that feedback could be profiled

against different areas of York. The following table shows the wards that different responses
were received from. It should be noted that 97 of the postcodes provided could not be
exactly matched to a ward. This could be a variety of reasons including an invalid postcode

or not enough of the postcode being given to determine which ward it should be counted in.

Although not exclusively so we can see that in wards where there is less of an existing

children’s centre services presence there has been a lower response compared to other

areas. This would suggest that whatever is taken forward as the new early years offer

should work to ensure families across York are engaged.

Ward Number of responses

Acomb Ward 39
Bishopthorpe Ward 18
Clifton Ward 32
Copmanthorpe Ward 7
Dringhouses & Woodthorpe Ward 41
Fishergate Ward 21
Fulford & Heslington Ward 17
Guildhall Ward 16
Haxby & Wigginton Ward 17
Heworth Ward 52
Heworth Without Ward 15
Holgate Ward 58
Hull Road Ward 20
Huntington & New Earswick Ward 30
Micklegate Ward 70
Osbaldwick & Derwent Ward 16
Rawcliffe & Clifton Without Ward 21
Rural West York Ward 11
Strensall Ward 13
Unknown 97
Westfield Ward 85
Wheldrake Ward 3
Grand Total 699

The final profiling table shows the age profile of children of respondents. It is clear that
many families have children at different ages and stages. Feedback would suggest that

purely providing support in relation to one child or age can be less effective than delivering

a child centred response which reflects on the needs of the entire family.

Age Range " Number of children

0-2 years

413

2-4 years

360

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 8



Page 289

In primary school 224
In secondary school 92
16-19 years 62
Yes No Prefer not to say
Are you pregnant? 48 617 31

FEEDBACK ON PROPOSALS

The consultation carried out this summer put forward in detail how these proposals would
develop the existing offer from children’s centre services. The proposals were put forward
under three key headings:

Ensuring support for all families — How the Local Area Teams will ensure that all
families are able to access support.

Do more when families need more — That when families have a greater need of
support that we can respond alongside our partners to do more.

Make the best use of our buildings and staff - We proposed that by creating new
Local Area Teams we would locate our services in communities and work right across
York. Two key features of this proposal were:

o That we review our use of buildings and associated costs in order to make the
best us of our staff.

o That by expanding the children’s centre offer into Local Area Teams that we
would need to explore if all of our buildings should continue to be
independently registered with the government as "Children's Centres".

A copy of the consultation used is provided at the end of this paper and shows in detail how

these proposals were described to members of the public.

The chart below shows the breakdown of how much respondents agreed or disagreed with
the responses being put forward. The results clearly show a strong endorsement of the
proposals.

95% of respondents either ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with the proposal to do
more when families need more.

93% of respondents either ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with the proposal to ensure
support for all families.

79% of respondents either ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with the proposal to make
the best use of our buildings and staff.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 9



Page 290

Making the best use of our
buildings and staff

Do more when families
need more

Ensure support for all

Agreement with proposals

families |
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
Ensure support Do mgre when Making the best
for all families families need use of our
more buildings and staff
m Strongly agree 65% 66% 47%
Agree 28% 29% 32%
Neither agree nor disagree 4% 3% 10%
B Disagree 2% 1% 8%
m Strongly disagree 1% 0% 3%

More detailed feedback against each proposal is explored below.

ENSURING SUPPORT FOR ALL FAMILIES

There was strong endorsement from families that the redeveloped early years offer made
by Local Area Teams should ensure support for all families (93% either ‘strongly agreed’ or

‘agreed’).

The consultation asked families what provision they accessed in their communities with
their children. The responses to this question are shown in the chart below. This data tells
us a number of things. Firstly, that there is a diverse range of community provision available
to families and that families regularly access this provision.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 10



Page 291

Parent Track/Healthy Child Programme...

Children's Centre group led by Children's...

Recreational activities for the whole family

Appointment with speech and language...
Children's Centre worker visits me at home

Services accessed

A library, other community venue for...

Activities for under-fives (e.g. music,...
Health visitor in my home

Childcare provision (childminder, day...

Toddler group or play activity runin a...
Drop-in session run by health visitors
Appointment with a midwife

Children's Centre group led by...

Internet parent support groups and...

Appointment with registrar

| don't access any of these
Other (please specify)

0 200 400 600

The importance of ensuring support for all families was underlined in comments received by

children’s centre staff and to the children’s services feedback email address.

Families fed back that they would like to see the existing community and parent led
offer continue. Feedback from a drop in session at a children’s centre highlighted
that many parents, especially new parents, come to the volunteer run groups to get
out the house, make new friends (both for the parents and the children) and some
parents were worried there will be nothing left for them if these groups go. They felt
it was important to keep them.

Parents also expressed concern about the potential costs to access different groups.
Feedback suggested that the developing offer made by community and parent led
groups worked best when costs to families to attend groups was kept as low as
possible.

One suggestion included encouraging accessible groups for working parents at times
outside of working hours: “I support the review and changes. For me one of the most
useful changes would be to increase the times of the day or days of the week that |
can access the services. Parenting isn’t 9-5 and | am a full time working mum with a
long commute daily so my weekdays are very long.”

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 11




Page 292

DO MORE WHEN FAMILIES NEED MORE

The proposal to ‘do more when families need more’ received strong endorsement with 95%
of respondents saying they ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with the proposal. It is clear that
the early years offer made by Local Area Teams must be able to identify and support
families at times where more support is required.

Comments made through the consultation supported this proposal.

e “The children’s centre were my link to the outside world and helped me to see the
light at the end of the tunnel”

e “Been really helpful for us. Never used to like to ask for help but have started to and
nice to have someone suggest things alongside us rather than do to us.”

The chart below shows the profile of families taking part in the consultation. It is clear that
many families have children at different ages and stages. Feedback would suggest that
purely providing support in relation to one child or age can be less effective than delivering
a child centred response which reflects on the needs of the entire family.

Number of children by age

450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100

50

0-2 years 2-4 years In primary In secondary 16-19 years
school school

MAKING THE BEST USE OF OUR BUILDING AND STAFF

The feedback made clear that families value the quality of the staff delivering services.

e “Ireally appreciate the care and support to me and my children”
e “Been really helpful for us”

There was strong endorsement for ‘making the best use of buildings and staff’ with 79% of
respondents stating they either ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with the proposal. The level of

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 12



Page 293

endorsement is not as emphatic as for the other proposals but is still very strong with only
11% stating they 'Disagree’ or ‘Strongly disagree’.

From reviewing comments made alongside the consultation there are some important
themes to reflect upon.

e That value is placed on having staff in place and able to respond to need as opposed
to unmanned or underused buildings.

e That people endorse the exploration of alternative arrangements for buildings as
long as it doesn’t undermine the first two proposals (ensuring support for all families
and doing more when families need more).

e That we should explore other opportunities for where families can access support in
communities right across York and not limit delivery to existing children’s centre
buildings.

e That some concern was put forward about using the same space for direct work with
young children and older young people. It is not proposed to have a single building
which is the only point of delivery. The proposal is to make use of a range of
locations across York which would be suitable for the delivery of services that are
age appropriate.

THE PROPOSED EARLY YEARS OFFER WITHIN LOCAL AREA TEAMS

We want to create new Local Area Teams which can work alongside communities to support
families. The new teams will expand beyond the offer that children’s centres alone currently
make to families.

We are proposing that by creating new Local Area Teams we will:

e Ensure support for families in the crucial early years of a child’s life but also for
families with children up to 19 years old (or 25 years old for disabled children and
young people)

e Locate more of our services in communities where families need them.

e Spend as much time as possible working with families.

e Work throughout York where families need us.

The following sections outline in more detail the early years offer made by Local Area Teams
in response to the outcome of the public consultation.

ENSURING SUPPORT FOR ALL FAMILIES

It is proposed that following consultation, work to ensure support for all families is taken
forward by the Local Area Teams. This specifically means:

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 13



Page 294

That Health visitor and school nursing services (as part of the 0-19 healthy child
service) continue for all families and integrate with Local Area Teams.

That the Local Area Teams dedicate identified capacity to support community and
partner run groups to become established right across York. These groups will build
on the existing universal offer of support and social activities for families. The
development of this universal offer for all families will be driven by what families and
communities want for themselves and also by identified need.

The Local Area Teams will work directly with voluntary, independent, private
childcare providers and also with schools that provide childcare. This is so that these
valued partners can continue to play their important role in supporting early
childhood development. We will also strengthen the capacity of childcare providers
to work in partnership to support families with emerging needs to access
appropriate support at an early stage.

As well as ensuring support for all families we must support families to understand
what is available. Local Area Teams across the city will work together so that families
can access good quality information to help them to understand what is available.

DO MORE WHEN FAMILIES NEED MORE

In moving towards new Local Area Teams it is really important that when families need

more support that this is available. It response to this it is proposed:

Local Area Teams work with families and communities so that they know how to
access support when required.

That Local Area Teams put in place pro-active ways of reaching out to families who
need the most support. This will be achieved by identifying the most vulnerable
families through sharing our data and pooling our local knowledge. The Local Area
Teams can then reach out to families who may need our support at an earlier stage.
This should reduce families where need has been hidden throughout the early years
until children start at primary school.

Local Area Teams must put in place dedicated resource to support families with pre-
school children. It is also very important though that this resource can also work to
the needs of the wider family including children and young people who may be at
different ages and stages. This can improve the holistic support families receive and
improve transitions for families with higher needs into starting school.

That Local Area Teams work together with other services in a family's life to be more
effective, reduce duplication and reduce the number of people families have to deal
with. This means that people working in a Local Area Team may lead a coordinated
plan and work with multi-agency partners to provide a proportionate response to
emerging needs.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 14



Page 295

WORK THROUGHOUT YORK WHERE FAMILIES NEED US

The consultation has clearly shown that residents want provision to be in place for all
families and that when more support is needed that this is available. The delivery of this
offer should not be limited to existing children’s centre buildings. We will build on our work
to reach out to communities in response to need throughout York. We must have an
unrelenting focus on delivering the best possible services with families throughout our city.
It is therefore proposed to change the designation of six of our children’s centre buildings to
allow them to be used more flexibly (to cover the age range 0-19) in response to the needs
of families and communities.

To be clear this means that those buildings can continue to deliver the types of groups and
services that they do today. If we change designation it means that buildings could then also
be made available for a range of other provision including: developing new childcare in
areas where this is needed, by schools to deliver high quality learning environments, by
community groups and organisations. The offer from the buildings will provide
opportunities to extend opportunities to children and young people across the 0-19 age
range, rather than being restricted to 0-5. How we all use these buildings and others in the
future will be shaped by the needs of the communities they serve. By changing how we use
our buildings we can make best use of these spaces in communities. We can also improve
our efficiency and effectiveness by reducing the amount of time and money our staff need
to spend on looking after buildings. In doing so we can maximise our staff time and
resources on what families need and will make the greatest difference.

The early years offer and the wider offer made by Local Area Teams will respond to need.
We will base ourselves in the areas of York with the highest identified need but must work
throughout York wherever we are needed. This means we need to look not just at what we
deliver through our children’s centre buildings but what we deliver from any council
building, any partner building and also what we deliver in families homes.

The map below shows just some of the key community locations available in York for the
delivery of this new offer to families. It is clear that we have an opportunity to engage more
families across York with this offer than if we were to limit delivery to our existing buildings.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 15



Page 296

Community hubs and venues
Community Hubs

@ with wiFi

. Community Hubs
Community Venues

= with Wi-Fi

Community Wenues

Children's Centres

& with wi-Fi

O Children's Centres
Explore

& with wi-Fi

. Explore

Wi
ETHERBY ™4

We are therefore proposing that we take forward the development of our new early years
and 0-19 offer through Local Area Teams. In doing so we propose:

e That all nine sites are re-named and re-launched as a range of children and
family centres that enable more flexible and responsive provision which
aligns with local community activity and use.

e Maintain 3 children and family centre resources as designated ‘children’s
centres’ with the statutory responsibility for ensuring the delivery of
integrated early childhood services across the city. These centres will be the
main bases for the Local Area Teams.

TIMEFRAME FOR PROPOSED CHANGES

There are two key stages to move delivery towards the proposals outlined for the early
years offer within the context of new Local Area Teams. These are:

e Align our staff and structures to deliver the offer — This will be completed by January
2017.

e Re-designation of existing children’s centre sites as part of the new early years offer
— The decision on this is being presented to the council Executive in July 2016.
Following a decision being made on this matter implementation could be aligned
with the staff changes described above.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 16



Page 297

York Children's Centre Services consultation

WHAT IS THIS ALL ABOUT?

City of York Council is developing a new way of working across everything that we do. This is
so that the council can play its part with communities in York and with the people of York.
We want York to be a great place for families to live and grow up.

Children's Centres and their services play a really important role in supporting families from
pregnancy through to children turning five years old. Children's Centres are part of a range
of local services, providing access to community health services, parenting and family
support, early education and childcare, and links to training and employment opportunities
for families with children under the age of five.

Many of our children will lead happy, healthy lives without the need for intensive support.
But we need to be able to help those most in need, so that every child in York has the best
possible start in life. We know that providing support early in a child’s life or at times when
families need more support, rather than waiting for issues to grow, is better for everyone.
Supporting early means better life chances for children and young people and reduces
demand for expensive high-need services.

We want our children’s centre services to be a key part of new Local Area Teams we are
creating to support families in the crucial early years of a child’s life through into adult hood
(up to 19 years old or 25 years old for disabled young people). We will do this by locating
more of our services in local communities.

We want your feedback on our ideas about how we develop children’s centre services into
these new Local Area Teams. This is where you come in.

As part of the new approach for families we are proposing we:

e Ensure support for all families — We want all families to be able to access support
through Health Visitors, good quality childcare and groups for families that provide
social, supportive and developmental activities.

e Do more when families need us more - At times many families need a bit more
support. This can be as simple as talking to someone, through to support around
post-natal depression or domestic abuse. We want our services to be there to
respond when families need more.

e Make the best use of our buildings and staff — We want to expand our offer to
families in communities by locating more services where families need them. To do
this we want to spend our money on staff to work with families and spend less on

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 17



Page 298

buildings. Because of us growing our teams in communities this may mean moving

away from calling our buildings “children’s centres” and working with communities

to understand and meet the needs of local families.

YOU SAID, WE DID...

We held a consultation in 2014 on what the future of the service should look like. Below

shows what you told us in 2014 and how we responded.

You said...

We did...

You wanted more community use
in Children's Centre buildings.

We encouraged more community groups to make use of our
buildings. Now, most groups run in Children's Centre
buildings are led by communities and voluntary groups with
some support from our staff. This means that communities
and partners are now providing 60% to 80% of open access
groups run in Children's Centre buildings.

You wanted services which met
families' needs.

By encouraging more community and voluntary groups to
help meet families’ more general needs, this frees our staff
to respond to families that need more support. Much of the
valuable work carried out by Children's Centre staff is
unseen and takes place away from the buildings
themselves. For example, to support families experiencing
cases of post natal depression, domestic violence, or
needing support bringing up their children, staff will visit
families at home, in community bases, or wherever the
family needs them to be.

You wanted services that are local
to you.

Children's Centre services have reached out from the
Children's Centre buildings. This has meant working
alongside community and family groups which operate in
locations throughout York. This has allowed us to support
families where they need us rather than services being
delivered just through Children's Centre buildings.

We would like your feedback on how we can best deliver services for families within the

resources available. When drawing up our ideas we looked at what you told us in 2014 and

the changes we made since then.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 18




Page 299

We want your feedback on each idea and would like to know a bit more about how you and
your family access services.

ENSURE SUPPORT FOR ALL FAMILIES

It is really important that all families have access to support, especially in the crucial early
years of a child's life.

We are proposing that we continue to develop work to ensure that all families with children
under the age of five will be able to access:

e Health visitor services (as part of the 0-19 healthy child service)

e Community and partner run groups offering support and social activities

e Good or better quality childcare delivered by voluntary, independent, private
childcare providers and schools

e Good quality information to help families understand what is available.

This will mean that all families have access to support during pregnancy, in the child's early
years and beyond. We will work with partners to ensure support for all families wherever
they live in the city.

If we don't do this it will mean our staff will have less time to work with families at times
when they need more support.

Q1) Please tick below to show how much you agree with our proposal to ensure support for
all families.

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree Disagree Strongly
nor disagree disagree

DO MORE WHEN FAMILIES NEED MORE

At times many families need a bit more support. This can be as simple as talking to
someone, through to support around post-natal depression or domestic abuse. We want
the new Local Area Teams we create to be able to support families when they need us.

“Support services seem to be very good once you can get into 'the system'. There is little
support for those just on the outside and it seems that in some cases support is only
available once someone is at breaking point. It would be better to focus more on early
intervention and prevention rather than cures”

A York Mum.

We are proposing that when families need more support we focus on:

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 19




Page 300

e Families knowing how to access support when they need it

e Reaching out to families who need the most support

e That our staff are able to concentrate their time on providing that support

e That we work together with other services in a family's life to be more effective,
reduce duplication and reduce the number of people families have to deal with

This will mean that our staff can be there for families when they need us. We know
providing early support can have a long term, positive impact on the lives of children, young
people and families.

If we don't do this it will mean we won't be able to fully support families at times when they
need more support. This could mean more families needing more intensive support at a

later stage.

Q2) Please tick below to show how much you agree with our proposed approach to do more
when families need more

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree Disagree Strongly
nor disagree disagree

MAKE THE BEST USE OF OUR BUILDINGS AND STAFF

We want to create new Local Area Teams which can work alongside communities to support
families. The new teams will expand beyond the offer that children’s centres alone currently

make to families.
We are proposing that by creating new Local Area Teams we will:

e Ensure support for families in the crucial early years of a child’s life but also for
families with children up to 19 years old (or 25 years old for disabled children and
young people)

e Locate more of our services in communities where families need them.

e Spend as much time as possible working with families.

e Work throughout York where families need us.

For us to be able to do this we need to review how we run our existing buildings. Every year
we spend over 20% of our budget, plus staff time, on running our children’s centre
buildings. We want to reduce this so that we can maximise the number of staff we have to
work with families. To do this we want to explore for each of our buildings if transferring
ownership and management to partners and communities could save money but still ensure
services for families. We will make sure that any transfer agreements would allow for
activities for children under five years old such as childcare or access for community groups
and partners to still take place.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 20




Page 301

“Share the buildings — make sure it is a full share with schools and nurseries” — A York parent

As we are expanding the offer we make to families in communities we want to explore if all
of our buildings should continue to be independently registered with the government as
"Children's Centres". What we are proposing to deliver in communities goes beyond the
government definition of the services a children’s centre would traditionally provide. By
moving away from registering all of our buildings as children’s centres it gives us more scope
to provide a wider range of our services throughout York. Expanding the offer to families
and looking at who runs the buildings also gives us the opportunity to strengthen links with
local schools and improve the transition from pre-school to primary school.

This will mean:

e Qur staff can spend less time managing buildings and more time with the families
they need to focus on

e Families can continue to access services for children under the age of five, but the
buildings would be owned or managed by another organisation

e Families will be able to access a greater range of services in their community not just
for young children but through into adult hood. Because of this expanded offer in
communities we may no longer define our buildings as Children's Centres.

e We can deliver our crucial services in more locations across York, still reaching
families who don't live near one of the existing Children's Centres.

If we don't do this it will mean we need to achieve more of our savings from our children's
centre workforce resulting in less support for families.

Q3) Please tick below to show how much you agree with our proposed approach to making
the best use of our buildings and staff.

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree Disagree Strongly
nor disagree disagree

Q4) Please tick below to show what type of services and activities you access for your 0-4
year old. (Tick as many as apply)

Toddler group or play activity Health visitor in my home Children's Centre group

run in a community centre or led by volunteers or

church hall (e.g Gateway, parents

Foxwood)

Parent Track/Healthy Child Drop-in session run by health Children's Centre group

Programme appointments visitors led by Children's Centre
Support Workers

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 21




Page 302

Activities for under-fives(e.g.
music, sport, groups etc)

Appointment with a midwife A library, other

community venue for
learning or play

Childcare provision
(childminder, day nursery,
playgroup etc)

Appointment with registrar Appointment with

speech and language
therapist

Recreational activities for the
whole family

Internet parent support groups Children's Centre

and social media

worker visits me at
home

| don't access any of these

Other (please state):

ABOUT YOU

Q5) Are you... (Please tick)

A parent / carer

A resident (not including parents/carers)

A practitioner/service provider

Q6) If you are a parent/carer please put how many children you have in the following age

ranges

0-2 years 2-4 years

In primary

In secondary 16-19 years

school

school

Are you pregnant?

Q7) What is your home postcode?

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 22




Page 303

Q8) Are you disabled or do you have additional needs?

Yes

No

Prefer not to say

Q9) Are any of your children disabled or have additional needs?

Yes

No

Prefer not to say

Q10) What is your ethnic background?

\White British

White and Black African

Asian Pakistani

White Irish

White and Black Caribbean

Black African

White Gypsy or Traveller

Asian Bangladeshi

Black Caribbean

White Other

Asian Indian

Chinese

White and Asian

Other (please state)

THANK YOU

Thank you for taking the time to give us your views. It is really important that as the council

develops new ways of working that you can be involved in helping us to find the best way

forward. The feedback you have given here will be taken into account when designing how

best to deliver services in the future.

Please be aware that your response to this consultation may be published as part of any

decision taken on the future delivery of services. Where responses are published no
information would be made public from which you could be identified.

Annex B — York Children’s Centre consultation — Page 23




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 305

ANNEX C

CITY WIDE AND CITY CENTRE YOUTH
OFFER

BACKGROUND

The paper, Prevention and Early Intervention Services — a proposal for a new way of
working, presented at the Executive meeting in March outlined the plans to create new
Local Area Teams which would work right across York.

The new Local Area Teams will be the model through which the youth offer will be delivered
in future, therefore, the implementation of this new model requires consideration of the
city wide offer to young people, including the city centre provision which is currently
delivered from ‘Castlegate for Young People’.

This report provides further details of the creation of a new city wide youth offer with
specific detail on the proposals for a new city centre offer to young people.

SUMMARY

The creation of Local Area Teams presents an opportunity to revisit our city wide and city
centre offer to young people. We have stated that our vision is to place children and young
people at the heart of everything that we do and our offer to young people is an articulation
of this.

The same headline proposals for children’s centres also ring true for our aspirations for our
city-wide offer to young people.

e Ensure support for all young people
e Do more when young people need more
e Make the best use of our buildings and staff

We want our city wide offer to enable young people to be supported and to be able to
access a range of groups, activities and experiences which provide them with support,
readiness for adult life and enjoyment.

In recent years the Local Authority has grown into a new role as an enabler and instigator of
provision for young people rather than providing direct delivery. We will continue this
journey through our new city wide and city centre offer to young people:

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 1



Page 306

e We will create a new more holistic and partnership based city centre location for
young people. This will deliver a broader offer than our existing city centre provision
and do so on a more sustainable basis.

e We will create dedicated capacity in each Local Area Team that will work with all
agencies including the voluntary and community sector to ensure high quality and
responsive provision for young people.

e We will consolidate our funding streams to make it easier for community groups and
providers to access funds to help them become established.

e We will continue to work directly with young people in response to need in local
communities and in the city centre.

e We will further strengthen and champion work to listen to the voice of young people
and involve them in service developments through Local Area Teams, the city centre
offer and with our partners across York.

e We will improve our delivery of information to young people alongside the
redeveloped city centre offer and sources of online information. This will make it
easier to see the range of support and provision which is available to young people.

CONTEXT

The current “youth offer” is split across two directorates within the council, and has two
distinctive age ranges. Work within Communities and Neighbourhoods has focused on
building community and voluntary sector capacity to ensure a varied and intelligence led
approach to the youth offer. The result has been activities and support driven by young
people as well as an increase in the Community and Voluntary Sector partnerships to deliver
for young people across the city.

A specific city centre youth offer has continued to exist separately for young people aged 16
to 25 years old and is predominantly managed from Castlegate for Young People. As part of
the new operating model we now want to ensure that the whole city wide youth offer
continues to use a varied and intelligence led approach to how young people want the offer
delivered in their communities and the city centre.

STATUTORY EXPECTATIONS IN RELATION TO INFORMATION, ADVICE AND GUIDANCE

(IAG) FOR YOUNG PEOPLE AND SUPPORTING THEM INTO EDUCATION OR TRAINING

Local authorities have existing responsibilities to support young people into education or
training, which are set out in the following duties:

e Secure sufficient suitable education and training provision for all young people aged
16-19 and for those aged 20-24 with an Education and Health Care Plan in their area.

e Make available to young people aged 13-19 and to those aged 20-24 with an
Education and Health Care plan (EHCP), support that will encourage, enable or assist

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 2



Page 307

them to participate in education or training. Tracking young people’s participation
successfully is a key element of this duty.

In addition to the above, the Education and Skills Act 2008 (updated in 2015) places two
new duties on local authorities with regard to 16 and 17 year-olds. These relate to the
raising of the participation age (RPA):

e Alocal authority in England must ensure that its functions are (so far as they are
capable of being so) exercised so as to promote the effective participation in
education or training of persons belonging to its area with a view to ensuring that
those persons fulfil the duty to participate in education or training.

e Alocal authority in England must make arrangements to enable it to establish (so far
as it is possible to do so) the identities of persons belonging to its area to whom are
failing to fulfil the duty to participate in education or training.

In order to discharge these duties local authorities must collect information to identify
young people who are not participating, or who are at risk of not doing so, to target their
resources on those who need them most. The information collected must be in the format
specified in the National Client Caseload Information System (NCCIS) Management
Information Requirement. To meet this requirement, local authorities need to have
arrangements in place to confirm young people’s current activity at regular intervals. This
may be through the exchange of information with education and training providers and
other services as well as through direct contact with young people.

Local authorities are expected to continue to work with schools to identify those who are in
need of targeted support or who are at risk of not participating post-16. They need to agree
how these young people can be referred for intensive support, drawn from the range of
education and training support services available locally. Tools such as “risk of NEET”
indicators may support this.

Local authorities are expected to lead the September Guarantee process, which underpins
the delivery of this duty. This is the process by which local authorities aim to ensure that all
16-17 year olds receive an offer of a suitable place in education or training by the end of
September each year.

Castlegate is the main centre from where the Local Authority currently delivers its statutory
duty to encourage and support young people age 16 to 19 to participate in education,
employment and training and tracks supports young people NEET to re-engage in provision.

The new model and staffing structures of Local Area Teams take account of this range of
statutory responsibilities and provide an innovative and efficient way of meeting the needs
of young people.

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 3



Page 308

THE CITY WIDE AND CITY CENTRE OFFER TO YOUNG PEOPLE

A consultation conducted with young people aged 16-25 years demonstrated some key
thoughts from young people about what is important to them from accessing services
throughout their city The key elements from the consultation were:

e Arange of ways to engage young people is needed for the variety of issues they
present, although face to face initial appointments work well.

e The main issues young people needed advice and support with were mainly; help
with somewhere to live, and mental health and emotional wellbeing.

e Young people described a need for that first contact to be able to ‘tell their story’
then choose from a range of support networks that achieve what they need from
services.

e High value is placed on quality IAG and support to inform choices about education,
employment and training.

The views of the young people consulted with supported us to build a revised offer to young
people for the services currently delivered through Castlegate in response to need.

Further consultation with young people in co designing the new city centre offer would form
a key part of the development of the offer and will feature across the new model.

THE CITY WIDE YOUTH OFFER

In recent years the Local Authority has grown into a new role as an enabler and instigator of
provision for young people rather than providing direct delivery. We will continue this
journey by:

e Creating a new more holistic and partnership based city centre location for young
people.

e Providing dedicated capacity in each Local Area Team that will work with voluntary
and community sector partners to ensure provision for young people.

e We will consolidate our funding streams to make it easier for community groups and
providers to access funds to help them become established.

e Working directly with young people in response to need in local communities and in
the city centre.

e Further strengthening and championing work to listen to the voice of young people
and involve them in service developments through Local Area Teames, the city centre
offer and with our partners across York.

e Improving our delivery of information to young people alongside the redeveloped
city centre offer and sources of online information. This will make it easier to see the
range of support and provision which is available to young people.

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 4



Page 309

The young people’s city centre offer would form part of a wider all age holistic City centre

offer with CYC capacity to support the offer drawn from resources based in the LAT’s and

Adult services.

Establishing the offer alongside community and voluntary sector partners will form a multi

agency holistic offer and reduce infrastructure costs.

THE CITY CENTRE YOUTH OFFER

The proposed new city centre offer for young people would:

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer

Look to provide space for complimentary voluntary and community sector partners
to be permanently based at the city centre venue. This will establish the city centre
offer on a much stronger partnership basis and opens up exciting opportunities to
deliver a more diverse range of support to young people. Following approval from
Executive a formal process would be followed to identify and secure a suitable
partner(s) to be based at the city centre venue. Initial discussions would suggest
appetite from partners for this proposal.

Provide a multi agency and holistic framework of Information and Advice sessions
across a range of themes to meet identified need. These sessions would be
supported as required by drawing workers in from; Local Area Teams, other CYC
services and partners from the community and voluntary sector. This would look to
include a range of advice agencies that form the membership of the Advice York
partnership. By developing this aspect of the offer the city centre venue will be able
to provide a much richer range of support than is currently the case.

The landscape of mental health provision for children and young people is
undergoing significant change with the introduction of Future in Mind. The Local
Area Teams will play a full and appropriate role in tackling the important issue of
mental health. There is an identified need to continue to ensure that young people
are able to access mental health support in particular at the transition from being a
young person into adulthood.

o lItis proposed that in identifying community and voluntary sector partners to
operate from a city centre venue that opportunities could be developed
where these partners can increase capacity to meet this need. Currently
hosting a relatively small counselling provision within a single council service
incurs significant overheads. The advantage of embedding this provision with
a suitable partner is that they are more likely to have in place an appropriate
infrastructure to support it. This is a timely opportunity to explore, as the
Community and Voluntary sector have expressed their desire to develop and
build their offer into the younger age range. This proposal is made with a
clear understanding that resources would need to be committed in order to
build this capacity in any partner organisation. Following approval by



Page 310

Executive this proposal would be included within a process to identify a
permanent city centre partner.

e York has a strong history of engaging young people in the development of projects.
We would want any new city centre location to provide the opportunity to provide
good quality space for use by the community or young people to develop their own
projects.

e Provide access to good quality information and signposting. By drawing in
information specialist roles from the Local Area Teams a broad information offer
would be available to any young person accessing the city centre venue. This
information offer would also be able to identify young people that could benefit
from the more intensive services provided by Local Area Teams or partners. It would
be able to signpost young people to other CYC services and partners.

e Provide specialist information, advice and guidance (IAG) to young people who are
Not in Employment, Education or Training (NEET). The city centre venue would
provide information, advice and guidance through appointments, group work and
workshops staffed by specialist workers drawn in from Local Area Teams. The city
centre location would also offer a venue for group work and workshops supported
by partners such as York Learning, the Apprenticeship hub team and other partners
(e.g Training providers, employers, Jobcentre Plus).

o The proposal that the city centre offer works as part of a city wide targeted
IAG and inclusion offer for young people aged 13 to 19 focused upon
Danesgate learners, Children Looked After (CLA), care leavers, young people
supported by the Youth Offending Team (YOT) and post 16 NEETSs.

o Dedicated specialist IAG workers would be allocated in response to need. It is
expected that dedicated resource would be allocated towards young people
that attended Danesgate or are in care/care leavers. In addition, further
specialist IAG staffing would operate flexibly across the Local Area Teams and
city centre offer in response to need. They will offer 1:1 guidance
appointments to NEET young people 16-19 and deliver appropriate group
work and workshops as part of a multi agency holistic framework of
Information and Advice sessions. The framework will also be supported by
York Learning and the Apprenticeship hub team with input from partners e.g
National Careers Service, training providers, employers and Jobcentre Plus.

o The YOT cohort prel6 requires an IAG inclusion oversight to support
engagement & participation and minimise the risk of further offending or
becoming NEET. In addition, we know that there are strong links between
offending behaviour and young people who are NEET. In Q4 2015-2016, 56
young people with YOT orders ending were aged 16 plus. 39% of these were
NEET at the end of their YOT order (22/56)

o A named IAG inclusion worker, allocated from within the city wide team will
link with the Youth Offending Team and offer IAG support as required pre

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 6



Page 311

and post16 on a flexible basis, in order to achieve outcomes for young
offenders that are comparable to those of their peers. The worker will work
closely with IAG inclusion colleagues who have a city wide remit for young
people who are educated at the Pupil Referral Unit or are looked after by the
Local Authority.

o The City centre IAG inclusion offer will also provide mentoring support for
those at risk of disengaging from education, training and employment to
ensure that transition is sustained and the risk of becoming NEET is
minimised.

o Support for NEET young people with SEND who have an EHCP or that require
an EHCP would be drawn from specialist IAG workers based within SEND
services. Therefore, the IAG inclusion workers based in the Local Area Teams
will work in close partnership with SEND colleagues to make referrals and
broker appropriate support which at times will be brought into the city
centre offer.

The city centre offer outlined above is a bold proposal which provides a diverse, effective
and sustainable solution. The proposal aligns well with the commitment to provide a good
quality city centre offer and also delivering right across York through Local Area Teams.

In developing the new proposed city centre offer for young people a range of options have
the existing Castlegate site is not considered to provide a suitable option for the delivery of
proposals of the scale and ambition set out above. As such an alternative city centre
location has been identified in Sycamore House on Clarence Street.

Sycamore House currently hosts a range of services for adults including a reading cafe, a
number of direct work rooms, office space and a small garden. The proposals to deliver a
city wide community offer to young people alongside city centre provision are mirrored in
the aspirations for the council’s adult services. As such it is proposed to take forward the
development of a new city entre venue based at Sycamore House which can allow the needs
of both areas to be met.

It is felt that we can provide the new proposed offer for young people from Sycamore House
alongside services with adults in a way which does not compromise dedicated support for
young people. For example:

e We would initially propose the city centre services to be available from 14.00 — 19.00
Monday to Friday. This would improve on the existing offer made from Castlegate
and allow dedicated time for the building to be used for young people. By delivering
in this way we are also responding to messages given by young people in a previous
consultation on the future of Castlegate.

e A key feature of the proposed city centre offer for young people is particularly
supporting young people with the transition into adult hood. By developing the city

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 7



Page 312

centre venue alongside adult services we are presented with some genuine
opportunities to improve that transition and improve outcomes.

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE — VOICE AND INVOLVEMENT

In developing the new city centre venue and making any required alterations to the building
and use of space it is proposed to also involve young people in that process. Young people
would form a key part of a development working group to ensure the full involvement of
young people in developing and realising the new offer.

All of the proposed changes are made by reflecting upon the feedback given by children and
young people. In 2015 a ‘Have Your Say’ consultation was launched to capture current
Castlegate service user’s voice. We know from client profiling that many users are put off
by written forms and ‘flowery’ language and respond well to a straight talking approach that
provides an opportunity to discuss issues with their peers.

In partnership with the Show Me That | Matter panel, a piece of work was designed that had
a particular emphasis on encouraging participation in a process that was easy to navigate. It
was crucial that the process could be understood by all service users including those with
the most challenging barriers to learning. It was also important that the process stimulated
healthy debate and sparked an interest in looking for solutions.

A total of 131, 16-25 year olds gave their time to the ‘Have Your Say’ consultation and 19
young people participated in either a discussion group or targeted group work.

SUMMARY

The following report will describe the methodology for engagement and report on the top
five post 16 services voted for by young people. This report will set out the most valued
methods of service delivery and discuss alternative ways of delivering services to the clients
who need them most. Key themes from discussion groups will also be presented together
with the most popular times to access services.

METHODOLOGY

e A ‘pop up’ consultation space was available through-out the consultation period
using a visual engagement tool to record young people’s opinions on essential
services, methods of delivery and preferred opening times.

e Facilitated discussion groups ran throughout the consultation period.

e Targeted group work unpicking key themes gathered via the facilitated discussion
groups.

e Online consultation and an open access email address to engage users who are more
confident giving their views online.

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 8



Page 313

e The consultation was launched on Monday 24t August and ran for four weeks
ending on the Monday 21" September 2015.

RESULTS

131 young people were asked to vote on their top five services and rank them in order of

importance:

Name of service Rank in order of importance |
Help with somewhere to live 1 (30%)

Mental health and emotional wellbeing 2 (13%)

CV writing 3 (8%)

Sexual health/ looking for work/ apprenticeships 4 (6%)

Talking to a trusted person 5 (5%)

Young people were asked to cross reference particular services and choose from the
following methods of service and delivery. Participants were asked to consider alternatives
to face to face delivery. Here are the results:

Type of service delivery method Rank in order of popularity |

Face to face appointments 1
Face to face drop-in 2
Telephone 3
Website/ online forum 4
Text 5
Apps 6
Facebook/Twitter 7

Overall a high value was placed on face to face delivery of services with nearly every
participant voting for face to face drop in or appointments against each service. For many
young people appointments were popular because they could be sure of whom they were
going to see. This echoes the December 2014 consultation which reported that ‘knowing
who you are going to see’ is very important to service users. Another common reason given
for choosing appointments is that young people appreciate the time to prepare and ‘think
about what they wanted to say’. Often participants reported that they found it much easier
to express themselves in a face to face setting and were unsure how they could effectively
communicate with a practitioner using alternatives methods. Comments such as ‘I don’t
know what to say’ and ‘how do you know you are talking to a trustworthy person?’ were
common. It would appear that most young people talked to were cautious when it came to
communicating online and were very safety conscious when using the internet.

In general the following services were reported as the most likely to be used by telephone
or website forums/online without needing an initial face to face meeting.

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 9



Page 314

e Help to look for work / apprenticeships
e Benefits advice

e Help to look at career options

e Debt and money

e Interview skills

e Finding the right course/training

e CV writing

Ideas about using online services to provide an initial checklist or eligibility test prior to
being signposted to face to face services were popular.

It is important to note that the majority of young people were open to using alternative
methods of accessing services after a face to face meeting had taken place. Many young
people felt it was difficult to build the necessary trust required when using particular
services unless you were meeting face to face. The reason typically given was that, if a
service required a client to ‘explain’ or ‘discuss problems’ then sitting with a practitioner
really helped.

Apps and Facebook/twitter hardly received any votes and not many young people consulted
felt they had much value when accessing services. When this was unpicked during group
work the following reasons were gathered:

e In general young people change their mobiles and numbers often.

e Expensive devices and phone contracts are often viewed as a luxury expense.
e Some clients don’t have access to the internet at home.

e Apps can cost money so this is seen as a barrier.

In discussion groups lots of young people explained the importance of ‘central places’ to go
where they could access computers, the telephone and the internet for free.

A key theme among many young people gathered during discussions and group work, was if
you had to ‘tell your story’ or ‘explain your problems’ then the best way to do this was in a
room face to face to face with a practitioner. However if you were learning a new skill or
obtaining information, then platforms such as forums, Vlogs, webinars or facetime could all
be used to deliver these types of services.

We asked young people the most popular time for people to access services:

Weekday 4-7pm came out as the most popular time. It is worth commenting that there is in
general a preference for weekday access over weekend times but votes were very evenly
spread.

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 10



Page 315

EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In conclusion, participants in the consultation were able to understand that the challenging
political environment dictated the need for frank discussions with young people and
ongoing engagement with service users. Service delivery must change radically in the future
and if services are to make a successful transition, then harnessing the expertise of our
service users is critical to its success.

Overwhelmingly, young people valued the opportunity to express their views and again
demonstrated their ability to provide valuable information to decision makers.

The findings tell us that trust is a key ingredient for delivering an effective service and that
young people need to be able to communicate their thoughts and feelings in a safe place.
The range of services that young people voted for, demands that any future model
considered, provides a raft of support for our most vulnerable young people. Creative
thinking will be required with moving forward to co-design a viable offer. Any new model
must provide clear pathways and outcomes for young people, and work in partnership with
the voluntary sector and local community.

Annex C — City wide and city centre youth offer 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 317

@
Canon Lee School in partnership
with the community

ot I

« Partnership work between Canon Lee School, Ward

ANNEX D |

Councillors, Sport and active leisure team and the
Youth and community development team

Engaging young people, developing pride in their
community and gaining respect

The focus of the work has been young peoples
voice and developing a working group of young
people who represent their school and community

The aim is to link young people directly to their
ward teams

Most importantly it is to see the direct results on
the faces of Young people in this area when they
are listened too

Partnershlp
The amazing outcomes of this voice work is due
to partnership approaches and listening to Young
peoples voice

Students in Canon Lee School have worked closely

with The Youth and Community Development Team.

There are also new partnerships developing in the
community due to this consultation with young
people and the desire for change

Partners include;

- Youth and community development team
- Community Involvement Officers

- Sport and active leisure team

- Ward Councillors

- (lifton Parish Church - The Rock Church

- York City Football Foundation

- YWAM - P(CSOs

We have established our under 18 ward group in
the School for both wards.

As a direct result of the consultation we have
established a working partnership group.

We have access to £1,000 to help develop green
spaces and include Canon Lee students, thanks to
Urban Buzz.

We have activities established for the school
holidays with the PCSOs and The Rock.

We have established additional provision from
the Rock and York football foundation. This
results in additional activities outside of school.

Provision within Burton Stone community centre
for young people in partnership with Clifton
parish church is being developed.

We have set up an adult role modelling drop in
session in partnership with Clifton Green primary
and we are in the process of establishing a peer
mentoring scheme.

Canon Lee have employed a Community liaison
teacher to enhance this work and link with
services in the community

The two wards are working with the Community
Involvement Officer to develop the strongest and
most appropriate provision for young people in
our area

The youth and community development team
will be taking more consultation into school to
look at health and well being, particularly with
the 28% of students who do not participate in
any activities outside of school.

We have established a Voice for young people in

YOUTH
DEVELOPMENT

-

A
L = )

. TV,

Clifton, Rawcliffe and Clifton without!



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 319 Agenda Item 11

COUNCIL

Executive 14 July 2016
Report of the Director of Children’s Services, Education and Skills
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Education, Children & Young People

Children and Young People in Care: York’s New Strategy 2016-2020
Summary

1. Children and young people in care are a priority group for the
council and its partners. This paper introduces the new Children in
Care Strategy 2016-20 and seeks council endorsement of the
strategy which has been developed on the basis of consultation
and input from children and young people in care, council
colleagues and multi-agency partners.

Recommendations

2. It is recommended:

a. that Executive recommend council endorsement of the Children
in Care Strategy 2016 — 2020

b. that Executive recommend council note the introduction of new
strategic partnership arrangements and strengthened
leadership to ensure the progress and delivery of the strategy

Reason: To endorse the new children in care strategy

Background

The Strateqy

3.  The new Children and Young People in Care Strategy 2016 —
2020 sets out our vision, ambition and aspirations for children in
care. The Strategy is provided at Annex 1. Our vision is simple:
we want our children in care to have everything that good parents
want for their children; for them to be happy and healthy, safe and
protected and supported each step of the way to adult life.



Page 320

The strategy relates to all children and young people in the care of
City of York Council including those placed outside the city, care
leavers, children placed for adoption, children subject to special
guardianship arrangements or child arrangement orders and
children on the edge of care. The strategy also incorporates our
corporate parenting strategy, the development and progress of
which is overseen by the Corporate Parenting Board which has
recently refreshed its focus and terms of reference.

Much progress has been made in our work with children in care,
and it could be said that this is ‘good enough’. However, ‘good
enough is not good enough’ and we want the very best for every
child in care — just as we do for our own children. This sentiment
and ambition sets the scene for our collective ambition and intent,
and the strategy introduces six strategic themes that are
deliberately intended to inspire and challenge everyone who works
in this area. These are: ambition, personalisation, normality, trust,
accountability and efficiency.

The previous strategy set out nine strategic outcomes that are still
relevant and which provide a comprehensive framework within
which we will progress and deliver our strategy. These are:

respect and involvement

good, safe placements

relationships

identity

education

health

emotional wellbeing and mental health

S@ "o a0 T

moving to adulthood

corporate parenting

The new strategy sets out the actions and projects that we will
undertake to achieve our strategic ambition for children in care.
Actions fall into three categories: immediate and significant priority
actions, continuous improvements that will be undertaken
throughout the period covered by the strategy; ideas for further
consideration which will not be pursued immediately but which we
will keep on our radar and will follow up when the time is right of
after some further preparatory work has been undertaken. The
development of a separate action plan is underway that sets out



10.

11.

Page 321

the actions we will take to deliver the children in care strategy
within the context of our local multi agency partnership working
arrangements. Progress against the action plan will be overseen
by the Children in Care Strategic Partnership.

A young person’s version of the Children in Care Strategy
document will be produced over the summer. This will be led by
the Show Me That | Matter Panel (York’s Children in Care Council)
with support from council colleagues. This will offer an additional
and meaningful opportunity for dialogue and engagement between
the Panel and the strategic partnership group.

New Strateqic Partnership Arrangements

The strategy was produced by the Multi Agency Partnership for
Children who are Looked After (known as MALAP). Consultation
for this strategy highlighted a desire from the wider partnership for
a review of the delivery arrangements, specifically a refreshed and
expanded membership and terms of reference for the Partnership
group that better reflected priorities and the new operating
landscape. The strategy document consequently sets out revised
membership of a new Strategic Partnership for Children and
Young People in Care that includes many of the previous MALAP
executive member agencies.

The new Children in Care Strategic Partnership will provide
strategic leadership across agencies responsible for
commissioning and providing services for children in care in York.
It will identify the needs and aspirations of children and young
people in care, children on the edge of care and care leavers in
York, it will develop a shared and coherent strategic vision that
takes account of those needs, ensure that partner agencies
provide services designed to support and implement that strategic
vision and specify measurable outcomes that can be used to
assess the delivery of those services.

The Children in Care Strategic Partnership is responsible for
monitoring the implementation of the strategy and for ensuring that
progress is made in improving outcomes for children in care.
Priority actions will be progressed through task and finish groups
and impact and outcomes will be monitored through the
introduction of a new and comprehensive performance scorecard,
feedback from children and young people and other key
stakeholders, and formal reports to the Strategic Partnership.



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 322

The Strategic Partnership meets every two months and is
accountable to the YorOK Board, with clear links to the Children’s
Safeguarding Board, the CAMHS Executive and the Corporate
Parenting Board. The Strategic Partnership will report annually to
the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Strengthened Leadership

As part of a wider Children’s Social Care restructure, and to
support the implementation of the new strategy, a new role of
group manager, achieving permanence has been established.
Reporting to the head of social work services, the group manager
will lead for the LA on the implementation of the strategy, working
closely with partners to plan, support and convene the bi-monthly
meetings of the new partnership group.

Consultation

Extensive consultation underpinned the development of the
strategy, ensuring that children in care and care experienced
children and young people were fully involved in its development,
along with a wide range of colleagues in different roles across
council services and partner organisations. Drafts were tabled for
feedback at key forums including the Corporate Parenting Board
and the YorOK Board.

This report is for endorsement and information only.

Options

There are no options for the Executive to consider; this report is for
endorsement and information only.

Analysis

This report is for endorsement and information, and therefore
analysis of options is not applicable.

Council Plan

The strategy is in line with the following Council Plan priorities:

e a prosperous city for all: everyone is supported to achieve their
full potential



Page 323

¢ a focus on frontline services, to ensure all residents, particularly
the least advantaged, can access reliable services and
community facilities: every child has the opportunity to get the
best possible start in life; all children and adults are listened to,
and their opinions considered; everyone has access to
opportunities regardless of their background; support services
are available to those who need them; residents are
encouraged and supported to live healthily

Implications
19. There are no known risks arising from the recommendations in the

following areas: financial, human resources, equalities, legal, crime
and disorder, information technology or property.

Risk Management

20. There are no known risks arising from the recommendations.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Judy Kent Jon Stonehouse

Group Manager Achieving Director of Children’s Services,

Permanence Education and Skills

Children’s Social Care

01904 554039 Report N Date 4 July 2016
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

None

Wards Affected: All v

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:
None

Annexes
Children in Care Strategy 2016- 2020



Page 324

Glossary of abbreviations used in the report:
CAMHS - Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services
LA — Local Authority

MALAP - Multi Agency Partnership for Children who are Looked After



Page 325

Children and
Young People
INn Care

York’s Strategy 2016 - 2020

Including children on the edge of care, those subject to special
quardianship orders or arrangement orders, and care leavers.




Contents

L. FOTOWOIA oo e e et e e e e e et eeeeeeeeseesaeeesaseesaseesasessaseesaseessssessaseesaseesnseen

2. The New Strategy on A PAGE ...

3. About the Strategy - Ownership, Drivers and SCOPE .....ccoeevevevevrerirerirereneenes

4. Vision, Outcomes and New StrategiC ThEMES .....coveveivieeeireeeeeees

5. Priority ACtions aNd PrOJECES ..o

6. Milestones, Measures and MONITOIING .c.cceeiiiririnireeeeeeeeeeree e

Annexes

A. Progress Since the Last STrategy ..o
B. The Views of Children and Young People in Care ......ooeeeeeeevnrereeceeeenee,
C. York’s Guarantee to Children and Young People in Care .....cccovveeeeeeeeeenenee.

D. Membership of the Strategic Partnership for Children ......cccooeeeenienniinns
and Young People in Care (January 2016)

E. Strategic Partnership for Children and Young People ..........ccoovveenninnininennns
in Care - Illustrative Scorecard

24

25

25

30

33

34

35

9zg abed



1. Foreword

Welcome to York’s new Strategy for Children and Young People In Care.
This document also serves as York’s Corporate Parenting Strategy.

Since we published our last strategy
in 2012, York has made enormous
progress in this area. This is outlined
in more detail in Annexe A. Some of
the highlights include: a significant,
safe, reduction in the overall numbers
of children in care (below 200 at the
time of writing); improvements in the
stability of placements; better health
and educational outcomes; and
excellent work with those leaving care.

Most important of all, the children
themselves tell us that, in the vast
majority of cases, their placements
are of good quality and that they feel
safe. The results of the 2015 survey
of their views are at Annexe B.

We should be proud of this
performance. And yet no organisation
or individual who has been associated
with the production of this new
strategy believes that we should stand
still. Far from it, we want to refresh and
re-energise our work in this area. Our
vision and our strategic goals have not
changed but the way we are going to
approach them will be very different
from 2016 onwards.

4

For a start, we have widened the

scope of this strategy to ensure that it
explicitly covers children on the edge
of care, children who are adopted,
children in the care of other local
authorities who are living in York, and
children subject to special guardianship
orders and child arrangement orders
and care leavers.

We recognise and welcome the
growth in the numbers of foster carers
who are connected through family
ties to the children they look after.

‘It could be said that
our present work
with children and
young people in care

is ‘good enough’. But
our mantra in York is
that ‘good enough is
not good enough’.’

We have also introduced six new
strategic themes that are deliberately
intended to challenge and inspire
everyone who works in this area. We
have set ourselves some ambitious
new targets and milestones, and
have constructed a comprehensive
new scorecard that will be regularly
monitored.

It could be said that our present work
with children and young people in care
Is ‘good enough’. But our mantra in
York is that ‘good enough is not good
enough’. We should be doing much
better than this. We want the very best
for every single child or young person in
care, on the edge of care or leaving care
- just as we do for our own children.

This strategy sets out how we will achieve this.

T Bt S Sk

Cllr Jenny Brooks
Executive Member for
Education, Children and
Young People

Steve Stewart
Chief Executive

Jon Stonehouse
Director of Children’s
Services, Education
& Skills

/2g abed



2. The New Strategy on a Page

Our vision for York’s children and young people in care is simple: we want our
children and young people to have everything that good parents want for their
children. In other words: to be happy and healthy, safe and protected, and
supported each step of the way to adult life.

Six Strategic Themes: Ambition ¢ Personalisation * Normality * Trust « Accountability  Efficiency

Strategic Outcomes

Priority Projects and Actions

Respect and
Involvement

Good, Safe
Placements

Relationships

Identity

Education

Health

Emotional Wellbeing
and Mental Health

Moving to Adulthood

Corporate Parenting

Remodel support services for children and young people in care, ensuring someone is always
available on the telephone, and that bureaucracy is minimised for straightforward issues
Review all decision-making processes to ensure they are delegated to the most
appropriate level, recognising that this may be different for different children, and
different foster carers

Work with local foster carers to develop a new vision for foster care in York encompassing
recruitment, roles, responsibilities, remuneration, development and support, recognising
that ‘caring’ will always be the most important element of their role

Change the way in which we deal with the most complex cases by building increased
local capacity

Review arrangements for every child placed outside York so that, where it is in their best
interests, we can ‘Make York Home’ for everyone

Introduce a new protocol for working with birth families, in consultation with the young
people affected

Review all policies and procedures against the new strategic theme of ‘normality’ to ensure
that, so far as possible, the experience of children and young people in care does not
differentiate them from their peers

Tackle the challenges around educational attainment with increased vigour and purpose

Review and implement as appropriate the recommendations of the Rees Centre report
about the ‘Educational Progress of Looked After Children’

Introduce a health passport for all children and young people in care which supports their,
and their carers’, understanding of their health needs

Implement the recommendations arising from the 2015 local review of compliance with
statutory guidance for the ‘Health of Looked After Children’

Construct a profile of the emotional health needs of children and young people in care in
order to inform commissioning arrangements across the city

Ensure that the principle of early intervention is understood and embedded

Understand better if this group of young people is more likely to engage in risky
behaviours, including self-harm, and if so, what can be done to help

Work to ensure that ‘Staying Put’ becomes the norm in York, and is available for every
young person who wants to remain with their foster family

Refresh the remit and purpose of the Corporate Parenting Board

Introduce a new performance scorecard for children and young people in care that fully
exploits the additional functionality of MOSAIC

3. About the Strategy - Ownership, Drivers
and Scope

Ownership

This strategy has been produced by the Multi-agency Partnership for Children
who are Looked After in York (MALAP), now established as the Strategic
Partnership for Children and Young People in Care. References to ‘we’ in the
document should be taken to mean all of the agencies who are represented
on this group.

A full list of members, current at the time of writing, is at Annexe E.

The diagram below illustrates the range of agencies involved with children and
young people in care in York.

City of York Safeguarding
Children Board and Safer York

8zg abed

Partnership

City of York Council Elected
Members and Corporate
Parenting Board

o Schools & Settings

YorOK Board and the

Parents, relatives and friends Health & Wellbeing Board

of children and young people
in care

Children and Young Commissioners and providers

People in Care of health services, including

Foster carers/children’s .
mental health services

homes, whether City of York
Council or independent
providers

Children’s Rights and
Independent Visitor Service

Other providers of services to

children in the voluntary and
not-for-profit sector

CAFCASS
7



The Strategic Partnership for Children and Young People in Care is answerable

to York’s Children’s Trust, known as YorOK, and through them to the Health and
Wellbeing Board. Oversight and challenge is also provided by York’s Corporate
Parenting Board. Independent scrutiny of all issues affecting the safety of children
and young people is provided by the City of York Safequarding Children Board. The
views of children and young people in care are articulated through two panels:
Show Me That I Matter, and (for younger children) I Matter Too. Their educational
progress is tracked through our Virtual School.

These relationships are illustrated in the diagram below.

Local Safeguarding Children Board

A A (. ¢ ¢ [nformation sharing/
[
[ ]
[ ]
[
@

# Formal communication/
reporting line

communications

CIC Health & Wellbeing Board (0 ° 0)

YorOK Board

Corporate
Parenting

Board
I

Strategic Partnership for Matter

Children & Young People in Care, including
York Area Foster Carers’ Association

Multi-agency Strategy Delivery Group

Drivers

Although this is a local strategy,
throughout its life we will take
account of national guidance and
best practice. At the time of writing
and in preparing this document we
have had particular regard to:

« Recent statutory guidance on
Promoting the Health and Wellbeing
of Looked After Children?

« The Rees Centre report into
Educational Outcomes for Looked
After Children in England ?

« The Children’s Social Care Innovation
Programme.

This strategy also sits within a local
strategic framework which includes
the overarching Children and Young
People’s Plan 2016 - 2020 for the

city, produced by the YorOK Board.
The current plan has been revised

at the same time as this strateqgy;
care has therefore been taken to
ensure consistency between the two
documents. In particular, this strategy
is consistent with the theme of ‘early
help’ within the new plan. Children
and young people in care are identified
within the plan as one of the priority
groups meriting careful attention.

Other important local strategies and
projects which have had a bearing on
this one include:

« Make York Home Project

Sufficiency Strategy

Early Help Strategy
NEET Strategy

CAMHS Strategy and the Local
Transformation Plan

+ Voice and Involvement Strateqgy.

The reader is also directed to York’s
thematic story boards which set out
the city and its partners’ approach
to tackling or addressing key priority
issues and challenges for children.
These can be found at:
http://www.yor-ok.org.uk/
workforce2014/storyboards.htm

The views of children and young
people in care have been a particularly
important influence on this strategy. A
summary of the 2015 U Matter Survey
is at Annexe B.

! https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/413368/Promoting_the_health_and_well-being_of_looked-after_children.pdf

? http://reescentre.education.ox.ac.uk/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2015/11/EducationalProgressLookedAfterChildrenOverviewReport_Nov2015.pdf

62< abed



Scope

This strategy is intended to apply to all those children and young people in
the care of the City of York Council, including those placed outside the city.

It is also relevant to children placed
for adoption, children subject to
special guardianship orders or child
arrangement orders, and care leavers.
In January 2016 there were 196
children and young people in care in
York, and approximately 50 families
with special guardianship orders or
child arrangement orders.

Over the lifetime of this strategy we
intend also to find out much more
about children in the care of other local
authorities who may be living within
our boundaries, and to develop our
support for this group.

We also regard children on the edge
of care as within the scope of this
strategy, although the main actions
relevant to this group are described

in other documents, such as the Early
Help Strategy. However, by including
them within the scope, we are sending
an important signal to all those who
work with children and young people in
care that our collective responsibilities
extend to preventative work, as well as
to support for young people after they
come into care.

This strateqgy is therefore considerably
broader in scope than its predecessors,
in keeping with our ambition to ensure
that every child and young person
living in York receives the best possible
care and support.

‘Over the lifetime of this strategy we intend
also to find out much more about children in

the care of other local authorities who may be
living within our boundaries, and to develop
our support for this group.’

10

4. Vision, Outcomes, and new
Strategic Themes

Vision

Our vision remains as follows: we want our children and young people to have
everything that good parents want for their children. In other words: to be
happy and healthy, safe and protected, and supported each step of the way
to adult life. This vision was first articulated in the 2012 strategy and still

holds good.

Strategic Outcomes

The previous strategy set out nine
strategic outcomes which still
provide a useful framework:

1. Respect and Involvement

All those involved with children
and young people treat them
with respect, listen to their views
and are reliable and trustworthy.
Children and young people are
involved in, and understand,

the decisions made about their
lives. They know how to get the
information, advice and support
they need, and how to complain.

2. Good, Safe Placements

Children and young people are
in good placements where they
feel safe and supported, and can

remain for as long as they need to.

They receive information about

their placement in advance and are

listened to if they have concerns

about it at any time. The placement

feels like home and provides them
with a positive experience of family
life or residential care.

. Relationships

Children and young people are
supported to maintain, build and
sustain positive relationships

with others, including their birth
families, siblings in care, carers and
their peers.

11

ocg abed



12

Identity

Children and young people know
who they are, why they are
looked after and understand their
heritage. They feel valued by
others, and their individual needs
arising from race, culture, religion,
sexual orientation or disability are
understood and met.

Education

Children and young people receive
a planned and stable education
which enables them to fulfil their
educational, social and emotional
potential, and to have high
aspirations for their future.

Health

The health needs of children

and young people are assessed
and planned for, and they have
appropriate access to all the health
services they require. They are well
and happy, and choosing healthy
and active lifestyles.

Emotional Wellbeing and
Mental Health

Children and young people have
any need for additional emotional
support recognised and addressed,
and have the knowledge and skills
to achieve emotional stability,
resilience and self-confidence.

8. Moving to Adulthood

Children and young people enter
adulthood in a planned way,
with a home to live in, the skills
to look after themselves and the
ability to earn a living or continue
in education. They feel confident
about the future.

9. Corporate Parenting

City of York Council and its partners
recognise and act upon their
responsibilities to children and
young people, particularly in relation
to access to leisure and cultural
activities, housing, work experience
and employment opportunities.
They act towards children and
young people in care as good
parents would in any family.

New Strategic Themes

Although York has made great progress
during the period covered by the
previous strategy, and can continue to
make improvements on a continuous
basis, we do not think that such an
approach is sufficiently creative or
ambitious. We believe the time is right
for some fresh thinking and a step
change in our work with children and
young people in care,

This will require the enthusiastic
commitment of all who work with
them, not least York’s community of
foster carers, whose representatives
have played a key role in drawing up
this strateqgy.

As well as the vision and the
strategic outcomes described above,
we will therefore now introduce

into our strategic thinking six new
strategic themes:

Ambition - ‘good enough’ is not
good enough

We want to introduce a fresh spirit of
ambition into our work. Are we truly
being as ambitious for the children and
young people in our care as we would
be for our own children? How can we
ever be satisfied until health, emotional
health, educational and employment
outcomes for children and young
people in care match those of their
peers? We need to ensure there is @
spirit of constructive challenge in our
debates about the way forward, and to
reinvigorate our whole approach.

Personalisation - every child and
every family is different

We need to recognise that children
and young people in care are not a
homogeneous group, and that what
works for one child (or family) may not
work for another. Their circumstances,
backgrounds, capabilities and
aspirations may be entirely different.
Our policies and practices need to be
capable of differentiating between
each unique individual - one size does
not fit all.

Normality - every child and young
person is entitled to a normal, stable,
caring family life

T¢g abed

We recognise that this word will

be challenging for some - this is
deliberate. We need to ask ourselves in
relation to every policy we introduce,
and every process we operate, is

this normal? Obviously, being taken
into care can never be completely
‘normal’ but, for example, having

to go through bureaucratic loops to
organise a sleepover with a friend is
certainly not normal. Issues such as
this one are raised with us very often
by the young people themselves -

the thing they most dislike is being
differentiated from their peers. This will
require adjustments to the roles and
responsibilities of our most experienced

13



foster carers, whose involvement and
support will be essential, and may be
particularly appropriate for those who
are already connected to the young
people in their care through family ties.

Trust — we need to trust each other
better, and young people even more

Many of our systems and processes
are designed to minimise risk. However
this is sometimes at the expense

of commonsense, and certainly of
‘normality’. We also inevitably on
occasions retreat behind organisational
boundaries. We can not afford to

do this in the future - we need to
ensure that all decisions relating to
children and young people in care are
delegated to the level closest to the
child wherever possible.

There can be no room for professional
preciousness or organisational silos.
That said, and bearing in mind the
preceding points, the extent to which
we can trust each individual child will
vary from case to case, and needs
sensitive judgement.

We will also only delegate responsibility
to experienced foster carers where we
can do so safely and in full cognisance
of any risks.

14

Accountability — we need to be clear
who is responsible for what

In York we are rightly proud of our
multi-agency working. However,
sometimes this can be at the
expense of complete clarity around
accountability. We need to review our
present governance structures, as well
as job descriptions and protocols for
certain professionals, to ensure that
accountability is never in doubt. We
need to ask ourselves what elements
of responsibility are genuinely best
shared, and what better owned by

a single person or agency? We need
in particular to be clearer about

the responsibilities of the Strategic
Partnership for Children and Young
People in Care.

‘...we need to ensure
that all decisions
relating to children
and young people in

care are delegated
to the level closest
to the child

wherever possible.’

Efficiency — we have to live within
our means

saving money must also be a driver

for us over the period covered by this
strategy. Many of the improvements
we want to see are not expensive in
themselves, because they are more
about a change of attitude than an
elaborate new process. Some, in fact,
will potentially be cheaper, because
fewer people will need to be involved in
individual decisions.

Whilst services for children in York
have been prioritised within council
and other agencies’ budgets, they
cannot be completely immune from
the downward pressure on public
expenditure. We would be being
dishonest if we failed to recognise that

We believe that these six themes will prompt us to remodel significant
elements of the current ‘system’ that surrounds children and young people in
care in York, as well as carrying on with a process of continuous improvement.
This is outlined in more detail in the next chapter.

zse abed

15



5. Priority Actions and Projects

This chapter describes the actions and projects that we will undertake as a
result of this strategy. They fall into three categories:

« Immediate and significant priority actions

+ Continuous improvements we will continue to undertake throughout the

period covered by the strategy

+ Ideas for further consideration, which will not be pursued immediately but

which we want to keep on our radar, to follow up when the time is right or after

some further preparatory work.

This document sets out just the main
headline objectives: each significant
project will have its own action

plan which will be overseen by the
Strategic Partnership for Children and
Young People in Care. Where it is felt
necessary, certain projects will also

be accompanied by a risk assessment
and, if appropriate, expert legal advice.
The intention, both in relation to the
overall strategy and decisions about
individual cases, is to be risk aware, but
not risk-averse. All projects will have

a named owner within the Strategic
Partnership for Children and Young
People in Care.

For ease of reference, the actions are
shown within the framework of the
nine strategic outcomes set out in the
previous chapter.

16

1. Respect and Involvement
Priority actions

« Remodel support services for
children and young people in
care, ensuring someone is always
available on the telephone, and
that bureaucracy is minimised for
straightforward issues

* Review all decision-making
processes to ensure they are
delegated to the most appropriate
level, recognising that this may be
different for different children, and
different foster carers

Continuous improvements

- Take steps to improve the
consistency/continuity of case
workers, recognising that this is a
national issue

« Further improve the quality of
recording information

« Strengthen the link between
the care leavers’ consultation
group and the Show Me That I
Matter panel

« Update the ‘Pack for Children
and Young People in Care’, and
incorporate comments from
children and young people into the
complaints leaflet

* Ensure that children and young
people in care, and their carers,
have a clear package of York
benefits (e.g. York Card)

« Ensure that every foster carer has
a City of York Council email address
and the technology and training to
use it

« Remove all unnecessary
bureaucracy, e.g. around matters
such as expenses

« Ensure that our policies take full
account of the changing ethnic
make-up of York

Ideas for further consideration

« Consider how best to celebrate the
achievements both of long-serving
foster carers and of the children
and young people themselves

Priority actions

« Work with local foster carers to

« Some have suggested a regular

event; others feel that this
unnecessarily differentiates
children and young people in care.
We will debate these issues further

Allow foster carers to log into
the Children’s Services client
management system, MOSAIC

Establish a fund to enable older
children to have experiences, such
as a foreign holiday.

2. Good, Safe Placements

cee abed

develop a new vision for foster
care in York encompassing
recruitment, roles, responsibilities,
remuneration, development and
support, recognising that ‘caring’
will always be the most important
element of their role

Change the way in which we deal
with the most complex cases by
building increased local capacity

Review the arrangements for every
child placed outside York so that,
where it is in their best interests, we
can ‘Make York Home’ for everyone

17



Continuous improvements

18

« Ensure that foster carers are fully

integrated into the wider team
around the child

Ensure that permanence planning
for children and young people in
care is promptly actioned, and
take all possible steps to improve
placement stability

Ensure that 100% of children

and young people receive written
information about their new foster
carers prior to placement

Further work to ensure that

all of York’s children are being
placed with providers/settings/
schools with good or outstanding
judgments from Ofsted

Introduce better arrangements
and management information

for succession planning for foster
carers, taking into account the age
profile of the present workforce
and attrition rates

Embed supervision arrangements
and fostering standards for foster
carers

Up-skill foster carers in relation to
Early Years development issues

Ensure we have timely emergency
placements, assessments and
support for those in care as a result
of homelessness

Ensure we understand, and can
articulate, the impact of policies to
support children on the edge

of care

Ensure that foster carers feel
valued and that their contribution
is celebrated

Ideas for further consideration

Build on the current accredited
learning being developed at York St
John University to develop a local
‘Fostering Degree’ for those who
want to pursue such a route

Develop better links between foster
carers and the voluntary sector,
including ‘safe and sound homes’
(SASH) hosts

Develop an agreed framework for
evaluating successful placements
and a mechanism for learning
lessons if they break down.

3. Relationships

Priority actions

Introduce a new protocol for
working with birth families, in
consultation with the young
people affected

Continuous improvements

 Ensure that support is offered to

children and families under special
guardianship orders and child
arrangement orders, and that

all policies and procedures take
into account the welcome rise in
kinship or connected carers

Ideas for further consideration

+ Encourage possible interactions

between experienced foster carers
and birth families.

4. Identity
Priority actions

* Review all policies and procedures

against the new strategic theme of
‘normality’ to ensure that, so far as
possible, the experience of children
and young people in care does not
differentiate them from their peers

Continuous improvements

* Young people have expressed

concern about the use of
abbreviations and jargon, such

as ‘LAC, ‘contact’ and ‘siblings’:
everyone needs to take care to use
jargon-free language

* Provide more independent visitors

(aiming for one for every child who
wants one)

Ideas for further consideration

« Investigate the potential for
creative arts projects to provide an
additional medium within which
children and young people in care
can explore issues of identity.

5. Education
Priority actions

« Tackle the challenges around
educational attainment with
increased vigour and purpose

* Review and implement as
appropriate the recommendations
of the Rees Centre report about the
‘Educational Progress of Looked
After Children’

Continuous improvements

yeg abed

« Despite the significant
improvement in the ‘Personal
Education Plan’ (PEP) completion
rate, the target is 100%, and
further work is needed to improve
consistency and quality

« Support the Virtual School in its
self-evaluation processes, and
implement its improvement plan

Ideas for further consideration

* Provide joint training for social
workers and teachers.

19



6. Health
Priority actions

« Introduce a health passport for all
children and young people in care
which supports their, and their
carers’, understanding of their
health needs

« Implement the recommendations
arising from the 2015 local review
of compliance with statutory
guidance for the ‘Health of Looked
After Children’

Continuous improvements

* Ensure initial and review health
assessments are promptly
undertaken, are of high quality,
with an increased emphasis on
participation, and improvements
are consolidated

« Ensure all children and young
people in care can make an
informed choice about attendance
at health assessments and
feel engaged in the process,
which should not unnecessarily
differentiate them from their peers

* Ensure we commission health
assessments for young people not
educated in York schools

20

« Improve the uptake and recording
of immunisation records for all
children and young people in care

« Improve the numbers of children
and young people in care who are
registered with a dentist, with a
target of 100%

« Work with Clinical Commmissioning
Group colleagues to ensure
children and young people in care
are permanently registered with
a GP and temporary registrations
are used only in exceptional
circumstances

Ideas for further consideration

« Consider if the model of the
Virtual School offers any lessons
for the health community (e.g. a
“Virtual Clinic’).

7. Emotional Wellbeing and
Mental Health

Priority actions

« Construct a profile of the
emotional health needs of children
and young people in care in
order to inform commissioning
arrangements across the city

« Ensure that the principle of
early intervention is understood
and embedded

« Understand better if this group
of young people is more likely
to engage in risky behaviours,
including self-harm, and if so, what
can be done to help

Continuous improvements

« Work with the new mental health
provider to develop services for
children and young people in care,
ensuring that the ‘offer’ is clearly
articulated

« Implement the Transformation
Plan that has emerged as part
of the national ‘Future in Mind’
initiative

« Improve post-discharge by
CAMHS services

* Prioritise children and young
people who are on the edge of care
who would benefit from targeted
input from CAMHS

« Ensure that children and young
people are a priority for prompt
intervention and support to
prevent the need for them to leave
their families and communities

Ideas for further consideration

+ Set up a ‘Children and Young
People in Care Reference Group’ to
support York’s CAMHS Executive.

8. Moving To Adulthood

Priority actions

Work to ensure that ‘Staying Put’
continues to be the norm in York,
and is available for every young
person who wants to remain with
their foster family

Continuous improvements

Ensure continued progress in the
range of accommodation options
for care leavers

Ensure advice, guidance and
support for young people promotes
the optimum education, training
and employment options

Ggeg abed

Up-skill foster carers in relation
to the life skills needed for those
about to leave care

Ensure that young people aged
21-25 are enabled and supported
to return to learn with financial
support, if they are planning to
do so

Ensure that all care leavers are
prioritised for work experience,
training, apprenticeship and
employment in the City of York
Council

21



Ideas for further consideration

« Explore different residential models
for those leaving care but not
ready to set up on their own

Explore subsidised Council Tax for
care leavers for the first two years

Use family group conferences
more creatively when young
people are approaching leaving
care to ensure all parties have the
appropriate support

Promise guaranteed interviews
for care-experienced young
people within the York business
community

Set up some form of mentoring
service for young people by older
more stable care-experienced
young people

Establish an ‘alumni’ scheme for
care-experienced young people.

9. Corporate Parenting

Priority actions

« Refresh the remit and purpose of
the Corporate Parenting Board

« Introduce a new performance
scorecard for children and young
people in care that fully exploits
the additional functionality of
MOSAIC (See Chapter 6)

Continuous improvements

« Work with the Corporate Parenting

Board to ensure that all elected
members are aware of their
responsibilities and play an
active role

« Seek the formal endorsement
of the full City of York Council for
this strateqgy

« Increase the number of visits by
elected members to the Glen
Short Breaks Centre and Wenlock
Children’s Home

* Review all governance
arrangements for children and
young people in care to ensure
they are fit for purpose and
in accordance with the new
strategic themes

‘The intention, both
in relation to the
overall strategy

and decisions about
individual cases, is
to be risk aware, but
not risk-averse.’

« Use the introduction of MOSAIC

to prompt a wider reassessment
of communications across

the partnership, including the
recording of information about
children and young people in care,
and data-sharing arrangements
between foster carers, local
authority staff, health providers
and the Virtual School

Ensure that all of the actions

that flow from this strategy are
joined up appropriately with those
directed at providing Early Help,
and support for troubled families

* Ensure that legitimate attention
to systems and accountability is
never at the expense of building
stable, caring relationships with
some of our most vulnerable
young people

« Ensure that officers continue to
pay due regard to the voice of
the child in developing the ideas
outlined in this strategy

Ideas for further consideration

* Explore joint access to individual
agencies’ IT systems

+ Continue to explore more joint
working with North and East
Yorkshire local authorities.

o¢cg abed

23



6. Milestones, Measures and Monitoring

As indicated in the previous chapter, in order to better monitor our progress
against the implementation of this strategy, we will introduce a new
comprehensive scorecard for children and young people in care. This will be

published on the YorOK website.

During 2016 we will establish a core set
of indicators to monitor service delivery
across all the areas covered by this
strategy. We will monitor these regularly
through the Strategic Partnership for
Children and Young People in Care and
the Corporate Parenting Board. The
targets will include national indicators,
locally-agreed measures and qualitative
assessments. We will also undertake

an exercise to articulate, against each
target, what its particular significance

is (in other words, what the data is

really telling us), and which agency

or individual is responsible both for
providing the data and accounting for
performance. In order to ensure that
such accountability remains focussed,
each agency or service provider will be
invited to contribute a maximum of three
indicators to the core set. We will also
monitor the individual projects described
in the previous chapter through the
establishment of appropriate milestones.
We expect substantial progress to have
been made on all of the priority projects
during the course of 2016.

24

In the longer term - over the lifetime of
this strategy — we will undertake more
work to assess and agree what we really
mean by a ‘good outcome’ (or a poor
one) for a young person who has been
looked after. This will not necessarily be
straightforward, as there is no national
consensus about this, and it could be
that, consistent with the personalisation
theme within this strategy, the answer
may be different for each individual
child or young person. We nevertheless
believe that an exploration of this issue
is timely and will ultimately lead to the
development of better services for young
people who are looked after in York.

In addition to all of these objective
measures we will, of course, continue

to place the highest priority on the

views of the children and young people
themselves, captured both through
formal surveys and informal means. We
will also consult regularly with foster
carers and others who work with children
and young people in care.

Annexe A. Progress Since the Last Strategy

This annexe contains some statistical information as well as brief details of key
developments in the services for children and young people in care in York since
the publication of the last strategy in 2012.

The Population of Children and Young People in Care

In York, the numbers of children and young people in care has been reducing over
recent years, stabilising at around 200.

Year End

@I 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
population

Total 255 259 237 219 198

We believe this is due to improving local practices and the impact of our Early
Help Strategy and local arrangements.

/€€ abed

In York, our children and young people in care are provided for in a range of local
placements with foster carers, adopters, or children’s homes. The proportion

of children placed in foster care and adoptive placement compares favourably
with national rates. Most children and young people in care are cared for in
foster placements, with a small number living at residential schools or in out

of city placements. The number of children placed in both local and out of city
placements continues to reduce, in contrast to the national picture.

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
Local 225 230 212 197 178
Placements

ULl 30 29 25 22 20
Placements

Total 255 259 237 219 198

Routine consideration is now given to placing children with connected people
and family members. As at March 2015, 24 children were placed with connected
people; 25 sibling groups were all placed together (93 children in total) with 37
children, who are part of a sibling group, not living with at least one sibling.



Some children (12) are placed with their parents under care orders with a view to
rehabilitation upon the discharge of the order.

Outcomes for Children in Care and Care Leavers

In terms of educational outcomes for children and young people in care in York,
we know the following.

Educational attainment gaps between children in care and their peers are wide
across all levels and continue to represent a major challenge for us (as for most
other authorities). There has however been a significant improvement at Key
Stage 2, where the gap has narrowed more in York than the national average.

Outcomes at the end of Key Stage 2 for Children and Young People in Care Compared to Those Not in Care
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

L4+ including English & mathematics (Children and young
people in care) National

L4+ including English & mathematics (Children and young
people not in care) National

Gap - National 33% 31% 31% n/a
L4+ including English & mathematics (Children and young

42% 45% 48% n/a

75% 76% 79% n/a

. 56% 40% 33% 73%
people in care) York
L4+ mcludn.\g English & mathematics (Children and young 86% 849% 69% 68%
people not in care) York
Gap - York 30% 44% 36% -5%

Unfortunately the picture is not so good at the end of Key Stage 4: the gap had
been narrowing more quickly than the national average but has now opened up
again, indicating that the gains in attainment are not yet secure.

Outcomes at the end of Key Stage & for Children and Young People in Care Compared to Those Not in Care
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2014/15
Old methodology New methodology

5+A*-C including English and
mathematics (Children and young 15% 16% 14% 12% n/a
people in care) National

5+A*-C including English and
mathematics (Children and young 59% 59% 55% 52% n/a
people not in care) National

Gap - National 44% 43% 41% 40% n/a

26

Outcomes at the end of Key Stage 4 for Children and Young People in Care Compared to Those Not in Care
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2014/15
Old methodology New methodology

5+A*-C including English and
mathematics (Children and young 13% 38% 25% 20% 17%
people in care) York

5+A*-C including English and
mathematics (Children and young 63% 67% n/a 66% 64%
people not in care) York

Gap - York 50% 29% n/a

It needs to be emphasised that cohort sizes are very small, making trend analysis
difficult; this problem is compounded by the change in methodology in 2013/14.
Issues for KS4 are compounded by placement stability and the length of time

in care (a lot of late entrants to care have been out of parental control for some
time and the education gap is already an issue). However, there is no question
that the gap is still far too wide, and this will be addressed over the lifetime of
this strateqgy.

g¢g abed

Unauthorised absence from school for children in care has fallen from 1.5% to
1.1%. Persistent absentees also fell from 7.3% to 5%.

In terms of health and wellbeing outcomes for children and young people in care
in York, we know the following.

The health needs of children and young people are assessed, planned for

and met through continuous placement planning and child care reviews. The
designated looked after children nurse works with professionals and carers to
ensure that services are responsive and timely. Immunisations are nearly all up to
date (94%) and whilst most health assessments (76%) and dental checks (70%)
are undertaken annually, work is in hand to review local arrangements in the light
of feedback from children and young people in care who would prefer a more
normal approach to their health needs being met.

Our children and young people in care score highly on the ‘Strength and
Difficulties Questionnaire’ (SDQ), this reflecting the prevalence of complex
emotional difficulties.

27



Young people estranged from

their birth family often move into
adulthood with a limited knowledge
of their family health history. Through
consultation with the young people
in York we have worked in partnership
with North Yorkshire County Council
and Scarborough and Ryedale NHS

to pilot a looked after child health
passport. This is something we are
keen to review and implement over the
next twelve months.

Outcomes for care leavers at age 19,
20, 21 are positive: two thirds will have
their own tenancy, return to their own
family, take up the offer of a taster
flat or be living with friends; most stay
put with their former foster carers (17
in March 2015). 10% are homeless
and helped to get their own tenancy.
Strong relationships exist with housing,
probation, mental health services and
children’s services if a young person
becomes a parent.

Young people leaving care or who
have left care receive help and support
tailored to their individual needs and
are provided with opportunities to
enable them to move successfully

to adulthood. There is a range of
support options in place to enable
access to appropriate education and
employment opportunities, including

28

work experience and apprenticeships.
More young people in the age range
18-21 want a second chance in Further
Education/Higher Education or want to
try out independent accommodation.
Four young people post 21 have

asked to be supported in going to
university and the local authority has
provided support with transport and
accommodation costs. Relatively low
numbers of care leavers are NEET,
though this will always remain a
priority for us.

The number of young people ‘staying
put’ has increased - 55% and rising:
this has been a major achievement
over the lifetime of the last strategy.

Other Developments

There have been many other
developments over the past three
years in the support for children and
young people in care, including:

« The appointment of a Virtual School
head teacher and the proactive work
of the senior leadership team. The
Virtual School has an overview of
each child and young person in care
and the monitoring of their progress
through key stages. The Virtual
School includes a part-time
educational psychologist and a
Connexions adviser.

The Virtual School now provides
challenge around narrowing the

gap, as well as engaging in greater
operational work supporting children,
young people, teachers and social
workers. The school produces a
regular self-evaluation and has an
improvement plan

The New Deal for Foster Carers,
ensuring a vision for the future work
of York’s valued foster carers. 75% of
York’s children and young people in
care are placed with skilled York foster
carers, offering placement stability
and valuable links with their home
communities

« The CAMHS Looked After Children’s

Service works with children and
young people in care, foster carers
and care leavers to achieve greater
placement stability

Improved work in the ‘edge of
care services’ through the Keeping
Families Together commitment

« Increased opportunities for leisure

and cultural activities for children
and young people in care, such as
the All Together Active youth club
and access to the council’s sports
and leisure facilities

 The provision of a dedicated Looked

After Children centre at Hamilton
House has focused the contact
provision for children and young
people in care and their families

Listening to children and young
people in care has been a strong
feature of our work. Examples
include: Show Me That I Matter panel
(age 14+), I Matter Too panel (age
10-14), U Matter Survey, Speak Up
Event, young people interview panels
and an expanded advocacy offer

The Looked After Children’s
Handbook

6cE abed

The expansion of Independent
Visitors

Improvements in the Independent
Reviewing Service

The renewed Guarantee for
Children and Young People in Care
(reproduced at Annexe C).

‘The number of
young people

‘staying put’ has
increased - 55%
and rising...’

29



Annexe B. The Views of Children and
Young People in Care

The 2015 U Matter Survey was rolled out between February and April 2015 to
collect the current views of children and young people in care in York. The U
Matter Survey is just one approach within many taken to gather children and
young people’s views. The highlights from this survey are as follows:

Placements

Most young people (87%) either agreed
or strongly agreed that City of York
provides good quality placements. 7%
of young people disagreed (4/52 young
people) and 6% strongly disagreed
(3/52 young people). One young person
who strongly disagreed said ‘I miss

my family a lot so I strongly disagree
that the council provide good quality
placements’. This is in line with what
young people were telling us last year
in the 2014 U Matter Survey.

Social Worker

85% of young people knew how to
contact their social worker when they
needed them. Just over half of young
people who participated in the survey
(54%) did not know who to contact
when their social worker was off sick

or on holiday; however this shows an
improvement from the previous year as
71% of young people did not know who
to contact in 2014.

30

65% of young people said their social
worker was reliable; this has dropped
from the previous year when 81% of
young people said their social worker
was reliable.

Reviews

Most young people were positive about
the review process. 78% of young
people knew who their Independent
Reviewing Officer was; previously less
than half knew who this was. 88% of
young people knew they could have a
say in where their meetings take place,
and 65% of young people stated they
normally attend their reviews.

Contact with Family and Friends

82% of young people said they feel they
have enough help and support to keep
in touch with friends and family. 84%
felt they were given enough information
about when, where and how often they
would see family or friends.

18% of young people were unhappy
about contact arrangements, (9 out
of 51 young people). If ever unhappy
about contact arrangements, 90% of
young people knew who to contact to
talk about this. These results are in line
with the 2014 statistics.

Education

Respondents were positive about

their education and the support they
receive at school. 89% of young people
felt they receive the right amount of
support in their education and training,
94% of young people knew who their
designated teacher was at school and
76% of young people knew about their
Personal Education Plan (PEP). This is

a big increase from the previous year
with 54% of young people knowing
what this was.

90% of young people felt their carers
take care of their health very well or
well; this has dipped compared to

the previous year with 98%. 10% of
young people (5 young people) felt
their carers did not take care of their
health well or felt this was done poorly.
77% of young people said they were
encouraged to take part in sport and
after school activities however, this has
dropped 13% from the previous year.

How Safe do You Feel?

Young people were asked about how
safe they felt at home, at school and
how safe they felt in the area they live
in. This was asked on a scale of 1-4,

1 being not safe and 4 feeling really
safe. Most young people felt either safe
or really safe at home, while 9% did
not feel safe. It is worth noting when
young people identified not feeling safe
at home this was dealt with and the
appropriate people were contacted.
92% of young people felt safe at
school. 85% of young people felt safe
in the area they lived in.

ovs abed

Leaving Care

This question received the least
responses as most of the young people
who participated in the survey were
still in care. 89% of young people (8
young people) said they had received
enough support when getting ready to
leave care and 86% (6 out of 7 young
people) said they had received enough
support since they left care.

Rights and Entitlements

In 2014, around half of the respondents
said they were aware of the Children’s
Rights and Advocacy Service; this year
this has risen, with 85% of young people
aware of the service.

31



In 2014, 74% of young people said
they were treated with respect by
people working with them; this has now
improved with 85% of young people

in 2015 feeling they are treated with
respect. 81% of young people felt they
knew enough about their rights and
entitlements; those who did not were
directed to the Show Me That I Matter
website for more information.

81% of young people felt they have

a say about decisions made about
them compared to 70% in 2014. In
2014, 87% of young people knew they
could make a complaint if they wanted
about a service they had received.

This has increased slightly as 89% of
young people knew they could make a
complaint in 2015.

32

Overall Care Experience

When respondents were asked to
rate their overall experience of being
in care the results saw a drop from
the previous year with 63% of young
people rating their experience being
very good or good, compared to 76%
of young people the previous year.
Those who felt their experience was
poor or very poor reflected 4% of
young people in 2014. However we
have seen an increase with 18% of
young people not feeling happy with
their care experience saying it was
quite poor or very poor in 2015. The
percentage of young people who feel
their care experience was okay has
remained very similar.

Annexe C. York’s Guarantee to Children
and Young People in Care

York’s Guarantee oo

sure children and
young people in our

Good placements care are at the centre
We will provide good quality placements with kind carers who of everything

i i ke you feel v
L do their very best to get to know you, ma : we do.
rt;lmfortable. involve you and listen to your views. When choosing

the right placement for you we will involve you whenever we can.

Treated with respect

We will-make sure you are always treated with respect, know about your rights and the things you
are entitled to and given this information when you first come into care.

to children and young people in care

Help you keep in touch

We know that keeping in touch with your friends and family is import_ant and so we will support you
with this wherever possible. If for any reason this can't happen we will make sure you know why.

Have fun together

We will make sure tha! you have the opportunities to meet with other children and young people in
care at groups and activity clubs, for those of you who would like to.

Tv¢ abed

Help you in school
We will support you in school a
know about support available if you

Reliable social worker
We will make sure you have a social worker who is reliable, you will be given all the information you
need to contact them or a member of their team so that you get a quick response when you need it.

If we have to change your social worker we will make sure you kno i i
have w what is h
do this with a proper handover. ’ RREng SRE (o

nd help you catch up if you fall behind. We will also make sure you

move on to college or university.

iewi i ou know
ent Reviewing Officer (IRO) you
WeAvI::ill| ggkee Elﬁ? ;iu know who your Independent Reviewing Officer is and are able to talk to them

i u
about how, when and where you want your reviews to take place. You W|lldrrt\eet your IRO before yo
have your |"eview and be able to get in touch with them whenever you need to.

Support you until you’'re an adult

As you get older we will help you with training, housing, managing your money, and will make sure
that you have someone to talk to about the things that are important to you.

S Bk

Jon Stonehouse
Director of Children’s Services, Education and Skills

Cllr Jenny Brooks
Executive Member for Education, Children and Young People

: If the council is't keeping these promises for -
i%e  you, please contuct Speak Up, York Childrew's  \aef. civv o
5% Righty and Advocacy Service on 07769725174 or YORK
E&;: MWMW@ka/gO'\/uJO & couNciL

33



Annexe D. Membership of the Strategic
Partnership for Children and Young People
In Care (January 2016)

Assistant Director, Children’s Specialist

Services, City of York Council - Chair

Executive Nurse for Safequarding
Children, Vale of York CCG

Chair, YAFCA

Children’s Rights Manager,
City of York Council

Consultant Headteacher for the
Virtual School

Group Manager, Achieving
Permanence, City of York Council

Head of Social Work Services,
City of York Council

Limetrees CAMHS

Designated Doctor for Safeguarding
Children including Looked After
Children, Vale of York CCG

Named Nurse for Safeguarding
Children, York Teaching Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust

Designated Nurse Safeguarding
Children including Looked After
Children, Vale of York CCG

North Yorkshire Police

Designated Nurse Safeguarding
Children, North Yorkshire and City of
York, Scarborough & Ryedale CCG

Principal Social Worker,
City of York Council

Senior Commissioner, Partnership
Commissioning Unit, VACCU

Director of Operations, Tees, Esk and
Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust

Director of Public Health

Strategic Support Manager, Services for
Children, Young People and Education,

City of York Council

Executive Member, Education,
Children & Young People

Virtual School Headteacher

34

Youth Offending Team Manager,
City of York Council

Annexe E. Strategic Partnership for
Children and Young People in Care -
[llustrative Scorecard

This scorecard is designed to illustrate how key performance measures will
demonstrate our progress towards the strategy priorities.

Priority Example Performance Measure(s)
Respect and Involvement % of children in care whose reviews take place within required timescales
Good, Safe Placements % of children in care who have less than 3 placement moves in a year

% of children in care who are in a stable placement

Relationships % of children returned home

Education % of children in care who have an up to date Personal Education Plan
% of children in care who do as well as their peers in school exams

Health % of children in care who have an up to date health assessment

% of children in care who have a regular check up with a dentist

Emotional Wellbeing & % of children in care report that they are happier, feel more secure and less
Mental Health anxious

Moving to Adulthood % of care leavers who stay with their carer after they turn 18, if they want to
% of care leavers in education, employment or training

Zve abed

For any queries about this strategy or in relation to children and young people in
care, please contact:

Children’s Specialist Services:

« Eoin Rush, Assistant Director: eoin.rush@york.gov.uk

« Dot Evans, Head of Social Work Services: dot.evans@york.gov.uk

« Judy Kent, Group Manager, Achieving Permanence: judy.kent@york.gov.uk

35



Page 343

\ 3
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

%

Va,

("4
-

T AN\ N\

If you would like this information in larger print or in an accessible format
(for example, in Braille, on CD or by email), please telephone 01904 554212.

This information can be provided in your own language.

Informacje te mogg by¢ przekazywane w jezyku ojczystym.
Palish

Bu bilgi kendi dilinizde almaniz mimkdndur.
IibiE

R H

01904 551550

20658 | Children and Young People In Care: York’s Strategy 2016



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Forward Plan
	5 Thinking & Acting Differently – A Response to the Peer Review 2016
	Annex A City of York CPC follow up letter 6.4.16
	Annex B Peer Review Action Plan v3 External (2)
	Annex C People Plan A2
	Info in suppport of Exec report

	6 The City Vision and Council Plan – A Framework for Delivery
	Annex A Line of Sight for CYC Strategic Delivery
	Annex B New Vision - Final
	Annex CPerformance Management Framework 2016-2019

	7 York Central
	Annex 1 (Exec 14.7.15)

	8 The Guildhall - Detailed Designs & Business Case
	Annex 1a STAGE III EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	Annexe 1c A1_1321-RR-STAGE 3 DRAWINGS 160608low res
	1321 colour elevation
	1321 colour section

	Annex 2i Commercial Valuation
	Annex 2 ii CW Proposal (Restaurant) - Confidential
	Annex 2 iii Floorspace ref GH income model

	9 Demonstrating Progress on the Older Persons’ Accommodation Programme
	Annex 1 Plan of the Lowfields Site
	CONFIDENTIAL ANNEX 2, Demonstrating Progress on the Older Persons' Accommodation Programme - Executive 14th July 2016, final

	10 Prevention and Early Intervention Services - a proposal for a new way of working
	Annex A - Local Area Teams v2 2
	Annex B - Children's Centres v5 0
	Annex C - City wide and city centre youth offer draft v3 0
	Annex D - Canon Lee School Case Study

	11 Children and Young People in Care: York's New Strategy 2016-2020
	Annex 1 Children & Young People in Care Strategy 2016 2020




